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CORPORATE MISSION
DA

Backed by an established corporate track record, technological excellence and strong
mergers and acquisitions capabilities, SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. envisages itself as a
leading operator and investor in the environment industry in the People’'s Republic of China
by adhering to the development model of integrating industry and finance. In the pursuit of
company growth, we remain committed to protecting the planet, conserving the environment
and preserving natural resources

2 SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (“SIIC Environment”, stock code: BHK.SG, 807.HK) is a top-
tier integrated player in China's water and environmental markets. It is engaged in wastewater
treatment, water supply, sludge treatment, solid waste incineration and other environment
related businesses. Headquartered in Singapore and listed on the Mainboard of SGX-ST, the
Company successfully launched on the Mainboard of SEHK in 2018. Being the controlling
shareholder of SIIC Environment, Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL", SEHK
stock code: 363.HK) was established in 1996, with infrastructure, real estate and consumer
products as the core businesses. China Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection
Group (“CECEP"), an important strategic investor of the Company, is a state-owned enterprise
mainly engaged in energy conservation and environmental protection, which was reorganized
and established in 2010 with the approval of the State Council. SIIC Environment has shown
tremendous growth and continued to increase its market share in China's environmental
market.

SIIC Environment is an active investor and operator in the environmental protection
industry, with an operating history of more than 15 years in China. Currently, it boasts an
overall portfolio of about 250 wastewater treatment and water supply projects, 5 solid waste
incineration projects and 13 sludge treatment projects across 20 municipalities, provinces
and special administrative region in China, namely Shandong, Guangdong, Hubei, Hunan,
Jiangsu, Shanghai, Zhejiang, Jiangxi, Anhui, Fujian, Guangxi, Ningxia, Henan, Liaoning,
Inner Mongolia, Shanxi, Sichuan, Jilin, Heilongjiang and Macau Special Administrative
Region.

Leveraging on the Group’s distinctive strategic positioning and business model, SIIC
Environment will continue to expand its business in water and solid waste treatment
and proactively explore opportunities in other environmental-related markets such as
industrial wastewater treatment, seawater desalination, sludge treatment and disposal, soil
remediation, renewable energy, water treatment technology and pollution prevention. The
Group is committed to expanding its market share, increasing its scale and efficiency, and
consolidating its leading position in China's water and environmental protection industry.
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BUSINESS STRUCTURE
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PROJECT LOCATION MAP
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Valued
Shareholders,

FUDHHBRR :

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to
announce the results of SIIC Environment Holdings
Ltd. (*SIIC Environment” or the ‘Company’,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the
12 months ended 31 December 2023 (‘FY2023").
In FY2023, the Group actively responded to the
challenges and complex and volatile environment
by adjusting and upgrading its management team to
consolidate its foundation, as well as to strictly control
financial risks and steadily advance the operation of
projects. For the year, the Group’s revenue amounted
to RMB7.573 billion and net profit attributable to
shareholders reached RMB604 million. A total of
five quality wastewater treatment projects with a total
designed capacity of close to 200,000 tonnes per day
were awarded to the Group during the year.
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Enhanced management and new landscape created amid changes

The global economic environment remained complex and volatile in FY2023. China’s
economy faced challenges such as declining demand, supply shocks and weakening growth
expectations, with local governments continuing to be troubled by severe debt issues.
The new PPP regulations have had far-reaching implications on the industry, and the
environmental water industry has been undergoing profound change. However, to complement
the country’s “dual carbon” policy, China has been actively promoting environmental
protection policies to drive the development of the industry. As highlighted in the “Guidelines
to Comprehensively Promote the Development of a Beautiful China” (B 2 EHEEEEF
B = R) issued by the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China and the
State Council, China will essentially realize the “Beautiful China" goal by 2035, and complete
construction of a “Beautiful China” by the middle of the century. China has launched a series
of policies, including “Guideline on National Water Network Construction” (BIZ /K4 K
FEIME), “Water Ecological Environment Protection Planning for Key River Basins" (E%
Tk AR R (R £ E]), “Special Plan for the Ecological Green Integrated Development
Demonstration Zone of the Yangtze River Delta (2021-2035)" (=M1 resrm—ae( 3
RN D [ A AR IE HIA 1 2(2021-20354F)), and “Implementation Opinions on Promoting
Wastewater Treatment to Reduce Pollution and Carbon, Creating Synergies and Strengthening
Efficiency” (BRAHERE S KRIRS R BRI MM EREE R), which have attracted greater
attention to issues pertaining to environmental protection and carbon emission reduction,
creating important development opportunities for the environmental protection and wastewater
treatment industries.

In FY2023, the Group adjusted and upgraded its management team, actively formulated plans
for strengthening the construction of headquarters, perfected the management systems and
improved the corporate governance structure, as well as introduced the professional and lean
management model to intensify synergies. The new management team will lead all employees
in working together to improve management, consolidate the core competitiveness of the
Company, and steadily build more business growth drivers, with the aim of laying a solid
foundation for the Group’s sustainable and healthy development.

Controlled risks and explored opportunities amid challenges

In FY2023, the Group’s financial expenses increased due to changes in the international
financial market, such as interest rate hikes in the US. To address this, the Group proactively
adopted measures to tackle liquidity risks and ensure financial stability. With sufficient
facilities granted by the banks and the ability to settle the Group’s current liabilities, the
Group plans to replace its short-term borrowing which carries a relatively high interest rate
with long-term borrowings at a lower interest rate, and continue to optimize its financing
structure to further strengthen the prevention and control of capital risks. As of 31 December
2023, the Group's cash and cash equivalents and operating cash flow per share were at
healthy levels.

However, the recovery of receivables slowed due to the impact of local government debt in
China, hence the Group will enhance fund recovery and shorten recovery cycles. In the face
of challenges posed by the external environment and the development of internal projects, the
Group has remained focused on its core businesses of water and sludge treatment, sought to
secure new projects and steadily advanced existing projects. In FY2023, the Group acquired
5 new wastewater treatment projects, and it reached agreements with 17 wastewater treatment
projects involving upgrade, expansion, fariff increase and extension of the operation and
maintenance (“0&M”) period. Three upgrade and expansion projects were completed and
have commenced commercial operation. As at the end of FY2023, the Group had nearly 250
wastewater treatment and water supply projects with a total production capacity of 13.16
million tonnes per day.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FREHE

While the Group has continued to acquire high-quality new projects, the volume of
wastewater treatment and treatment fee have also steadily increased. In FY2023, the Group's
wastewater treatment volume rose by 2.2% year-on-year to 2,525 million tonnes, and the
average wastewater treatment fee (in the fourth quarter) increased by 7.8% year-on-year
to RMB1.87/tonne. The rise in wastewater treatment volume and treatment fee boosted the
Group's revenue from water and sludge treatment by 6.55% to RMB5,030 million. Also, the
Group's gross profit increased by 2.7% from the same period last year to RMB2,704 million
in FY2023. However, as the primary engineering component of the Group’s waste incineration
project — Shanghai Baoshan Renewable Energy Utilization Center (the “Baoshan Project”), was
completed at the end of 2022, construction revenue has declined in FY2023. Coupled with
other factors, the Group’s 2023 results experienced temporary fluctuations.

The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of S$0.006 per ordinary share.

Technology-empowered quality development

The year 2024 marks the 75th anniversary of the founding of the People’s Republic of China.
It is also a crucial year for the Group to implement the “14th Five-Year Plan” and deepen
the reform of state-owned enterprises. As the country continues to step up implementation
of major strategies such as “Development of the Yangtze River Economic Belt”, “Integration
of the Yangtze River Delta”, and “Ecological Protection of the Yellow River Basin’, the
environmental protection industry will welcome new development opportunities. Regarding
the digitalization of water affairs, in February 2023, the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China and the State Council issued the “The Overall Layout of the Country's
Digital Development’ (2 + BlZ M B E]) to promote in-depth integration of the
digital economy and real economy. The Group has actively responded to national policies,
with encouraging progress made in the digitalization of water services in FY2023. In the
future, the Group will further increase investment in research and development, accumulate
technological expertise, and strengthen the virtuous cycle of research innovation and outcome
transformation. It will enhance development of smart water management construction, improve
water management capability, reduce costs and boost efficiency while ensuring the discharge
of water is stable and compliant. As for the environmental, social and corporate governance
("ESG") construction, the Group has continued to practice ESG concept by fully integrating
the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals into its ESG policies and development
plans, and has continuously upgraded the ESG system. In terms of project operation and
corporate management, the Group has always adhered to green carbon reduction and strictly
controlled total carbon emissions. As the task of reform, innovation and development in the
future will be arduous, the Group will continue to uphold innovation-driven development,
optimize its layout, strive to cultivate new quality productivity, improve modern governance,
and unswervingly follow the path of high-quality sustainable development to make greater
contributions to modernization with Chinese characteristics.
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Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express our highest respect to all
employees for their dedication, and sincerely thank all shareholders, customers and business
partners for their longstanding trust and support for the Group.

In the future, the Group will continue to seize opportunities from national strategies and
policies, be attentive to high-quality new projects and business M&A opportunities, and
increase expansion efforts in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and the
Yangtze River Economic Belt. It will increase its market share, continue to consolidate its
foundation, empower corporate development with technological innovation, and enhance the
Company's core competitiveness. The Group will reinforce its leading position in China’s
water and environmental protection industries, and strive to bring fruitful investment returns
to shareholders.

Mr. Zhou Yuding
Chairman of the Board and Executive Director
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Financial Highlights

Since FY2019, the Group has seen a CAGR of 6.2%, 0.2% and 7.0% in our revenue, profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company and EBITDA to RMB7.6 billion, RMB604.0
million and RMB2.7 billion for FY2023 respectively. In addition, assets base in terms of both
total assets and net assets have also increased significantly over the years to RMB42.6 billion
and RMB15.3 billion, respectively. Steady growth in the profitability and strengthening of
balance sheet position were attributed mainly to the expansion achieved through high-quality
growth strategy.

(A) Strong Growth &)L R

¥R

82019815 2 - AEERA - ARRHER ARIEFR
ME - BRI EREHEAMAE(EBITDAMEFERRER
#(CAGR) 7% 51 56.2% + 0.2%H7.0% * 20238 % 7 7
BARKBTORT - ARW6.04ETMARB2TET -
IO RREFENEERRMFEAENHELN -
DAEARBA6ETMARKIS3ET - REZRM
BARNNSERDNEERBERIERARBERS
BERRBMBATEBRE -

Revenue (RMB Million) Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company (RMB Million)
WA AREES) AREEEAREFE(ARERE)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Total Assets and Net Assets (RMB Million) EBITDA®™ (RMB Million)
BEAREFEE (ARKAE) BRTERBHAANEO(AREES)
42,608
40545 21317
37,514 B
w8418
3367 21730
20,507
2,045
R " Total assets
14815 ] BT
g0 13022 B éé g
k Total liabilities
afEnE
I Net Assets
FEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

() EBITDA = profit before tax + financial expenses + depreciation & amortisation
SRmEREHEAFE= RAF S BB ERE
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(B) BOT, TOT, BOO and TOO Projects Provide Stable Cash Flow, increasing Visibility of the Group’s Future Earnings

BOT - TOT - BOOMITOORE M TRENR LR - THRAKEARBINER

Change in revenue composition

Operating and service income and financial income from service concession

ZEE R arrangements (RMB Million)
RERBRALBRBHICLEZHEBBAAREEE)
599 63% 62% 57% 73% Il Financial income from
Service concession
Water Treatment, anangements
s Eransy
sludge treatment 2,882 SRBA
KEEE -~ oK - 2,568
BERENSERE Operating and service
o 37% income from water
S0k 34% 34% Construction treatment, water supply,
25% g% waste incineration and
1063 1,1 1248 1232 sludge treatment
) ) Other ’ IR K
B B B & B moe “1 [ I [ ERETASER
2019 20_20 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 RERBBRA
Key Financial Data For the Financial Year Ended 31 December BE12ANALMBEENTEMERE
2023 2022 Change %
Results (RMB’000) ER®(AE%TR) 2023 20224 88H%
Revenue A 7,572,892 8,303,884 (8.8%)
Gross profit E7 2,704,362 2,633,102 2.7%
Profit for the year FRFIHE 1,019,656 1,121,781 (9.1%)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company A2 &% A AL F R F)E 604,018 780,196 (22.6%)
Earnings per share (RMB cents) FREF (ARES)
— Basic (a) ~ B (a) 23.45 30.29 (22.6%)
— Diluted - 23.45 30.29 (22.6%)
(a)  Computed based on weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the respective () RIEEBETEBRAEZ12A31 B ILZHBFE N
financial year ended 31 December ETHEHE
2023 2022 Change %
Financial Position (RMB'000) MR (AERTRT) 2023F 2002% 8%
Total assets EELT 42,607,940 40,545,215 5.1%
Net assets (Total equity) FEE (BER) 15,290,456 14,814,572 3.2%
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ERAHEE ARG ER 10,131,507 9,815,560 3.2%
Net assets per share (b) (RMB cents) BRFEE(D) (ARES) 393.35 381.09 3.2%
Number of shares (excluding treasury shares) BRHEE (TREEFRR) 2,575,665,726 2,575,665,726 0%
(b)  Equity attributable to owners of the Company divided by the outstanding number of ordinary (b)) ARFREEAEGERBRABETOZERYE

shares
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Overall

As the Group’s major construction project, Shanghai Baoshan Renewable Energy Utilization
Center (“Baoshan Project”) for which the construction activities were substantially
completed by the end of 2022, the construction revenue decreased by 37.1% YQY; Due to
the commencing of operation for Baoshan project by stages, and also increase in average
wastewater treatment tariff, operating and maintenance income increased by 14.3%; the
composition of operating and maintenance income gradually increased, and the profit
structure has become more robust. The Group recorded overall decrease in revenue from
RMB8.3 billion in FY2022 to RMB7.6 billion in FY2023, YoY decrease of 8.8%; gross
profit climbed by 2.7% YQY from RMB2,633.1 million in FY2022 to RMB2,704.4 million in
FY2023.

Overall, the Group recorded a decrease in profit attributable to owners of the Company from
RMB780.2 million for FY2022 to RMB604.0 million for FY2023, representing a YoY decrease
0f 22.6%.

Equity

The Group’s total equity as at 31 December 2023 amounted to RMB15.3 billion, strengthened
from RMB14.8 billion as at 31 December 2022. The increase reflected the total comprehensive
income of RMB853.1 million recorded for FY2023 and the proportional capital injection from
non-controlling interest shareholder, offset with interim and final dividend paid during the
year.

Cash Flow
During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the followings were recorded:

(1) healthy net cash generated from the Group’s operating activities before service
concession arrangement projects amounted to RMB2,162.6 million;

(2) net cash used in the Group’s investing activities amounted to RMB1,434.0 million,
mainly due to purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;

(3) et cash used in financing activities of RMB89.5 million was mainly due to the net
proceeds from bank and other borrowings, acquisition of non-controlling interest
and contribution from non-controlling interest upon additional capital injection in
subsidiaries, which are partially offset by interest paid and interim and final dividend
paid to equity shareholders.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's cash and cash equivalents stood at RMB2.89 billion (31
December 2022: RMB2.51 billion).

12 SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Analysis of Key Items in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Revenue

Revenue decreased from RMB8,303.9 million in 2022 to RMB7,572.9 million in 2023, of
which construction revenue decreased by 37.1% to RMB1,868.2 million in 2023 compared
to previous financial year. This was mainly due to construction activities of Baoshan Project
which had been substantially completed at the end of 2022 and commenced operations during
2023. The aggregate of operating and maintenance income and financial income from service
concession arrangements increased by 10.1% to RMB5,181.5 million in 2023 compared
to 2022. The increase was largely due to higher waste incineration revenue generated by
Baoshan Project which commenced operations during the year, and also higher volume and
average price in water treatment and water supply.

Water and sludge treatment

Revenue from our water and sludge treatment business line increased from RMB4,720.9
million in 2022 to RMB5,030.1 million in 2023. Construction revenue decreased from
RMB1,277.9 million in 2022 to RMB960.7 million in 2023. Operating and maintenance
income from service concession arrangements increased from RMB2,309.7 million in 2022
to RMB2,860.3 million in 2023. The increase was mainly due to (i) higher water treatment
and sales volume; and (ii) increased average treatment tariff. Overall revenue growth for this
business line in 2023 as compared to 2022, was mainly contributed by the net increase in
operating and maintenance income under service concession arrangements, offset by a minor
decrease in construction revenue.

Water supply

Revenue from our water supply business line increased from RMB1,340.6 million in 2022
to RMB1,376.0 million in 2023. The increase in revenue of this business line was due to
construction revenue were slightly higher.

Waste incineration

Revenue from our waste incineration business line decreased from RMB1,753.9 million in
2022 to RMB976.2 million in 2023, with construction revenue decreasing from RMB1,474.9
million in 2022 and RMB504.0 million in 2023. It was mainly due to the construction
activities of Baoshan Project had been completed during the year and had been put into
operation.

Others business line

Revenue from our others business line decreased from RMB488.4 million in 2022 to
RMB190.7 million in 2023. Variance in revenue was mainly due to the decrease in the volume
of installation works carried out, which were ad-hoc in nature.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWEDH

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group'’s gross profit increased by RMB71.3 million or 2.7% from RMB2,633.1 million in
2022 to RMB2,704.4 million in 2023. The increase in gross profit was primarily driven by the
increase in operating and maintenance income from service concession arrangements.

The gross profit margin in 2023 was 35.7%, representing an increase of 4.0% as compared to
the corresponding period in the previous year. The increase in profit margin was mainly due
to (i) the profit margin for construction revenue is usually lower among all streams of revenue
and the construction revenue recorded in 2023 accounted for a smaller percentage of the
total revenue as compared to 2022, thus improving the overall margin; (ii) Baoshan Project
which contributed a higher gross profit margin among the projects commenced operation in
FY2023.

Other income

Our other income increased from RMB121.9 million in 2022 to RMB181.3 million in 2023.
The increase was primarily due to the increment in volume of work and production not related
to core business activities.

Other gains and losses

Our other gains and losses swung from a gain of RMB6.8 million in 2022 to a loss of
RMB16.4 million in 2023 largely due to the accumulated unrealised foreign exchange loss
recorded in the current year and loss allowance recorded.

Selling and distribution costs

Our selling and distribution costs decreased from RMB80.2 million in 2022 to RMB79.6
million in 2023. The decrease in the selling and distribution costs was mainly due to
improvement of repair and maintenance costs.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased from RMB518.2 million in 2022 to RMB576.5 million in
2023. The overall increase in administrative expenses was mainly caused by the increase in
manpower costs and administrative expenses for the newly acquired subsidiaries since the
end of 2022, which is in line with the growth in overall revenue and water treatment volume.

Finance expenses

Finance expenses increased by RMB119.0 million from RMB715.2 million in 2022 to
RMB834.3 million in 2023. The increase in 2023 is predominantly contributed by our
overseas borrowings are mainly floating rate loans in Hongkong dollars and Singapore
dollars. Changes in the international financial market environment affected by the US dollar
interest rate hike eventually increased the finance expenses.
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Share of results of joint ventures

The share of result of joint ventures decreased from RMB26.8 million in 2022 to RMB10.8
million in 2023 as the joint venture, Shanghai Pucheng Thermal Power Energy Co., Ltd
ceased its waste incineration production and commenced its garbage transfer business in
August 2023, hence contributed less to profit as compared to the previous financial year.

Share of results of associates

Our share of results of associates decreased from RMB10.9 million in 2022 to RMB3.9
million in 2023 due to lower contribution from associates in China.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased from RMB364.2 million in 2022 to RMB373.9 million
in 2023. The overall increase in income tax expenses was due to higher taxable income
generated during the year. Our effective income tax rate was 24.5% and 26.8% in 2022 and
2023 respectively.

Profit for the year and net profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year decreased from RMB1,121.8 million in
2022 to RMB1,019.7 million in 2023, and our net profit margin for 2022 and 2023 were
consistent, reporting 13.5%.

Analysis of Key Items of Financial Position
Receivables under service concession arrangements
Our receivables under service concession arrangements were RMB23,549.4 million and

RMB23,261.2 million as at 31 December 2022 and 2023, respectively, of which RMB22,816.3
million and RMB22,374.1 million were classified as non-current assets respectively.

Intangible assets

Our intangible assets were RMB7,070.4 million and RMB8,667.7 million as at 31 December
2022 and 2023, respectively, of which RMB7,052.4 million and RMB8,651.6 million,
respectively, were intangible assets related to operating concessions. The increase in
intangible assets related to operating concessions was primarily due to construction of new
projects in fiscal year 2023.

Goodwill

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of our goodwill remained unchanged at
RMB457.2 million.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWEDH

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) investment

As at 31 December 2023, our FVTOCI investments balance remained unchanged at RMB13.4
million.

Inventories

Our inventories were RMB233.5 million and RMB250.1 million as at 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2023, respectively. Our average inventory turnover days improved from 16.7
days for the year ended 31 December 2022 to 18.1 days for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Trade and other receivables

Our trade and other receivables increased from RMB4,523.9 million as at 31 December 2022
to RMB4,990.4 million as at 31 December 2023, which was primarily influenced by the
expansion in operation scale in 2023 and the delay in the debts collection for some projects.
Our average trade receivable turnover days recorded 128.6 days for the year ended 31
December 2022 and 179.7 days for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Prepayments

Our current prepayments remained stable, standing at RMB72.1 million and RMB69.0 million
as at both 31 December 2022 and 2023 respectively. Our non-current prepayments increased
from RMB175.2 million as at 31 December 2022 to RMB394.7 million as at 31 December
2023. The changes were mainly due to the increase in prepayments made for certain
infrastructure relating to BOT service concession arrangements in 2023.

FVTPL investment

Our FVTPL investment value increased from RMB9.42 million as at 31 December 2022
to RMB9.58 million as at 31 December 2023. Other than the put option, all remaining
investments are equity securities, which were based on quoted market prices for our
investment in equity securities on the last market day of the respective financial years.

Trade and other payables

Our trade and other payables increased from RMB3,912.0 million as at 31 December 2022
to RMB4,306.4 million as at 31 December 2023. The increase in trade payables from
RMB2,242.4 million as at 31 December 2022 to RMB2,324.8 million as at 31 December 2023
was primarily due to the new projects. The other payables were RMB1,669.6 million and
RMB1,981.7 million, respectively, as at those dates. Our average trade payable turnover days
increased from 157.1 days for the year ended 31 December 2022 to 171.2 days for the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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Material acquisitions and disposals

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any other material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during 2023.

Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2023.

Capital structure

The shares of the Company are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Company during 2023. The capital of the Company consists of net debts,
which includes borrowings, net cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits and other reserves.

Borrowings and interest

Details of borrowings are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. Interest
and other borrowing costs are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pledge on assets

The aggregate carrying value of assets pledged by the Group to secure banking facilities
granted by banks, leased assets by leasing company and use of certain operating concession
assets as at 31 December 2023 was as follows:

a) Pledged bank deposits with an aggregate carrying value of RMB63,010,000 (31
December 2022: RMB93,880,000);

b)  Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying value of RMB6,392,000 (31
December 2022: RMB7,927,000);

c¢) Investment in a subsidiary with an aggregate carrying value of RMB260,000,000 (31
December 2022: RMB150,000,000);

d) Intangible assets with an aggregate carrying value of RMB1,432,240,000 (31 December
2022: RMB1,413,402,000);

e)  Land use rights with an aggregate carrying value of RMB555,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB671,000);

f)  Trade receivables with an aggregate carrying value of RMB159,450,000 (31 December
2022: RMB143,049,000); and

g)  Receivables under service concession arrangements with an aggregate carrying value of
RMB13,465,554,000 (31 December 2022: RMB13,407,455,000).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWEDH

Significant investment held

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2023, the Group did not hold any
significant investments.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have other plans for material
investments and capital assets as at 31 December 2023.

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards its treasury
policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout 2023. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations
of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in China and have limited foreign currency exposures as bulk
of the sales and purchases are denominated in the respective functional currencies of the
Group's entities which are mainly RMB. The exposure in exchange rate risks mainly arise
from fluctuations in the Singapore dollar, Hongkong dollar and Renminbi exchange rates. The
management carefully monitors foreign currency exposure and will also consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures and adopting suitable measures where necessary.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Part of the risks and uncertainties are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report”, “Directors’ Statement” and “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements” of this annual report. Further details of financial
risks of the Group are disclosed in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements for
FY2023.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had current assets of approximately RMB9,271.0 million
(as at 31 December 2022: RMB8,325.2 million) which comprised cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB2,885.8 million (as at 31 December 2022: RMB2,512.6 million), mainly
denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had non-current liabilities of
approximately RMB17,059.1 million (as at 31 December 2022: RMB17,843.5 million), and
its current liabilities amounted to approximately RMB10,258.3 million (as at 31 December
2022: RMB7,887.2 million), consisting mainly of bank and other borrowings. Accordingly,
the current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to current liabilities, was approximately 0.90
times as at 31 December 2023 (as at 31 December 2022: 1.06 times). The Group’s working
capital requirements were mainly financed by both external and internal resources.

Subsequent events

Save as disclosed in Note 48 to the consolidated financial statements for FY2023, there were
no significant events after the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report.
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PROJECT OVERVIEW

BE-E

Wastewater Treatment (WT)/ BFKEE
Reclaimed Water Treatment (RWT) Projects kB BIER
Province,/
Municipality/ Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
SAR Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests  Project Progress Requirement
&/ / AEH
BATHE  EAER HEER (W) fiibER BEER KEEX
1 Fujian Anxi County Longmen Town WWTP BOT Project 1st Phase WWT 12,500 100.0%  In operation; upgrading to be Class | Standard B
constructed
BR ZEGRMETKEERBOTIER —H KGR BARE : REFE —fBIEE
2 Fujian Anxi County Longmen Town WWTP BOT Project 2nd Phase ~ WWT 12,500 100.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard B
"R ZREEMETKRERBOTIEE Z 4 SKEE (&3 —RBIRE
3 Fujian Anxi County Longmen Town WWTP BOT Forward Project WWT 25,000 100.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard B
&R ZRERPIRS KR ERMBOTR B E KRR &34 — B
4 Guangdong Dongguan City Dalang Songshanhu Southern WWTP Project ~ WWT 100,000 75.5%  Inoperation; upgrading under Class | Standard B
construction by government
ER REMARLLHEHHKEERER KGR BARE  RELE AEAER —RBIEE
5 Guangdong Dongguan City Shijie Shayao WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 60,000 75.5%  Inoperation; upgrading under Class | Standard B
construction by government
ER REMABEYESKEER—HIREE KGR BARE  REERE  BEFER —RBEE
6  Guangdong Dongguan City Fenggang Yantian WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 75.5%  Inoperation; upgrading under Class | Standard B
construction by government
BR REmBEERSKRER_HER KRR BARE  REEE  BIFESR —RBEE
7 Guangdong Dongguan Sanzhou WWTP Project 1st and 2nd Phases WWT 150,000 355% I operation COD applied local
discharge limit
Class I; the others
applied Class |
Standard B
ER FEmREZNBOT— —HHEE KGR BAEE COD#RM 7 B R A
—RIEE  Ethig
B-RBEE
8  Guangdong Huizhou City Meihu Water Purification Center Project 1st Phase  WWT 100,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard B
ER BINTIEKE L —HEE KRR BARE — B
9 Guangdong Huizhou City Meihu Water Purification Center Project 2nd WWT 100,000 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard B
Phase
ER BINTEKE S0 —HE R KRR BARE — B
10 Guangdong Huizhou City Meihu Water Purification Center 1st and 2nd WWT 200,000 100.0%  In operation; upgrading to be Superior Class |
Phases (Advanced Treatment Project) constructed Standard A
ER ENTEIKEF PO —HRERETRER KRR RARE : REFE ER—RAGE
11 Guangdong Huizhou City Meihu Water Purification Center Project 3rd WWT 100,000 100.0% In operation; upgrading to be Superior Class |
Phase constructed Standard A
ER BINTEHKE S L =B IRIER KRR BABE  REFE BR—RAGE
12 Guangdong Pinghu WWTP Project WWT 25,000 100.0% In operation Quasi Grade IV
EX s KRERER KRR BABE HEIVERE
13 Guangdong Pinghu WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT 55,000 100.0%  In operation Quasi Grade IV
BER TR KRERERER KRR BABE HEIVESE
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PROJECT OVERVIEW

BE
HE-E
Province,/
Municipality/ Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
SAR Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests  Project Progress Requirement
&/ m/ AER
BRTHE BEEER BEER (1) fritEs HEER KEEX
14 Guangdong Pudixia WWTP Project WWT 50,000 100.0% In operation Quasi Grade IV
ER 5K R RUE B KRR RARE HEIVERE
15 Guangdong Egongling WWTP Project WWT 50,000 100.0% In operation Quasi Grade IV
ER BRESKRERER KRR RARE HEIVERE
16 Guangdong Henggang WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 100,000 100.0% In operation Quasi Grade IV
ER RETKEER_HER KRR BARE HEIVEIRE
17 Guangdong Henggang Reclaimed Water Plant Project RWT 50,000 100.0%  In operation Water Quality
Standard for Urban
Miscellaneous
Water Consumption
ER EESKEERAEKER HkEA EAgE WmARKKERE
18 Guangdong Wuchuan City WWTP Project WWT 40,000 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
ER RINTEKEERER KRR BAgE —RAZE
19 Macau Macau Taipa WWTP 0&M Project WWT 69,000 60.0% Inoperation Local Discharge
Standard
sl BRI KERRRTELRE KRR BABE HHEE
20 Macau Macau International Airport WWTP 0&M Project WWT 685 60.0% Inoperation Local Discharge
Standard
il RMEREG KRR TELER KRR BARE wHEE
21 Macau Macau Avenida Marginal do Lam Mau temporary WWTP Project WWT 20,000 40.0%  To be constructed Local Discharge
Standard
il RPMKEEASRERKREER KRR o WTiRE
22 Guangxi Beihai Hongkan WWTP Project WWT 200,000 90.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
ER LB KERR KRR RARE —HARE
23 Guangxi Beihai Daguansha WWTP Project WWT 20,000 90.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
ER HEARY S KRER KRR BARE —RARE
24 Guangxi Beinai Economic Development Zone WWTP O&M Project 1st ~ WWT 45,000 90.0% Inoperation N/A
Phase
EA LEEEETKEER—BETELER KRR BARE TiEA
25 Guangxi Beiliu City Urban WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 40,000 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
ERA LTRSS KEERIE— S8R KRR RARE — AR
26 Guangxi Beiliu City Urban WWTP Upgrade and Expansion Project WWT 40,000 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
ER ERTRE S KR ERRERRES KRR BARE — AR
27 Henan Xiping County 3rd WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 30,000 69.1%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
L ATEE=AKRER—HER KRR BARE —RARE
28 Henan Xiping County 3rd WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 20,000 69.1%  To be constructed Class I Standard A
L ATEE=AKRER_HER KRR & —RARE
29 Henan Luohe City Dong Cheng WWTP Project 1t Phase WWT 20,000 75.5%  In operation Quasi Grade IV
e BT RS KEEH—SER KRR RARE BIVESE
30 Henan Luohe City Dong Cheng WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 30,000 755%  In operation Quasi Grade IV
ke TR KRR B R E A KRR BABE BIVESE
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Province,/

Municipality/ Daily Capacity Effective Water Quality
SAR Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests  Project Progress Requirement
&/ m/ AE#
BHTHE ERER BEER (W) fritEs HEER KEEX
31 Henan Nanyang City Baihenan WWTP Project WWT 100,000 69.1% I operation Class | Standard A
ks BETEIETKEERLIE KRR RARE —RAZE
32 Henan Suiping County 1st WWTP Project WWT 30,000 69.1% In operation Class | Standard A
e BYPEE—KRERIER KRR RARE — AR
33 Henan Suiping County 2nd WWTP Project WWT 10,000 69.1% I operation Class | Standard A
e BTEEKRERIER KRR RARE —RAZE
34 Hubei Huangshi City Cihu WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 125,000 75.3% I operation Class | Standard B
bl BRMENTKEER _HIRER KRR RARE —fBiZE
35 Hubei Hanxi WWTP Project WWT 340,000 80.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
bl ERTKEERER KRR BARE —RAZE
36 Hubei Hanxi WWTP Expansion Project (including Hanxi ST Project) ~ WWT 260,000 80.0% I operation Class | Standard A
bl ERAKRERGERIRER (REERSRREER)  KEE RARE —RAZE
37 Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Qianchuan WWTP Project 1st WWT 30,000 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
Phase
bl RETEREA)TKEER—-HIE KRR RARE —RAZE
38 Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District New Qianchuan WWTP Project ~ WWT 60,000 100.0%  Under construction Class | Standard A
bl RETmERENA)SKEERIIZER KRR i — AR
39 Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Panlongcheng WWTP Project st~ WWT 22,500 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
Phase
Eibie RETERERETKEER—H KRR RARE —RAZE
40 Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Panlongcheng WWTP Project WWT 22,500 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
(Continued Construction)
ibie RENERERENTKRERERLE KRR BARE —HAEE
41 Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Panlongcheng WWTP Project 2nd  WWT 55,000 100.0%  Under construction Class | Standard A
Phase
lis!A RENERERELSKEER S KRR i —RAZE
42 Hubei Wuhan Economy and Technology Development Zone WWTP WWT 60,000 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard B
Project 1st Phase
islA RELERMAERTKERRER—H KRR BABE —BEE
43 Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Wuhu WWTP Project 1st Phase ~ WWT 25,000 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
bl RETERERMTKEER—HER KRR BABE —RAZE
44" Hubei Suizhou City Cheng Nan WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 922%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
ibls BEM TSR E R — A B KRR BRAEE —RAZE
45 Sichuan Shijiaba WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 19,000 95.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
mi BESAKEER(—H) B8 KRR BARE —HAZE
46 Sichuan Shijiaba WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT 11,000 95.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
)l AEBSKRERERER KRR i —ARE
47 Sichuan Jiangnan WWTP Project WWT 7,500 95.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
)l IEEKEERER KRR RABE —HARE
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48 Hunan Chenzhou City WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 80,000 100.0% In operation; upgrading to be Class | Standard B
operated
il WHmsKEER—HER KRR RARE  REFES —fBEE
49 Hunan Chenzhou City WWTP Project 1st Phase (Expansion) WWT 40,000 100.0%  In operation; upgrading to be Class | Standard B
operated
il WHTSKERR - BERER KRR BRAEE  REEFES —fiBiz%
50 Hunan Taojiang County Taohuajiang WWTP Project WWT 20,000 75.5%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
il & L5k RIRER KRR BAgE —RARE
51" Hunan Taojiang County Taohuajiang 1st WWTP Upgrade and WWT 10,000 75.5%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
Expansion Project
i I IE -5 kR R ER TIZER KRR EAgE — AR
52 Hunan Yiyang City Gaoxin District East New District WWTP Project 1st WWT 30,000 75.5%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
Phase
il whmENERSNEKRERER 5 KRR BARE —RARE
53 Hunan Yiyang City Gaoxin District East New District WWTP Forward ~ WWT 30,000 75.5%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
Project
i3] wEmERSNE S KRERERES KRR i —RARE
54 Hunan Yiyang City Cheng Bei WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 40,000 75.5%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
il wEmHILTKERBBOTIER — & KRR BARE —RARE
55 Hunan Yiyang City Cheng Bei WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 40,000 75.5%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
(Expansion, Upgrade and Reconstruction)
i3] wETHIL T KEER - BRER R EIEER KRR BARE —ARE
56 Jiangsu Wuxi Huishan Economic Development Zone WWTP Project WWT 100,000 50.8% In operation Class | Standard
A (the first 4
phases). Discharge
Standard of Main
Water Pollutants
for Municipal
Wastewater
Treatment Plant &
Key Industries of
Taihu Area (the 5th
phase)
T AEmRILEERERSKEEER KRR BAgE —HAZE (RIT
#) - KB ES
BEKREHRE
BIXTETEK
AR E
(EnH)
57 Jiangsu Jingjiang City Xingang Park WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 20,000 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
L& BImiEEE S KEE—HHE KRR BARE —RAZE
58 Jiangsu Jingjiang City Xingang Park WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 20,000 100.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
T EImHARRSKEE-HER KRR 2 —RABE
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59 Jiangsu Jingjiang City Xingang Park WWTP Project 3rd Phase WWT 40,000 100.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
JLE BImAAEEKRR=HEE KRR 2 —RAZE
60 Jiangsu Shuyang County Cheng Nan WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 30,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard A
JLE MBS KEER—EER KRR RARE — AR
61 Jiangsu Shuyang County Cheng Nan WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 30,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard A
L& MBS KA ER_EER KRR RARE —RAZE
62 Jiangsu Taixing City Huanggiao WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 25,000 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
L& REMEBIKEER—HER KRR RARE —RAZE
63 Jiangsu Taixing City Huanggiao WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 25,000 100.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
L& REMEBIKEER_EER KRR e —RAZE
64 Jiangsu Nantong City Guanyinshan WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 25,000 92.2% In operation Class | Standard A
JL# HATEE LS KRERER (—5) KRR BARE —RAZE
65 Jiangsu Nantong City Guanyinshan WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 48,000 92.2%  In operation Class | Standard A
L& HATEE LS KRERER (Z5) KRR BARE —RAZE
66 Jiangsu Taizhou Bingjiang Industrial Park WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 20,000 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
JL# FINBITZE S KEEH— S8R KRR BARE —RAZE
67 Jiangsu Changshu Southeast (Guli Town) WWTP Project WWT 40,000 100.0%  In operation Discharge Standard
of Main Water
Pollutants for
Municipal WWTP
& Key Industries of
Taihu Area
T# PRRE(H2E)KEER KRR BARE Nt ES R kE
BRRERTIEN
FXBKRLME
HkfE
68 Jiangsu Changshu Southeast (Guli Town) WWTP Project Forward WWT 20,000 100.0%  In operation Discharge Standard
Project of Main Water
Pollutants for
Municipal WWTP
& Key Industries of
Taihu Area
L& BARE (H2E) KRERESEE KRR RARE AR BT KE
ERmREXTIEN
EXTKRLMH
HRME
69 Jiangsu Huanggiao Industrial Park WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 10,000 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
L ERIXERTKEER (—5)ER KRR BARE —RAZE
70 Jiangsu Huanggiao Industrial Park WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 10,000 100.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
LE BRIZERSKEER(ZH)EE RN g —RARE
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71 Jiangsu Huanggiao Industrial Park WWTP Project 1st Phase Water RWT 3,000 100.0%  In operation Reclaimed water
Reclamation Program quality standards
L& BRIXEEKEER(—H) BT KEATIR LNk BARE BEOKERE
72 Jiangsu Huangqiao Industrial Park WWTP Project 2nd Phase Water RWT 3,000 100.0%  To be constructed Reclaimed water
Reclamation Program quality standards
L& ERTXERSKEER (ZH) BETKERTIR kA 7 BEOKERE
73 Liaoning Dalian Puwan New District Sanshilipu WWTP Project 1st Phase  WWT 20,000 92.7%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
RE AELERE=TEESKEER(—H)EE KRR BALE —fAEE
74 Liaoning Dalian Puwan New District Houhai WWTP Project WWT 20,000 92.7%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
RE ABLENRESTKEERER KRR RAZE —RARE
75 Liaoning Dalian Wan WWTP Project WWT 40,000 75.5%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
RE NEETKERRER KRR BAgE —fAEE
76 Liaoning Dalian Quanshui River WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 105,000 75.5%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
RE RESK A KEEH (Z4) 58 KRR RARE —hABE
77 Liaoning Dalian Lingshui River WWTP Project WWT 60,000 86.5% I operation Class | Standard A
BE AERKTSKRERER KRR BARE —RARE
78 Liaoning Dalian Lingshui River WWTP Project (Upgrade and Expansion)  WWT 20,000 86.5%  In operation Class | Standard A
RE RNEAKT KR ERREIEE R KRR RARE —HANEE
79 Liaoning Dalian Laohutan WWTP Project WWT 80,000 755%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
RE REXRETKEERER KRR RARE —HARE
80 Liaoning Dalian Laohutan WWTP Project (Upgrade and Expansion) WWT 10,000 75.5%  In operation Class | Standard A
RE REZRETKERRESERER KRR BARE —HARE
81 Liaoning Yingkou Economy and Technology Development Zone North — WWT 30,000 60.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
WWTP Project
RE EORERMAERIE S KEER KRR RARE —HARE
82 Ningxia Hui Yinchuan Fifth WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 100.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
Autonomous
Region
EEORERE B)IMELSKEER—HER KRR EAgE —RAZE
83 Ningxia Hui Yinchuan Fifth WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard A
Autonomous (Expansion, Upgrade and Reconstruction)
Region
EEMKERE RITERSKEER-HEERIRENEER KRR BARE —RAZE
84 Ningxia Hui Yinchuan Suyin Industrial Park WWTP Project WWT 50,000 100.0% I operation Class | Standard A
Autonomous
Region
EENRERE RIGREZRKEERER KRR BARE —HARE
85 Ningxia Hui Yinchuan Suyin Industrial Park WWTP Forward Project WWT 100,000 100.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
Autonomous
Region
EEMRERE RIHREXRKEERESER KRR R — QAR
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86  Shandong Dezhou City WWTP Project WWT 100,000 75.5% I operation Class | Standard A
W& ENmTKERRER KRR RAEE —MARE
87  Shandong Weifang City Cheng Xi WWTP Project WWT 40,000 75.5%  In operation Class | Standard A
WE BT KERRUE R KRR RAEE —RARE
88  Shandong Weifang City High Technology Industrial Development District ~ WWT 50,000 75.5%  In operation Class | Standard A
WWTP Project 1st Phase
W3 SN RTRMEXAER S KEER—HER KRR RAEE —RAZE
89  Shandong Weifang City RWT Project RWT 38,500 755%  Inoperation Reclaimed water
quality standards
IIE3 E A kKRERTKERER k@A RAEE BENOKERE
90 Shandong Weifang City WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT 200,000 75.5%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
W3 U AE e R KRR BRAEE —RARE
91 Shandong Weifang City Shawo WWTP Resumption and Upgrading Project WWT 60,000 75.5% I operation Class | Standard A
1st Phase
W3 ERTYBTKERRRERAESIER -8 KRR BRAEE —RARE
92 Shandong Weifang City Shawo WWTP Resumption and Upgrading Project  WWT 40,000 755%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
2nd Phase
IIES BYTOEIKERBIRE R ERIEE —H KRR 2 —RARE
93 Shandong Zaozhuang City Shanting District WWTP Center Project WWT 20,000 75.5%  In operation; upgrading to be Class | Standard A
constructed
IS REmLSERKEERVER KRR RARBE : REAFR —RARE
94 Shandong Zaozhuang Gity Shanting District WWTP Reconstructionand ~ WWT 30,000 93.5%  To be constructed Quasi Grade IV
Expansion Project
WE RHmLSE5KERRSERER KRR 52 VRS
95 Shandong Zaozhuang City Yicheng District WWTP Center Project 1st WWT 20,000 75.5%  In operation; upgrading to be Class | Standard A
Phase constructed
Wx RimER RS KEET O —HER KRR RAGE  RESE —RAEE
96 Shandong Zaozhuang City Yicheng District WWTP Center Project 2nd WWT 20,000 75.5%  In operation; upgrading to be Class | Standard A
Phase constructed
W& RimES RS KEET O AR KRR RAGE  REFE —RARE
97 Shandong Zaozhuang City Yicheng District WWTP Expansion Project 1st ~ WWT 30,000 98.8%  In operation; upgrading to be Class | Standard A
Phase constructed
W& RimERRTKEERER TR —HEE KRR RAGE  RESE —MARE
98 Shandong Zaozhuang Gity Yicheng District WWTP Expansion Project 2nd -~ WWT 30,000 75.5%  Tobe constructed Class | Standard A
Phase
W3 RimERRKEERER IR _SEE KRR e —RAZE
99 Shanghai Qingpu Second WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 15,000 87.8%  Inoperation Superior Class |
Standard A
L BREZKEERER 5 KRR BARE —RAEE
100 Shanghai Qingpu Second WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 45,000 87.8%  Inoperation Superior Class |
Standard A
LI BREZAKRERER 5 KRR BARE — AL EE
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101 Shanghai Qingpu Second WWTP Project 3rd Phase WWT 60,000 87.8%  In operation Superior Class |
Standard A
s} BREKRERER =8 KRR BARE — A+
102 Shanghai (lingpu Second WWTP Project 4th Phase (Expansion) WWT 60,000 87.8%  In operation Superior Class |
Standard A
L FREZITKRIERER ERIE KRR BAEE — AR
103 Shanghai Qlingpu Second WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT 60,000 87.8%  To be constructed Superior Class |
Standard A
LI FREZITKEERIER BRIER KRR e —RALZE
104 Shanghai Kicen Water Purification Plant Project 1st Phase WwT 25,000 75.5%  Under construction Quasi Grade [1l
s} BAKEF BB — 4 KRR i ENESE
105 Shanghai Xicen Water Purification Plant Forward Project WWT 25,000 75.5%  To be constructed Quasi Grade Ill
L AAKERBER RS KRR e AN
106 Shanghai Fengxian West WWTP Project WWT 100,000 92.2%  In operation Class | Standard A
s} EZEH 5 KREREE KRR BAgE —RARE
107 Shanghai Fengxian West WWTP Project 2nd Phase (Expansion) WWT 50,000 922%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
s} EERH S KRER - HERER KRR N —RARE
108 Shanghai Fengxian West WWTP Project 3rd Phase (Expansion) WWT 50,000 92.2%  In operation Class | Standard A
LI ZEADTKEER=MERIER KRR BAEE —RARE
109 Zhejiang Zhejiang Province Chemical Raw Material Site Linhai Park WWT 12,500 100.0% In operation CODcr and ammonia
WWTP Project 1st Phase and Supporting Pipeline Network nitrogen applied to
Project Class I 'and others
applied to Class Il
iipin MIBERHENRSRERTKERR - NREEERT  TKER RAEE CODerRaA— g
28R £ HEER-&
BE
110 Zhejiang Zhejiang Province Chemical Raw Material Site Linhai Park WwT1 12,500 100.0%  In operation CODcr and ammonia
WWTP Project 1st Phase and Supporting Pipeline Network nitrogen applied to
Project (Expansion) Class I 'and others
applied to Class 11
Eipan HIAERHERESERTKEER—HREEERT KRR EAgE CODcr k@A iz
BHEEyEETR £oEMER_&
RE
111 Zhejiang Zhejiang Province Chemical Raw Material Site Linhai Park WWT 25,000 100.0%  To be constructed CODcr and ammonia
WWTP Project and Supporting Pipeline Network Project nitrogen applied to
(Expansion) Class | and others
applied to Class Il
L ML ERHNENEEERTKEEFREEERTIRE  JkER i CODer k2R — i

26 SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

BRRIRE

+

£ LiEE-R
3

S



Province,/

Municipality/ Daily Capacity Effective Water Quality
SAR Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests  Project Progress Requirement
&/ m/ AE#
BATHE  EEER BEEER (1) s HRER KEEX
112 Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Water Purification Plant Project 1st WWT 60,000 69.1%  Inoperation Zhejiang Province
Phase Batch 1 clean discharge
standard
N R CNER)KE B —HER it KRR BAEE W8 B ZHMIRE
13 Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Water Purification Plant Project 1st WWT 60,000 69.1%  In operation Zhejiang Province
Phase Batch 2 clean discharge
standard
iipin Rk CNER)KEF BB it KRR RAEE LB BZHRE
114 Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) City WWTP Project (Upgrade and WWT 30,000 69.1%  In operation Zhejiang Province
Expansion) clean discharge
standard
iipin R CNER) ATEKRERARSERFRLIR KRR RAEE L8 B ZHNRE
15 Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Municipal WWTP Project 3rd Phase ~ WWT 75,000 69.1%  In operation Zhejiang Province
(Upgrade and Reconstruction) clean discharge
standard
iipin Rk CNER) Bm T KERRRESE= TR KRR BRAEE L8 B RHEMIRE
116 Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Municipal WWTP Project 3rd Phase ~ WWT 25,000 69.1%  In operation Zhejiang Province
Batch 2 (Upgrade and Reconstruction) clean discharge
standard
BN R CNER) BT KRR EEZ S-S IR KRR RAEE LB B ZHMIEE
17 Zhejiang Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Municipal WWTP Expansion Project 3rd - WWT 50,000 69.1%  Trial operation Zhejiang Province
Phase (Upgrade and Reconstruction) clean discharge
standard
iipin R CNER) AT KERRRES A BER TR EUN3E AT LB RRHEE
118 Zhejiang Yuyao City Preserved Pickle Preprocess Treatment Project WWT 3,000 69.1%  In operation;technical Pre-treatment
transformation to be constructed  Standards
iipin RETRREKERELR KRR RAGE  ByRRE BRERE
119 Zhejiang Ningbo Huangjiabu Binhai WWTP Project (Upgrade) WWT 30,000 64.5%  Inoperation Discharge standard
for dyeing industry
ipe EREFEREIKEERRENETR KRR RAEE AR TEHRIRE
120 Zhejiang Ningbo Hangzhouwan New District WWTP Project 1st Phase ~~ WWT 90,000 64.5%  Inoperation Zhejiang Province
(Expansion) clean discharge
standard
N ERMMENE S KEER—HERETR KRR BAEE W8 B ZHEMIRE
121 Zhejiang Cixi City Zhouxiang WWTP (1st Phase) 0&M Project WWT 40,000 64.5%  In operation N/A
Eipan ZEMASIKEER (—H) ZTELEE KRR N TR
122 Zhejiang Pinghu City Eastern WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 40,000 922%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
DI FHmRAAKEER— IR KRR BARE — B
123 Zhejiang Pinghu City Eastern WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 45,000 92.2%  In operation Class | Standard A
D TRmRRTKEERER ZH RN RAEE —RARE
124 Zhejiang Pinghu City Eastern WWTP Project 3rd Phase first stage WWT 80,000 922%  To be operated Class | Standard A
D TRmRRTKERRER =8 -B& KRR FEL —RAZE
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125 Zhejiang Pinghu City Eastern WWTP 3rd Phase Forward Project WWT 55,000 92.2%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
L THmRAIKEERIEE = HiERES KRR 2 —HAEE
126 Zhejiang Pinghu City Eastern RWT Project 1st Phase RWT 30,000 92.2%  To be operated Reclaimed water
quality standards
L THmRAKEERIEE BEKER 4 k@A fFEL BEOKERE
127 Zhejiang Pinghu City Eastern RWT Forward Project RWT 10,000 92.2%  To be constructed Reclaimed water
quality standards
L TRmRRIKERRE R BHKERES kA R BEOKERE
128 Zhejiang Pinghu City Eastern Preprocess Treatment Project WWT 50,000 922%  To be constructed Pre-treatment
Standards
Eipan THmRAKEEREE BRE KRR i BRERE
129 Zhejiang Tiantai County WWTP Project WWT 80,000 100.0%  In operation Quasi Grade IV
D REGHTKEER KRR BAEE EIVERE
130 Jiangxi Jiangxi Chongren Industrial Park WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 10,000 60.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
i IRSCIZRRSKEER(—58)EE KRR BAgE —ARE
131 Jiangxi Jiangxi Chongren High Technology Industrial Park WWTP WWT 20,000 60.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
Project (Expansion)
1A IARCRTRNELRR S KRERERER KRR R —RAEE
132 Jiangxi Jiangxi Province Yihuang Industrial Park WWTP Project 1st ~ WWT 5,000 60.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
Phase
Ir IREETEERSKEER (—H)EE KRR RARE —RAERE
133 Jiangxi Jiangxi Province Yihuang Industrial Park WWTP Project2nd ~ WWT 10,000 60.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
Phase
1A IABEIEERSKERE (Z58)ER KRR BARE —RAZE
134 Jiangxi Jiangxi Province Yihuang Industrial Park WWTP Project 1st WWT 15,000 60.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
and 2nd Phases (Advanced Treatment Project)
il IARELEARSKEER— —HRAEREIE KRR BARE —HASE
135 Jiangxi Yongxin County Industry Development Zone Comprehensive ~ WWT 10,000 60.0% Inoperation; upgrading to be Class | Standard B
WWTP Project 1st Phase operated
IA G IERERGS KRR (—H) EE KRR RAEE  REFER —fBiZE
136 Jiangxi Jiangxi Province Nanchang Xiaolan Economic Development WWT 25,000 60.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
Zone WWTP Project 1st Phase
LA IARE ) ERERER KRR (—H) B8 KRR RARE —HAEE
137 Jiangxi Jiangxi Province Nanchang Xiaolan Economic Development WWT 50,000 60.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
Zone WWTP Project 2nd Phase
IR AR ERERERKRIER (ZH) B KRR BARE —RABE
138 Jiangxi Wuyang Pioneer Park WWTP 0&M Project WWT 5,000 60.0%  In operation N/A
ki REEIXETKERRETELER KRR BARE A
139 Jiangxi Wuyang Pioneer Park WWTP Forward Project WWT 15,000 60.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
N REEXETKERRR AR KRR 2 —HAEE
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140 Jiangxi Xiangtang Development Zone WWTP 0&M Project WWT 750 60.0% I operation N/A
il MEREEKRRRZTESER KRR RARE A
141 Jiangxi Xiangtang Development Zone WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT 15,000 60.0%  Tobe constructed Class | Standard A
IA MEREEKRERERER KRR 2 —RAZE
142 Jiangxi Xiangtang Development Zone WWTP Forward Project WWT 14,250 60.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
IR MEREE K RERELER KRR i —RAZE
143 Jiangxi Jiangxi Province Wanzai Industrial Park WWTP Project 1st WWT 5,000 60.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
Phase
A IRESIEERTKEER(—5)EE KRR BARE —HAEE
144 Jiangxi Jiangxi Province Wanzai Industrial Park WWTP Project WWT 7500 60.0% I operation; upgrading to be Class | Standard B
(Expansion) operated
i IRBRIXER S KRERERER KRR RARE  REFEE — Bk
145 Jiangxi Yongfeng County Industrial Park WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 10,000 60.0%  In operation Class | Standard B
A BRI XERKEER(—H)ER KRR BARE —fhBEE
146 Jiangxi Fengxin Industrial Park WWTP Project WWT 34,000 60.0% 32,000 tonnes in operation; 2,000  Class | Standard A
tonnes to be constructed
A ENIXERTKEEER KRR JEMHRAEE  028AE  —RARE
147 Anhui Hefei Chemical Industrial Park WWTP Project WWT 30,000 60.0% Inoperation Chao Lake Basin
Discharge Limit
Standard
ZH AR ETERAKREER KRR BARE SRS AR
RE
148 Anhui Hefei Feidong County Circular Park Constructed Wetland 0&M ~ WWT 30,000 60.0%  In operation N/A
Project
Zf ARERERREEA TR ZTELER KRR BARE A
149 Heilongjiang ~ Anda City WWTP and RWT Project WWT 45,000 58.0% I operation Class | Standard A
E3 ZEMHT KR EHAE 4 KBER KRR RARE —RAZE
150 Heilongjiang  Anda City Development District WWTP TOT Project WWT 20,000 58.0% I operation Class | Standard B
BRI ZETMREETKEERTOTER KRR BARE —§BZE
151 Heilongjiang  Baoging County WWTP Project WWT 20,000 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
E3 ERG I KRERIER KRR BARE — AR
152 Heilongjiang  Baoging County WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT 20,000 58.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
BRI ERG I kKRERERER KRR BARE —RAZE
153 Heilongjiang  Fujin City Municipal Second WWTP Project WWT 35,000 58.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
2RI ERMM T E KRR KRR BARE —RARE
154 Heilongjiang ~ Fujin City WWTP Project WWT 15,000 58.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
2EI ERmIKRERLE KRR BARE —RARE
155 Heilongjiang  Harbin City Acheng WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard B
FRI BRETMRES KRR —HIRER KRR RARE —fBiZE
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156 Heilongjiang Harbin City Acheng WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard B
LSl BRETMAEKEER _HI112EE KRR RARE e

157 Heilongjiang Harbin City Hulan District WWTP 0&M Project WWT 20,000 58.0%  Inoperation N/A
SEI BRETTEEHRSKEERETELEEE KRR RARE A

158 Heilongjiang Hulan Limin WWTP 0&M Project WWT 50,000 58.0%  To be operated N/A
LSl WA Rk R ERETELIER KRR frEs A

159 Heilongjiang Harbin City Hulan District Old Town Second WWTP Project WWT 30,000 58.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
2B BRETTHEENEE kR _REE KRR RARE —RASE

160 Heilongjiang Harbin City Pingfang WWTP Project WWT 150,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard B
BRI BREN RS KRER KRR BARE —fBiZE

161 Heilongjiang Harbin City Pingfang WWTP Project (Upgrade) WWT 75,000 58.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
BRI BREN RS KRERARKEER KRR BARE —RAZE

162 Heilongjiang Harbin City Taiping WWTP Project WWT 325,000 58.0%  Inoperation Class Il
REI BRETATSKEEREE KRR BARE b3

163 Heilongjiang  Harbin City Wenchang WWTP Project WWT 325,000 58.0%  In operation Class Il
BRI BRENNE S KRERER KRR BARE it

164 Heilongjiang Harbin City Wenchang WWTP Upgrading Project WWT 650,000 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard B
BRI BRENNE S KRERARRETR KRR BARE —§BEE

165 Heilongjiang  Harbin City Wenchang WWTP Upgrading Project (Upgrade) WWT 650,000 58.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
BRI BRENNE A KEERARKETRERER KRR BARE —RARE

166 Heilongjiang  Harbin City Wenchang WWTP Upgrading Project (Expansion) — WWT 50,000 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
BRI BRENXE S KEERARKETRERER KRR BARE —RARE

167 Heilongjiang Yabuli Ski Resort WWTP 0&M Project WWT 4,000 58.0% Inoperation N/A
FRI ThNEEREERRSKEEZTESRE KRR RARE TR

168 Heilongjiang  Harbin City Xinyi WWTP Project WWT 100,000 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
ERI BREMEEETKRER KRR EABE —RARE

169 Heilongjiang ~ Heihe City WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 25,000 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
BRI SIS KEER—HIE KRR BABE —AZE

170 Heilongjiang Raohe County WWTP Q&M Project WWT 10,000 58.0% Inoperation N/A
BRI NG KEERZTEEER KRR EAgE TER

171 Heilongjiang ~ Aihui Town WWTP 0&M Project WWT 200 58.0%  Inoperation N/A
BRI EBESKRERZTEEER KRR RAEE TER

172 Heilongjiang ~ Handagi Town WWTP 0&M Project WWT 500 58.0%  Inoperation N/A
BRI FRNETKRERZTEZEE KRR RAEE TR

173 Heilongjiang  Nenjiang Gity Nenjiang Town WWTP 0&M Project WWT 30,000 58.0%  Inoperation N/A
BRI BIMRIESKERRETELES KRR RAEE TR

174 Heilongjiang Nenjiang City Duobaoshan Town WWTP Q&M Project WWT 200 58.0% Inoperation N/A
2L BIMZEILESKRERETELER KRR RAEE TR
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Province,/

Municipality/ Daily Capacity Effective Water Quality
SAR Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests  Project Progress Requirement
&/ / AE#
BHTHE K BERER (W) fritEs HEER KEEX

175 Heilongjiang  Xigangzi Town WWTP 0&M Project WWT 200 58.0% Inoperation N/A
SEI B FETKEERZTELER KRR RARE A

176 Heilongjiang Jixi City Jiguan District WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard B
FEI ARMERRESORE (1) Ik KRR RARE — Bz

177 Heilongjiang Jixi City Jiguan District WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 58.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
FEI BRMARRSKEER (Z4) B8 KRR RARE —RAZE

178 Heilongjiang Jixi City Jiguan District WWTP Project 1st and 2nd Phases WWT 100,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A

(Advanced Treatment Project)

2RI ERMARRSKEER -8 —HRAERELR KRR BARE —HAEE

179 Heilongjiang Jixi City Jiguan District WWTP Project 3rd Phase WWT 50,000 58.0%  To be operated Class | Standard A
FEI ARTARREKEER=4EE KRR frEs —RAEE

180 Heilongjiang Jixi RWT Project RWT 5,000 58.0%  Under construction Reclaimed water

quality standards

EEIL BRBEK FKE A i BEKOKERE

181 Heilongjiang  Jiamusi City East WWTP Project WWT 100,000 58.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
SEI EARTRESKEERER KRR BARE —HAZE

182 Heilongjiang Jiamusi City West WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
28I ERGTARKEER -8R KRR RARE —RAZE

183 Heilongjiang Jiamusi City West WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 58.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
FEI ERGTAEERKEER 48R KRR RARE —RAZE

184 Heilongjiang  Jiamusi City Gaoxin District WWTP Project WWT 35,000 58.0% I operation Class I Standard A
2RI EANRHESKEERER KRR RARE —RAZE

185 Heilongjiang Mudanjiang City Municipal WWTP Project WWT 100,000 58.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
FEI LT 5k R RE B KRR RARE —RAZE

186 Heilongjiang ~ Mudanjiang City WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 100,000 58.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
R "I kEER_HTE KRR BARE — AR

187 Heilongjiang Ningan City WWTP Project WWT 20,000 58.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
£ ERmaKEERIIER KRR BARE — AR

188 Heilongjiang  Ningan City WWTP Reconstruction and Expansion Project WWT 15,000 58.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
ES ERmIKERRARRIE KRR BARE —RAZE

189 Heilongjiang  Shangzhi City WWTP Project WWT 40,000 58.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
BRI WEMSKERRETEEER KRR BARE —RAZE

190 Heilongjiang  Shuangyashan City WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 58.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
E3 ERImH S KEER—BIE KRR BARE —RAZE

191 Heilongjiang  Shuangyashan City Municipal WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 58.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
BRI ERLTRTIKRER_H1E KRR BARE —RAZE

192 Heilongjiang  Shenchang Town WWTP Project WWT 100 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
2EI FEEKREIRER KRR BARE —RARE

193 Heilongjiang ~ Jixian Town WWTP Project WWT 150 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
RRIL EBRTKEERIRER KRR BARE —RARE
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BE
HE-E
Province,/
Municipality/ Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
SAR Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests  Project Progress Requirement
&/ / AER
BRTHE BEEER HERER (1) fritEs HEER KEEX
194 Heilongjiang Qixingpao Town WWTP 0&M Project WWT 800 58.0%  Inoperation N/A
SEI tERESKEERERTERER KRR BARE TER
195 Heilongjiang Qingyuan Town WWTP 0&M Project WWT 600 58.0% Inoperation N/A
REI ERBAKEREERTELER KRR BARE TER
196 Heilongjiang ~ Sifangtai District WWTP 0&M Project WwT 5,000 58.0%  Inoperation N/A
£ mraEskRERZTEL R KRR BARE TER
197 Heilongjiang ~ Youyi County WWTP 0&M Project WWT 10,000 58.0% In operation N/A
BEI RAGKRERZTEEER KRR RARE e
198 Heilongjiang  Youyi County WWTP BOT Upgrading Project WWT 10,000 58.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
BRI RS KRERBOTRIZER KRR BARE — AR
199 Heilongjiang  Shuangyashan City Anbang River Basin Municipal WWT and ~ RWT 40,000 29.6%  Inoperation Reclaimed water
RWT Project quality standards
SEI ERITR AR T EEEKFIRER HKEA RARE BEROKERE
200 Heilongjiang  Zhaodong City Municipal WWTP Project (1st and 2nd Phases) ~ WWT 50,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
SEI ERMATEKEERIRER (-8 =8) KRR RARE —RASE
201 Heilongjiang ~ Zhaodong City Second WWTP Project WWT 50,000 58.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
FEI ERMESKREHER KRR BARE —RASE
202 Heilongjiang  Zhaodong City Changwu Town WWTP O&M Project WWT 500 58.0%  To be operated N/A
BRI ERMERBSKRERZTELER KRR frEg A
203 Heilongjiang  Zhaodong City Songzhan Town WWTP 0&M Project WwT 200 58.0%  To be operated N/A
BRI ERMRBESKRERETELER KRR frEe e
204 Heilongjiang Zhaodong City Wuzhan Town WWTP 0&M Project WWT 300 58.0%  To be operated N/A
BRI RIS KRERETELER KRR g TR
205 Heilongjiang ~ Hegang City WWT and RWT Project (West Plant 1st Phase) ~ WWT 50,000 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
2RI BrEmykRERBEKTAER (AR-H) KRR BARE — AR
206 Heilongjiang  Hegang City WWTP Project (West Plant Expansion) WWT 30,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
BRI BEmSkREEE (ARER) KRR BARE —RASE
207 Heilongjiang ~ Hegang City WWTP Project (West Plant Expansion 2nd Phase) ~ WWT 30,000 58.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
BRI BrEm kREER (BEER-H) KRR i —RARE
208 Heilongjiang Hegang City WWT and RWT Project (East Plant 1st Phase) WWT 30,000 58.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
BRI BEmykRERBEKFAER (RE—H) KRR BARE —RARE
209 Heilongjiang ~ Hegang City WWT and RWT Project RWT 30,000 58.0%  To be operated Reclaimed water
quality standards
BRI BrEm S kRERBEKFAER HOKEA g BAAOKERE
210 Heilongjiang  Hegang Gity WWT and RWT Project (East Plant 2nd Phase) WWT 30,000 58.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard B
BRI BrEm i kRERBEAFAER (REZH) KRR & —fBEE
211 Heilongjiang ~ Fuyuan City WWTP Project (Including Sludge Disposal Project) WWT 10,000 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
BRI BEmIKRERER (B RRERRELR) KRR BARE —RABE
212 Heilongjiang Hanconggou WWTP Q&M Project WWT 300 58.0%  To be operated N/A
BRI REEKREREELER KRR g A
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Province,/

Municipality/ Daily Capacity Effective Water Quality
SAR Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests  Project Progress Requirement
&/ / AE#
BHTHE K BERER (W) fritEs HEER KEEX

213 Heilongjiang ~ Wusu Town WWTP 0&M Project WWT 400 58.0%  To be operated N/A
SEI SEHETKAERETEZER KRR frEs A

214 Heilongjiang Bayan County Xinglong Town WWTP Project WWT 10,000 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
FEI EEGEEATKEERIEER KRR RARE —RAZE

215 Heilongjiang Bayan County Xinglong Town 0&M Project 2nd Phases WWT 10,000 58.0% I operation N/A
2RI EEGERATKRER_MZTELER KRR RARE A

216 Heilongjiang Bayan County Xinglong Town WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT 20,000 58.0%  Tobe constructed Class | Standard A
FEI EEGERA KRR IRER KRR i —RAZE

217 Jilin Changchun City Jiutai District Yingcheng WWTP Project WWT 15,000 58.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
aik REMNARENTKRERLE KRR BARE —RAZE

218 Jilin Changchun Jiutai Development District Kalun WWTP Project ~ WWT 25,000 58.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
aik RENAREERRTKEERER KRR RARE —RAZE

219 Jilin Panshi City Industrial Development Zone WWTP Project WWT 10,000 58.0% I operation Class | Standard A
L EAMISR#RTKEELR KRR BARE —RAZE

220 Jilin Panshi City WWTP 0&M Project WWT 30,000 58.0% In operation N/A
aif ERAmakRERETELER KRR BARE T

221 Jilin Jilin Mingcheng Economic Development Zone WWTP Project ~ WWT 2,500 58.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
L ENAREERE RS KRELR KRR BARE —RAZE

222 Jilin Jiaohe City WWTP Project 1st & 2nd Phases WWT 25,000 58.0%  In operation Class | Standard A
L gamaKEER— - ZEER KRR BARE —RARE

223 Jilin Jiaohe City Municipal WWTP 0&M Project 3rd Phase WWT 15,000 58.0% In operation N/A

Expansion

L SamE T KR ER - RRETEEER KRR BARE e

224 Inner Mongolia ~ Xilinhaote Dazhuangyuan Meat Processing Plant WWTP BOT ~ WWT 3,500 58.0%  Under construction Class | Standard A

Project

AEE BmERT AR E AR5 KEEBITIEE KRR i —RAZE

225 Inner Mongolia  Xilinhaote WWTP BOT Project WWT 40,000 58.0%  Under construction; upgrading Class | Standard A

under construction

AE Gtk 5 KRBOTIER KRR R REER —RAZE

Subtotal 11,018,635

@t

Abbreviation:

WWTP — Wastewater Treatment Plant
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HE-E

Water Supply (WS) Projects #tkRHE
Province,/
Municipality/ Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
SAR Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests  Project Progress Requirement
'/ m/ AE#
BATRE ~ EEEE BEER (1) s BERER KEER
226 Hubei Qianchuan Water Plant Project (Expansion) WS 40,000 100.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
ibig AIKERERIE R ok RABE (GB5749-2006)")
227 Hubei Qianchuan Water Plant 0&M Project WS 80,000 100.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
bl AllkBEEFERR K BAgE (GB5749-2006)
228 Hubei Qianchuan Water Plant 5th Phase Reconstruction and WS 60,000 100.0%  To be operated (GB5749-2006)™
Expansion Project
bl AkERSSER TR K FEL (GB5749-2006)"
229 Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Xinwuhu Water Plant st Phase WS 100,000 100.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
ibig REMERENEKE—H ok BALE (GB5749-2006)")
230 Hubei Wuhan City Huangpi District Xinwuhu Water Plant 2nd Phase WS 150,000 100.0%  To be operated (GB5749-2006)"
ibig REMERENEAKE S ok T2 (GB5749-2006)")
231 Hunan Yiyang City Municipal WS Project (Kuailongshan Water Plant) WS 120,000 90.0%  Inoperation (GB5749-2006)"
il wG AT kIR B &R ILKE ok BRAEE (GB5749-2006)")
232 Hunan Yiyang City Municipal WS Project Third Water Plant 1st Phase WS 100,000 90.0%  Inoperation (GB5749-2006)"
il ahE A EAER E=KE— 8 K BRAEE (GB5749-2006)")
233 Hunan Yiyang City Municipal WS Project Third Water Plant 2nd Phase WS 100,000 90.0%  In operation (GB5749-2006)"
(Expansion)
il nEmEmEAER S KB (B2) ok BAEE (GB5749-2006)")
234 Hunan Yiyang Gity Municipal WS Project Fourth Water Plant WS 200,000 90.0% 100,000 tonnes in operation; (GB5749-2006)"
100,000 tonnes to be constructed
il aEmAmEKIER EMKR ok 0EHERAZE  108HFR  (GB5749-2006)"
235 Shandong Weifang City Hanting Water Purification Plant Project WS 60,000 26.2% I operation (GB5749-2006)"
LE #YTRSEHIER ok EAEE (685749-2006)
236 Shandong Weifang City Municipal WS Project (Bailanghe Water Plant WS 120,000 51.3%  Inoperation (GB5749-2006)"
Project)
Wz HATHTEAOEE (RRAKEIER) ok BAEE (GB5749-2006)")
237 Shandong Weifang City Municipal WS Project (Gaoxin Water Distribution -~ WS 200,000 513%  Inoperation (6B5749-2006)"
Plant Project)
g BYBHTE0ER (SHEKEER) ik BARE (685749-2006)
238 Shandong Weifang City Fangzi District WS Project WS 40,000 26.2%  In operation (GB5749-2006)"
R EYTYFRERKERRIER itk BAEE (GB5749-2006)"
239 Shanxi Water Diversion Project from Wenshui to Pingchuan WS 55,000 100.0%  Inoperation N/A
(Southern line)
I SN (Fgg) ok Ti2 ok RAEE @R
240 Heilongjiang Mudanjiang First Water Plant WS 80,000 58.0% Inoperation (GB5749-2006)"
BRI HAPI KK ok RAEE (GB5749-2006)")
241 Heilongjiang ~ Mudanjiang Second Water Plant RWT 50,000 58.0%  To be operated Reclaimed water
quality standards
2RI HIT K k@A FEL BEIKERE
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Province,/

Municipality/ Daily Capacity Effective Water Quality
SAR Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests  Project Progress Requirement
&/ m/ AE#
BATHE ERER BEER (W) iR HRER KEEX
242 Heilongjiang Mudanjiang Fourth Water Plant WS 170,000 58.0% Inoperation (GB5749-2006)"
2B TR itk RARE (GB5749-2006)"
243 Heilongjiang  Jiamusi City Municipal WS TOT Project (Xijiao Water Resource WS 160,000 58.0% Inoperation (GB5749-2006)"
WS Project)
e i ERETAMEKTOTER (ARKREKIRE) ok BARE (GB5749-2006)"
244 Heilongjiang  Jiamusi City Municipal WS TOT Project (Jiangbei Water Plant) WS 200,000 58.0%  Inoperation (GB5749-2006)"
BEL ERIMIRTEKTOTER (T kE) K BARE (GB5749-2006)")
245 Heilongjiang ~ Yabuli Ski Resort WS Plant 0&M Project WS 5,000 58.0%  Inoperation (GB5749-2006)™
2RI DhNESREERREFKRETEZER K BARE (GB5749-2006))
246 Jiangsu Dafeng Marine Comprehensive Economic Development Zone WS 20,000 100.0%  In operation (CJ/T206-2005)
WWTP 1st Phase
K AEEF TR RERKRER AR K BRAEE (CJ/T206-2005)"
247 Henan Suiping County First WS Plant Project WS 30,000 69.1%  In operation (GB5749-2006)"
e ETEE— (K AER ok BALE (6B5749-2006)""
248 Henan Suiping County Second WS Plant Project WS 10,000 69.1% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
I3 RTEE_MKBIER K BARE (GB5749-2006)"
Subtotal 2,150,000
@t
Water Projects Total 13,168,635
KEBAA
Notes: B -

(1) Standards for Drinking Water Quality

(2)  Water Quality Standards for Urban Water Supply

(1) (EERAKEERE)

2  HmHOKERE)
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PROJECT OVERVIEW

BE
HE-E
Waste Incineration Projects EERERE
Province,/
Municipality/ Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
SAR Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests  Project Progress Requirement
&/ RE#
BRTHE  HEEER BE B (1) friis ARER KEER
1 Shanghai Pucheng Waste Incineration Thermal Power Generation WTE 1,050 50.0%  Inoperation N/A
e} LETRHEEREEE EEEE BABE TR
2 Shanghai Shanghai Baoshan Renewable Energy Utilization Center Project  WTE 3,800 42.0%  Trial operation N/A
s} LETMELAEERRATOEE EEEE HiET TER
3 Zhejiang Wenling Waste Incineration Power Generation WTE 1,100 50.0% Inoperation N/A
T BEMEREEER EEEE BAgE TER
4 Shandong Shandong Province Wulian County Household Waste WTE 300 82.9%  Trial operation N/A
Incineration Power Generation Project 1st Phase
W& R AEGE BN EEETIER — 4 EEEE HEfT TER
5 Shandong Shandong Province Wulian County Household Waste WTE 300 82.9%  Tobe constructed N/A
Incineration Power Generation Project 2nd Phase
I3 WRREGE RN FREEBTREA BEEE e T
Waste Incineration Projects Total 6,550

ERREEA A
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Sludge Treatment (ST) Projects

AEEEEREA

Province,”
Municipality/ Daily Capacity Effective Water Quality
SAR Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests  Project Progress Requirement
&/ T/ RE#
BATRE  EEER BEER (W) fiiEs ERER KEER
1 Henan Xinxiang City ST and Disposal Project ST 300 69.1% I operation N/A
ke MAmSERERES R BRI BALE TR
2 Henan Xinxiang City ST and Disposal Project 2nd Phase first stage ST 300 69.1%  Trial operation N/A
e MRS EREREER —H-K& R HiEn TR
3 Henan Kinxiang Gity ST and Disposal Project 2nd Phase second stage ST 300 69.1%  To be constructed N/A
] MRS EREREER —H-KE R i TR
4 Henan Nanyang City WWTP ST and Disposal Project 1st Phase ST 200 69.1%  Inoperation N/A
i BETAKEER T ERERE B DR IE BARE TR
5 Henan Nanyang City WWTP ST and Disposal Project 2nd Phase ST 100 69.1%  To be constructed N/A
i AT KEER S ERERE IR HREIE i TR
6 Henan Luohe City Sludge Disposal Project ST 300 55.3%  Inoperation N/A
s TSR ERER R RABE TR
7 Heilongjiang Harbin City WWTP and Sludge Disposal Project 1st Phase ST 650 58.0%  Inoperation N/A
EEIL BREMSKEERSERETEEE —H eRE BABE TR
8  Heilongjiang ~ Harbin City WWTP and Sludge Disposal Project 2nd Phase ST 350 58.0%  Inoperation N/A
EEIL BREMSKEERSERETEEE ZH R BABE TER
9 Heilongjiang Heihe Sludge Disposal Project ST 40 58.0% Inoperation N/A
TR SEREELR SRR BABE TR
10 Heilongjiang  Jiamusi Gity WWTP Sludge Disposal Project ST 100 58.0% Inoperation N/A
FEI ERETAKEERSEREER Ve) B d BABE TER
11 Heilongjiang Mudanjiang City WWTP Sludge Disposal Project ST 150 58.0% Inoperation N/A
FEI "I KRER S REEER BEE BABE TER
12 Heilongjiang Ningan City ST Plant Project ST 40 58.0% Inoperation N/A
FEI BRMAERERER BEE BARE TR
13 Hubei Hanxi ST Project ST 325 80.0%  Under renovation N/A
ilA ERSRRERER SRR Y& TER
Sludge Treatment Projects Total 3,155

SREERE A5
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EENEREEAESHN

Directors’ Profile

Our Board consists of eight members, including five Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Our Board oversees our overall policies, strategies and objectives, key operational initiatives,
performance and measurement, internal controls and risk management, major funding and
investment proposals, financial performance reviews and corporate governance practices.
Approval by our Board is required for such matters including but not limited to corporate
restructuring, mergers and acquisitions, major investments and divestments, material
acquisitions and disposals of assets, major corporate policies on key areas at operations,
share issuance, dividend and other returns to shareholders, acceptances of bank facilities,
annual budget and release of the Group’s financial results.

Save as disclosed in this report, there has been no other change in Directors™ biographical
details which is required to be disclosed to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
during FY2023 and up to the date of this report.

The following table sets out certain information regarding our Directors:

EEEN
Exeh/\ e BAN  BRIANNTEER=%BY
FHITEE -

EXeREAMOBRIH  BERAR BREL:R
8 RERER  AFEHLRERRER  IERERK
BNR MBRABRLEREEEER - ARGESS
HENSERBRETRROEED 6B FERER
HE BERBENBRREE BHEBIENIZLE
WE - BROET  ATREORSREMER  RITE
PR FRBERAREMBERENEM -

BRAREMRE I - RO0VBHFREZARERS -
MELBESEEABOEDARBEEE(LTRANE
13.51B(1)EE T LAKE

TREFIEHEENETER

Date of Appointment

Date of joining

Name Age  Position as Director the Group Principal Duties Relationship’
4 R OB EEEEAN MAFKEAHE FEWS m&
Mr. Zhou Yuding 50 Chairman of the Board 23 February 2024 23 February 2024 Managing the overall corporate  None
and Executive strategies, strategic planning
Director and development of the Group
SR 50 EFSEERITE 2024527234 20242 A230  EEAEEBROEEE  HE &
== HRERER
Mr. Zhu Dazhi 47 Chief Executive Officer 3 May 2021 (appointed 3 May 2021 Overall management of the None
and Executive as the Chief Executive Group's strategy, business,
Director Officer on 28 September operation, administration and
2023) financial matters.
RRRFEE 47 BEATERNMTE 2021F5A38 (R20235 202145A3H EEAREMNRE X% -8 &
E= IABHZERERH g TRNEBIEESE
18)
Mr. Xu Xiaobing 58 Executive Director 5 November 2014 26 October 2010 Qverseeing the Group’s risk None
management
BREkEE 58 WITESE 2014F11 A58 2010610A268 EBEASERRER &
Mr. Jiang Kai 49 Executive Director 20 October 2023 20 October 2023 Qverseeing the Group’s financial  None
and financing-related matters
as well as aiding running the
administrative activities at the
headquarters.
BlEgtE 49 WIES 20235108208 2023510A208 EEXREEHHE mMEEEEE &
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Date of Appointment

Date of joining

Name Age Position as Director the Group Principal Duties Relationship’
e C S U SEEEAMY MAFSEEY TERR W
Mr. Yang Xing 43 Executive Director 20 October 2023 20 October 2023 Coordinating the relationships None
of the Group with government
authorities
BELE 43 WITESE 2023F10A20H 2023F10A208 WAASEARNHPINEE &
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang 63 Independent Non- 23 September 2009 23 September Providing independent advice on  None
Executive Director 2009 the operation and management
of the Group
BN E 63 BUFRITES 2009F9 A 23H 2009923 HASERELRERREHEY E
ER
Mr. An Hongjun 55 Independent Non- 1 March 2018 1 March 2018 Providing independent advice on  None
Executive Director the operation and management
of the Group
RELE 55 BUFRITES 20183 A1H 20183 A1H RASEMNERREREHEY &
ER
Mr. Zhong Ming 37 Independent Non- 1 March 2018 1 March 2018 Providing independent advice on  None
Executive Director the operation and management
of the Group
ik pided 37 BUFRITES 20183 A1H 20183 A1H HASEMNELREREHEY &
ER
Note: Bt st -

(1) Relationship with other Directors’ and senior management member.

HEMEERAREEABNER -
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EENEREEAESHN

Mr. Zhou Yuding — Chairman of the Board and Executive Director

Mr. Zhou Yuding was first appointed as an Executive Director and Chairman of the Board of
the Group on 23 February 2024. He is mainly responsible for the overall corporate strategies,
strategic planning and development of the Group.

Mr. Zhou has extensive experience in corporate management and asset management.
He is a senior economist of the PRC. He is currently a director and General Manager of
Asset Management Department of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd., a
supervisor of Shanghai Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd., a director of Shanghai Shangtou
Property Management Co., Ltd. (/&8 & &EELE AR F), a director of Shanghai Galaxy
Investments Co., Ltd., a director of Shanghai SIIC Capital Management Co., Ltd. (/& £
EEREEARRAF), a director of Tianjin Trust Co., Ltd., the chairman of Nanfang Water
Services Co., Ltd. and a director of Shanghai State-owned Capital Investment Parent Fund
Co., Ltd. (EEBAEALERSESARAF), and a director of Shanghai Research Institute
of Building Sciences Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 603153)).

He has held several positions, including but not limited to the deputy director of the office,
the deputy director of the allocation and guarantee division, the deputy director of the
property rights management division and the director of the comprehensive coordination
division of the Municipal State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
Shanghai.

Mr. Zhou graduated from Fudan University in July 1996 with a master's degree in
Management Information Systems.

Mr. Zhu Dazhi - Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr. Zhu was first appointed as an Executive Director of the Group on 3 May 2021 and was
last re-elected on 29 April 2022. Mr. Zhu has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
since 28 September 2023. He is mainly responsible for the overall management of the
Group'’s strategy, business, operation, administration and financial matters.

Mr. Zhu has extensive management experience. He is currently the deputy chief executive
officer of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited, the president of Shanghai Overseas Co., Ltd.,
the director of Tianjin Trust Co., Ltd., the chairman of SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan)
Co., and serves as the director in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhu has extensive
management and operation experience. He served as the deputy general manager of SIIC
Management (Shanghai) Limited from March 2021 to September 2023, the deputy general
manager of Shanghai Galaxy Investments Co., Ltd. from June 2019 to March 2021 and the
deputy general manager of the Administration Department of Shanghai Industrial Investment
(Holdings) Company Limited from June 2018 to June 2019. Mr. Zhu was in the military
service from September 1995 to June 2018.

Mr. Zhu obtained his bachelor's degree in English in 1999 and master's degree in
International Relations in 2003 from the University of International Relations, PRC, and the
fund qualification certificate from the Asset Management Association of China in October
2020. He is also a council member of Shanghai Young Entrepreneurs” Association since
September 2020.
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Mr. Xu Xiaobing — Executive Director

Mr. Xu Xiaobing was first appointed as an Executive Director of the Group on 5 November
2014 and was last re-elected on 29 April 2022. Mr. Xu also served as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group from 16 November 2018 to 15 January 2021. He is mainly responsible
for overseeing the risk management of the Group.

Mr. Xu has more than 20 years' professional experience in corporate management and other
aspects. From February 2000 to December 2016, he had held various senior positions in SIIC
Management, such as Deputy Head of Investment Planning Department, the Head of Integrated
Management Department, the Assistant of General Manager, Deputy General Manager and the
General Manager. Mr. Xu is currently the President of Shanghai Industrial Development Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600748), and serves
as the Chairman and Director in certain subsidiaries of the Group, namely SIIC Environment
Holdings (Weifang) Co., Ltd., SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd., Nanfang Water
Services Co., Ltd. and etc.

Mr. Xu graduated from Peking University, PRC in July 1989 with a bachelor's degree in
economics and graduated from Guanghua School of Management, Peking University with a
master's degree in business administration in July 1998.

On 15 March 2024, FEIEHEBERZE L H/BEER (China Securities Regulatory
Commission (Shanghai)*) (‘CSRC") issued a notice (the “Notice’) in relation to
administrative penalties against E/8EXEERMHARAF (Shanghai Industrial
Development Co., Ltd.*) (“SI Development’) (stock code: 600748.SH), a company
whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Xu was at the material time
a president and a director of SI Development and was named as one of the individuals
against whom the CSRC has issued a warning and administrative penalties. Pursuant to
the Notice, after investigation, CSRC was of the view that SI Development failed to (i) make
timely disclosure on the expected operating loss of its subsidiary as a result of uncollectible
accounts receivable; (ii) make timely disclosure on material contracts; and (iii) make accurate
disclosure in relation to its annual report from 2016 to 2021, which contained inflated
revenue and profits. CSRC also noted that relevant directors and senior management of
S| Development, including Mr. Xu, failed to exercise proper due diligence to ensure true,
accurate and complete disclosure of the corporate information and hence have breached the
applicable securities laws in the People’'s Republic of China. CSRC issued a warning and
imposed penalties against SI Development and its relevant directors, including a warning and
penalties in the amount of RMB2.1 million against Mr. Xu. For further details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 19 March 2024 and 22 March 2024, respectively.

Mr. Jiang Kai — Executive Director

Mr. Jiang Kai was first appointed as an Executive Director of the Group on 20 October 2023.
He is mainly responsible for overall the Group’s financial and financing-related matters as
well as aiding the CEQ in running the administrative activities at the headquarters.

Mr. Jiang has over 20 years of extensive experience in financial management, investment, and
asset management fields. He served as several management positions in SIIC Management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.. He was the Financial Director and Deputy General Manager of Shanghai
Huning Expressway (Shanghai Section) Development Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Shenyu Highway
Construction Development Co., Ltd., as well as the Director of General Water of China Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Jiang has served as the Vice president of Shanghai Overseas Enterprises Corporation
Ltd. since September 2019. He is currently holding several positions, including but not
limited to the Deputy General Manager of SIIC Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., the Director
of Shanghai SUS Environment Co., Ltd. and the Director of Tianjin Pharmaceutical Holdings
Co., Ltd..

Mr. Jiang obtained a bachelor's degree in Economics from the School of Accountancy
at Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in 1997 and a Master of Business
Administration from the Antai College of Economics Management, Shanghai Jiao Tong
University in 2005. He obtained the qualification of China Certified Public Accountant in 1999
and the title of Senior Accountant of China in 2016.
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Mr. Yang Xing — Executive Director

Mr. Yang Xing was first appointed as an Executive Director of the Group on 20 October 2023.
He is mainly responsible for coordinating the relationships of our Group with government
authorities.

Mr. Yang has extensive experience in corporate governance and finance fields. He had worked
in the Accounting Center, Financial Innovation Department and General Manager's Office of
Aerospace Science & Industry Finance Co., Ltd. from October 2004 to January 2014, worked
in the Comprehensive Management Department of Beijing Enterprises Group Finance Co.,
Ltd. from February 2014 to September 2014, the Head of the Comprehensive Management
Department of CECEP Finance Co. Ltd. from November 2014 to January 2018, an assistant to
the General Manager in CECEP Finance Co. Ltd. from February 2018 to August 2022.

Mr. Yang is currently the Deputy General Manager and the Head of Finance of CECEP (Hong
Kong) Investment Co., Ltd., an Executive Director of Carbon Reserve Investments Limited
and a Director of CECEP (Hong Kong) Treasury Management Co., Ltd.. He is also the Vice
President of the Hong Kong Green Finance Association and a member of the Board of the
China Emissions Exchange.

Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor's degree in Economics from Beihang University in June 2004
and a master's degree in Financial Management from Beihang University in December 2019.
He holds the title of Intermediate Economist and the qualification of Senior Information
System Project Manager.

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang - Lead Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang was first appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Group on 23
September 2009. He served as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Group from
April 2010 and was last re-elected on 30 April 2021. He is mainly responsible for providing
independent advice on the operation and management of our Group.

Mr. Yeo is an advisor of the National Trade Unions Congress (NTUC) of Singapore. He had
been a member of the Parliament of Singapore from January 1997 to August 2015. Mr. Yeo
is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of other listed companies as well, namely
Koyo International Ltd. (stock code: 50C), G.H.Y Culture & Media Holding Co. Ltd (stock
code: XJB), Tianjin Pharmaceutical Da Ren Tang Group Corp Ltd (stock code: T14), and The
Place Holdings Limited (stock code: E27).

Mr. Yeo obtained an Honours degree in Arts and Social Sciences from the National University
of Singapore in 1986 and a master's degree in Public Administration and Management in Lee
Kuan Yew School of Public Policy of the National University of Singapore in 2013. He was
conferred Doctorate in Business Administration by United Business Institutes, Belgium in
October 2016.
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Mr. An Hongjun - Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. An Hongjun was first appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Group
on 1 March 2018 and was last re-elected on 28 April 2023. He is mainly responsible for
providing independent advice on the operation and management of our Group.

Mr. An is the Founder and Chairman of Genharmony Capital (EF1%& ), and has more than
20 years' professional experience in the environmental industry. Mr. An had held various
senior positions, such as the Chairman and President from April 2007 to September 2016,
in Shanghai Chengtou Holding Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600649) and a member of the SSE Corporate Governance Index.

Mr. An is a member of the private equity professional committee of the Asset Management
Association of China. Mr. An obtained a bachelor's degree in finance from Nankai University,
PRC in July 1992. He obtained a master's degree in world economics from Fudan University,
PRC in July 2001 and a doctor's degree in world economics from Fudan University in January
2005. Subsequently, he received a doctor's degree in global finance business administration
from Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance of Shanghai Jiao Tong University in May
2016. Mr. An was ranked 30th among the “Best CEOs of China’s Listed Companies 2017" by
Jiemian News and Jinri Toutiao in 2017.

Mr. Zhong Ming - Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Zhong Ming was first appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Group
on 1 March 2018. He was last re-elected on 28 April 2023. He is responsible for providing
independent advice on the operation and management of the Group.

Mr. Zhong is currently an Executive Director of Yanlord Land Group Limited, a real estate
development company listed on the SGX-ST (stock code: Z25). Furthermore, he also holds
directorships in various companies in Singapore, such as Ren Ci Hospital ({-2& %6z, United
Engineers Limited (#t4 Ti2&E 22 A) and WBL Corporation Limited (&= HRAR).

Mr. Zhong graduated from the University of Melbourne, Australia with a bachelor's degree in
Commerce.
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Senior Management’s Profile EREBAREGAY

The following table sets out certain information regarding the senior management members ~ T&R#FINEBA AR SRERAE([REHETE
(the “Senior Management’) of the Company: B

Date of Appointment as Date of Joining

Name Age  Position Senior Management the Group Principal duties Relationship’
®E Fie WA EEEERN MAFSRERY FERH I
Mr. Yang Anyuan 49 Deputy General 9 October 2017 December 2010 Responsible for the asset None
Manager management of the Group
BRREE 49 BB 2017F10A9E 201012 BEAEEEEER it
Mr. Qin Feng 55 Deputy General 25 June 2021 May 2020 Responsible for the solid waste  None
Manager business, technology and
research and development of
the Group
g 55 Bliaiig 20216 A25H 202055 A BEAREEERS SNk &
f e
Ms. Xu Xiaoging 45 Deputy General 15 September 2021 September 2021 Responsible for the internal audit None
Manager function and risk management
of the Group
wNERT 45 Bliaiig 2021F9A15H 2021594 BEARERNSENBERERE &
s
Mr. Qiu Yihua 57 Deputy General 25 April 2023 August 2020 Responsible for the supervision  None
Manager and management of major
construction projects, safety
production and other related
work of the Group
MEELE 57 EIp 2023F4A25H 202058 A BEASESNEARREEE &
B Zr4EEESHEETIE
Note: BisE

(1) Relationship with other Directors and senior management member.
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Mr. Yang Anyuan - Deputy General Manager

Mr. Yang Anyuan has been a Deputy General Manager of the Company since October 2017.
He is responsible for the asset management of the Group.

Mr. Yang joined the Group in December 2010. From July 2004 to May 2016, he held several
management positions in SIIC Management. He has also served as the Deputy General
Manager of SIIC Management since May 2021. Mr. Yang also holds directorship in several
subsidiaries of the Group, namely Nanfang Water Services Co., Ltd., Longjiang Environmental
Protection Group Co., Ltd., SIIC Environment Holdings (Weifang) Co., Ltd., SIIC Environment
Holding (Shenzhen) Co., and Yiyang City Tap Water Co., Ltd..

Mr. Yang obtained a master's degree in laws (economic law) from Hunan University, PRC in
June 2003, and a master's degree in professional accountancy from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in November 2014. Mr. Yang obtained a lawyer's qualification certificate issued
by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC in August 1996 and a legal professional certificate
issued by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC in September 2002.

Mr. Qin Feng - Deputy General Manager

Mr. Qin Feng has been a Deputy General Manager of the Company since 25 June 2021. He
is responsible for the solid waste business, technology and research and development of the
Group.

Mr. Qin joined the Group in May 2020 and has extensive experience in technology, operation
and construction. Mr. Qin was a Chief Engineer of Shanghai Environment Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Shanghai Environment Group”, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 601200) from July 2014 to May 2020, Deputy General Manager of Shanghai
Environmental Investment Co., Ltd. from July 2013 to June 2014, Technical Director and
Deputy General Manager of Shanghai Environment Group from May 2008 to June 2013. He
held various capacities including Manager of the Engineering and Technology Department,
Director, Chief Engineer and General Manager of Shanghai Institute for Design & Research
Environmental Engineering Ltd. from March 1995 to April 2008. Mr. Qin is the chairman of
Shanghai SIIC Baojingang Environmental Resources Technology Co., Ltd., and also holds
directorship in several subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Qin obtained a bachelor's degree and a master's degree in environmental engineering
from the Department of Environmental Engineering of Tongji University, PRC in 1992 and
1995, respectively. He is also a committee member of National Technical Committee 451 on
Municipal Environmental Sanitation Standardization Administration of China (SAC/TC451).
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Ms. Xu Xiaoqing — Deputy General Manager

Ms. Xu Xiaoging has been a Deputy General Manager of the Company since 15 September
2021. She is responsible for the internal audit function and risk management of the Group.

Ms. Xu has extensive internal control and auditing experience. She served as an Auditor in
the audit department of Ernst & Young from September 2003 to July 2004, Senior Manager
in the corporate management department of SIIC Management from July 2004 to April 2008,
Senior Manager, Assistant Director, Deputy Director and Director of the audit department of
SIIC Management from April 2008 to September 2021, Deputy General Manager and Chief
Financial Officer of Shanghai Huning Expressway (Shanghai section) Development Co.,
Ltd. and Shanghai Shen-Yu Expressway Co., Ltd. from October 2019 to August 2021, and
currently Chairman of the labour union of SIIC Management and General Manager of Fudan
Water Engineering and Technology Co., Ltd.. Ms. Xu also holds directorship in several
subsidiaries of the Group, namely Longjiang Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. and
Fudan Water Engineering and Technology Co., Lid..

Ms. Xu obtained a bachelor's degree in economics and a master's degree in western
economics from Shanghai University of Finance and Economy, PRC in July 2000 and
March 2003, respectively. She is also a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Certified Internal Auditor.

Mr. Qiu Yihua - Deputy General Manager

Mr. Qiu Yihua has been a Deputy General Manager of the Company since 25 April 2023. He
is mainly responsible for the supervision and management of major construction projects,
safety production and other related work of the Group.

Mr. Qiu joined the Company in 2020, and served as the general manager of an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Shanghai SIIC Baojin'gang Environmental
Resources Technology Co., Ltd. (“Baojingang”) from August 2020 to October 2022
responsible for the construction and management of Baojingang project. Mr. Qiu also served
as the deputy director of labour department, the deputy director of equipment department,
the deputy director of operation and reform department and other positions in Baosteel
Company and Shanghai Pudong Iron and Steel Company Limited, where he built profound
work experience. Mr. Qiu has strong level of corporate management, outstanding execution
ability, and strong ability and extensive experience in organization, coordination and
business development. Mr. Qiu also focuses on enterprise production and operation risk and
safety production, and is familiar with major project construction, management and safety
production.

Mr. Qiu obtained a bachelor's degree in economic management from the Correspondence
College of the Central Party School in December 2003.
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Business Units Senior Management’s Profile

Mr. Piao Yongjian — Vice Chairman and President of Longjiang Environmental
Protection Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Piao Yongjian, aged 60, has more than 30 years of operation and management experience
in water and environmental protection sectors. From 1985, he served as the General
Production Scheduling Controller and the Director of the Production Department in Harbin
Tap Water Group Co., Ltd., the Vice General Manager and the Chief Engineer in Harbin
Drainage Co., Ltd., and the Vice General Manager in Harbin Sewage Treatment Engineering
Co., Ltd.. From 2004 to 2010, Mr. Piao successively held the posts of Director, Vice General
Manager, and General Manager of Tongfang (Harbin) Water Engineering Co., Ltd.. Mr. Piao
served as the Secretary of the Communist Party Committee and President of Longjiang
Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. from its establishment in September 2010 and has
been appointed as the Vice Chairman and President since August 2014.

Mr. Piao graduated from the Harbin Institute of Technology, PRC majoring in Water Supply
and Drainage and is a Senior Engineer (with a rank of professor) and expert in urban
water supply and drainage industry. Mr. Piao is also a visiting professor of the Municipal
Administrative and Environmental Engineering Collage in Harbin Institute of Technology,
a visiting professor of the Resource and Environment Collage in Northeast Agricultural
University, a Deputy President of the China Urban Water Association, the President of
Heilongjiang Urban Water Association, the Executive Director of China Glory Society, the Vice
President of Heilongjiang Glory Society and Vice Chairman of Heilongjiang Federation of
Industry and Commerce.

Mr. Piao was a winner of the Management and Industrial Contribution Award of 2014 “China
Water Industry Figure (FREIZKE AY)', and was recognized as the ‘High-level Talent of
Heilongjiang Province” in 2022. He has been devoted to investment, construction, technical
research and development, and operating management of water and environmental protection
sectors for a long time. Proactively assuming the social responsibility, he was awarded as an
advanced individual of energy-saving and emission reduction by the department of ecological
environment for many times.

Ms. Xu Xiaoqging — General Manager of Fudan Water Engineering and
Technology Co., Ltd.

For the profile of Ms. Xu Xiaoging, please refer to Directors” and Senior Management's Profile
on page 46 of this annual report.
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Mr. Nie Zuohua - General Manager of SIIC Environment Holdings (Weifang)
Co., Ltd.

Mr. Nie Zuohua, aged 59, has been the General Manager of SIIC Environment Holdings
(Weifang) Co., Ltd. since April 2017, responsible for the overall work of the Company.

Mr. Nie held various positions such as Director of Talent Development Service Center of
Bureau of Personnel of Hanting District in Weifang City, Director of Project Management
Center of Supply of Water from Xiashan Reservoir to Hanting District of Hanting District,
General Manager of Ruiyuan Urban and Rural Center of Supply of Water of Hanting District
in Weifang City, General Manager of SIIC Environment Water Co., Ltd. in Hanting District,
Weifang City, and General Manager of Weifang City Tap Water Co., Ltd.. He has held various
positions such as the Chairman of SIIC Environment Water Co., Ltd. in Hanting District,
Weifang City, the Chairman of Yiyang City Tap Water Co., Ltd., the Chairman of Weifang City
Tap Water Co., Ltd., the Chairman of Weifang City Fangzi District SIIC Environment Water
Co., Ltd., and a Director of SIIC Environment Holdings (Weifang) Co., Ltd..

Mr. Nie is a member of the 13th Weifang committee of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference in Shandong Province, and was a standing member of the third
Conference of the 9th Committee of the Political Consultative Conference of Hanting District,
Weifang City. He obtained Senior Political Analyst certification in September 2009 and won
the title of the twenty-third session of Outstanding Entrepreneur of Weifang City in January
2016.

Mr. Yang Bin - General Manager of SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co.,
Ltd.

Mr. Yang Bin, aged 53, is currently the Director and General Manager of SIIC Environment
Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd..

Mr. Yang joined SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. in April 2006 as Head of the
Department of Plan and Operation. He was the Deputy General Manager of SIIC Environment
Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. from January 2008 to February 2018. From September 2018, Mr.
Yang serves as the director in certain subsidiaries of SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan)
Co., Ltd., namely Wuhan SIIC Xinchuan Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd., Wuhan SIIC Xinwu
Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd., Wuhan Xin Cheng Waste Water Treatment Co., Ltd., Wuhan
Hanxi Wastewater Treatment Co., Ltd..

Mr. Yang was Chief Accountant of Wuhan Handicraft Import and Export Company, Chief
Accountant of Wuhan Branch of CSG Holding Co., Ltd., Finance Manager of Wuhan Bolin
Clothing Co., Ltd., a Director and Chief Accountant of Shanghai Tuanjie Baichao Laser
Equipment Co., Ltd., an Investment Manager of Wuhan Guoxing Investment Company, and
Chief Financial Officer of Wuhan Baotelong Information Technology Co., Ltd..

Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor's degree in management from Zhejiang Sci-Tech University,
PRC in 1993 and he is a registered accountant in China.
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Mr. Chen Jieqing — Director and General Manager of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chen Jieging, aged 59, the Director and General Manager of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd.,
responsible for the overall work of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd..

Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experiences in the water treatment industry. He was a Clerk in
original Hunan Chenzhou Municipal Committee Office (now Beihu District Committee) from
July 1985 to December 1988, a Clerk, a Vice Chief, Chief, Director of the Office of Joint-stock
System Reform under Chenzhou Economic System Reform Committee from December 1988 to
July 1999, a Director and Deputy General Manager of Chenzhou Shanhe Industrial Group Co.,
Ltd. (predecessor of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd.) from July 1999 to January 2005, a Director and
Standing Deputy General Manager of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. from January 2005 to December
2008, a Director and General Manager of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. from December 2008 to
July 2012, a Director and Standing Deputy General Manager of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. from
July 2012 to December 2018, and a Director and General Manager of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd.
from December 2018 to date.

Mr. Chen graduated from a university and was a MBA and a senior human resource
professional.

Mr. Ng Kuan Seong - Chief Executive Officer and General Manager of Ranhill
Water

Mr. Ng Kuan Seong, aged 44, has been the Chief Executive Officer of Ranhill Water (Hong
Kong) Ltd. and the General Manager of Ranhill Water (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. since June 2019, and
serves as the director in certain subsidiaries of Ranhill Water, responsible for the overall daily
management work of Ranhill Water.

Mr. Ng has extensive investment, operation and management, project construction and
administration experience in water and environmental protection sectors. From 2008 to 2016,
he worked as a Process Engineer, a Project Manager and Senior Manager of Malaysia Ranhill
Water Treatment Co., Ltd.. From 2016 to 2017, Mr. Ng served as the Head of Programme
Planning and Engineering Department of Ranhill Water (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.. From 2017 to
2019, he worked as the Deputy General Manager of Malaysia Ranhill Water Treatment Co.,
Ltd..

Mr. Ng has obtained a master's degree from Universiti Teknologi Malaysia and is a registered
engineer in Malaysia.
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Headquarters, Registered Office and Principal Place of Business in

Singapore

One Temasek Avenue
#37-02 Millenia Tower
Singapore 039192

Place of Business in Hong Kong Registered under Part 16 of the

Companies Ordinance

Unit 1307A, 13/F

Two Harbourfront

22 Tak Fung Street

Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Company’s Website
www.siicenv.com

Board of Directors

Executive Director

Mr. Zhou Yuding (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Zhu Dazhi

Mr. Xu Xiaobing

Mr. Jiang Kai

Mr. Yang Xing

Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Mr. An Hongjun
Mr. Zhong Ming

Executive Committee

Mr. Zhou Yuding (Chairman)
Mr. Zhu Dazhi

Mr. Xu Xiaobing

Mr. Jiang Kai

Audit Committee

Mr. An Hongjun (Chairman)
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang
Mr. Zhong Ming
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Nominating Committee

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang (Chairman)
Mr. Zhong Ming
Mr. An Hongjun

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Zhong Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Yuding

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Mr. An Hongjun

Risk and Investment Management Committee

Mr. Zhu Dazhi (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Yuding

Mr. Xu Xiaobing

Mr. Jiang Kai

Mr. Yang Anyuan

Ms. Xu Xiaoging

Joint Company Secretaries

Ms. Sharon Lim Siew Choo (SAICSA)
In.Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd.

30 Cecil Street

#19-08 Prudential Tower

Singapore 049712

Mr. Man Yun Wah (ACG, HKACG)
In.Corp Corporate Services (HK) Limited
Unit 1307A, 13/F

Two Harbourfront

22 Tak Fung Street

Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Legal Advisers

As to Singapore law:

ADTLaw LLC (in formal law alliance with Ashurst LLP)
12 Marina Boulevard

#24-01 Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

As to Hong Kong law:
Ashurst Hong Kong
43/F, Jardine House
No. 1 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong
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Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Singapore:

In.Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd.

30 Cecil Street

#19-08 Prudential Tower
Singapore 049712

Hong Kong:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Investor Relation

Strategic Financial Relations (China) Limited
24/F, Admiralty Centre |

18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong
sprg-siic@sprg.com.hk

Auditor
Mr. Toh Yew Kuan Jeremy

(appointed since the financial year ended 31 December 2019)

Deloitte & Touche LLP
6 Shenton Way, #33-00
OUE Downtown 2
Singapore 068809

Principal Bankers

United Overseas Bank Limited (Singapore)
DBS Bank Limited

0CBC Bank

Mizuho Bank

Bank of China

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Shanghai Rural Commercial Bank Co.,Ltd.
China Construction Bank

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

China Development Bank

Agricultural Bank of China
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Good corporate governance ensures that the interests of shareholders are protected and
enhances corporate performance and accountability. SIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.
(“Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Group”) are committed to establishing
corporate governance practices in place which are in line with the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST") Listing Manual, the principles, provisions and
recommendations of the Code of Corporate Governance 2018 (“Code’) and the applicable
mandatory disclosure requirements, principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code ("HK CG Code’) as set out in Appendix C1 to the Rules (‘Hong Kong
Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“SEHK") to provide the structure through which the objectives of protection of
shareholders’ interest and enhancement of long term shareholders’ value are met.

In the event of any conflict between the Code and the HK CG Code, the Group will comply
with the more onerous provisions. This report sets out the Group’s main corporate governance
practices that were in place throughout and/or during the financial year or which will be
implemented and where appropriate, we have provided explanations for deviation from the
Code and the HK CG Code.

The Group has set out the corporate practices in place to comply with the Code and the
HK CG Code in the Annual Report. Throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2023
("FY2023"), the Group had complied with the Code and the HK CG Code, except those
explained and disclosed in this Annual Report.

CORPORATE CULTURE

As a top-tier player in the water and environmental protection industry in China, SIIC Environment
is committed to providing outstanding environmental protection solutions to customers with
continuous technological innovation and efficient operation, while undertaking the social
responsibility to promote the sustainable development of the industry. The Group's core values
consist of persistence, integrity, innovation and mutual benefit, which represents the attitude,
foundation, development and goal of the Group respectively.

Leveraging the Group’s solid strategic positioning and quality business model, we continuously
expand our business, improve efficiency and innovate to consolidate our leading position in the
water and environmental protection industry in China. We also evaluate corporate performance
indicators on a regular basis and from a multi-dimensional perspective to consolidate our
market position, continue to create value for shareholders, and drive the sustainable and healthy
development of the Group.

Adhering to a people-oriented approach, the Group strives to provide employees with a good
working environment and training opportunities. By organising employee activities from time to
time, the Group aims to promote employee motivation and team spirit, and make sure that the
Group's culture and values are clearly communicated to all employees so that they can grow
up with the Company. The Company has adopted a range of measures, including rewarding
outstanding employees, providing training and development opportunities, satisfaction surveys and
other indicators, in implementing the people-oriented corporate culture.

The Board of Directors of the Company evaluates the overall performance and the progress toward
goals of the Group on a regular basis to ensure that the strategic objectives are aligned with our
culture and values, and adjusts and polishes management strategies in a timely manner to adapt to
the constant changes and development trends in the market.

ERERRE

RFNEEERRRBRRESGARBREACERE
BEEHE - LEEXRRAERERRA ([RA2F]) R
EMEAR (SR FKE]) BNRUHAMIMEERR
HIERAR ([HRMA]) (LTFM) - (018FEXE
ATRD (AN 2 RA - GX L HEEZE (B BR
ARSMERDE ([EBERFA))EF TR TE
BCERRAD ) MERC1RE 2 (R ERERTR) ([(FE
ERERTA ) ERBHBRERR - RAIRTAIGZ
PERERER  UARRRERREDZEARIRE
BESERREEREE -

MOTAN BUBRLLEATINELABE - AEEE
BTBEXEMBEE « ARERFEEERGHEER
BRI TECLEAEE - RMTH (T
B) (BB L2 E AT REER (iR b
-

i

AEERRIBHACEEAUARNFREF (TR R
(BALEEARTA) - REZE2023F12A31 B LT BE
[ ([20238F ) N - AEE—HET(FR) R(FHD
£EARTA)  BAFHRAMBEREEERI -

fEXIL

ERGERTEABLRREZFNEELE - IR
BABBENRWAFNNSRNES  RRFPRHESEMN
RRBANE RAEAZHEEE  EDHTENTHE
BRE - AEENZOEERSRRY  AE - AFMR
e RIREE  BERRA - AIHIERE  AREE

F_f o
G

BRASERINBRENEARENBERN RO
EREAEBRE  RERAMTE A - ZEESEK
BRRREFNELML YRR ZEAEFRLA
REER  ZETSML - HERRRAIEEE  #D
AEERAHERREE -

AEBEBHEUARE  BETRERTHTERFER
Rige FRTITHREBETEY - URESINER
EMERA RS - EMERASENCMEESRE
WEMEERMERET  FETIMERARKE - A2
AT - RN BRRBEFET - REURIIE
EHE WEEREHER UERZEEUARANDR
XU

ARREFEEEHAFEAKENGARE  URER
ERER  UERASEM BB RECEERS—
B U REHENBLCERRE  EERTSHELM
BRIEBE -

Annual Report 20235 &% 53



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

&

54

<EAWME

BOARD MATTERS
The Board’s Conduct of Affairs

Principle 1: The company is headed by an effective Board which is
collectively responsible and works with Management for the long-term
success of the company.

The Board (‘Board”) of Directors (“Directors”) of the Company oversees the business
and corporate affairs of the Group. The principal duties of the Board include the
following:

e Protecting and enhancing long-term value and return to its shareholders;

e  Providing leadership and guidance on corporate strategy, business directions,
risk management policy and implementation of corporate objectives;

e  FEstablishing, reviewing, and approving the annual budget, corporate policies,
strategies, and objectives for the Group;
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Responsible for preparing the accounts of the Group;
Establishing a framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risks to
be assessed and managed, including safequarding of shareholders” interests and

the Company’s assets;

Identifying the key stakeholder groups and recognise that their perceptions affect
the Company’s reputation;

Ensuring the effectiveness and integrity of Management;

Monitoring the Management's achievement of these goals;

Conducting periodic reviews of the Group's financial performance, internal
controls and reporting compliance, including to ensure the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training, programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions;

Approving nominations to the Board and appointment of key executives;

Ensuring the Group's compliance with all relevant and applicable laws and
regulations;

Considering sustainability issues;
Assuming responsibility for the corporate governance of the Group;

Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and directors;

Reviewing the Company’'s Compliance with the Code and the HK CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;

Being the highest governing body to the ESG of the Group and accountable for
overall responsibility of strategy and reporting of the ESG, and reviewing the ESG
aims;

Determining and monitoring the strategy, measure and procedure of ESG, as well
as reviewing and approving the ESG report; and

Authorizing the Risk and Investment Management Committee (‘RIMC") to monitor
and manage (i) ESG tasks; (ii) ESG aims; and (iii) ESG significant matters
(including relevant risks), and report to the Board for discussion and approval.
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All Directors exercise due diligence and independent judgment in dealing with the
business affairs of the Group and are fiduciaries obliged to act in good faith and to take
objective decisions in the interest of the Group. The Board holds the Management of
the Company (“Management’) accountable for performance. The Directors have all
confirmed their responsibility for preparing the accounts, and that there were no events
or conditions which would have a material impact on the Company's ability to continue
to operate as a going concern basis during FY2023.

The Board reserves its decision on all major matters, including but not limited to
its principal duties, policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, significant transactions, change in Directors and senior management and
other significant operational matters of the Group. Daily operations and administration
are delegated to the management.

To assist the Board in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board is supported by
five committees, namely the Audit Committee (“AC"), the Nomination Committee (“NC”),
the Remuneration Committee (‘RC"), the Risk and Investment Management Committee
("RIMC") and the Executive Committee (‘EC”") (collectively, “Board Committees’).
The Board Committees operate within clearly defined terms of reference or scope and
they play an important role in ensuring good corporate governance in the Company
and within the Group. The terms of reference of the Board Committees (the “Terms of
Reference’) are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure their continued relevance. The
roles and responsibilities for each committee are specified in its Terms of Reference.
The details of the latest Terms of Reference can be found on the websites of the SGX-
ST, SEHK and the Company.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year to, among others, approve
the quarterly, interim and full year results announcements and to oversee the business
affairs of the Group. The schedule of all the Board and Board Committees meetings for
a calendar year is usually given to all the Directors well in advance in accordance with
the Terms of Reference, the Code, and the Hong Kong Listing Rules. Notice of regular
Board meetings is served on all the Directors at least 14 days before the meeting while
reasonable notice is generally given for other Board and Board Committee meetings.
The Board is free to seek clarification and information from Management on all matters
within their purview.

Ad hoc meetings are convened at such other times as may be necessary to address
any specific significant matters that may arise. Important matters concerning the Group
are also put to the Board for its decision by way of written resolutions. Meetings
held by means of conference telephone, video conference, audio visual or similar
communication equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting
can hear one another contemporaneously without a Director being in the physical
presence of another Director or Directors are permitted by the Company’s Constitution.
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The following table sets out the attendance of each Director at the Board, Board
Committees and the general meeting held during FY2023:

TREJSESHRENVBWFRETLESS EF
REERBERAGEENEN

Board Committee Meetings

EEXZE8Y
General Board
Meeting Meetings AC NC RC EC® RIMC®
17 RERRRE
Name of Director EEHE BRAE EZEEE BiZE8E ERZEE FMZES ZEE® EBEER0O
No. of Meetings Held BTEBERE 1 5 4 1 1 - -
Mr. Zhou Jun® AELED 1 4 1* - 1 - -
Mr. Zhou Yuding@ BPREER - - - - - - -
Mr. Yang Jianwei® GRELED 1 2 2* - - - -
Mr. Xu Xiaobing fREKEE 1 5 4* - - - -
Mr. Huang Hanguang® BERFEN 1 3 3* - - - -
Mr. Zhu Dazhi KRAKE 1 5 4* - - - -
Mr. Jiang Kai® BIREHED - 2 1 - - - -
Mr. Yang Wei® BREEO 1 3 2* - - - -
Mr. Yang Xing® BEEED - 2 - - - - -
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang BAKEE 1 5 4 1 1 - -
Mr. An Hongjun RIERE 1 5 4 1 1 - -
Mr. Zhong Ming BT 1 5 4 1 1 - -
* By invitation * e

(1) Mr. Zhou Jun resigned as the Chairman of the Board and a non-Executive Director on 18
November 2023.

(2)  Mr. Zhou Yuding was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director on
23 February 2024.

(3)  Mr. Yang Jianwei stepped down from the position of the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 28 September 2023 and subsequently resigned as an Executive Director on 2
October 2023.

(4)  Mr. Huang Hanguang resigned as an Executive Director on 20 October 2023.

(5)  Mr. Jiang Kai was appointed as an Executive Director on 20 October 2023.

(6)  Mr. Yang Wei resigned as an Executive Director on 20 October 2023.

(7)  Mr. Yang Xing was appointed as an Executive Director on 20 October 2023.

There were no official EC or RIMC meetings held during FY2023. The secretary of
the EC collates the matters related to the EC and RIMC for discussion at least once a
month. In addition, the members of the EC and RIMC contacted each other as well as
other members of the Board and the Management on an informal basis to discuss the
matters related to the EC and RIMC, respectively.

(1) BSEER2023511BIsABIESETREHE
HITES -

(2) FPREER024F2ABREEZTEAESZELE
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(3) [BREEER2023FIABHEHERDFEEHNT
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(4)  FEHRLER2023F10 520 HEHIHITES ©
(5)  BIsFEAN2023F10 20 EEEAHITES -

(6) BEFAEN2023FI0A20BFHENTES ©

(7)  BEEAER2023F10F20BEZ T AHTES -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the Code Provision
C.2.1 of the HK CG Code. The Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) and written employee
guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the HK CG Code and disclosure in this
corporate governance report.

The Group had adopted a set of internal guidelines setting forth financial authorization
and approval limits for investments, acquisitions, and disposals. Transactions falling
outside the ordinary course of business and where the value of a transaction exceeds
these limits have to be approved by the Board. The Directors facing conflicts of interest
would recuse themselves from discussions and decisions involving the issues of
conflict. The Directors would abstain from voting and decision involving the issues of
conflict.

Matters requiring the Board's decision and approval include but is not limited to the
following:

Material acquisitions and disposal of assets;
e Group's major investments/divestments and funding decisions;

e Group's announcements or press releases released via SGXNet and HKEXnews,
including financial results announcements;

e Agreements which are not in the ordinary course of business;

e Major borrowings or corporate guarantees in relation to borrowings;
e Entry into any profit-sharing arrangement;

e [ssuance of shares or declaration of dividends;

e  QOperating budgets, annual report, Directors’ statement and audited financial
statements;

e (Convening of general meetings;
e (hange in corporate business strategy and direction; and

° ESG matters
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The Directors are also updated regularly with changes to the SGX-ST Listing Manual
and the Hong Kong Listing Rules, risk management, corporate governance, insider
trading and the key changes in the relevant regulatory requirements and financial
reporting standards and the relevant laws and regulations to facilitate effective discharge
of their fiduciary duties as Board or Board Committees members.

New releases issued by the SGX-ST, Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority
("ACRA’) and the SEHK which are relevant to the Directors are circulated to the Board.
The Company Secretaries of the Company keep the Directors informed of upcoming
conferences and seminars relevant to their roles as Directors of the Company. Annually,
the external auditors update the AC and the Board on the new and revised financial
reporting standards that are applicable to the Company or the Group.

Appropriate briefing and orientation will be arranged for newly appointed Directors
to familiarise themselves with the Group’s business operations, strategic directions,
Directors” duties and responsibilities and corporate governance practices. They will
also be given opportunities to visit the Group’s operational facilities and meet the
Management so as to gain a better understanding of the Group’s business.

The Directors are encouraged to attend seminars and receive training to improve
themselves in the discharge of Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Changes to
regulations and accounting standards are monitored closely by the Management. To
keep pace with such regulatory changes, the Company provides opportunities, at the
Company's expense, for ongoing education and training on Board processes and best
practices as well as updates on changes in legislation and financial reporting standards,
regulations and guidelines from the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing
Rules that affect the Company and/or the Directors in discharging their duties. The
Company would arrange the Directors to undergo the training on sustainability matters
as prescribed by the SGX-ST and SEHK.

During FY2023, all Directors were provided updates and news of, among other things,
the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Code, the HK CG Code and the HK Listing Rules. The
shares of the Company have been listed on the SGX-ST since 2005 and dual listed
on the SEHK for trading since 23 March 2018, and the Company is required to fully
comply with both the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules. In
order to comply with Code Provision C.1.4 of HK CG Code after the dual listing of the
Company on the SEHK, the Company has provided information related to the changes
in the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules to the Directors to
update and refresh the Directors’ knowledge on the latest developments to the SGX-ST
Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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The Company will continuously update the Directors on the latest developments to
the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance the Directors” awareness of
good corporate governance practices. The Company may from time to time arrange the
training for the Directors at the Company’s costs.

Newly appointed Directors receive appropriate training, if required, and a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on appointment. The Group provides
background information about its history, mission and values to its Directors. In
addition, the Management regularly updates and familiarises the Directors on the
business activities of the Company during Board mestings. A Director who has no prior
experience as a director of an issuer listed on the SGX-ST will undergo training in the
roles and responsibilities of a director as prescribed by the SGX-ST.

Subject to the provisions of and so far as may be permitted by the Companies Act 1967,
every Director, Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director, Auditor, Secretary or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred or to be incurred by him in the
execution and discharge of his duties or in relation thereto.

During FY2023 and as at the date of this Annual Report, the Company has arranged for
appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against the Directors and senior management arising out of the discharge of
their duties and responsibilities.

To enable the Board to fulfil its responsibilities, the Management strives to provide
Board members with adequate and timely information for Board and Board Committee
meetings on an on-going basis. The Board and Board Committee papers are prepared
for each meeting and are disseminated to the members at least 3 days before the
mestings. The Board and Board Committee papers include financial, business and
corporate matters of the Group so as to enable the Directors to be properly briefed on
matters to be considered at the Board and Board Committee meetings and to make
informed decisions. Directors are given separate and independent access to the Group’s
Management and Company Secretaries to address any enquiries.

The Directors have separate and independent access to the Management and Company
Secretaries. Directors may seek professional advice in furtherance of their duties and
the costs will be borne by the Company. The appointment and removal of the Company
Secretaries are subject to the approval of the Board as a whole.
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Board Composition and Guidance

Principle 2: The Board has an appropriate level of independence and
diversity of thought and background in its composition to enable it to make

decisions in the hest interests of the company.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In designing
the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural, industry experience, skill
and knowledge. Presently, the Board comprises five Executive Directors and three

Independent Non-Executive Directors, as follows:

EEgHMRES

FR2 : EXEEMRRENRAAFEENBIN
RETHBERER  UERERLTNRENR

fEHRE -

EJ UK

REPRHENYERER  ALRARESEERA
BETLERIIFRENER B ERERTHERR
MBRLE - AAFERGTESERBANE &
RZEITBEERESEXEZ L BRETRR
TR Fle - e TEER  REERAE - B
il EEEBRARPTESR=RBUFNTE

Board Committee Meetings

ExZseyg

Name of Director Designation AC NC RC EC RIMC

BBRKRRE
BEp B EIZEE® REZEEE FMEEE HTEEE EEZEE
Mr. Zhou Yuding™ Chairman of the Board and Executive Director - - Member Chairman Member
BTFREED EZQIRFRNIES - - & B B &
Mr. Zhou Jun® Non-Executive Chairman - - Member - -
[EE FRITER - - B4=! - -
Mr. Yang Jianwei® Executive Director and - - - Chairman Chairman

Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ”)
BRERES WIEERERATE [BRHUTED - - - TE BRI
Mr. Xu Xiaobing Executive Director - - - Member Member
N e HITES - - - %8 p4=}
Mr. Huang Hanguang®  Executive Director - - - Member Member
EEHFAE HTEZ - - - = =
Mr. Zhu Dazhi® Executive Director and - - - Member Chairman
Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ")

RRBRES WIEERERNTE ([BRATED - - - & ES
Mr. Jiang Kai® Executive Director - - - Member Member
BIELEO WTES - - - Bd=! K&
Mr. Yang Wei® Executive Director - - - - -
BELED HTEZS - - - - -
Mr. Yang Xing® Executive Director - - - - -
1BEEEO WITES - - - - -
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang Lead Independent Non-Executive Director Member Chairman Member - -
BRI E ERBUFNITESF & IR K& - -
Mr. An Hongjun Independent Non-Executive Director Chairman Member Member - -
RHE LA BUFRITES B e 4= - -
Mr. Zhong Ming Independent Non-Executive Director Member Member Chairman - -
ok il BUEMITES b=} 2= IE - -
(1) Mr. Zhou Yuding was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director on (1) BAFSEER04F2A038EZIAEEETR

23 February 2024.

(2)  Mr. Zhou Jun resigned as the Chairman of the Board and a non-Executive Director on 18

November 2023.

FNTEE -

HiTES -

(2) HAEERER2023F1AIBEBEESTSEREHE
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(3)  Mr. Yang Jianwei stepped down from the position of the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 28 September 2023 and subsequently resigned as an Executive Director on 2
October 2023.

(4)  Mr. Huang Hanguang resigned as an Executive Director on 20 October 2023,

(5)  Mr. Zhu Dazhi was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer on 28 September 2023.

(6)  Mr. Jiang Kai was appointed as an Executive Director on 20 October 2023.
(7)  Mr. Yang Wei resigned as an Executive Director on 20 October 2023.

(8)  Mr. Yang Xing was appointed as an Executive Director on 20 October 2023.

Executive Committee

The EC comprises the following members:

Mr. Zhou Yuding (chairman) (appointed on 23 February 2024)

Mr. Zhu Dazhi (re-designated as the chairman on 28 September 2023 and
subsequently re-designated as a member on 23 February 2024)

Mr. Xu Xiaobing

Mr. Jiang Kai (appointed on 20 October 2023)

Mr. Huang Hanguang (resigned on 20 October 2023)

Mr. Yang Jianwei (re-designated as a member on 28 September 2023 and
subsequently resigned on 2 October 2023)

The EC is primarily responsible for assisting the Board to manage and oversee
the Group’s operational and business expansion matters. To discharge its role and
responsibility, the EC is supported by the head office, functional departments of the
various business units and Senior Management of the Group.

The EC had adopted a set of delegation of authority (‘“DOA") setting forth financial
authorisation and approval limits for investments, acquisitions and disposals.
Transactions falling outside the scope of DOA and where the value of a transaction
exceeds these limits have to be approved by the Board. All material and significant
matters are reported to the Board by the EC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The criteria for independence are determined based on the definitions as provided
in the Code, the SGX-ST Listing Manual, and the Hong Kong Listing Rules and the
independence of each Independent Non-Executive Director is reviewed annually by the
NC.

The NC considers an Independent Non-Executive Director as one who is independent
in conduct, character and judgement, and has no relationship with the Company, its
related corporations, its substantial shareholders or its Officers that could interfere,
or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the Directors’ independent
business judgment in the best interests of the Company pursuant to the Provision 2.1
of the Code. The NC also takes into consideration the circumstances provided in Rule
210(5)(d) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual and Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
for determining the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Director.
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The Independent Non-Executive Directors actively participate in Board meetings.
The Company has benefited from Management's access to its Directors for guidance
and exchange of views both within and outside of the meetings of the Board and
Board Committees. The Independent Non-Executive Directors communicate amongst
themselves and with the Company’s auditors and Senior Management. The chairman
of the Board should and does hold, at least annually, meetings with the Non-Executive
Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors) without the presence of the
Executive Directors pursuant to Code Provision C.2.7 of HK CG Code.

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang (‘Mr. Yeo"), an Independent Non-Executive Director, who was
first appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 23 September 2009 and has served
the Board beyond 9 years. The relevant factors that were taken into consideration
in determining the independence of Mr. Yeo are set out under Principle 4 of the
Corporate Governance Report. Pursuant to Rule 210(5)(d)(iii) of the SGX-ST Listing
Manual (which has since been deleted on 11 January 2023), the resolutions in relation
to Mr. Yeo's continued appointment as an Independent Non-Executive Director had
been approved by the Shareholders of the Company at the Company’s Annual General
Meeting (AGM") held on 30 April 2021. The resolutions were to continue to be in
force until the earlier of the following: (i) the retirement or resignation of Mr. Yeo
as a Director; or (ii) the conclusion of the third AGM following the passing of the
resolutions.

The Rule 210(5)(d)(iii) of the SGX Listing Rules was removed with immediate effect
on 11 January 2023. The Singapore Exchange Regulation will limit to nine years the
tenure of independent directors serving on the boards of listed issuers. As a transition,
independent directors whose tenure exceeds the nine-year limit can continue to be
deemed independent until the issuer's next AGM to be held in 2024, for the financial
year ending 31 December 2023.

In compliance with the amended Listing Rule 210(5)(d)(iv), which imposed a hard
tenure limit for independent directors of nine years, beyond which such directors
will no longer be considered independent, Mr. Yeo who is due for retirement at the
forthcoming AGM, will not seek for re-election. In view of the retirement of Mr. Yeo,
the number of members in each of the Audit Committee, Nominating Committee and
Remuneration Committee will fall below the minimum number of three. The Company
shall endeavour to fill the vacancy within two (2) months but in any case, not later than
three (3) months.

No service contract or letter of appointment has been entered into by the Non-Executive
Director and the Independent Non-Executive Directors with the Company. Although the
Non-Executive Director and the Independent Non-Executive Directors are not appointed
for a specific term, they are subject to the applicable laws and regulations and subject
to retirement by rotation and re-glection at AGM in accordance with the Constitution of
the Company.

Presently, the Company has three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors on the
Board, which make up at least one-third of the Board.
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Notwithstanding the above and the requirements of Provisions 2.2 and 2.3 of the Code,
the NC has reviewed the size and composition of the Board and after taking into account
the scope and nature of operations of the Group in the year under review including
diversity of background, experience, gender, age and other relevant factors, the NC is
satisfied that the current Board size is appropriate and effective with composition of five
(5) Executive Directors, and three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors. To address
the issue of independence, the Board has put in place a Lead Independent Director, who
is available to shareholders where they have concerns. The Board is of the view that
the Independent Directors demonstrate a strong level of independence and judgement
in discharging their duties and responsibilities as Independent Directors of the
Company with the utmost commitment in upholding the interest of the non-controlling
shareholders. They have expressed individual and independent viewpoints, input,
debated issues, and objectively scrutinised and challenged the Management taking into
consideration the long-term interests of the Group and its shareholders. No individual
or small group of individuals dominates the Board's decision making. Nonetheless,
the Company is constantly on the lookout for suitable candidates to join the Board as
Independent Non-Executive Directors as part of its review process.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of
independence in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules as well
as the Code and the Board is satisfied that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
have been independent and met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules during FY2023 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

The Board comprises Directors who as a whole, have core competencies and diversity of
experience to enable them to lead and control the Group effectively. Such competencies
and experiences include industry knowledge, strategic planning, business and general
management, legal and finance, and at least one Independent Non-Executive Director
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise pursuant to Rule 3.10(2) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

The Company and the Board recognise and embrace the benefits of diversity on the
Board, and view diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. A diverse
Board will include the differences between the Directors in terms of skills, experience,
background, gender, age, ethnicity and other relevant factors which will be considered
in determining the optimum composition of the Board. In recognition of the importance
of the gender diversity in the composition of the Board, the Company undertakes to
have at least one female director on the Board by 31 December 2024. The Board will
continue to seek opportunities to increase the proportion of female members over time
as and when suitable candidates are identified. The NC will continue to review the
Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its relevance and effectiveness, and
will recommend the revisions, if any, to the Board for consideration and approval.
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As at 31 December 2023, the gender ratio of the Group’s workforce (including senior
management) was approximately 74% male to 26% female. The Company adheres to
fair and non-discriminatory employment principles and complies with Special Rules on
the Labour Protection of Female Employees and the Law of the PRC on the Protection
of Women'’s Rights to ensure equal pay for equal work regardless of gender and secure
the legal rights and interests of female employees. Hence, the Company considers that
gender diversity has been achieved.

Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors exercise no
management functions in the Group. Although all the Directors have equal
responsibility for the performance of the Group, the roles of the Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Directors are particularly important in ensuring that the
strategies proposed by Management are fully discussed and rigorously examined and
take into account the long-term interests of not only the shareholders, but also of the
employees, customers, suppliers and the communities in which the Group conducts
its business. In addition, the roles of the Non-Executive Director and Independent
Non-Executive Directors are particularly important in reviewing the performance of
Management in achieving agreed goals and objectives and monitoring the reporting
of performance. The NC considers its Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
of sufficient calibre and size and their views to be of sufficient weight such that no
individual or small group of individuals dominates the Board's decision-making
process.

The Company co-ordinates informal meeting sessions, led by the Lead Independent
Non-Executive Director, for the Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Directors to meet on a need-basis without the presence of the Management, as
appropriate, to discuss matters such as the Group's financial performance, corporate
governance initiatives, Board processes, succession planning as well as leadership
development and the remuneration of the Executive Directors. The Lead Independent
Non-Executive Director will provide feedback and recommendations to the Chairman of
the Board after such meetings, as appropriate.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principle 3: There is a clear division of responsibilities between the
leadership of the Board and Management, and no one individual has
unfettered powers of decision-making.

The Company practices a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the CEQ. This ensures an appropriate balance of power between the Chairman and CEO
and thereby allows for increased accountability and greater capacity of the Board for
independent decision making. Mr. Zhou Yuding is the Chairman of the Board and an
Executive Director of the Company. He leads and ensures effective and comprehensive
Board's communication on matters brought to the Board including strategic issues as
well as business planning.
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The Board is responsible for overseeing our overall policies, strategies and objectives,
key operational initiatives, performance and measurement, internal controls and risk
management, major funding and investment proposals, financial performance reviews
and corporate governance practices. Approval of our Board is required for such matters
including but not limited to corporate restructuring, mergers and acquisitions, major
investments and divestments, material acquisitions and disposals of assets, major
corporate policies on key areas at operations, share issuance, dividend and other
returns to shareholders, acceptances of bank facilities, annual budget and release of the
Group’s financial results.

Mr. Zhu Dazhi is the CEO and he oversees the merger and acquisition related matters
of the Group and overall management of the Group's strategy, business, operation,
administration and financial matters. The Chairman of the Board and CEQ are not
related to each other.

The responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board include:

e Scheduling of meetings to enable the Board to perform its duties responsibly
while not interfering with the flow of the Group’s operations;

° Ensuring that Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information, and
ensuring effective communication with shareholders;

e Ensuring the Group’s compliance with the Code and the HK CG Code;

e Acting in the best interest of the Group and of the shareholders;

e Ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings;

e Ensuring the Group’s compliance with the Code and the HK CG Code;

e Acting in the best interest of the Group and of the shareholders;

e  Providing leadership for the Board. The chairman should ensure that the
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner. The chairman should
be primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda for each Board
meeting. He should take into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed
by the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The chairman may delegate
this responsibility to a designated Director or the Company Secretary;

e Taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established;
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e Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution to the Board's
affairs and taking the lead to ensure that it acts in the best interests of the
Company. The Chairman should encourage Directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allow sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensure that
Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus;

e  Holding meetings annually with the Non-Executive Directors (including
Independent Non-Executive Directors) without the presence of the Executive
Directors;

e Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views are communicated to the Board as a whole; and

e  Promoting a culture of openness and debating by facilitating the effective
contribution of Non-Executive Directors in particular and ensuring constructive
relations between Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

The Company Secretaries may be called to assist the Chairman of the Board in any of
the above.

In view of the fact that the Chairman of the Board is not independent, the Board had
appointed Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang as the Lead Independent Non-Executive Director to
co-ordinate and to lead the Independent Non-Executive Directors to provide a non-
executive perspective and contribute to a balance of viewpoints on the Board. He is the
main liaison on Board issues between the Independent Non-Executive Directors and
the Chairman of the Board. He is available to shareholders where they have concerns
and for which contact through the normal channels of the Chairman of the Board, CEQ,
Chief Financial Officer (‘CFQ") (or the deputy CFO or any other personnel who have
been delegated CFO functions where the Company has no CFQ), or the Management
are inappropriate or inadequate. As at the date of this Annual Report, the Company does
not have a CFO, and is in the course of identifying a suitable candidate for the position
of CFO. An announcement will be made in this regard as and when appropriate. In the
interim, Zhu Yeliang has assumed the duties of the CFO.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors, led by the Lead Independent Non-Executive
Director, meet amongst themselves without the presence of the other Directors, where
necessary, and the Lead Independent Non-Executive Director will provide feedback to
the Chairman of the Board after such meetings, as appropriate. The Chairman of the
Board, the CEO and other Directors do not have any financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other.

In light of Mr. Yeo's retirement as the Lead Independent Non-Executive Director upon
conclusion of the forthcoming AGM, the Company will endeavour to appoint a Lead
Independent Non-Executive Director within 2 months, but in any case no later than 3
months from the date of the forthcoming AGM. An announcement will be made in this
regard as and when appropriate.

Board Membership

Principle 4: The Board has a formal and transparent process for the
appointment and re-appointment of directors, taking into account the need
for progressive renewal of the Board.
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Nomination Committee

The NC comprises the following members:
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang (Chairman of the NC)
Mr. Zhong Ming
Mr. An Hongjun

The Chairman of the NC and all its members are considered independent pursuant
to the definition of the independent under the Code, Listing Manual of the SGX-ST
and Hong Kong Listing Rules. The Chairman of the NC, Mr. Yeo, is also the Lead
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.

The NC's role is to establish a formal and transparent process for:

e  Reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on all candidates
nominated for appointment and re-appointment to the Board of the Company and
of its subsidiaries;

e Reviewing and recommending to the Board on an annual basis, the Board
structure, size and composition, taking into account, the balance between
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors to ensure that the Board as a whole possesses the right blend of
relevant experiences and core competencies to effectively manage the Company;

e Procuring that at least one-third of the Board shall comprise of Independent Non-
Executive Directors;

e |dentifying and making recommendations to the Board as to which Directors
are to retire by rotation and to be put forward for re-election at each AGM of the
Company, having regard to the Directors’ contribution and performance, including
the Independent Non-Executive Directors;

e Reviewing the Board succession plans for Directors, in particular the appointment
and/or replacement of the Chairman, the CEO and key management personnel and
the progressive renewal of the Board;

e Assessing the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors; and

e Proposing a set of objective performance criteria to the Board for approval and
implementation, to evaluate the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution of each Director to the effectiveness of the Board.

The NC is responsible for identifying and recommending new Directors to the Board,
after considering the necessary and desirable competencies. In selecting potential new
Directors, the NC will seek to identify the competencies required to enable the Board
to fulfil its responsibilities and taking into account the nomination policy which sets
out the procedures and criteria for the selection, appointment and reappointment of
the Directors. In accordance with the nomination policy, in evaluating and selecting
any candidate for directorship, the NC shall consider (i) the candidates’ character
and integrity; (ii) professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience,
independence; (iii) diversity on the Board; (iv) willingness to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a Board member; and (v) such other criteria that are appropriate to
the business of the Group.

Where the NC has identified a potential new Director and considered him/her
appropriate taking into account the criteria above-mentioned, the NG may propose to
the Board or offer for nomination by a Shareholder as a nominee for election to the
Board by submitting the candidate’s personal profile to the Board for consideration. The
Board may appoint the candidate as Director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board or recommend such candidate to the Shareholders for election or re-glection
(as the case may be) at general meeting.
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The NC may engage consultants to undertake research on, or assess, candidates
applying for new positions on the Board, or to engage such other independent experts,
as it considers necessary to carry out its duties and responsibilities including skills,
experience, diversity of background, gender, age, ethnicity and other relevant factors
which will be considered in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

Recommendations for new Directors are put to the Board for its consideration. New
Directors are appointed by way of a Board resolution following which they are subject
to re-election at the next AGM.

The Company’s Constitution requires one-third of the Board (except for the Managing
Director) to retire by rotation at every AGM. Directors who retire are eligible to offer
themselves for re-election. Pursuant to Regulation 97 of the Company's Constitution,
Directors of the Company who were newly appointed by the Board since the last AGM
will have to retire at the forthcoming AGM. Each member of the NC shall abstain from
voting on any resolutions in respect to his re-nomination as a Director.

For the financial year under review, the NC is of the view that the Independent Non —
Executive Directors of the Company are independent (as defined in the Code and the
Hong Kong Listing Rules) and are able to exercise judgment on the corporate affairs of
the Group independent of the Management. The NC has received annual confirmation
of independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company, each
confirming that he does not have any relationship which may affect his independence as
provided under Provision 4.4 of the Code and the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

The NC has recommended to the Board that Mr. Zhu Dazhi, Mr. Xu Xiaobing, Mr.
Zhou Yuding, Mr. Jiang Kai and Mr. Yang Xing be nominated for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM. The Board has accepted the NC's recommendations.

The Nomination Committee and the board of Directors of the Company (excluding Mr.
Xu) have carefully assessed the issues addressed in the Notice involving Mr. Xu (the
‘Relevant Issues’). As (i) there is no evidence that the Relevant Issues involved any
act of dishonesty, fraud or suggest any issue of character and integrity on the part of
Mr. Xu which would affect Mr. Xu's suitability as a Director; (ii) the Relevant Issues
did not relate to the Company or its business or any Director, executive officers or
senior management of the Company; (iii) the Relevant Issues happened between 2016
and 2022 mainly, while Mr. Xu started his appointment at SI Development in 2021
and therefore had a relatively lower level of involvement; (iv) Mr. Xu continues to
competently and diligently discharge his duties and responsibilities as an executive
Director of the Company, contribute positively in his deliberations during meetings
of the board of Directors, the Risk and Investment Management Committee and the
Executive Committee of the Company and is able to dedicate sufficient time to the
Company; and (v) Mr. Xu has undertaken to attend training on relevant regulatory and
legal topics, the Nomination Committee and the board of Directors of the Company
consider that Mr. Xu remains suitable to be an executive Director pursuant to Rules
3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules, and that the continued appointment of Mr. Xu as an
executive Director complies with Rule 720(1) (read with Rule 210(5)) of the SGX Listing
Manual.

Please refer to pages 98 to 110 of this report for the detailed information required
pursuant to Rule 720(6) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual.

Despite some of the Directors having other board appointments, the NC is satisfied that
these Directors are able to and have adequately carried out their duties as Directors of
the Company. Currently, the Board has not determined the maximum number of listed
board representations which any Director may hold. The NC and the Board will review
the requirement to determine the maximum number of listed board representations as
and when it deems fit.

There is no alternate director being appointed to the Board during FY2023.
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The key information regarding the Directors such as academic and professional
qualifications, Board Committees served, directorships or chairmanships both present
and past held over the preceding three years in other listed companies and other major
appointments, whether the appointment is executive or non-executive are set out on
pages 93 to 97 of this Annual Report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under
the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Board Performance

Principle 5: The Board undertakes a formal annual assessment of its
effectiveness as a whole, and that of each of its hoard committees and
individual directors.

While the Code recommends that the NC be responsible for recommending for the
Board's approval the objective performance criteria and process for assessing the
Board as a whole and each of its Board Committees and also assessing the individual
evaluation of each Directors’ contribution, the NC is of the view that it is more
appropriate and effective to assess the Board as a whole and its Board Committees,
bearing in mind that each member of the Board and the Board Committees contributes
in different ways to the success of the Company and Board and Board Committees
decisions are made collectively.

The NC has implemented a process for assessing the effectiveness of the Board as a
whole and each Board Committee respectively. Each Director is required to complete
the Board Evaluation Forms adopted by the NC and the Board Committees’ Evaluation
Forms adopted by the AC, NC and RC, which would then be collated by the NC
Chairman for review or discussion. The NC focuses on a set of performance criteria
which includes the evaluation of the size and composition of the Board and its Board
Committees, the access to information, processes and accountability, performance
in relation to discharging its principle responsibilities and the Directors” standards
of conduct, in assessing the Board's performance as a whole and the performance of
the Board Committees. Following the review, the Board is of the view that the Board
and Board Committees operate effectively and each Director is contributing to the
effectiveness of the Board and the Board Committees due to the active participation
of each member during each meeting. No external facilitator was used during the
evaluation process in FY2023.

The Board and the NC have endeavoured to ensure that the Directors appointed to the
Board possess the relevant experience, knowledge and expertise critical to the Group’s
business. Although the Directors are not evaluated individually, the performance of the
Directors is evaluated using agreed criteria, aligned as far as possible with appropriate
corporate objectives. The criteria include short-term and long-term measures and
cover financial and non-financial performance indicators such as the strength of his
experience and stature, and his contribution to the proper guidance of the Group and its
businesses.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

Principle 6: The Board has a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on director and executive remuneration, and for fixing
the remuneration packages of individual directors and key management
personnel. No director is involved in deciding his or her own remuneration.

Remuneration Committee

The RC comprises the following members:

Mr. Zhong Ming (Chairman of the RC)

Mr. Zhou Jun (resigned on 18 November 2023)
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Mr. An Hongjun

Mr. Zhou Yuding (appointed on 23 February 2024)

The RC comprises four (4) members, three (3) of whom (including the Chairman of
the RC) are independent. Mr. Zhou Yuding, the Chairman of the Board and Executive
Director of the Company, is a member of the RC. Although the Code provides that the
RC should comprise entirely of non-executive directors, the majority of whom, including
the Chairman of the RC should be independent, the Board is of the view that Mr. Zhou
Yuding should be a member of the RC. Mr. Zhou Yuding has extensive knowledge and
experience in China and he is well-placed to advise on remuneration packages of the
key management personnel who are largely based in China. Hence, the inclusion of Mr.
Zhou Yuding as a member of the RC is considered beneficial to the Group.

The RC recommends to the Board a framework for the remuneration of the Directors
and key management personnel which is in line with the market in order to attract,
motivate and retain talented individuals. The RC has full authority to engage external
professional advice on matters relating to remuneration as and when the need arises.
The Company did not engage any remuneration consultant during FY2023. The RC has
full responsibility for ensuring the transparency and accountability of remuneration
framework. No Director or any of his associates and key management personnel are
involved in any decision-making relating to his own remuneration or compensation
packages.

The key duties of the RC, inter alia, are:

e  To review and submit its recommendations for endorsement by the Board, a
framework of remuneration and the specific remuneration packages and terms
of employment (where applicable) for each Director (including CEQ) and key
management personnel in consultation with the Chairman of the Board;

e To review the remuneration packages of Non-Executive Director which should be
appropriate to the level of contribution, taking into account factors such as effort
and time spent, and responsibilities of the Directors;
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e To review the remuneration packages of the Directors and key management which
should be comparable within the industry and in comparable companies and shall
include a performance-related element coupled with appropriate and meaningful
measures of assessing individual Directors” and key management personnel's
performance;

e To review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors and Senior
Management for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

e To review and approve compensation arrangements (if any) relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate, in the interest of
the Company;

e To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration;

e To review and approve annually the total remuneration of the Directors and
key management personnel with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

e To review and submit its recommendations for endorsement by the Board, any
long-term incentive schemes which may be set up from time to time and to do all
acts necessary in connection therewith; and

e To review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

In reviewing the service agreements of the Executive Directors and key management
personnel of the Company, the RC will review the Company's obligations arising
in the event of termination of these service agreements, to ensure that such service
agreements contain fair and reasonable termination clauses and which are not overly
generous. The RC aims to be fair and avoids rewarding poor performance.

Level and Mix of Remuneration

Principle 7: The level and structure of remuneration of the Board and key
management personnel are appropriate and proportionate to the sustained
performance and value creation of the company, taking into account the
strategic objectives of the company.

The RC will take into account the industry norms, the Group's performance as well
as the contribution and performance of each Director when determining remuneration
packages.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

NE
By

)3

B

BTE

oM
RA
EE
AE

N
E3E]

i E

ENESRIBERABNFMTBREZE

RERTELBARMELER  TERBHEER

RAAOEE  ENEERBRIRES
EEBABRROGENL

il KAERMBTEZRBREEASRE
%%imtﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁiﬁm%ﬁvu
ERZZBERSOGER -5 AREHE
BRER—B BETALATSE  T3H
%

R R ERESTTRAREMEENE
i BERESMS RNERER S (0E)
BRZFZHEGOER B0 & E
PR —B AERENESEE

N/NGIV

Hiﬂ} >1+

AR EME S H A
B CHFM

YNGR

SHEEF

/\\\

REZENLENHRAR  8FFHR
Hﬁ§$ IRE

B AR ROFMAE

R MESSEE AR E TR AR 5T 6
ERRAHB S RELEZRBNRETT
EIE

BHR/ SWEBB(LTRIDE1TER
ABBROFENEE -

BARRMTEZEREIRERABNREHR
ERBFAARARR L b ERB HE
ERMERE NHERZSREEAMENE LK
RFRE  TRBANER - HFMEEEULRT
MR RBRATES -

KERBH

T HELAFERARME  EFERIET
BENFHKERRBRAFLAHFRRAR
SIERARAE -

EHHETEE  FHEESZREARE - K
RARBEFNEHERSE -



The remuneration for the Executive Directors and certain key management personnel
comprises fixed and variable components. The variable component (cash-based
bonus) is performance related and is linked to the Group's performance as well as the
performance of each individual Executive Director and key management personnel.

The Company does not have any share scheme under Chapter 17 of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.

During FY2023, one RC meeting was held whereat the RC reviewed and recommended
to the Board for consideration of the remuneration packages of each of the Executive
Directors and the Senior Management with reference to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Executive Directors and the
Senior Management and performance of the Group.

Directors’ fees will be paid or payable to the Independent Non-Executive Directors and
certain Executive Directors in accordance with their contributions, taking into account
factors such as effort and time spent, responsibilities of the Directors and the need
to pay competitive fees to attract, retain and motivate the Directors. The Independent
Non — Executive Directors shall not be over-compensated to the extent that their
independence may be compromised. The Directors’ fees are endorsed by the RC and
recommended by the Board for shareholders’ approval at the AGM of the Company.

The Company does not use contractual provisions to allow the Company to reclaim
incentive components of remuneration from Executive Directors and key management
personnel in exceptional circumstances of misstatement of financial results, or of
misconduct resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Executive Directors owe a
fiduciary duty to the Company. The Company should be able to avail itself to remedies
against the Executive Directors in the event of such breach of fiduciary duties.

Disclosure on Remuneration

Principle 8: The company is transparent on its remuneration policies, level
and mix of remuneration, the procedure for setting remuneration, and the
relationships between remuneration, performance and value creation.

The Company's remuneration policy is to reward the performance of, attract, and retain
and motivate the Directors and key management personnel. The RC will take into
consideration the industry norms, the Group’s performance as well as the performance
of each Director and key management personnel when determining the remuneration
packages. The RC will review the remuneration packages for the Directors and key
management personnel from time to time, where it deems appropriate.
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(@)  The details of the remuneration of Directors of the Company disclosed in bands
for services rendered during FY2023 are as follows:

(@)

20238 - AREEFHEMERRBK
B M S EERERENFENT -

Remuneration band

Number of Directors of the Company

FeEE AAREEHE

$$250,000 to S$500,000 1

250,000%7 7t £500,000%7 T 1

Below $$250,000 10

{&4250,000%7 T 10

Fees Salary Bonus Benefits Total
we e A BF &%

Directors Eg % % % % %

$$250,000 to S$500,000 250,000 %7t £500,000%7 T

Mr. Huang Hanguang® BENRFED 46 36 18 - 100

Below $$250,000 {£74250,000% T

Mr. Zhou Jun® BAELED 100 - - - 100

Mr. Yang Jianwei® GRERER 100 - - - 100

Mr. Xu Xiaobing fREEk kL 100 - - - 100

Mr. Zhu Dazhi® RRAFED 100 - - - 100

Mr. Jiang Kai® BlELAEo 100 - - - 100

Mr. Yang Wei® BREEO 100 - - - 100

Mr. Yang Xing™ 1BEEAED 100 - - - 100

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang BARAEE 100 - - - 100

Mr. An Hongjun ZHELE 100 - - - 100

Mr. Zhong Ming EREE 100 - - - 100

(1) Mr. Zhou Jun resigned as the Chairman of the Board and a non-Executive Director on (1) RBAEXRER2023F11A18EHTESEEREEE
18 November 2023. HITES -

(2)  Mr. Yang Jianwei stepped down from the position of the Chief Executive Officer of (2) BRERER2023FIA28HETAREERNT
the Company on 28 September 2023 and subsequently resigned as an Executive BB HER2023F10 828R IHITES -
Director on 2 October 2023.

(3)  Mr. Huang Hanguang resigned as an Executive Director on 20 October 2023. () FEEAEAR2023FI0A20BFHENTES ©

(4)  Mr. Zhu Dazhi was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer on 28 September 2023. (4)  RRBEER2023F9A28BERTABERNT

o

(5)  Mr. Jiang Kai was appointed as an Executive Director on 20 October 2023. (5)  BlskAN2023F10 A0 ER T ANITES -

(6)  Mr. Yang Wei resigned as an Executive Director on 20 October 2023. (6) HEIAER2023FI10A20BFHTHRTES o

(7)  Mr. Yang Xing was appointed as an Executive Director on 20 October 2023. (7)  BEEER2023F10A20BEZ T AHTES -
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(b)

The details of the remuneration of 6 key management personnel (who are not the (b))  H202381% - ARAANAKFEEEEKE (WIHE
Directors or the CEQ and substantial shareholders of the Company) identified ERERPTERARAEERT) HEMREER
by the Company disclosed in bands for services rendered during FY2023 are as BREWHHABHEREOFEOT
follows:
Fees Salary Bonus Benefits Total
we ¢ A BA A%t
Relevant Key Management
Personnel of the Company ARAEBEIEEEERES % % % % %
$$250,000 to S$500,0000 250,000%7 £ £500,00037 T
Qin Feng ZlE - 49 33 18 100
Qiu Yihua® mEED - 43 38 19 100
Xu Xiaoging N - 43 38 19 100
Tang Congliang®@ Eft=@ - 70 25 5 100
Below S$250,000 {£74250,000% T
Wang Peigang® THE@e - 63 36 1 100
Yang Anyuan BZR - 39 40 21 100

(1) Mr. Qiu Yihua was appointed as the Deputy General Manager of the Group on 25
April 2023.

(2)  Mr. Tang Congliang resigned as the Chief Financial Officer of the Group on 15
February 2024.

(3)  Mr. Wang Peigang resigned as the Deputy General Manager of the Group on 31 May
2023.

For FY2023 the aggregate total remuneration paid/payable to the relevant key
management personnel (who are not Directors or the CEO and substantial
shareholders of the Company) amounted to S$1,631,774.

In view of confidentiality of remuneration matters, the Board is of the opinion
that it is in the best interests of the Group not to disclose the exact remuneration
of Directors and key management personnel in the Annual Report and that the
disclosure based on the above remuneration bands is appropriate.

For FY2023, there were no terminations, retirement or post-employment benefits
granted to Directors and relevant key management personnel other than the
standard contractual notice period and termination payment in lieu of service.

There were no employees who were substantial shareholders (hereinunder has
the meaning ascribed to it under the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong
Listing Rules) of the Company, immediate family members of a Director, CEQ or
substantial shareholders of the Company, in the Group’s employment during the
financial year under review.

(1) NBEELER023F4A2BREZERTEERE
w3 .

(2) BRREER024F2A15BHEREEERENE
T

(3)  EREMEAER2023F5 A1 BREARERIRRE
pii:

R385 - BN/ BNEBIRERERE (1
FESRERNTERADATERR) WFHME
#AR1,631,774% 7T -

ERFMEENREN EFERARERTTT
REESRIREEEXBNBIFHINALSE
BoRENZRR EIFHEEREDBIRE -

M08 - IRIREAS MBI RILTIRSN B
ENERIZEREKRBYBERRL - ROESH
BREMURE RS -
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Risk Management and Internal Controls

Principle 9: The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and
ensures that Management maintains a sound system of risk management
and internal controls, to safeguard the interests of the company and its
shareholders.

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and the overall internal control
framework, but acknowledges that no cost-effective internal control system will preclude
all errors and irregularities. The system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The internal controls in place
will address the financial, operational, compliance and information technology risks
and the objectives of these controls are to provide reasonable assurance that there are
no material financial misstatements or material loss, there are maintenance of proper
accounting records, financial information are reliable, and assets are safeguarded.

The Company has established a RIMC to oversee the Group’s overall risk management
framework and ESG matters, and to advise the Board on the Group's risk related
matters, investment management and ESG's performance and reporting. The RIMC
reports directly to the Board.

Risk and Investment Management Committee

The RIMGC comprises the following members:

Mr. Zhu Dazhi (chairman) (re-designated on 28 September 2023)

Mr. Yang Jianwei (re-designated as a member on 28 September 2023 and
subsequently resigned on 2 October 2023)

Mr. Zhou Yuding (appointed on 23 February 2024)

Mr. Xu Xiaobing

Mr. Huang Hanguang (resigned on 20 October 2023)

Mr. Yang Anyuan

Mr. Jiang Kai (appointed on 20 October 2023)

Ms. Xu Xiaoging

The RIMC and Management are responsible for designing, implementing and
monitoring the risk management and internal control systems within the Group on an
ongoing basis ensuing that a review of the effectiveness of the Group'’s risk management
and internal control systems has been conducted at least annually. Management
regularly reviews the Group’s business and operational activities to identify areas at
significant risks as well as appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
Any significant matters are highlighted to the Board and the AC for their deliberation.
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During FY2023, in addition to the work carried out by external auditors and internal
auditors, the Group had processes in place supporting the framework that enables
Management to address the financial, operational, compliance and information
technology controls of the key business units. The processes involve the identification
of major risks through risk discussion sessions and control self-assessments by the
Group's major business units, where the business units' key financial, operational,
compliance and information technology control risks, as well as mitigation measures,
were summarised for review by the Management, the internal auditors and the Board.
The conduct of risk discussion sessions also serves to heighten the risk awareness
for staff at the middle management level. The documentation provided also gives
an overview of the Group’s key risks, how they are managed, and the key personnel
responsible for each identified risk type and the various assurance mechanisms in
place. In relation to the key risks being identified, the Company has taken steps to
address and implement the relevant controls and mitigating measures where applicable
and necessary to ensure that the Group’s key risks are being managed adequately and
effectively.

Key initiatives will be progressively implemented.

To ensure that internal controls are adequate and effective, the AC is assisted by various
independent professional service providers. The assistance of the internal auditors
enabled the AC to carry out assessments of the effectiveness of key internal controls
during the year. Any material non-compliance or weaknesses in internal controls or
recommendations from the internal auditors and external auditors to further improve
the internal controls were reported to the AC. The AC will also follow up on the actions
taken by the Management on the recommendations made by the internal auditors and
external auditors. Based on the reports submitted by the internal and external auditors
received by the AC and the Board, nothing material has come to the attention of the AC
and the Board to cause the AC and the Board to believe that the internal controls are
not satisfactory for the type and size of business conducted.

The Directors have received the representation letters from the EC, CEQ, Deputy CFO
and Management of the key business units in relation to the financial information for
FY2023. Associates and joint ventures which the Company does not control are not
dealt with for the purposes of this statement. The EC, CEQ, and Deputy CFQO have
assured the Board that:

(a)  The financial records have been properly maintained and the financial statements
for FY2023 give a true and fair view of the Company’s operations and finances;
and

(b) The Group’s internal control and risk management systems are adequate
and operating effectively in all material respects given its current business
environment and notwithstanding that there is currently no CFO as at the date of
this Annual Report for the reasons stated below.
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While there is currently no CFO as at the date of this Annual Report, the Company
is in the course of identifying a suitable candidate for the position of chief financial
officer. In the interim, Deputy CFO has assumed the duties of the chief financial officer.
Based on the above, the internal controls established and maintained by the Group,
work performed by the internal auditors and external auditors, reviews performed and
representations made by Management, and the documentation on the Group’s key risks
referred to above, the Board with the concurrence of the AC, is of the opinion that the
Group’s internal controls and risk and investment management systems are adequate
and effective in addressing the financial, operational, compliance and information
technology control risks of the Group as at 31 December 2023.

With the assessment of the Company and the Management, the Board and the AC
confirmed that there has been no exposure to sanctions-related risks through various
means. If there is any exposure to sanctions-related risks, the Company would
announce with appropriate details pursuant to the SGX-ST Listing Manual.

The Directors are aware of the requirements under the applicable regulations, Part 12 of
the Singapore Securities and Futures Act 2001, the SGX-ST Listing Rules, Part XIVA of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Hong Kong Listing Rules for the handling and dissemination of inside information. All
the inside information identified by the Directors shall be published and disclosed to
the public in a timely manner through the Company's publications and communications,
unless the information falls within safe harbours as prescribed in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

The RIMC is also delegated by the Board and responsible for ESG matters. Comment,
with the necessary support from the RIMC, on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
controls including financial, operational, compliance and information technology
controls and risk management systems in the Company's annual report, including
the Board's opinion on the internal controls pursuant to Rule 1207(10) of the Listing
Rules. In addition, the RIMC is also responsible for supervising the implementation of
the Group’s ESG management policies, strategies and objectives and reviewing their
achievement, reviewing and confirming important ESG issues (including relevant risks),
and reporting to the Board.

The key duties of the RIMC in relation to the ESG, inter alia, are:
e To set out and review the management approaches, targets and strategies of ESG

of the Company;

e To review and confirm the priority of ESG matters, and report to the Board for
approval;

e To identify risks and opportunities of the Company in the ESG matters, review the

performance of the Company against the relevant risks, and report to the Board
for review;
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e To monitor and comment the ESG works, examine and monitor the performance
and progress of ESG related targets, and report to the Board for review; and

e Review the Company’s compliance of ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix
27 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules, review the Company's annual ESG report, and
report to the Board for review and approval.

Audit Committee

Principle 10: The Board has an Audit Commitiee which discharges its
duties objectively.

Audit Committee

The AC comprises the following members:
Mr. An Hongjun (Chairman of the AC)

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Mr. Zhong Ming

All the members of the AC, including the Chairman of the AC are Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Company has adopted and has complied with the principles of
corporate governance under the Code and the HK CG Code in relation to the roles and
responsibilities of the AC.

In line with the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the Board
provides a negative assurance statement to the shareholders in respect of the interim
financial statements. For the financial year under review, the EC and the CFO have
provided assurance to the Board on the integrity of the Group’s financial statements.

The Management provides the Board with a continual flow of relevant information on
a timely basis in order that it may effectively discharge its duties. The Management
understands its role to provide all members of the Board with a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects.

The Board is of the view that the members of the AC are appropriately qualified, having
the necessary accounting or related financial management expertise to discharge their

responsibilities.

The AC, which has written terms of reference, performs the following delegated
functions:

(1) To review with the external auditors:

e the audit plan, including the nature and scope of the audit before the audit
COMmMences;

e their audit report; and

e their management letters and the Management's response.
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To discuss with the external auditors any problems or concerns arising from their
agreed-upon procedures, interim and final audits, and any other matters which
the external auditors may wish to discuss;

To ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved:;

To assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control (including
financial, operational, compliance, information technology controls and risk
management) systems established by Management to identify, assess, manage,
and disclose financial and non-financial risks;

To monitor the scope and results of the external audit, its cost effectiveness
and the independence and objectivity of the external auditors annually and give
recommendations to the Board and the Company in a general meeting regarding
the appointment, re-appointment or removal of the external auditors;

To review and ensure that the assurance has been received from the EC (or
equivalent) and the CFO (or equivalent) in relation to the interim/full year
unaudited financial statement;

To review the internal audit programme and ensure co-ordination between the
internal auditors and external auditors and the Management;

To review the quarterly, half-yearly and full year financial statements of the
Company and of the Group, including announcements relating thereto, to
shareholders, the SGX-ST and HKEXnews, and thereafter to submit them to the
Board for approval;

To review interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the SGX-
ST Listing Manual) and the connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions (as defined in Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules) and
report its findings to the Board;

To undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the Board
or as the Committees may consider appropriate;

To develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to supply non-
audit services;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on the committee’s own initiative, as well as
management's response to these findings;
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(13) To ensure internal audit function is adequately resourced, independent of the
activities it audits and has appropriate standing within the Company;

(14) To review the external auditor's management letter in order to assess whether it
is based on a good understanding of the Company’s business, and monitor the
responsiveness of Management to the recommendations made (or the reasons
why they have not been acted upon);

(15) To report to the Board on the matters in the HK CG Code;

(16) To review arrangements which employees of the Group can use, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters; to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up actions;

(17) To oversee the Company's relations with the external auditors;

(18) To undertake such other functions and duties as may be required by law or by
the SGX-ST Listing Manual or by the Hong Kong Listing Rules, as amended from
time to time; and

(19) To evaluate the external auditor's independence.

Apart from the duties listed above, the AC is given the task of commissioning
investigations into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity, or failure of
internal controls or infringement of any law, rule or regulation which has or is likely to
have a material impact on the Company's operating results or financial position, and to
review its findings.

In October 2015, the ACRA introduced the Audit Quality Indicators (“AQls") Disclosure
Framework (“Framework”), which aims, to equip the AC with information that allows
the AC to exercise their professional judgements on elements that contribute to or are
indicative of audit quality. The AQIs were further enhanced in August 2016 which ACRA
introduced six targets on selected AQIs to provide the AC with a common yardstick for
comparison and to facilitate meaningful audit quality conversations with the auditors.
As part of ongoing efforts to raise audit quality, ACRA has on 7 February 2020
introduced the AQls Disclosure Framework that revised in January 2020 (‘Revised
AQlIs Framework”). The Revised AQIs Framework comprises audit quality indicators
to provide relevant and useful information to help the AC in their evaluation of statutory
auditors. Accordingly, the AC had evaluated the performance of the external auditors as
well as the resolution for reappointment of the external auditors based on the AQIs set
out in the Revised AQls Framework.
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The AC has full access to and has the co-operation of the Management, and has
been given the resources required for it to discharge its function properly. It has full
discretion to invite any Director or Executive Officer to attend its meetings. The AC
recommends to the Board on the proposals to the shareholders on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors and approves the remuneration of
the external auditors. The AC has recommended to the Board that Deloitte & Touche
LLP be nominated for the re-appointment as external auditors of the Company at the
forthcoming AGM.

The AC will meet with the external auditors and internal auditors without the presence
of the Management to discuss audit fees, review the adequacy of audit arrangement,
with emphasis on the scope and quality of their audit, the independence, objectivity and
observations of the external auditors and internal auditors, and any other matters the
auditors may wish to raise.

In the review of the financial statements for FY2023, the AC had discussed with
the Management and the external auditors on changes to accounting standards and
significant issues and assumptions that impact the financial statements. The most
significant matters had also been included in the Independent Auditor's Report to the
members of the Company under “Key Audit Matters”. Following the review, the AC is
satisfied that those matters, including service concession arrangements and revenue
recognition, had been properly dealt with. The Board had approved the financial
statements.

Annually, the AC meets with the external auditors without the presence of the
Management and conducts a review of all non-audit services provided by the auditors
and is satisfied that the nature and extent of such services will not prejudice the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors. Fees paid or payable by the
Group to the external auditors (and member firms) of the Company for non-audit
services and audit services for FY2023 amounted to RMB1,418,000 and RMB7,628,000
respectively. For details on the non-audit services, please refer to the section headed
“Directors” Statement — 12 Auditors” in this annual report. The Company has complied
with Rules 712 and 715 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual and Rule 13.88 of the Hong
Kong Listing Rules in relation to the engagement of its auditors.

The Group has implemented a fraud and whistle blowing policy which sets out the
procedures for a whistleblower to make a report to the Company on misconduct or
wrongdoing relating to the Company and its officers. Accessible channels are provided
for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial
reporting or other matters which they become aware of and to ensure that:

(i)  independent investigations are carried out in an appropriate and timely manner;
(ii) appropriate action is taken to correct the weakness in internal controls and

policies which allowed the perpetration of fraud and/or misconduct and to prevent
a recurrence;
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(iii) all reports/concerns raised including the identity of the complainant will be
treated with private and confidential; and

(iv) administrative, disciplinary, civil and/or criminal actions that are initiated
following the completion of investigations are appropriate, balanced and fair,
while providing reassurance that employees will be protected from reprisals or
victimisation for whistle blowing in good faith and without malice.

The AC is responsible for oversight and monitoring of whistleblowing.

As at the date of this Annual Report, there were no reports received through the whistle
blowing mechanism.

The AC is kept updated annually or from time to time on any changes to the accounting
and financial reporting standards by the external auditors.

The AC does not comprise former partners or directors of the Company's existing
auditing firm or auditing corporation: (a) within a period of two years commencing on
the date of their ceasing to be a partner of the auditing firm or director of the auditing
corporation; and in any case, (b) for as long as they have any financial interest in the
auditing firm or auditing corporation.

Internal Audit Function

The Group outsources its internal audit functions to Messrs PwC Risk Services Pte Ltd
(“Internal Auditor”), who has the primary reporting line to the AC. In accordance with
the annual internal audit plan approved by the AC, the Internal Auditor conducts internal
audit reviews of the Group to assist the Board and the AC to assess the effectiveness
of key internal controls, covering financial, operational and compliance risks on an
ongoing basis. Procedures are in place for the Internal Auditor to report independently
their findings and recommendations to the AC for review. The Management will update
the AC on the implementation status of the remedial action plans.

The Board recognises that it is responsible for maintaining a system of internal control
to safequard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s businesses and assets, while
the Management is responsible for establishing and implementing the internal controls
procedures in a timely and appropriate manner.

The role of the Internal Auditor is to assist the AC in assessing if the internal controls
of the Group are adequate, effective and functioning as intended, to undertake
investigations as directed by the AC and to conduct regular risk-based audits covering
higher risk areas. The AC approves the appointment, removal, termination, evaluation
and compensation of the internal audit function. The Internal Auditor has unfettered
access to all the Company’s documents, records, properties and personnel, including
access to the AC and has appropriate standing within the Company.
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The AC is satisfied that the internal audit function (i) is independent, (ii) effective,
(iii) is adequately resourced, and (iv) is staffed by suitably qualified and experienced
professionals with the relevant experience.

The Internal Auditor is a member of the Institute of Internal Auditors Singapore (“l1A"),
an internal professional association for internal auditors which has its headquarters
in the United States. The internal audit work carried out is guided by the International
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (‘A Standards”) laid down
in the International Professional Practices Framework issued by the II1A. The AC would
annually review the independence, adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit
function of the Group.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND ENGAGEMENT
Shareholder Rights and Conduct of General Meeting

Principle 11: The company treats all shareholders fairly and equitably
in order to enahle them to exercise shareholders’ rights and have
the opportunity to communicate their views on matters affecting the
company. The company gives shareholders a balanced an understandable
assessment of its performance, position and prospects.

The shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’'s general meetings to ensure
a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategies and growth
plans. Notice of the general meeting is dispatched to shareholders, together with
explanatory notes or a circular on items of special business (if necessary), at least 21
clear days prior to any AGM or any extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM") at which it is
proposed to pass a special resolution or a resolution of which special notice has been
given to the Company; and 14 clear days' notice for all other EGMs before the meeting.
The Board welcomes questions from shareholders who wish to raise issues, either
informally or formally before or during the general meetings. The Company will make
available minutes of general meetings to shareholders upon their request. Each item of
special business included in the notice of the general meetings will be accompanied
by an explanation of the effects of a proposed resolution. Separate resolutions are
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings.

All Directors including the chairman of the AC, NC, RC, EC and RIMC are normally
present and available to address questions relating to the work of their respective
Board Committees at general meetings of the Company. In the absence of the chairman
of the AC, NC, RC, EC and RIMC, the Chairman of the Board would usually invite
another member of the committees or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to
attend. Furthermore, the external auditors are present to assist the Board in addressing
any relevant queries raised by the shareholders about the conduct of audit and the
preparation and content of the auditors report. The attendance of the Directors at
general meetings of the Company held during FY2023 is disclosed on page 57 of this
Annual Report.
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Shareholders are informed of general meetings of the Company through the
announcement to be released to the SGX-ST via SGXNet, and HKEXnews and notices
to be contained in the Annual Report or circulars to be sent to all shareholders. These
notices are also advertised in a national newspaper in Singapore. All shareholders of
the Company are entitled to attend and are provided the opportunity to participate in the
general meetings of Company. The shareholders of the Company are also informed on
the poll voting procedures at the general meetings of the Company. If any shareholder
of the Company is unable to attend, he/she/it is allowed to appoint up to two proxies to
vote on his/her/its behalf at the general meeting of the Company through proxy forms
sent in advance. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. The instrument
appointing a proxy must be deposited at the place specified in the notice of the general
meetings not less than seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for holding the
general meetings of the Company.

The Company's Constitution does not permit a shareholder of the Company who is not
a relevant intermediary or a clearing house (or its nominee(s)) to appoint more than two
proxies to attend, speak and vote at the same general meeting of the Company.

On 3 January 2016, the Companies Act 1967 was amended, among other things to
allow certain members, defined as a “relevant intermediary” to attend and participate
in general meetings without being constrained by the two-proxy requirement. Relevant
intermediary includes, amongst others, certain corporations holding licenses in
providing nominee and custodial services and the CPF Board which purchases shares
on behalf of CPF investors.

Provision 11.4 of the Code requires an issuer's Constitution to allow for absentia
voting at general meetings of shareholders. Voting by absentia by mail, facsimile or
email is currently not provided in the Company's Constitution as such voting methods
would need to be cautiously studied for its feasibility to ensure that the integrity of
the information and the authenticity of the shareholder’s identity is not compromised.
The Company is of the view that despite Provision 11.4 of the Code, shareholders
nevertheless have opportunities to communicate their views on matters affecting the
Company even when they are not in attendance at general meetings. For example,
shareholders may appoint proxies to attend, speak and vote, on their behalf, at the
respective general meetings.

The Company acknowledges that voting by poll in all its general meetings is integral in
the enhancement of corporate governance. The Company adheres to the requirements
of the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Code and the Hong Kong Listing Rules, such that all
resolutions at the Company’s general meetings held on or after 1 August 2015 are put
to vote by poll. The detailed results of each resolution are announced via SGXNet and
the HKEXnews after the general meetings. The Company had adopted electronic poll for
all the resolutions voted at the AGM held in FY2023.
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The Constitution of the Company adopted by special resolution passed at the general
meeting of the Company on 28 April 2023 is available on the websites of the Company
at www.siicenv.com, the SGX-ST and the SEHK.

The Company will publish the minutes of general meetings of shareholders on the
websites of the SGX, the SEHK and the Company as soon as practicable but not later
than one month after the general meeting. In FY2023, the minutes of the AGM held on
28 April 2023 was published on the websites of the SGX, the SEHK and the Company
within one month thereafter.

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an EGM and EGMs shall also
be convened on such requisition deposited at the Company’s registered office (being
One Temasek Avenue, #37-02 Millenia Tower, Singapore 039192 as at the date of
this Annual Report) and addressed to the Company Secretaries or, in default, may
be convened by such requisitionists, including two or more shareholders holding a
minority stake in the Company which have shareholdings not less than 10.0% of the
total number of issued and paid-up shares (excluding treasury shares) as at the date
of the requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings. Such shareholders,
holding a minority stake in the Company not higher than 10.0% of the total number
of paid-up shares as at the date of the requisition carries the right of voting at general
meeting of the Company, may also add resolutions to the meeting agenda of a general
meeting. If at any time there are not sufficient Directors capable of acting to form a
quorum at a meeting of Directors, any Director may convene an EGM in the same
manner as nearly as possible as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Directors.

The form, frequency and amount of dividends declared each year will take into
consideration the Group’s profit growth, cash position, positive cash flow generated
from operations, projected capital requirements for business growth and other factors
as the Board may deem appropriate.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of $$0.006 per ordinary share for FY2023
which is subject to the Shareholders” approval at the forthcoming AGM.

2024 AGM Arrangement

In view of the easing of the measures for COVID-19 pandemic, both Singapore and
Hong Kong Shareholders will be allowed to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM in person.

For more information, please see the circular and notice of the 2024 AGM, as well as
the proxy form to be used for the 2024 AGM.

The Company will continue to monitor the evolving COVID-19 situation and may adjust
and/or implement additional precautionary measures as the public health situation
changes.
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Engagement with Shareholders

Principle 12: The company communicates regularly with its shareholders
and facilitates the participation of shareholders during general meetings
and other dialogues to allow shareholders to communicate their views on
various matters affecting the company.

Accountability to our shareholders is demonstrated through the presentation of our
annual financial statements, quarterly results announcements and all announcements on
the Group’s business and operations.

The Company believes in high standards of transparent corporate disclosure and is
committed to make disclosures to its shareholders, the information in a timely and fair
manner via SGXNet and the HKEXnews. Where there is inadvertent disclosure made to
a selected group, the Company will make the same disclosure publicly to all others as
soon as practicable. Communication is mainly made through: —

e Annual Reports that are prepared and available to all shareholders via the
Company's website, HKEXnews and SGXNet under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
and the SGX-ST Listing Manual. The hardcopy of Annual Reports and/or Circular
(if applicable) would be (upon request) sent to the Hong Kong shareholders and
the Singapore shareholders. The Board ensures that the Annual Report includes
all relevant material information about the Company and the Group, including
future developments and other disclosures required by the Companies Act 1967,
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, Companies Ordinance of the Laws of
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Listing Rules; and

e Quarterly announcements containing a summary of the financial information and
affairs of the Group for that period.

The Company's website at www.siicenv.com is where our shareholders can access
financial information, corporate announcements, press releases, annual reports and
profile of the Group.

Other than the communication provided above, when necessary and appropriate, the
Company would arrange for the Management to meet with analysts and investors who
wish to seek a better understanding on the Group's business operations. Through the
engagement in the meeting with analysts and investors, the Management is able to
solicit and understand the views and feedback from the investment community which
should provide valuable information to the Board on investors’ views.
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By supplying shareholders with reliable and timely information, the Company is able to
strengthen the relationship with its shareholders based on trust and accessibility. The
Company has a team of investor relations (‘IR") personnel who focus on facilitating
the communications with all stakeholders — shareholders, analysts and media — on a
regular basis, to attend to their queries or concerns as well as to keep the investors
public apprised of the Group’s corporate developments and financial performance. The
Company does not practice selective disclosure. In line with the continuous obligations
of the Company under the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules,
the Board's policy is that all shareholders should equally and on a timely basis be
informed of all major developments that impact the Group. Price sensitive information
is first publicly released through SGXNet and the HKEXnews, before the Company
meets with any investors or analysts. All shareholders of the Company will receive the
notice of AGM by post and the hardcopy of the Annual Report and/or Circular (if any)
will be sent to the Hong Kong shareholders according to the Hong Kong Listing Rules
and to the Singapore shareholders upon request. The notice of AGM is also published
in the newspaper in Singapore within the mandatory period (i.e. save where a waiver is

obtained, the AGM is to be held within four months after the close of the financial year).

For enquiries about the Company's information, the shareholders may contact Ms.
Sharon Lim Siew Choo or Mr. Man Yun Wah, the Company Secretaries, whose contacts
are as follows:

Ms. Sharon Lim Siew Choo
Email address: sharonlim@incorp.asia

Mr. Man Yun Wah
Email address: guy.man@incorp.asia

or send enquiries in writing to the Company's registered office in Singapore at One
Temasek Avenue, #37-02 Millenia Tower, Singapore 039192 or the principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 1307A, 13/F., Two Harbourfront, 22 Tak Fung Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Through the implementation of the policies abovementioned, the Company is of the
opinion that it has established appropriate and effective communication with the
Shareholders during FY2023 by, including but not limited to, holding annual general
meeting, establishing an email for the Shareholders submitting questions in relation
to resolutions to be tabled for approval at annual general meeting or the Company’s
businesses and operations and establishing an email for investor inquiries.

MANAGING STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIPS
Engagement with Stakeholders

Principle 13: The Board adopts an inclusive approach by considering and
balancing the needs and interests of material stakeholders, as part of its
overall responsibility to ensure that the best interests of the company are
served.

The Company acknowledges the importance of establishing effective communication
among its stakeholders through regular engagement and various communication
platforms to achieve mutually beneficial goals. Ongoing communication with
stakeholders is an integral part of the Company's day-to-day operations.
Communication channels such as meetings, interviews and surveys allow stakeholders
to express their ideas, opinions and suggestions to the Company.
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The Company has identified six stakeholders’ groups, namely, shareholders and
investors, government and regulators, business partners and suppliers, media,
customers and employees, who are able to impact the Group’s business and operations.
The Company had also undertaken a process to review its material ESG issues in line
with a review of the Group’s business strategy, regulatory changes and industry trends.
These ESG issues would form part of the consideration, which the targets, performance
and progress are reviewed and endorsed by the Board. More details of the ESG issues
would be disclosed in the Company’s Sustainability Report, which would be released
via SGXNet and HKEXnews at the same time as the publication of this Annual Report.
The Company does not practice selective disclosure. Price sensitive information is
first publicly released through SGXNet and the HKEXnews. The Company’s financial
information, corporate announcements, press releases, Annual Reports and profile of
the Group can be accessed through the Company’s website at www.siicenv.com.

DEALINGS IN COMPANY’S SECURITIES

In compliance with Rule 1207(19) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (‘Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the Company had adopted a Code of Best
Practices on terms no less exacting than the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Model
Code to provide guidance to its officers on securities transactions by the Company and
its officers.

The Company and its Officers are not allowed to deal in the Company’s securities (i)
during the period commencing two weeks before the announcement of the Company’s
financial statements for each of the first three quarters of its financial year and one
month before the announcement of the Company's full year financial statements (if
the Company announces its quarterly financial statements), or one month before
the announcement of the Company's half year and full year financial statements (if
the Company does not announce its quarterly financial statements) pursuant to Rule
1207(19) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual; and (ii) during the period commencing 30
days immediately before the announcement of the Company's quarterly results (if any)
and interim results and 60 days immediately before the announcement of the Company’s
full year results, and ending on the date of the announcement of the relevant results
pursuant to the Model Code.

The Directors, Management and executives of the Group are also expected to observe
relevant insider trading laws at all times, even when dealing in securities within
permitted trading periods, especially if they are in possession of material unpublished
price sensitive information of the Company. They are not allowed to deal in the
Company’s securities on short-term considerations.

Specific enquiry was made of all the Directors and the Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the SGX-ST Listing Manual and Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2023.
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F. INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS F. HHEREALTXS
The Company has established a procedure for recording and reporting interested person ARAIEBL—ERREHLEREGHNEBEEAL
transactions (“IPTs"). All IPTs are subjected to review by the AC to ensure that they R ([BRNEBBEALRE ) OESF - 25A7F
were conducted on normal commercial terms and are not prejudicial to the interests of DARALRHBLEFTLZECEN  UERZE
the Company and its minority shareholders. There were no IPTs between the Group and RHDZEEEHEGRTET  BFEBERRAR
any of its interested persons (namely, Directors, the CEO or controlling shareholders (as HERLZEME 2 Mz o REBE20230 F AL EEE
defined in the SGX-ST Listing Manual) of the Group or the associates of such Directors, FAAEFREEAT (BIASEESZ - ERATE
CEQ or controlling shareholders) or any other connected person(s) of the Company FERRE (EERFRA(LMFM)) ZEE
as defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules subsisting for FY2023, save for the 2 HELTEIEBRBEMBEAN) XEBREER
following: BCEMRRD T REMAR Tfiﬂﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁl\i
ZEBEETENENRBEATRS ETIIA
THRAN
Aggregate value of all
IPTs during the financial
year under review Aggregate value of all
(excluding transactions IPTs conducted under
less than $$100,000 and shareholders’ mandate
transactions conducted pursuant to Rule 920
under shareholders’ of the SGX-ST
mandate pursuant to Listing Manual
Rule 920 of the SGX-ST  (excluding transactions
Listing Manual) less than $$100,000)
Name of interested person Name of entity at risk Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
REEFRFEN2H REREETRE
BABBREALRS (FEE HRXM(LHFM) £204%
REEEER100,0005 7 ETNEDEINEBEREAL
WRERBRREEETRE X% (FTEERSEE
FRA(LTFM) E9204% {£1100,00057 T
BONRSZ)WEER X5 WEEE
BRZBREALER ERERERE REME ARBTR ARBTR
SIHL Finance Limited (“SIHLFL") Rise Thrive Limited (‘RTL") ~ Extension of repayment period 61,2520 -0
of existing loan to RTL
SIHL Finance Limited ([ SIHLFL]) BEBRAR(BR]) TREERERBERNAR 61,2520 -
Shanghai Canvest Environmental Shanghai SIIC Baojin'gang Provision of production service 45,209 -
Company Limited (“Canvest’) Environmental Resources to Baojingang
Technology Co., Ltd.
(‘Baojingang’)
FBEERGERRA(EE]) LBLEBSARGARRE RESNRAEERS 45,2090 -9
BRAF((ELE])
Shanghai SIIC Property Shanghai SIIC Baojin'gang Provision of property management 12,2341 -
Management Co., Ltd. Environmental Resources service to Baojingang
(“SIIC Property Management') Technology Co., Ltd.
(‘Baojingang’)
e rENEERERAA LELESRARGARRE MESNRENEFEERS 12,2340 -9

([tENxEE]) ARAE((HEH])
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Aggregate value of all
IPTs during the financial
year under review
(excluding transactions
less than $$100,000 and
transactions conducted
under shareholders’
mandate pursuant to

Aggregate value of all
IPTs conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920
of the SGX-ST

Listing Manual

Rule 920 of the SGX-ST  (excluding transactions
Listing Manual) less than $$100,000)
Name of interested person Name of entity at risk Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
REBHBFENEH RREEETRE
BRZBREALRS (FRE  HRXA(LHFM)E20%
RZEEEN100,0005 T ETHEHENEEEAL
WRZRBRREEETRIE X5 (FTEERZEE
FRA(LTFM) E9204 {£1100,00037 T H
ETHRS) WEEE X&) WEEE
BRZBREALER ERERER RHME AR¥T R ARBTR
Shanghai Cyber Galaxy Investment Shanghai SIIC Baojin'gang Provision of management service 1,7280 -
Co., Ltd. (“Cyber Galaxy’) Environmental Resources to Baojingang
Technology Co., Ltd.
(‘Baojingang’)
HEETHEREERAA LELEESAREERNE RERRRAEERY 1,728 -
([2MEE]) BRAR(TEEE))
SIIC Management (Shanghai) Limited ~ Shanghai SIIC Baojin'gang Provision of management service 14780 -
Environmental Resources to Baojingang
Technology Co., Ltd.
(‘Baojingang’)
TEEE (L) BRAR DELEESAREEARNE RERRAIRAEERY 1,4780 -
BRAR(TEEE))
SIIC Management (Shanghai) Limited ~ Fudan Water Engineering and  Provision of consultation service 2,004 -
Technology Co., Ltd.
TEER(LB)ERRT TEBEBKBIRRM RtFARS 2,004 -8
BRAR
Notes: i

(1) The entities listed are subsidiaries of the Group.
(2)  Refer to the interest payable in relation to the loans.

(3)  There is no IPT mandate obtained from shareholders.

(1) JIRFERAAZEMEAR -

(2) EEERBHOEMMS -

(B) HEEMNCRERREENENZBEEALRS
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During FY2023, the Group had not conducted any connected transactions nor
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
which need to be disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules. None of the related party transactions disclosed in this annual report fell
under the definition of connected transaction or continuing connected transaction in
Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no controlling shareholder had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for the
provision of services to the Company or not) to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during FY2023.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors or senior management
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during FY2023.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors or their connected entities
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance subsisting during or at the end of FY2023.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company regularly reviews and improves its business and operational activities to
identify areas at significant business risks as well as to take appropriate measures to
control and mitigate these risks supported by the AC and RIMC. The Company reviews
all significant control policies and procedures and highlights significant matters to
the AC and the Board. The significant risk management policies are disclosed in the
audited financial statements of this Annual Report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in Note 43 to the accompanying financial statements and Section
(F) above, there were no material contracts entered into by the Company or its
subsidiaries during FY2023, or still subsisting as at 31 December 2023, which involved
the interests of the Chief Executive Officer, any Director or controlling shareholders (as
defined in the SGX-ST Listing Manual) of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Sharon Lim Siew Choo and Mr. Man Yun Wah have been nominated by In.Corp
Corporate Services Pte. Ltd. and In.Corp Corporate Services (HK) Limited, respectively,
to act as the Company Secretaries, and they have complied with the requirements of
the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules by receiving no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training respectively. They have been in contact with
the Board and Mr. Zhu Yeliang, the Deputy CFO of the Company directly in respect of
company secretarial matters.
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Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2023, in view of the changes to Appendix 3 to the
Listing Rules, the Company has adopted the amended and restated Constitution, which
was approved by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28 April 2023, and is available on the websites of the Company, the SGX-ST and the
SEHK.

Particulars of Directors Pursuant to the Code of Corporate Governance BE(AETATAHSEHESEE

Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Directorships in Companies and
Other Listed Other Major
Board Appointment ~ Board Committees Directorship Companies and Appointments
Name of Academic/Professional Executive/ as Chairman or Date First Date of Last Other Major Over the
Director Qualifications Non-Executive Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Preceding 3 Years
RBEIFEE
EREZE REMEHLT Eft EHARRE
EREEfE fEBESREE EERE -k RESERER EERERAM
EEH? B/ BRER BT/ huiTES E3:4:9:4 ] b4} ] EEEZAN Kt EEEEER TEEEER
Mr. Zhou Yuding o Master's degree in Chairman of the Board ~ Chairman of the 23 February (To be re- o Shanghai Industrial ~ Nil
(appointed on Management Information of Director and Executive Committee, 2024 elected at the Investment (Holdings)
23 February Systems from Fudan Executive Director a member of Risk forthcoming Co., Ltd.
2024) University and Investment 2024 AGM)
Management
Committee and
amember of
Remuneration
Committee
BFS%E o GERBERESZME EI2IRER BOZELIR 245 (BRNUFEE o LEEZ(E) i
(R20245 TEf HhES BRRirEER 2R23H RREEAE BRAT
2R23REZME) ZEENER EEEfF)
THEEENE
Mr. Zhou Jun o Bachelor of Arts from Non-executive Chairman ~ Chairman of the 7 April 2010 29 April 2022 o Shanghai Industrial e Shanghai Industrial
(resigned on Nanjing University Board, Member Investment (Holdings) ~ Urban Development
18 November o Master's Degreg in of Remuneration Co., Ltd. Group Limited
2023) Economics (International Committee e Shanghai Industrial e Zhejiang
Finance) from the Fudan Holdings Limited Expressway Co.,
University e Shanghai Ltd.
o Doctor's degree in Pharmaceuticals

global finance business
administration from the
U.S. ASU - Shanghai
Advanced Institute of
Finance

Holding Co., Ltd
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Past Directorships
in Other Listed
Directorships in Companies and
Other Listed Other Major
Board Appointment  Board Committees Directorship Companies and Appointments
Name of Academic/Professional Executive/ as Chairman or Date First Date of Last Other Major Over the
Director Qualifications Non-Executive Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Preceding 3 Years
RBEIFEE
ERERE REMEHARE Rt b RRE
ERgzf tHERZRE EERE I-% RESERER EEMERAEM
EEp? B/ SRER BT/ RUTES IRUBR <A BEEZAN Kt EEREER TEZERR
BE%4E o MRAEXEETEM  MAOERE EZgER. I0F4ATR ANFLRVE o LEEZ(RE)ER o LEEEATHE
(W2023% o REAZEREREES GHEERENE 2] SERRAT
1118 AEHE) EERTEM o DAEEIRERD o FLENESER
o XETHEHMIAZ - ] BRERAR
LERRemER2 R o LERESERH
BIFEEREL RAT
Mr. Yang Jianwei ¢ Bachelor's Degreg in CEQ and Executive Board Member, 13 May 2020 28 April 2023 e Shanghai Industrial  Shanghai Industrial
(resigned on 2 Engineering and master's Director Chairman of Development Co., Ltd. ~ Urban Development
October 2023.) degree in Management the EC and Chairman Group Limited
Engineering from of
Huazhong University of the RIMC
Science and Technology
o Ph.D’s in Management
from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University
BRERE o EAETAETE ERNTER EEL R 205 ABELARE o LEEFERERNE LEEENTRE
(h2023% STEMANERTR yEs ZERIEMUR 5R13A RAT SEARAR
10A28BE) B8 BARRRAER
o DEREAREERZ ZE8%RE
[En2
Mr. Xu Xiaobing Bachelor's Degree in Executive Director Board Member, Member 5 November 29 April 2022 e Shanghai Industrial il
Economics and master's of the RIMC and EC 2014 (To be re- Development Co., Lid.
degree in business elected at the
administration from Peking forthcoming
University 2024 AGM)
BRALE BRABEESETENRT  H17ES EZefE ERkk 014E NNF4ANE o LEEZEERNE &
BERBLIEN éaiéé Rafr 11458 (Fpb2024% BA
ZEeK3 EERR
EEAEEE
Eff)
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Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Directorships in Companies and
Other Listed Other Major
Board Appointment  Board Committees Directorship Companies and Appointments
Name of Academic/Professional Executive/ as Chairman or Date First Date of Last Other Major Over the
Director Qualifications Non-Executive Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Preceding 3 Years
RBEIFEE
EREEHE REMEHLRE Rt EHARIGE
Ezezi EEESZRE EZR% =% REEERER ESREREM
EEpe 9%/ BEEH BT/ RUTES IREAR k4L BERZEN At EEEHRR FEEEHRR
Mr. Huang Bachelor's degreg in Executive Director Board Member, Member 15 May 2019 29 April 2022 Nil Nil
Hanguang power plant chemistry of the RIMC and EC
(resigned on 20 engineering from Wuhan
October 2023) University
EERAE REAZEHIZIRERXE §11ES EZefE ERRE 2019550158 200F4ANE & E
(20235 T2 REBZREERUG
10A20 A &) ZEEHE
Mr. Zhu Dazhi o Bachelor's degree in Executive Directorand ~ Board member, 3 May 2021 29 April 2022 Nil Nil
English and master's Chief Executive Chairman of the (To be re-
degree in International Officer RIMC and Member elected at the
Relations from the of EC forthcoming
University of International 2024 AGM)
Relations
RRR%E o ERBESERER gnESk EZefE ERRE 02538 ANFL4ENE B &
S50 RERHEE BRBE BERZEE (Fpi2024%
B8 IRRAT EERR
Z8e88 BEXE
ERET)
Mr. Yang Wei o Bachelor's degree in Executive Director - 25 May 2022 28 April 2023 China Geothermal Nil
(resigned on 20 Physics from China Beijing Industry Development
October 2023) Normal University Group Limited.
o Master's degree in
Economics from The
University of Hong Kong
BRAE (R02BE o FEIROEAENEE 9752 - ANE ANELRNA FEMAFEFYEEE &
108208 84) ¢ L i) 5A%H BRAA
o EEAZEESRL
il

Annual Report 20235 &% 95



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERRE
Past Directorships
in Other Listed

Directorships in Companies and
Other Listed Other Major
Board Appointment  Board Committees Directorship Companies and Appointments

Name of Academic/Professional Executive/ as Chairman or Date First Date of Last Other Major Over the

Director Qualifications Non-Executive Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Preceding 3 Years
RBEIFEE

ERERE REMEHARE Rt b RRE
ERgzf tHERZRE EERE I-% RESERER EEMERAEM
EEpe B/ SRER BT/ RUTES IREAR <A BERZEN At EEEERR FEEEHER
Mr. Yeo Guat o Bachelor's Degree in Arts  Lead Independent Non-  Board Member, 23 September 30 April 2021 (Not  ®  Koyo International Nil
Kwang of Social Sciences from Executive Director Chairman of NC, 2009 seeking for re- Limited
the National University of Member of AC and glectionatthe o GH.Y Culture &
Singapore RC forthcoming Media Holding Co.,
o Master's degree in Public 2024 AGM) Limited
Administration and o The Place Holdings
Management in Lee Kuan Limited
Yew School of Public
Policy of NUS
o Doctorate in Busingss
Administration by United
Business Institutes
BAR%EE o MMBEUAEANIE ERBUNNNEE  ETERE RE 2009 21544308 o Koyo International &
EELSE i ZEEIR- 9A23H (FEskm Limited
o BB AEERER BHEEENER ANEEER o REUEERES
RBRERBARLTH HHEEENE REFALE B
EERETEN EiEff) o The Place Holdings
o BAEERIAER Limited
B+
Mr. An Hongjun o Bachelor's Degree in Independent Non- Board member, 1 March 2018 28 April 2023 Director of: Nil
finance from Nankai Executive Director Chairman of the AC - Shanghai Genhermony
University and Member of the Tongxin Equity
o Master's degree and NC and RC Investment
Doctorate in World Management Co., Ltd.
Economics from Fudan - Ningbo Meishan
University Free Trade Port
o Doctor's Degree in Zone Genharmony
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Global Finance Business
Administration from
Shanghai Advanced
Institute of Finance of
Shanghai Jiao Tong
University

o Member of the Private
Equity Professional
Committee of the Asset
Management Association
of China

Licheng Investment

Management Co., Ltd.

- Shanghai Lingang
Dongfang
Genharmony
Equity Investment

Management Co., Lid.

- Shanghai Commercial
Investment (Group)
Co., Ltd



Name of
Director

i

Academic/Professional
Qualifications

B/ BRRAR

Board Appointment
Executive/
Non-Executive

EFESH
Uit/ FuiTES

Board Committees
as Chairman or
Member

FREERRE
FRUER

Directorship

Date First
Appointed

BRESE

EXRE
ZBH

Date of Last
Re-election

=%
RERZEM

Directorships in
Other Listed
Companies and
Other Major
Appointments

RAEMETAR
REESRER
R REEHR

Past Directorships
in Other Listed
Companies and
Other Major
Appointments
Over the
Preceding 3 Years
RBEIEEE

Rt EHAERE
EERBRAM
FEEEHRR

RAERE

Mr. Zhong Ming

anrs

o HRAEEHSELEN

o GEREERGESRL
S R LB

o LERBARLERAE
BERZHERTAER
[Ensdin

o PEESREERRHE
LEREEXZAENE

Bachelor's Degree in
Commerce from The
University of Melbourne

EEAAEEEELEH

BUTES

Independent Non-
Executive Director

BUTES

EEEME  EHZR
SIRMRRLEE
BV ET b
A8

Board member,
Chairman of the RC
and Member of the
AC and NC

EZEME  HHMZA
SIRMRETZE
e A RRERE
i

mo

183A18

1 March 20

W18F
3A1R

8

0234 A28

28 April 2023

WNE
4728H

E%:

- LRENRERER
BEEARAT

- ERELREERE

MUAREEEER

1]

- LBEERNENR

BREEEEARLA

- LEMAERE(§
B)ERAA

Director of:

- Shanghai Renan

Property Development

Co., Ltd.

- Tianjin Yanlord Beiyang

Real Estate Co., Ltd.
- Tianjin Yanlord Hehai

Real Estate Co., Ltd.
— Tianjin Shenglin

Property Development

Co., Ltd.

— Pretty Honour
Investment Limited

- Yanlord (Holdings)
Industrial Ltd.

— Yanlord Land Group
Limited

EER

- DECREERY
BRAE

- RRLCELFERE
R4z

- RRLCENEESE
NS

- REMRMEER
BERAA

— Pretty Honour
Investment Limited

- Yanlord (Holdings)
Industrial Ltd.

-CEEMSEERA
a

w

Nil

Annual Report 2023F £ ]

97



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

LEERFE

Information for the Directors who are retiring and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM pursuant to Rule 720(6)
of the SGX-ST Listing Manual:

BREHTH(ETFM) FH720(6) 155 MEEHRRE
FXELER  ERERREREANEEEH

Name of Retiring Director

BEESHE
Details Mr. Zhu Dazhi Mr. Xu Xiaobing Mr. Zhou Yuding Mr. Jiang Kai Mr. Yang Xing
#E RRBEE #EBKEE BY¥R%E Bkt REE
Date of Appointment 3 May 2021 5 November 2014 23 February 2024 20 October 2023 20 October 2023
ZIAH 02155734 2014511 A58 202452 R 23R 202310 420 202310 A20H
Date of last re-appointment 29 April 2022 29 April 2022 - - -
(if applicable)
TREFZARE(MER)  202254A29H 2022548298 - - -
Age 48 58 50 48 4
R 485 5857 5057 4857 25
Country of principal residence  China China China China China
TEREER e e HE i e

The Board's comments on
this appointment (including
rationale, selection criteria,
and the search and
nomination process)

EZQUUZENER (B

B BERE - HRHEE
REER)

Whether appointment is

executive, and if so, the area of of

responsibility

ARERTEYT R
AFHBESE

The re-election of Mr.

Zhu Dazhi as an Executive
Director of the Company was
recommended by the NC

to the Board for review and
consideration, and accepted by
the Board.

REZECNEZEHRESE
RRBRERKTATRTE
5 AHESERMRZR
Rt -

Executive. Overall management
the Group’s strategy,
business, operation,
administration and financial
related matters.

7o REE E$EIW
RE 25 BE  HA
iAEEE -

The re-election of Mr. Xu
Xiaobing as an Executive
Director of the Company was
recommended by the NC

to the Board for review and
consideration, and accepted
by the Board.

REZEENEZQRESR
BREKEERARANT

B2 HEZEEMRE

B R -

Executive. Responsible for

overseeing risk management

of the Group.

The re-glection of Mr. Zhou
Yuding as the Chairman

of the Board and Executive
Director of the Company was
recommended by the NC

to the Board for review and
consideration, and accepted
by the Board.
REZEEMEFEREE
ERTREERAARES
SIRRNTES  NMiE
SeRMREZRRER -
Executive. To oversee the
overall corporate strategy,
strategic planning, and
development of the Group.

Wit BEAREERLR
RE - BEAIRER
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The re-glection of Mr.

Jiang Kai as an Executive
Director of the Company was
recommended by the NC

to the Board for review and
consideration, and accepted
by the Board.

REZESMEFERESR
EREEEAADTHNTE
£ EESEEMRER
AR -

Executive. Responsible for
the Group’s financial and
financing-related matters as
well as aiding the CEQ in
running the administrative

activities at the headquarters.

HiT - BATEENHHR
RENBEE LHHER
HITEERAUNIRER -

The re-glection of Mr.

Yang Xing as an Executive
Director of the Company was
recommended by the NC

to the Board for review and
consideration, and accepted
by the Board.

REZEENEZEHESE
BELERARTNITES
IRESeERRERNE
Executive. He is responsible
for coordinating the
relationships of the Group with
government authorities.

W1 RARBELREER
REFIMEE



Details
a8

Mr. Zhu Dazhi
RABREE

Mr. Xu Xiaobing
REAEE

Name of Retiring Director
BREESHE

Mr. Zhou Yuding

BYSEE

Mr. Jiang Kai
Bieks

Mr. Yang Xing
BREE

Job Title (e.q. Lead ID, AC
Chairman, AC Member etc.)

B (WERELES 2
ZEEIR EfZEENE
)

Professional qualifications

EXEAR

.|,

Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer, Chairman
of the Risk and Investment
Management Committee
and Member of Executive
Committee

WTESRERHITE AR
RREERZEETRRNG
ZBEME

Bachelor's degree in English
and Master's degree in
International Relations,
University of International
Relations

ARBEER AR LB R
BB REL S

Executive Director, Member
of Executive Committee and
Member of the Risk and
Investment Management
Committee

WTES  BTZBENKE
RERRRAEEZEEK

8

Bachelor's degree in
Economics and master's
degree in business
administration from Peking
University

FRABEEBELBRN
IHERELEM

Chairman of the Board

and Executive Director, the
Chairman of the Executive
Committee, a member of

the Risk and Investment
Management Committee

and a member of the
Remuneration Committee
BRXQTRANMESZ A
T288%%  BRRkRE
ERZEENERTMEE
L

Master's degree in
Information Management and
Information Systems, Fudan
University Senior Economist

Executive Director and
a Member of Executive
Committee and Risk and
Investment Management
Committee

YES YTZEERA
BREAEEZEENA

Bachelor's degree in
Economics, Accounting
College of Shanghai
University of Finance and
Economics Master's degree
in MBA, Antai College of

Economics and Management,

Shanghai Jiao Tong

University China Certified

Public Accountant Senior

Accountant of China
BMEREEHZLE

BETEGR EERA

RERFLELR TR
EEETEM

fEEfestiTERRE
SHAD

Executive Director

HTEE

Bachelor's degree in
Economics, Beihang
University Master's degree
in Financial Management,
Beihang University
Intermediate Economist and
the qualification of Senior
Information System Project
Manager

IRMERAAREES
SB[

ERRERAREERER
SR

PREEMEENRRER
HRERMER
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BRWE
Name of Retiring Director
REESHA
Details Mr. Zhu Dazhi Mr. Xu Xiaobing Mr. Zhou Yuding Mr. Jiang Kai Mr. Yang Xing
#E RRREE #EBRALE BFR%E Biafks BREE

Working experience and
occupation(s) during
the past 10 years

BEIFNTESRIER

100

September 2023 to present —
Shanghai Industrial Holdings
Ltd. Deputy CEO

July 2022 to present —
Shanghai Overseas Enterprises
Corporation Ltd. President
July 2021 to

present — Longjiang
Environmental Protection
Group Co., Ltd Chairman of the
Supervisory Board Supervisor
March 2021 to September 2023
- SIIC Management (Shanghai)
Limited, Deputy General
Manager

June 2019 to March 2021 -
Shanghai Galaxy Investments
Co., Ltd., Deputy General
Manager

June 2018 to June 2019 -
Shanghai Industrial Investment
(Holdings) Co., Ld.,
Administration Department,
Deputy General Manager
September 1995 to June 2018
— Military service

ABFIAES - HEBESR
REBAAGERENTE

WNEFTAZS - HEE)
BRAREH

WNEFTAES -EIBRE
ERNERAFESS
If -E%

2@ ¢3Hi2w3¢9ﬂ—
E@( B)ERA
2m9¢sﬁi2w1¢3ﬂ—

ﬁ%ﬂ@%&ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬂ
2ms¢sﬁi2m9¢6H—
LEEE(£8)BRA
Nt
1995429 A 2018464 —
b RiE

January 2021 to present -
President of Shanghai
Industrial Development Co.,
Ld.

November 2016 to January
2021 - Deputy Chief
Executive Officer, Shanghai
Industrial Holdings Limited
December 2008 to December
2016 — General Manager,
SIIC Management (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.

0214514 LEE%
BRRH ﬁﬁx AEH
2016511 AZ2021F
1A - LBEEER
BRARGERATE
2008512 AZ2016F
RA-LEEE(LE)
BRAREESE

Mr. Zhou, with a Master's
degree in Information
Management and Information
Systems from Fudan
University, is a senior
economist. He is currently
a Director and the General
Manager of the Asset
Management Department
at Shanghai Industrial
Investment (Holding)

Co., Ltd.

A4 HEBEAERS
EERESERZERLE
fii - BERREERD - KB
AALBEE (£B)ERA
FEEREEERNBEE -

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

Mr. Jiang has over 20
years of professional
experience in financial
management, investment
and asset management.
He has held several
management positions in
SIIC Management (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd., Financial Director
and Deputy General Manager
in Shanghai Huning Express
Way (Shanghai Section)
Development Co., Ltd. and
Shanghai Shenyu Highway
Construction Development
Co., Ltd., as well as the
positions of Director in China
General Water Co., Ltd. Mr.
Jiang has been serving as the
Vice President of Shanghai
Overseas Enterprises
Corporation Ltd. since
September 2019. Currently,
he also holds several
positions, including Deputy
General Manager of SIIC
Management (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., Director of Shanghai
SUS Environment Co., Ltd.
and Director of Tianjin
Pharmacy Holdings
Co., Ltd. efc.
BRERUBER 8%
ENEEERSEIEER
NFEXER - %&”%%
TLEER(LB)ERA
ETERRE - r‘@m
BOK(LBR)ERERA
ANESRALERRER
BRARHHEE  BlRg
ERERPRRKERER
BREEE - BRAN019
¢9H§$ EEEBENG
RARIEIGE - BEREL
TIH%W BELEEE
(E8)BRAFEISEE -
EERERERHERAA
BERAEMBEERER
RAES-

February 2014 to September
2014 — Worked in the
Comprehensive Management
Department of Beijing
Enterprises Group Finance
Co., Ltd.

November 2014 to January
2018 — Head of the
Comprehensive Management
in CECEP Finance Co., Ltd.
February 2018 to August
2022 - Assistant to the
General Manager in CECEP
Finance Co. Ltd.

Current — Deputy General
Manager and the Head of
Finance of China Energy
Conservation & Environmental
Protection (Hong Kong)
Investment Co., Limited,

an Executive Director of
Carbon Reserve Investments
Limited and a Director of
CECEP (Hong Kong) Treasury
Management Company
Limited. He is also a Vice
President of the Hong Kong
Green Finance Association and
a member of the Board of the
China Emissions Exchange.

R0144E2 AE201459 AH
BELREREBSHER
REERAEEHIE

RO14F11 AZ201851 A
@ﬁﬁ&@ﬁ%%ﬁ At
AERHBEA

#2ms¢2ﬂi2wzieﬁw

@B}JE

RERREBERR (BE) R
EERAFRALSERITE
EA - FRREBRAANG
EZRTESERR (BE)
HEERBARLAES - K
REERELBGERIER
BMRARER SAESEM

=
B o



Details
a8

Mr. Zhu Dazhi
RABREE

Mr. Xu Xiaobing
REAEE

Name of Retiring Director
BREESHE

Mr. Zhou Yuding

BYSEE

Mr. Jiang Kai Mr. Yang Xing

BlEkE

BERE

Shareholding interest in

the listed issuer and its
subsidiaries
BELMETARE
BRI MR

Any relationship

(including immediate family
relationships) with any existing
director, existing executive
officer, the issuer and/or
substantial shareholder of the
listed issuer or of any of its
principal subsidiaries
BITERTAREAFTEE
WBARMEMREES
BERSTHAE  EOA
&/ REERR 2R
FHEE(REEZRERER)
Conflict of interest (including
any competing business)
Mgz (AEEAREER)
Undertaking (in the format set
out in Appendix 7.7) under
Rule 720(1) has been
submitted to the listed issuer
RERAIT2001)BTH A
(RMs7 TRrEIE) ERR
IWEIA

Nil

i

Y

Yes

Falil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Yes

ralil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Yes

Ao

Nil

Nil

Nil

Yes

ol

Nil

Nil

Nil

Yes

ralil
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BREE
Name of Retiring Director
RABEHE
Details Mr. Zhu Dazhi Mr. Xu Xiaobing Mr. Zhou Yuding Mr. Jiang Kai Mr. Yang Xing
#1E RRAEE HEKEE B¥SEE BlEfE BREAE
Other Principal Commitments ~ Past (for the last 5 years)  Past (for the last 5 years) Past (for the last 5 years) Past (for the last 5 years) Past (for the last 5 years)
Including Directorships Nil Director of: Director of: Director of: Nil
e Fudan Water Engineering e Shanghai Shangshi e SIIC Senior Living
Present and Technology Co., Ltd. Venture Investment Development Co. Ltd Present
Director of: e SIIC Management Co., Ltd. e SIIC Senior Living Director of:

HipTEAE
BEEZER

102

o Asia Water Investments
Pte. Ltd.

e (olden Bell Development
Limited

e Lap Yin International
Limited

e S.I. United Water Holdings
(BVI) Limited

o Thrive Bloom Limited

o Thrive Key Limited

o Thrive Far Limited

o Rise Thrive Limited

o Rise Wealth Investments
Ltd.

o Asia Wisdom Investments
Limited

e (lobal Environment
Investment (HK) Limited

e (lobal Envirotech
Investment Ltd.

e (old Orient Investments
Limited

B (RIESF)
&

R

g%

o TKBERELABRAR

e (olden Bell Development
Limited

o VEEKERAR

e S.I. United Water Holdings
(BVI) Limited

o KEBRAF

o REBRAF

o ERERAT

o BRERAT

o Rise Wealth Investments
Ltd.

o TEREBRAF

o % (%) ERAT

e (lobal Envirotech
Investment Ltd.

o SHEREBRAF

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai Cyber Galaxy
Investment Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai Hu-Ning
Expressway (Shanghai
Section) Co., Ltd.

o Shanghai Lugiao
Development Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai Shen-Yu
Development Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai SIIC South
Pacific Hotel Co., Ltd.

e (ood Cheer Enterprises
Limited

e (reative Gold
Developments Ltd.

e South Pacific International
Investment Ltd.

e South Pacific Hotel
(China) Ltd.

e SIIC Environment
Holdings (Weifang)

Co., Ltd.

B (RESE)

N

o DBEBKEIRERNA
BRa

o FEEE(L
A

o LEETHBREBRD
i

o PEEERRAK(LE
B)ERBRAT

o LERRERERAT

o ERALNKEREESR
;9N

o PEFEBEENEEAR
AR

e (00d Cheer Enterprises
Limited

e (reative Gold
Developments Ltd.

o HFERREBRAT

o BEMEBE(PE) A
;9N

o FERBABROBRA
al

8)BRA

o Shanghai Pharmaceuticals
Holding Co., Ltd.

Present

o Supervisor of Shanghai
Pharmaceutical (Group)
Co., Ltd.

e Director and General
Manager of Shanghai
Industrial Investment
(Holdings) Co., Ltd.

e Director of Shanghai
Capital Management
Co., Ltd.

e Director of Shanghai
Galaxy Investments
Co., Ltd.

o Director of Shanghai SIIC
Capital Management
Co., Ltd.

o LELBAERAERA
A

HERESERNERA
A

R

o LEEZ(£E)ARR

g%

LEER (RE)BRR

FEERamE

o LEIREESEERA
mEZ

o PEEWEERERRA
REZ

o ELEEAREERA
REZ

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

Investment Co. Ltd

Present

Director of:

e Shanghai SUS
Environment Co., Ltd.

e Tianjin Pharmaceutical
Holdings Co., Ltd.

e General Water of China
Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai Overseas Tokyo
Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai Healthcare
Angel Capital
Management Co., Ltd

e Shanghai Overseas
Enterprises Co., Ltd.

B (RESF)

S

e SIIC Senior Living
Development Co. Ltd

e SIIC Senior Living
Investment Co. Ltd

BE

8%

o PERERZRHERA
7l

o REMBEEEFRAT

o RREKBREAGRAT

e Shanghai Overseas Tokyo
Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai Healthcare
Angel Capital
Management Co., Ltd

LERRHEZARAF

e (ECEP (Hong Kong)
Treasury Management
Company Limited

e (arbon Reserve
Investments Limited

e CECEP Environmental
Consulting Group Ltd

B (RIESF)
&

AE

Es:

o MEHERR (FE)
RABRR

o FIREBARAH

°¢I%EFF%%@
HEEERA



Details
a8

Mr. Zhu Dazhi
RABREE

Mr. Xu Xiaobing
REAEE

Name of Retiring Director
BREESHE

Mr. Zhou Yuding

BYSEE

Mr. Jiang Kai
Bieks

Mr. Yang Xing
BREE

Other Principal Commitments
Including Directorships
(cont'd)

Eft T RAE
BEEER (8)

Present (cont’d)
Director of:

Gold Wisdom Holdings
Limited

Grand Sinochn International
Limited

Hanyang Investment Holding
Company Limited

Hongkong Jinhaide Holding
Limited

Hongkong Nany New Energy
(Dazhou) Limited

KC & Johnson International
Limited

S.1. United Water Holdings
Limited

Yun Shui Technology Co.
Ltd

SIIC Environment Holdings
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd.

Shanghai SIIC-Longchuan
Smartech Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Innovation Center
for Biopharmaceuticals
Tianjin Trust Co., Ltd

RE(R)
g%

Gold Wisdom Holdings
Limited
EDEBRERAT
BrRanERERAT
BERREERERAT
BABBIER RN A
[F9NS|

EERRBRA

S.1. United Water Holdings
Limited

ERRHERRA
TERERR(RE)BR
A7

LR EERARRERY
BRAF
DRENEEEAHTL
REETERERAT

Past (for the last 5 years)

(cont'd)

Director of:

e Ranhill Water (Hong
Kong) Limited

e Ranhill Water (Wuhan)
Co., Ltd.

e SIIC Environment
Holdings (Taixing) Co.,
Ltd.

e General Water of China
Co., Ltd.

o Nanyang Brothers
Tobacco Co. Ltd.

Present

Director of:

o Asia Wisdom Investments
Limited

e (lobal Environment
Investment (HK) Limited

e (Global Envirotech
Investment Ltd.

e (old Orient Investments
Limited

e (old Wisdom Holdings
Limited

o (olden Bell Development
Limited

B (FA5F) ()

o BEKE(BE)ERA
il

o BEKE(HE)BRA
il

o FERREX(RE)F
[N

o FREKBRAERAF

o HERBEERHERA
il

R

g%

o REREBRAF

o BR(BE)ERAA

e (Global Envirotech
Investment Ltd.

o SHEREBRAF

e (old Wisdom Holdings
Limited

e (olden Bell Development
Limited

Present (cont'd)

e Director of Tianjin Trust
Co., Ltd.

e Director of Shanghai
Research Institute of
Building Sciences Group
Co., Ltd.

e (hairman of Nanfang
Water Services Co., Ltd.

e Director of Shanghai
State-owned Capital
Investment Parent Fund
Co., Ltd.

R (%)

o REEHERALATE
2

o LERMEERNARD
Ags

o BAKBERAFEER

o LEHAEARARES
BRAFES

Present (cont'd)

e Shanghai Yangtze River
Delta Water Environment
Investment Fund Limited

e S|, Yangtze River Delta
Ecological Development
Ltd

e Shanghai S.I. Yangtze
River Delta Ecological
Development Ltd

e Shanghai Huning
Expressway (Shanghai
Section) Development
Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai Shenyu
Highway Construction
Development Co., Ltd.

Rk (8)

o DERZAKREREE
EERAF

o FERZALELRER
R

o DEIER-AERER
BRAT

o LERERENK(LE
R)ERERAA

o DERBRRERERE
(9N
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BRWE
Name of Retiring Director
REESHA
Details Mr. Zhu Dazhi Mr. Xu Xiaobing Mr. Zhou Yuding Mr. Jiang Kai Mr. Yang Xing
#E RRREE #EBRALE BFR%E Biafks BREE

Other Principal Commitments
Including Directorships
(cont'd)

Efa T RAE
BEEZEL ()

Present (cont’d)

Director of:

e (rand Sinochn
International Limited

¢ Hanyang Investment
Holding Company Limited

¢ Hongkong Jinhaide
Holdings Limited

¢ Hong Kong Nany New
Energy (Dazhou) Limited

e KC & Johnson
International Limited

e Lap Yin International
Limited

o Nanfang Water Services
Co., Ltd.

e Rise Thrive Limited

e Rise Wealth Investments
Ltd.

e S| United Water
Holdings Limited

e S United Water
Holdings (BVI) Limited

e SIIC Environment
Holdings (Wuhan) Co.,
Ltd.

B ()

£

o ERARFRAF

o BHRARKRERARF

o BEGBEERERAT

o BAMBIER R
BRART

o EEBERBRAF

o UHEBRFRAR

. mmmw ]

o BEERAT

e Rise Wealth Investments
Ltd.

e S.I. United Water
Holdings Limited

e S| United Water
Holdings (BVI) Limited

o FERBER(ZE) S
BARa

I]
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Details Mr. Zhu Dazhi
#iE RABREE

Name of Retiring Director

Mr. Yang Xing
BREE

Other Principal Commitments
Including Directorships
(cont'd)

Eft T RAE
BEEER (8)

BREESHE
Mr. Xu Xiaobing Mr. Zhou Yuding Mr. Jiang Kai
REAEE BFR%E BlELE
Present (cont’d)
Director of:
e SIIC Environment Tech
(Hong Kong) Limited

e SIIC Yangtze Delta
Environmental Resources
(Hong Kong) Limited

e Thrive Bloom Limited

e Thrive Far Limited

e Thrive Key Limited

o True Victor Holding Ltd.

e SIIC Environment
Holdings (Weifang) Co.,
Ltd.

o Shanghai Shang Shi North
Bund Investment and
Development Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai Shang Shi
Urban Development
Investment Co., Ltd.

e Shanghai Shangtou
Holdings Co., Ltd.

e Suzhou Shangtou Real
Estate Co., Ltd.

R ()

8%

o DREEBBRR(E
&) BRAT

o BEERER=-ARR
BR(B8)ERAA

o KEARAT

o ERARAF

o REERAF

o LHERBERAR

o FERBKERHERL
7l

o DRLEIMNERERE
BRAT]

o DRIENTRRRER
F9NS|

o LEERERERAF

o BINEREXERAT
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CEEARE

Name of Retiring Director

BREESHS
Details Mr. Zhu Dazhi Mr. Xu Xiaobing Mr. Zhou Yuding Mr. Jiang Kai Mr. Yang Xing
#E KRBRE REAEE BFRELE Bleks BREE

The general statutory disclosures of the Directors are as follows:

ESN-RARHKEMT

a. Whether at any time during the last 10 years, an No No No No No
application or a petition under any bankruptcy law
of any jurisdiction was filed against him or against a
partnership of which he was a partner at the time when
he was a partner or at any time within 2 years from the
date he ceased to be a partner?

A REERENFNEMNEE  RECHEERRNE
MREZAERERFRZH  ERARESRR
EMEBANE  ABHABEEEBAZBRER
HEREE  MAasBeEREBFES2E?

b. Whether at any time during the last 10 years, an No No No No No
application or a petition under any law of any
jurisdiction was filed against an entity (not being a
partnership) of which he was a director or an equivalent
person or a key executive, at the time when he was a
director or an equivalent person or a key executive of
that entity or at any time within 2 years from the date
he ceased to be a director or an equivalent person or
a key executive of that entity, for the winding up or
dissolution of that entity or, where that entity is the
trustee of a business trust, that business trust, on the
ground of insolvency?

b. REEBAVENEMERE  RECHAERENE 5
fEE - NENERRE NEARE-HER R
PE)INEZARERAIATREETHASER -
BN BRERERNESARERAIALREES
BABZ BRR2EMM MR - HAZENFRNE
HHZERRLREAEE dENAEEAEE
EEAMTFN  AEERGRRNEEAZR?

¢. Whether there is any unsatisfied judgment against him? ~ No No No No No

¢ REHAREMARTENHR?

o
o
3
o
o

o3
4
by
3

o
o
4
o
o
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Details Mr. Zhu Dazhi Mr. Xu Xiaobing
#E RRREE REAEE

Name of Retiring Director

BEESHS
Mr. Zhou Yuding
BFR%sE

Mr. Jiang Kai
Bleks

Mr. Yang Xing
BREE

d.

. AR EEF A A A RARLE SETHE

. HRTEEMMARE M H RE R AR AL

Whether he has ever been convicted of any offence, in -~ No No
Singapore or elsewhere, involving fraud or dishonesty

which is punishable with imprisonment, or has been

the subject of any criminal proceedings (including any

pending criminal proceedings of which he is aware) for

such purpose?

|
oA

ERNHHAAHET AR RN R AT ERD
(BRERANEMRRMERD) TR

. Whether he has ever been convicted of any offence, in~~ No No

Singapore or elsewhere, involving a breach of any law
or regulatory requirement that relates to the securities
or futures industry in Singapore or elsewhere, or has
been the subject of any criminal proceedings (including
any pending criminal proceedings of which he is aware)
for such breach?

o
b

WhNEFAAETERBNEMERREERTEM

REF  JEGBAREARERDNEE (REER

AN EMARTFRR) ?

Whether at any time during the last 10 years, judgment ~ No No
has been entered against him in any civil proceedings

in Singapore or elsewhere involving a breach of any law

or regulatory requirement that relates to the securities

or futures industry in Singapore or elsewhere, or a

finding of fraud, misrepresentation or dishonesty

on his part, or he has been the subject of any civil
proceedings (including any pending civil proceedings

of which he is aware) involving an allegation of fraud,
misrepresentation or dishonesty on his part?
ERE0FNEMNER  HRABERMRSAME 7§
FNRFFRAT - WARSRE R AR E
ANEFIHETEEANEMEESEERTE &
EERENGE  ERRAIIHETR  AEARE
KBRS RERT  ERRAXTHETARERA
(REEMANERMRAR SR MEE?

oA

No

|

No

|

No

|

No

]

No

]

No

]

No

]

No

g

No

]
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BRWE
Name of Retiring Director
BABERZ
Details Mr. Zhu Dazhi Mr. Xu Xiaobing Mr. Zhou Yuding Mr. Jiang Kai Mr. Yang Xing
e KRR BRIk BFass BhAE BR%E
q. Whether he has ever been convicted in Singapore No No No No No
or elsewhere of any offence in connection with the
formation or management of any entity or business
trust?
0 ARBCEAMAR A A AREMEEREEE F & & A &
AR EREENENEIMRER
h. Whether he has ever been disqualified from actingasa ~ No No No No No
director or an equivalent person of any entity (including
the trustee of a business trust), or from taking part
directly or indirectly in the management of any entity or
business trust?
h ERDESHIVAEEAMNESE (AEBEERANRTE 3 & & & &
NEEERASFRAALNER - SHRBEEESE
ER2RAMBRABEELEENER?
i. Whether he has ever been the subject of any No No No No No
order, judgment or ruling of any court, tribunal or
governmental body, permanently or temporarily
enjoining him from engaging in any type of business
practice or activity?
i. EREGBAEMER  ZEIMFAREN MY & & & & &
2 FIRATHANIE  BAATEREEEEA
BUNEEERIEY?
J. Whether he has ever, to his knowledge, been concerned
with the management or conduct, in Singapore or
elsewhere, of the affairs of:—
o BEAA - ERESEMMERE MG S REERK
EAUTER
i any corporation which has been investigated for No Yes, please refer No No No
a breach of any law or regulatory requirement to page 41 of this
governing corporations in Singapore or annual report for
elsewhere; or further details.
i BEREEFMRIAMGAAANEAMEERE F & EERAEAFR B & &



Name of Retiring Director

BREFEBEEHE X5/  EXERIRITE
BEFZAAAABEILERIEFNIR B
BEASRLATES?

ENE -

BABEHE
Details Mr. Zhu Dazhi Mr. Xu Xiaobing Mr. Zhou Yuding Mr. Jiang Kai Mr. Yang Xing
#E RRREE BBKEE BFR%sE Bleks BREE
ii. any entity (not being a corporation) which has been ~ No No No No No
investigated for a breach of any law or regulatory
requirement governing such entities in
Singapore or elsewhere; or
i. BEREEMMEIAMOAEE GERF)MAN § & & & f
FEIEERENRASHEMER &
iii. any business trust which has been investigated No No No No No
for a breach of any law or regulatory requirement
governing business trusts in Singapore or
elsewhere; or
il BEREEMMEIA MO AHEEENETER F & & & f
AEEREMRALHENBRER &
iv. any entity or business trust which has been No No No No No
investigated for a breach of any law or regulatory
requirement that relates to the securities or futures
industry in Singapore or elsewhere, in connection
with any matter occurring or arising during that
period when he was so concerned with the entity or
business trust?
v, BERERMESIEM T OEFLBETEEE 3§ & & & &
MEMEEREERTMRBENEMERLESR
it REMESRERIBECRNBRNEE
REEMENSE?
k. Whether he has been the subject of any current or past ~ No Yes, please refer No No No
investigation or disciplinary proceedings, or has been to page 41 of this
reprimanded or issued any warning, by the Monetary annual report for
Authority of Singapore or any other regulatory authority, further details
exchange, professional body or government agency,
whether in Singapore or elsewhere?
ko EREMIDSEEGL)  EREANMEEREE 3§ 7 EEFRLEAER T & &
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CEEARE

Details
#E

Mr. Zhu Dazhi

Name of Retiring Director

BEESHS
Mr. Xu Xiaobing  Mr. Zhou Yuding Mr. Jiang Kai
BEKEE BFegsE BleLE

Mr. Yang Xing
BESE

Information required
FENER

Disclosure applicable to the appointment of Director only.

EEARESERHRE -

Any prior experience as a director of an issuer
listed on the Exchange?
DIERR S EMETAESHE(BRELR

If yes, please provide details of prior experience.
Aie o e BT ERFE -

If no, please state if the director has attended

or will be attending training on the roles and
responsibilities of a director of a listed issuer

as prescribed by the Exchange

D BRAEERTEELNIKELNZ S
FIRENER LT AZEEACRBEMNIE

Not applicable. This is for re-election of Directors.
NER - HREBEAZES -
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The Directors present their statement together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. (the ‘Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) and the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

In the opinion of the Directors, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company as set out
on pages 128 to 244 are drawn up sSo as to give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and the financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2023 and as at the date of this statement, there are
reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they fall due.

1  Principal activities
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 196 to 198
of this Report. There were no significant changes in the Group's principal activities for
the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

2 Business Review

The Group’s fair business review and an analysis on the performance using financial
indicators are set out in the Chairman Statement on pages 6 to 9 and Financial Review
on pages 10 to 12 of this Report, respectively.

3  Environment, Social and Governance

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report’) will be
available on the websites of the SEHK, Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
("SGX-ST") and the Company, at the same time as the publication of this annual report.

4 Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during FY2023 amounted to RMB402,000
(2022: RMB293,000).

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
ESHE

ERE2NHE2023F12A3 BT RFENESRE S
AEBEEREERARADN ((XRAT]) REWBERR
([AEME ) CEHTEUBRELAR AT BEMR ALK
EREHE -

EERR - BEHNF128Z 2 AN AR T KR
xR ARAMBURREEEZHIRIRBEER AL
AR R E RARRIR2023F12 A31 BWHBHRR - A
REZE2023F12 A31 B LR BEFER RRARSE AHHOK
SEVBRE RREPHRREREBNNARFNE
HEHEN  AREEABREARRNARNERLE
HIEERER -

1 EBRH

ARANEBRBRREER - AMBRANER
ERAREF1962198ENGEAMBREN « &
E2023F12 AN A LM BEERASEN I RE
MEEAED -

2 RBOE
AEEN DT EBOERRAINBESEETHHNG
AMARENAREECZIEN T BUBHRE0
ZRENRBLERA

3 Hiﬁ‘lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi‘
?i@&a/ui&i((%iﬁ
¢J)HﬁEAPJ§*ZF¢$ﬁH*H% G
FNEEERGHERAR ([
R

4 EBEER

REER 2023 FNEZRFABARE402,0007T
(2022 + AR%293,0007T) °
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Directors

The Directors of the Company in office during FY2023 and as at the date of this
statement are:

Mr. Zhou Yuding - Chairman of the Board and Executive Director (Appointed
on 23 February 2024)

Non-Executive Chairman (Resigned on 18 November 2023)
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer*

Executive Director (Resigned on 2 October 2023)
Executive Director

Mr. Zhou Jun -
Mr. Zhu Dazhi -
Mr. Yang Jianwei -
Mr. Xu Xiaobing -

Mr. Jiang Kai - Executive Director (Appointed on 20 October 2023)
Mr. Yang Xing - Executive Director (Appointed on 20 October 2023)
Mr. Huang Hanguang - Executive Director (Resigned on 20 October 2023)
Mr. Yang Wei - Executive Director (Resigned on 20 October 2023)

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang
Mr. An Hongjun
Mr. Zhong Ming -

Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director

* Mr. Zhu Dazhi was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer on 28 September 2023

Arrangements to Enable Directors to Acquire Benefits by Means of
the Acquisition of Shares and Debentures

Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did
there subsist any arrangement to which the Company is a party, whose object is or
one of whose objects is, to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares or debentures in the Company or any other body
corporate, except as mentioned in Section 7 of the Directors’ Statement.

Directors’ Interests in Ordinary Shares, Share Options and
Debentures

The Directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no
interests in the share capital and debentures of the Company and related corporations
as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Company under
Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act 1967 except as follows:

6

EF
R20238 E R AR E R ARAEBESFNT

AYREE - EBFEIRRUOEF (RWAUF2A
BAEZM)

BERE - FHTERE(R2023F1 A18ARIE)

ARRRE - BOEERERHOR

BRERXE - BOEE(RABFI0A2HEE)

BEKEE - BiTEZ

BlErE - BOEF(RABFI0ANBEEE)

BERE - BTEF(RABFI0ANEERD)

REARE - BOEZ(RABFI0ANBEHE)

BRAE - BITES (RABF10A20HEE)

BAREE - BUENGTES

RUERE - BUFHTES

BHRE - BIHNES

* RRBFAER023FIABBEZEAERATE

EFUZARARMRREEMERAORH

RPBRFEREABFEENEREEFEAAF
RATATNEARZSE  BEARFEZTERREA
R R AT AL A BB A B A S (5 R T
7 BREEREFETHAML 2 BREI -

EFERNERER  WMEERAEETHED

R BEEREBROAR B EENARE KA
EMBRAREEEDLEREE A DEIRET1967F
GRS R EDE) 1645 FENESHRES M
i » bR T X&) -

Direct interest

HEER

At beginning At end 21 January
Name of Director and company EENEREREES of year of year 2024
in which interests are held AN RELD RER 2024F1821H
Company AATH
Ordinary Shares R liiliie
Zhong Ming §E54 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Save as disclosed above, there were no changes in any of the above-mentioned br TR BEE N - iR T RERERE2024

interests between the end of the financial year and 21 January 2024. F1RA21AHABEEE) -
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or
Any Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of the Directors and their associates in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (‘SF0"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

EERRATRARRFZ AT EMMBEE
Eek  HARMREREHEER &
RE

M2023F12A31H - EFRHBEARARE R
HiEg 2B RO RARERO BB D THRAAF
BEFLAEED ([ RBERA ) F352(68
ERENAMANER  HCRBLTETAES
ETEFZHOEETA((RETFR]) NEAR
AIREBBRTNEENT :

Approximate

percentage

Capacity/Nature Number of of interest

of interest Shares (L) in the Company

HELFER

Name of Director EENA B EaNE BRPEE (L) #Hhastt
Company ADF
Ordinary Shares LEk

Zhong Ming B8 Beneficial interest 1,000,000 0.04%

EntEn
Note: BisE

(L)  denotes long position

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which were
recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code, as at
31 December 2023.

(L) RTHE

B EXFTREEIN - H2023F12A31H - HiEE
EREABBARKRBEREEMRABREE (EER
EH LB GHOIEXVED) OEFRLD - HRARD
BEREETRACEENTRRRES RAREDIF
BEREFENEMAREREFETAHEA
REREBEBHR AN EMERIAR
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2023, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 88 of the Singapore Companies Act 1967 and Section
336 of the SFO shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain Directors and chief executive of the Company, the interests of shareholders
below are extracted from the latest disclosure of interests forms filed by the respective

shareholders.

9 FREW

#2023F12 A318 » AR EIRIE1967 F G
DEE)ESBIEARER R LKA EI6KTFE
HNEIZRREMET  BEXEREEALAET
BERGERITRABMERIN - THIRFEERRS
BEBRERINENBEERR

Approximately
percentage of
interest in the

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Number of shares Company
RN EER
RERER EU Vg £:-1:3:1 BRAEE BABD
S.I. Triumph Power Limited (“S.1. Triumph Power")" Beneficial interest 986,929,551 38.32%
FENBAERRR(LELB]DD oy ot
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL")® Interest in controlled corporation 1,268,485,926 49.25%
PAEERRERAR ([ LEER])O R EER
S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“SH")® Interest in controlled corporation 986,929,551 38.32%
FTEEEERERAR(LEERZ)O REEEER
Beneficial interest 165,418,475 6.42%
Enitn
China Energy Conservation & Environmental Protection Beneficial interest
(Hong Kong) Investment Co., Limited (‘CECEPHK")® 223,712,917 8.69%
REIFAERIR () RERERAR ([HEIHERR (B8) ) Ry g
China Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Group Interest in controlled corporation
(“CECEP")® 223,712,917 8.69%
FEIEEIRREEER AT ([HER])@ XEEE R
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 1,287,856,926 50.00%
HEREERERARQ R ER
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 1,287,856,926 50.00%
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited © REEEER
Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited Interest in controlled corporation
(“SHEc™® 1,287,856,926 50.00%
BB (5B BRARA (LB REEEER
Value Partners Classic Fund® Beneficial interest 205,567,980 7.98%
EEEEERY Enftn
Value Partners Limited (“VPL")® Beneficial interest 7,524,940 0.29%
EHECEEAR([EE])O EniEs
Value Partners Hong Kong Limited (“VPLHK")® Interest in controlled corporation 7,524,940 0.29%
ERASERAEEARAF ([EBEEE])Y REEEER
Beneficial interest 224,075,980 8.70%
Enftn
Value Partners Group Limited (‘VPGL")® Interest in controlled corporation 231,600,920 8.99%

EEEEAR AR ((EEEE])©

RELEER
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Notes:

()

Other

S.I. Triumph Power directly holds 986,929,551 Shares, representing approximately 38.32%
of the total issued share capital of our Company as at 31 December 2023. S.I. Infrastructure
(the sole shareholder of S.I. Triumph Power), directly holds 165,418,475 Shares and is also
deemed to be interested in 986,929,551 Shares directly held by S.I. Triumph Power. SIHL
Treasury, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SIHL, is interested in 116,137,900 Shares through
certain nominees’ arrangements. SIHL is also the sole shareholder of S.I. Infrastructure.
As such, SIHL is deemed to be interested in a total of 1,268,485,926 Shares, representing
approximately 49.25% of the total issued share capital of our Company as at 31 December
2023.

China Energy Conservation & Environmental Protection (Hong Kong) Investment Co.,
Limited ("CECEPHK”) is deemed interested in the shares held through BOCI Securities
Limited's account in CCASS Depository. BOCI Securities Limited is the agency of CECEPHK.
CECEP is deemed to be interested in the shares held by CECEPHK as CECEP owns the
entire issued share capital of China Energy Conservation & Environmental Protection (Hong
Kong) Investment Co., Limited.

As at 31 December 2023, Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited is directly interested
in approximately 47.77% of the total issued share capital of SIHL and is indirectly
interested in approximately 7.36% of the total issued share capital of SIHL through its
wholly-owned subsidiary SIIC Capital (B.V.l.) Limited. Shanghai Industrial Investment
Treasury Company Limited is directly interested in 100% of the total issued share capital
of Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited. In addition, as at 31 December 2023, SIIC is
interested in approximately 63% of the total issued share capital of SIHL through its directly
and indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries. Therefore, each of SIIC, Shanghai Industrial
Investment Treasury Company Limited and Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited is
deemed to be interested in a total of 1,287,856,926 Shares by virtue of their interests in
SIHL, representing approximately 50.00% of the total issued share capital of our Company
as at 31 December 2023.

Value Partners Limited is a fund manager deemed to be interested in the Shares by virtue of
the shareholding of our Shares by 13 funds (including Value Partners Classic Fund) under
its management. Value Partners Group Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares via
its 100% ownership in Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, which in turn 100% owns Value
Partners Limited. Value Partners Hong Kong Limited is directly interested in 224,075,980
Shares and is deemed to be interested in 7,524,940 Shares via its 100% ownership in Value
Partners Limited. The said information was based on the information provided by Value
Partners Limited to our Company in June 2017.

The said information was based on the information provided by Value Partners Limited to
our Company in May 2017.

than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other relevant

interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or which would be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2023.

W EXPTIRERE SN

FENBERHEI86,929,551 R - L1k
ARRR2023F12AN BEHTRALEN
38.32% - LENBHM-RRIEARERRA
165,418, 4758 - TR AN LENBERS
F#1986,929 551 R (p e B 1 - LB S
ERBNMBEARLENBERBRE TRAA
ZHN116,137, 900 e fnh A e - LEE
B A L EEREAOME R © Bt 712023512
A3E - EEERBE RN A #1,268,485,926/%
B EEER  NERRREBITRAEHEN
49.25%

PEEEERR (BR) REBRAR ([HEBREER
®R(BR) ) RASREBTRERESERAF
EERTREREZREFFERBEORDTHSA
i o PRERESERLFARTEAELERR (B
B)ORERE - ARPEHRESTREGERR(F
B)REBRDANZHEBITRAR - B HRR
BARTEMERRE (BE) MBOROHTEEE

%5 e

R2023512A318 - FBBRERRERRAAE
BHEALERREBITRANBENATTT%HE
¥ ABBEREMBAFSIC Capital (B.V.L)
Limited B A EEERBBITRALIELNT.36%
#9425 - Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury
Company Limited B LBRERRAER DA
BEBETRALEI00%MER « 1IN - R2023F
12A318 - FERBEERRMELEHENM
BRAES LERREBITRABELNGCI% M E
# o At EZ - Shanghai Industrial Investment
Treasury Company Limited & H/EREZERER
DRAYARSR EEEROESMHEEARA
1,287,856,926 % % {7 (1542 81742023412 A 31
BEBTIRALEL450.00%) RiEAER -

EEASEEARAESER  HBHEEEMN3
EEe (RREREBEEAR)BALRAKRD &
BAERBOTEA#T - BEEEERARNRES
BAANSEESERERBROAI00%OME
BRRhEERS  MERESEEREERD
AIGEEEESEEARMI00%MNE ERES
EMERBR AR EERN 224,075,980 % B 17 #
Fiesm WEABBANEEASEERF00%
HPTEHEINT,524, 940 R MH P i #E5S - LA
HOERBEESERLRAIN01746 AMALTF
RELEER -

B DERBEESEEARIRN2017F5A 1
ARRIREMER -

ARAR2023F12 431

BRENERDRNRDIEERO D HEFERE
EHERHEENEXVRE2RIDBAAXREHEE
MERIAE BT ABRBEFRBEEIE
33BKREENETMAMERIAR -
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10 Equity Compensation Plans of the Company

As at 31 December 2023 and the date of this statement, the Company did not have any
share scheme under Chapter 17 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

11

116

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. An Hongjun (Chairman), Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang and
Mr. Zhong Ming. The Audit Committee had held four meetings during the financial year
ended 31 December 2023 and has performed the following delegated functions:

(1)

To review with the external auditors:

(@) the audit plan, including the nature and scope of the audit before the audit
COmMMences;

(b)  their audit report; and
(c)  their management letters and Management's response;

To discuss with the external auditors any issues or concerns arising from their
agreed-upon procedures, interim and final audits, and any other matters which
the external auditors may wish to discuss;

To ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved:;

To assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control (including
financial, operational, compliance, information technology controls and risk
management) systems established by Management to identify, assess, manage,
and disclose financial and non-financial risks;

To monitor the scope and results of the external audit, its cost effectiveness
and the independence and objectivity of the external auditors annually and give
recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment, re-appointment or
removal of the external auditors;

To review and ensure that the assurance has been received from the Executive
Committee (or equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) in
relation to the interim/full year unaudited financial statements;

To review the internal audit programme and ensure co-ordination between the
internal auditors, external auditors and Management;

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

10 FLAFRERRHE

11

R2023F12 A3 B RARERS ARG ER
BEACETHIDE17SHEAEARGEE -

FiHERE
ARRMBEAZEERRH =R BUFNTESA
o ARAERE (EF)  BAATERERS
B B ZEGREZE2023F12 A1 BIEM S
EERTHNRGELCRET MIRRERE

(1) ESMNEZHEER

(@) RERIERBRNEHNEEZTE
BREZNEREE ;

(b) HEZHS R

/A

() EEERHMHLEEEZEE:

(2 BEIELFMIRBSHTERSF  FHARR
REGERLENERLEE - URIBER
BENAZHmOEMEMmER

3) REBE-RREAR2ERBRRIBASE

(4) FHEEEERIAZR R BEREE
BHRFMBRROABEE (BEMTE
2E AR EEEMEHRERER) S
EZRERRAN:

6) BFEFIIBELMBERER  ARER
BEMNEGEMBL I REEL - Wt
BEMZE  BRIBRLNESFSRIE
BE#E

(6) EMUBRCUIATEES (RPE) RE
FHHE (FRE) gt B/ FEAREEAH
BBMERBAORE

(1) R ABELRELRE A BB - S
BB RERE 2 M5 -
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(8) To review the quarterly, half-yearly and full year financial statements of the
Company and of the Group, including announcements relating thereto, to
shareholders, the SGX-ST and SEHK, and thereafter to submit them to the Board
for approval;

(9) To review interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing
Manual of the SGX-ST) and report its findings to the Board;

To undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the Board
or as the Committees may consider appropriate; and

(11) To undertake such other functions and duties as may be required by law or by the
Listing Manual of the SGX-ST and SEHK, as amended from time to time.

The Audit Committee has full access to and has the co-operation of Management, and
has been given the resources required for it to discharge its function properly. It also
has full discretion to invite any Director and executive officer to attend its meetings.
The external and internal auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Directors the nomination of Deloitte &
Touche LLP for re-appointment as external auditors of the Company at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Auditors

The auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept
re-appointment and a resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

For FY2023, the fees paid or payable to Deloitte & Touche LLP for the audit of the
annual financial statements of the Group were approximately RMB7,628,000 (excluding
the expenses on the non-audit service provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP).

The non-auditing services fees charged by Deloitte & Touche LLP in relation to
agreed-upon service, tax compliance services and review of selected financial
information for FY2023 were approximately RMB1,418,000. The Audit Committee has
undertaken a review of all non-auditing services provided by the auditors and confirms
that they would not, in the Audit Committee’s opinion, affect the independence of the
auditors.

The Company complies with Rules 712 and 715 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual in
relation to the audit of the Group.
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Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

SIIC (for and on behalf of SIIC Capital (B.V.I.) Limited, Shanghai Investment Holdings
Limited, Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited, Shanghai
Industrial Financial (Holdings) Company Limited, Shanghai Industrial Financial
Holdings Limited, SIIC Treasury (B.V.l.) Limited, SIIC CM Development Funds
Limited and SIIC CM Development Limited) and SIHL, S.I. Triumph Power, S.I.
Infrastructure and SIHL Treasury (together with SIIC, the ‘Covenantors”) entered
into the deeds of non-competition undertakings (the “Deeds of Non-Competition”)
in favor of the Company on 8 March 2018, pursuant to which, the Covenantors
provided certain non-competition undertakings to the Company. During FY2023, the
independent Non-Executive Directors had reviewed the implementation of the Deeds of
Non-Competition and had confirmed that the Covenantors had been in full compliance
with the Deeds of Non-Competition and there was no breach by the Covenantors.

Employees and Remuneration

As at 31 December 2023, there were 6,372 (2022: 6,456) employees in the Group.
Total employee benefits expenses of the Group (including Directors’ fee) for FY2023
were approximately RMB804 million (FY2022: RMB786 million). Staff remuneration
packages are determined based on each employee’s qualifications, experience, position
and seniority. The Group also provides other staff benefits including medical and life
insurance, training programmes, and grants discretionary incentive bonuses to eligible
staff based on their performance and Group’s results of operations.

The contributions payable to defined pension schemes were made by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.

During FY2023, there were no forfeited contributions used by the Group to reduce
existing level of contributions for each of the years.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities

During FY2023, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities.

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio equals net debt as a percentage of total equity as at the end of the period.
Net debt includes bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents. As at 31 December 2023, the gearing ratio of the Group was 1.14 (31
December 2022: 1.13). Details of the gearing ratio are set out in Note 45 to the financial
statements for FY2023.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

13

14

15

16

EFTRSRELE

+E(BRRZKSIC Capital (B.V.L) Limited + /&
REPRAR AT ~ Shanghai Industrial Investment
Treasury Company Limited + H/8E £ 4Rl E
BAF s EEBBEMBARLDE -~ SIC Treasury
(B.V.I) Limited + ESEXZHREEZESER
NAREBEXSHRAEERERAR) R EEE
B LENE FEEERFEYBEE (ER L
EGBIRSEEAL) R2018F3 A8 LUK
RAIBEBANTIREFRAHALE ([FRPRER
Bl Bt ZEZFEARKAIMELE T IAHRS
ik o R2023HF - BAUEHITEZERATHS
AEZBEOWTER  YEERZSZHEACLTSE
BINRFAGERE  MZSZaATRERTE
FHGERE -

huss

N

EBRREFH

F2023F12A318 - REBERG,3724ER
(20224 : 6,456% ) - REBER2023 FRIEER
Y (BREERS) AENAEARES.04E T
(202281 F + ARHET86187T) - EEFHEEHETIIR
ERREEMEE  £% BURIRET - ~%E
NAEEIREEMEN (REBERASRRE 1
JIEtE)  RBRBEEIRBRASELEEERS
Bi%E TR D BB 8RB AT

ERRTEAD BN KA AR BIRZ5 8
MR B R FRET AR L SR (R o

2023815 - BIEARERNURESEFERAH
TR DRI

WA HEXRODFLRLHES
20238 %F - ARAREEFMBERAHREBER
HERRAER LTHES -

BXARLE
BABELRERRGARNERFEEBESN
BA ERFERERTREMERARAE
BENRERESEEY - K2023F12/318
AEENERABELEA114(2022F12 8318 ¢
1.13) « ERE B EMFEH M 20238 F 5753k
KHITE45 o



17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Directors’ interest in competing business

During FY2023 and up to the date of this report, none of the Directors was considered
to have direct or indirect interest in businesses which compete or were likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Hong Kong Listing Rules and
Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.

Directors’ Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting have a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation, if applicable.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
FY2023.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report, the
Company had in force permitted indemnity provisions for the benefits of the Directors
of the Company (including former Directors).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, both the aggregate revenue from sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total sales and purchases respectively.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Constitution or the laws of Hong
Kong which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to our
existing Shareholders.

Distributable Reserves
As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no distributable reserves.

Tax Reliefs and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the Shareholders
by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
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Corporate Bond Issuance

For the purposes of financial structure and financing costs optimisation, the Group has
completed the issuance of two tranches of the Corporate Bonds in March and November
2021 with the aggregate size of RMB3,000,000,000 and interest rates of 3.89% and
3.40% for the first and second tranches respectively. The total consideration received
by the Group was RMB2,994,450,000.

Pursuant to the relevant terms of the issuance of the first tranche Corporate Bonds,
holders shall have an option to partially or fully sell back the Corporate Bonds to the
Company at the end of the third year from the issue date of 12 March 2021. During
the period of registration for sell-back (i.e. from 8 February 2024 to 22 February 2024,
trading days only), the holders of the first tranche Corporate Bonds have registered for
the sell-back of a total number of 1,415,000 Corporate Bonds. The Company will take
such steps as are required to cancel such Corporate Bonds registered for sell-back.
After the cancellation, the outstanding principal amount of the first tranche Corporate
Bonds will be RMB1,358,500,000, representing approximately 90.6% of the initial
principal amount of the first tranche Corporate Bonds, and the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of the first and second tranches of the Corporate Bonds will be
RMB2,858,500,000. For further details on the sell-back of the first tranche Corporate
Bonds, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8 March 2024.

Annual General Meeting and Final Dividend

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM") will be held on or before 29
April 2024.

The expected payment date of the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023
is on or about 31 May 2024, subject to the poll voting results of the AGM. The final
dividend would be paid to the Shareholders registered in the Share Transfer Books and
Register of Member of the Company as at 5:00 p.m. on 17 May 2024.

Duly completed registrable transfers of Shares received by the Company's share
registrar in Singapore, In.Corp Corporate Services Pte. Ltd., 30 Cecil Street #19-08
Prudential Tower Singapore 049712, no later than 5:00 p.m. on 17 May 2024 will be
registered before entitlements to the final dividend are determined.

Duly completed registrable transfers of Shares received by the Company's share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shop
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
no later than 4:30 p.m. on 17 May 2024 will be registered before entitlements to the
final dividend are determined.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

25

26

LRRFRT

RELEMBEERBARS  ARERR2021F
AR AZKETMARAES - BRABRAR
%3,000,000,0007  E— R E=HNFIEH 5
73.89%3.40% * AEEREWERERARE
2,994,450,0007T °

BEE-HRRAEFETNABRGESR  BEAS
BEZTE QIAE3A12B)NE=FERAEXA
AEEEHALAARES - EEEECHE (A
2024452 B8R £20244F2 5228 - BRTHH) -
E—HAREAFEEACEDEERR,415,000
RARES c ARAERBREEMESRTHZS
BELEEARESR - NElk  E-H0AE
FMAREASEE A AR,358,500,0007C -
HE—BHRAREFNAREELNI0.6%  ME—
RE_BAREFNAEEASBEBAARE
2,858,500,0007T - BRI EE —HRRIEHHE—

FHE  F2HARAIRER2024F3A8EMA
o

BREAFXERFHEE
ARABRRAEFAE ((RRBFAE]) $102024
F4R29ASZBTRTT -

HZE2023512 A31 R IEFESARHREIRN B 8
TBHIR2024F5 AT BRI - IEARFRREF
RENERRERTAFE - REREBIHHER
2024F5 A7 B N5 ERLs e A R A 007 88
EATBRRETMARR -

AARRFMENRNELZRE EBCERKA
BRAR] ik A30 Cecil Street #19-08 Prudential
Tower Singapore 049712 © RAER2024F5 517
AT PR ZENSERECNRNEREHE
THABERBIREIRE -

ADEIRBENBRNERE  BETREFELE
RAR - i ABRBEFEREAERI8IKA M
DATEAT12-17165:48 - R TAER2024F5817H
TH4R0D A EENE R ECARNEELS
HEABERBIRAKE -



The Share Transfer Books and Register of Members of the Company would not be
closed for the purpose of determining the entitlements of the Shareholders to the final
dividend.

The exchange rate for converting Singapore dollars into Hong Kong dollars for the
purpose of the final dividend payment in Hong Kong dollars will be made by the
Company in due course.

Every Director shall retire from office once every three (3) years and for this purpose,
at each annual general meeting, at least one-third of our Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ZHOU YUDING
Chairman of the Board and Executive Director

ZHU DAZHI
CEO and Executive Director

Singapore and Hong Kong
Date: 25 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.

R TR

HEBEERBEERERARERR

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position of the Group and the statement of financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
of the Group and the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the year then ended,
and the notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information, as
set out on pages 128 to 244.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company are
properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act
1967 (the “Act”), Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)s") and
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at
31 December 2023, and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in
equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and of the changes in equity of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of
Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (*ACRA
Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters
FEERER

Our Audit Procedures Performed and Responses Thereon
HMETHEZER REIL R ERDE

Service concession arrangements and revenue recognition

PR 45 AP AR R R e A B2

The Group’s core business of water and waste water treatment and waste
incineration are dependent on the service concession arrangements entered
into with the local government authorities in the People’s Republic of China.
The Group applies SFRS(l) INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements
(“SFRS(I) INT 12") in its recognition of revenue from water treatment service,
construction and waste incineration power generation from service concession
arrangements.
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We have identified the determination of whether the service concessions
arrangements fall under the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12 for new service
concession contracts as a significant risk. This could mean that the Group
may inappropriately recognise the consideration received from the local
government authorities in exchange for the construction services as financial
asset and/or intangible asset for service concession arrangements within
the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12 or vice versa. The amounts are material and
significant judgements are required, particularly in relation to the identification
and application of the appropriate accounting treatment for the recording of
revenue and associated assets under SFRS(I) INT 12.
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Our audit approach included evaluating the design and implementation and
test of operating effectiveness of the relevant internal controls and performing
substantive procedures as follows:

BB ZT RS FHEREASD R R KBRS EETHER
o ARBITATEE R

° We evaluated the Group’s controls in assessing the applicability of
SFRS(I) INT 12 and reviewed the associated agreements to assess
whether these agreements are properly identified to be service
concession arrangement within the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12.
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° We verified the key terms of the significant agreements related to service
concession arrangement, by sending confirmations to the grantor.
o HMBEBRETATERRIAGERERESILCERHEERZA

EL 1

e We evaluated the design and implementation and tested the operating
effectiveness of the relevant internal controls over the capture and
recording of these revenue transactions.

o HMAEHERREHEZZRAR S A BADERMN R RE L
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° We reviewed the nature of costs of constructions and inspected the
underlying documentation including estimated total contract costs
approved by management in support of the cost incurred.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.
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Key Audit Matters
FEERER

Our Audit Procedures Performed and Responses Thereon
HMETEOBIZIEF Rt B {ER D R

Service concession arrangements and revenue recognition (continued)

PRI AFIEE R R U A BERR (4)

In addition, the Group allocates the consideration for the services provided
under all the concession arrangements by reference to their relative fair values.
The determination of the fair values of the receivables under these agreements
includes complex calculations and significant estimations required such as
discounts rates, future cash flows and other factors used in the determination
of the amortised cost of financial asset and corresponding financial income.
ok ERESEMESTEERE THRERBOLEE - DE2REME
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The accounting policies for revenue recognition are set out in Note 4 to the
financial statements and the disclosure in relation to service concession
arrangements for the Group have been disclosed in Note 17 to the financial
statements.

WARRNEHABRENMBREMTIREGE EXERBETEERH
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o We reviewed (a) management's computation of amortised cost
of financial receivables and intangible assets; (b) allocation of
consideration between financial receivables and intangible assets
and the related revenue recognition; and (c) tested key management
estimates including discount rates used by comparing to the relevant
market interest rates to identify any inappropriate estimates.
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° We have also assessed and validated the appropriateness of the related
accounting entries by management and the related disclosures made in
the financial statements.
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We have validated and are satisfied with the computations and key management
judgements and estimates adopted for the service concession arrangements
which are reasonably determined to be within the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12 and
are properly accounted for in accordance with SFRS(1) INT 12.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, including the Directors’ Statement set out on pages
111 to 121, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to
the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with the provisions of the Act, SFRS(I)s and IFRSs, and for devising
and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(@) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

(f)  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the
Company and by the subsidiary corporation incorporated in Singapore of which we are the
auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Toh Yew
Kuan Jeremy.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore

25 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

GEBRRE
Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BIEE

Group
50
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bisx AR®TT AREFT
Revenue ON 4 7,572,892 8,303,884
Cost of sales HEKAE (4,868,530) (5,670,782)
Gross profit EF 2,704,362 2,633,102
Other income Hipr A 5 181,303 121,847
Other gains and losses Hip e REE 6 (16,402) 6,830
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER (79,628) (80,217)
Administrative expenses THAX (576,539) (518,163)
Finance expenses & A 8 (834,254) (715,207)
Share of results of joint ventures FHAELEEE 27 10,762 26,840
Share of results of associates BB E A RXE 28 3,916 10,918
Profit before tax BAAE 1,393,520 1,485,950
Income tax expense FrSHAY 9 (373,864) (364,169)
Profit for the year FRAE 10 1,019,656 1,121,781
Profit for the year, attributable to: THEBEEERFE
Owners of the Company ZN/NETEZEDN 604,018 780,196
Non-controlling interests RS 26 415,638 341,585
Profit for the year FERFE 1,019,656 1,121,781
Earnings per share: SREA
Basic (RMB cents per share) EX(BRARED) 1 23.45 30.29
Diluted (RMB cents per share) B (ERARED) 1 23.45 30.29
See accompanying notes to financial statements. R ERZLENHTA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEBERRHEMEZERER

Year ended 31 December 2023

EHE2023F12A31HILEE
Group
50
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AERTT AREFT
Profit for the year FERFIE 1,019,656 1,121,781
Other comprehensive loss: Hit2EEE -
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss RETBET A EZ BB
Exchange difference arising from translation MEEARNERZH (76,493) (251,991)
Fair value change on investments in equity instruments EERRARBEFALMEEKER
designated as at FVTOCI BATAREN AR EEED - (1,891)
(76,493) (253,882)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss RENENHEZ BB
Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign operations ~ HBEEINERELNE N =8 (90,020) (51,147)
Total other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax FREMEZAEBERE  CHNRHE (166,513) (305,029)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKEAE 853,143 816,752
Total comprehensive income attributable to: AT REEE2EKSEE
Owners of the Company ADREEA 437,505 475,167
Non-controlling interests (Note 26) JEfE i as (P FE26) 415,638 341,585
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEKSAE 853,143 816,752
See accompanying notes to financial statements. BHBHERENEE
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BBRRE

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

Group Company
x50 e NG|
2023 2022 2023 2022
20234 2022 20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Bk AR®TRT ARETTT AR®TT AREFT
Current assets REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 12 2,885,781 2,512,625 103,228 93,920
Pledged bank deposits BEBRTER 12 63,010 93,880 - -
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE MR FIR 13 4,990,374 4,523,881 1,173 1,114
Bills receivables [EIREE 14 1,724 1,184 - -
Prepayments R RE 15 68,959 72,075 3,660 56
Inventories FE 16 250,123 233,483 - =
Receivables under service concession REFFTEERHET
arrangements — current portion W IE — REEH S 17 887,152 733,089 - -
Amounts due from customers for contract work ~ EIREF AL TR 18 75,889 77,767 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries LN RS 19 - - 4,180,243 2,414,593
Amounts due from joint venture A EREFHIE 19 30,500 23,028 22,439 137
Amounts due from associates NI 19 7,895 44,723 - =
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFAEBRR
profit or loss SREE 20 9,579 9,415 - =
Total current assets MEEERTE 9,270,986 8,325,150 4,310,743 2,509,820
Non-current assets FRBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEMALMEZER
other comprehensive income WarEmEE 21 13,400 13,400 - -
Prepayments SO 15 394,660 175,189 - -
Receivables under service concession RBFHTEERHETE
arrangements — non-current portion WEIE - ERE R D 17 22,374,059 22,816,306 - =
Property, plant and equipment S S 22 477,195 444,770 44 59
Right-of-use assets FREEE 23 43,963 45275 8,357 14,912
Intangible assets EWEE 24 8,667,682 7,070,383 5,553 5,870
Long term receivables REEERR 25 84,395 371,580 - =
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE 9 51,301 57 481 - =
Investment in subsidiaries R B A B RIRE 26 - - 5,786,607 5,980,969
Interest in joint ventures SR RER 27 524,225 517,763 355,474 340,632
Interest in associates BN AR 28 233,409 232,467 - -
Goodwill on consolidation CXitEk 29 457,241 457 241 - -
Loans to subsidiaries BERTHEAR 19 - = 2,997,534 3,161,219
Amounts due from associates NI ] 19 15,424 18,210 - =
Total non-current assets FRDEERTE 33,336,954 32,220,065 9,153,569 9,503,661
Total assets BESE 42,607,940 40,545,215 13,464,312 12,013,481
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Group Company
.30 ] b XN
2023 2022 2023 2022
20234 20224 2023%F 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt AR®TRT ARET T AR®TT ARETT
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR IR 30 4,306,433 3,912,018 163,773 151,070
Bills payable to banks ERTHRITNEE 31 - 24,994 - -
Income tax payable FEMFTIET 150,132 139,337 - -
Amounts due to customers for contract work BREFPAHNIER 18 24,278 29,053 = =
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTFR B A B FRB 19 - - 254,399 259,286
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMER 32 5,767,008 3,772,704 3,547,536 1,960,206
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 10,494 9,056 6,783 6,466
Total current liabilities MEAEEE 10,258,345 7,887,162 3,972,491 2,377,028
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Bank and other borrowings RIT R E MR 32 14,491,791 15,374,835 2,993,898 2,993,697
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEARE 9 2,420,065 2,286,296 - -
Other non-current liabilities HipIEmea & 33 115,163 148,971 - =
Lease liabilities HEERE 23 32,120 33,379 1,889 8,672
Total non-current liabilities FRBAELE 17,059,139 17,843,481 2,995,787 3,002,369
Capital, reserves and non-controlling B FER
interests R
Share capital [N 34 5,920,175 5,920,175 5,920,175 5,920,175
Retained earnings (Accumulated losses) REBRF (RFTERE) 3,955,497 3,682,917 (163,761) 253,832
Other reserves Hi e 35 255,835 212,468 739,620 460,077
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AREHEE AREER 10,131,507 9,815,560 6,496,034 6,634,084
Non-controlling interests R 26 5,158,949 4,999,012 - =
Total equity EnBRE 15,290,456 14,814,572 6,496,034 6,634,084
Total liabilities and equity BENERAH 42,607,940 40,545,215 13,464,312 12,013,481
See accompanying notes to financial statements. BB R FEENTHT AL o
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ER2B%

Year ended 31 December 2023
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ER2B%

Year ended 31 December 2023
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ER2B%

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BIEE

Retained
earnings
Share  (Accumulated Other Total
capital losses) reserves equity
REET
2.3 (R&EGR) L1t 6 0 g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR%TR AR®TR AR®TR
Company VNG|
2023 2023 F
Balance at 1 January 2023 R2023E1R 1B &8 5,920,175 253,832 460,077 6,634,084
Loss for the year FABE - (214,890) - (214,890) |
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 HE M
Exchange differences arising from translation R EAE X Z5EAFER
representing other comprehensive income Hih 2 WM
for the year - - 279,543 279,543
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKEBE - (214,890) 279,543 64,653
Others Hith
Dividend declared to equity shareholders SR FRESERENRS (F3E36)
(Note 36) - (202,703) - (202,703)
Balance at 31 December 2023 #2023F12A31 A& 5,920,175 (163,761) 739,620 6,496,034
Share Retained Other Total
capital earnings Teserves equity
(L& RERF Hith it Y
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
Company b /NG|
2022 20224
Balance at 1 January 2022 #2022 181 A& 5,920,175 182,128 (107,989) 5,994,314
Profit for the year FARFE - 263,822 - 263,822
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 HE M
Exchange differences arising from translation  REEAE X Z5EAER
representing other comprehensive income Hi 2 EK
for the year - - 568,066 568,066
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKEBE - 263,822 568,066 831,888
Others Hith
Dividend declared to equity shareholders SR TERREMRE (HT3E36)
(Note 36) = (192,118) - (192,118)
Balance at 31 December 2022 ®2022F12A31 AR 5,920,175 253,832 460,077 6,634,084
See accompanying notes to financial statements. ZHBHZFEN T -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= hra=1
SERERER
Year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12A31BILFE
Group
50
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(= AR®TT AREFT
Operating activities: REEE
Profit before tax BLRIFE 1,393,520 1,485,950
Adjustments: TP EIBIEL A
Loss allowance for trade receivables, net B S RBGUIANERER - T8 13 10,875 31,771
Loss allowance for non-trade receivables, net FEDENGIENBEERE - 58 13 16,502 1,770
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BEREENE 22 38,142 41,211
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESRE 24 399,846 345,557
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 23 11,392 11,139
Loss (Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BERZEESE (WR) 10 21 (72)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEVEEKS 10 - (33)
HERR R EE ALMRE NG
Gain on disposal of financial asset held at FVTOCI RENSREENE 10 - (826)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B EHB AR M E 6, 39 - (2,577)
Finance income FHIA 5 (28,805) (35,935)
Finance expenses HBER 8 834,254 715,207
Share of results of associates JE(REEE AR E (3,916) (10,918)
Share of results of joint ventures BEABEDEREE (10,762) (26,840)
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BAREEABRNSRHERE
through profit or loss nEENE 6 (164) (108)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes E2€E¢2BANELEZTHRELR 2,660,905 2,555,296
(Increase) Decrease in: (3Eh0) m A
Inventories (Easy (16,640) 52,486
Amounts due from customers for contract work, net EREFEHNTIIRR 558 (2,897) (1,990)
Trade receivables, other receivables and B SREWGRIE « H i EUGRIE R
prepayments HERERR (258,462) (1,162,712)
Bills receivables R EE (540) 2,193
Amounts due from joint venture [EREELERIE (7,472) (317)
Amounts due from associate JEM & A B R 39,614 (31,204)
(Decrease) Increase in: CRA) hm -
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENFKE
(inclusive of non-current liabilities) (REFERHEE) (226,944) (310,031)
Bills payable ES (24,994) (23,768)
Cash from operating activities before service KRBT CE R ERACE TR
concession arrangement projects EENEE 2,162,570 1,079,953
Change in receivables under service concession PRIG R T A & R HEIB T R UGB E &)
arrangements (Note A) (PH7EA) (76,024) (2,331,697)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEHTRER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BIEE

Group
F5%E
2023 2022
2023% 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Fir AR®TT ARBTT
Cash from (used in) operating activities after REBBTCERFERELETH
service concession arrangement projects EEX(FA)HES 2,086,546 (1,251,744)
Interest received BUF & 22,074 34,928
Income tax refund P TR - 9,759
Income tax paid RSN (207,423) (187,598)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities REZDELE (RA)HRALBE 1,901,197 (1,394,655)
Investing activities: RERD
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BERSKE (75,659) (103,934)
Purchase of intangible assets BERVEE (1,018,555) (299,346)
Increase in prepayment for property, plant and Mm% BEREENEFEE
equipment and intangible assets BRI (34,663) (50,508)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment WE - BENREREMETE 163 121
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets EVEEREMBRE - 62
Proceeds from disposal of financial asset held at HERAR BEFALMZEKES
fair value through other comprehensive income SREEMNMBRE - 14,517
Additional capital injection in an associate F—HHEQREAES - (93,000)
Dividend received from joint ventures BBAELERE 33,579 29,087
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary WHE—HMBARRE R FE 38 - (279,640)
Prepayment for service concession arrangement PR A8 & T HETR T BR X (338,860) -
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBARRS RN FE 39 - 124,519
Net cash used in investing activities RETHMARERHE (1,433,995) (658,122)
Financing activities: MERD -
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREMEREEHE 4,723,748 5,980,458
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BRRIT REMERK (3,794,034) (3,439,217)
Interest paid ERHME (769,761) (793,488)
Principal and interest elements of lease payments HERRHNAE RFEHH (11,124) (12,478)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders TR TFRERENRE (202,703) (192,118)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests in subsidiaries R THB AR R ER KRR S (55,092) (92,674)
Contribution from non-controlling interests upon B R RDEABEINE SR
additional capital injection in subsidiaries R ER LA 23,238 289,326
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Wi FE AR e 2 (34,600) -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEARITERRLD 30,870 24,491
Net cash (used in) from financing activities MEED (FRR) EENRLBHE (89,458) 1,764,300
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents R&RBALEE MBI (KD ) B8 377,744 (288,477)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FNR LB EEY 2,512,625 2,794,951
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents [EXZFHHE L RELSEDNTE (4,588) 6,151
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXBRERALEED 2,885,781 2,512,625
Note A: PRI EEA :

In accordance with the application of SFRS(I) INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements and SFRS(I) 1-7
Statement of Cash Flows, the movement in the receivables under service concession arrangements has
been classified under operating activities. The movement in the receivables under service concession
arrangements was mainly arising from the construction and/or purchase of new or existing water
treatment and waste incineration facilities for the financial years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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1.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (the “Company’) is a public limited company,
incorporated and domiciled in the Republic of Singapore and is dual listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST") and the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK"). The Group's immediate and ultimate holding
companies are S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“SII") incorporated in British
Virgin Islands (‘BVI") and Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (“SIIC")
incorporated in Hong Kong respectively. The registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is located at One Temasek Avenue, #37-02 Millenia Tower,
Singapore 039192. Related companies in these financial statements refer to members of
the ultimate holding company’s group of companies.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are set out in Notes
26, 27 and 28 to the financial statements respectively.

The presentation currency of the financial statements is Renminbi (‘RMB") as the
Group’s operations are substantially based in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and statement of financial position
and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2024.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except as
disclosed in the material accounting policy information, and are drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act 1967, Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International) (‘SFRS(I)s’) and International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”). The financial statements are expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”).

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

1.1

MBRRME

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

—BRER

PEEERBERERDR ([ARA]) ARRE
BRANE] + FAFTINIE TEAN B S X Sz 30 A B 0 B
REGFBBRAN([HRA]) REBREXHMA
RAR ([BRM])EELT - AEEEERFLK
BRARSHANABERRES ([RBERARE
B aEMz FEERERARAR ([ LEE
B RREBAMALIN LEEE (5E)ERA
([ LE]) - ARAIMEMNRERE R TS L £
77 0ne Temasek Avenue, #37-02 Millenia Tower,
Singapore 039192 - ZEHBHREMNEBARIER
BRERAREERARINKE AR o

ARANIEEBRRERR HTBWBRA
AECERRBERANEIEXB D RIERABHRER
Fi3526 - 27 %28
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT M

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

1.
1.2

140

GENERAL (continued)
Adoption of new and revised Standards

In the current year, the Group and Company have applied all the new and revised
SFRS(I) Accounting Standards that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period
that begins on or after 1 January 2023. Their adoption has not had any material impact
on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements except as
below.

Amendments to SFRS(I) 1-1 and SFRS(I) Practice Statements 2: Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

The Group had adopted the amendments to SFRS(I) 1-1 for the first time in the
current year. The amendments change the requirements in SFRS(I) 1-1 with regard to
disclosure of accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in SFRS(I) 1-1 are also amended to clarify that accounting
policy information that relates to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions is
immaterial and need not be disclosed. Accounting policy information may be material
because of the nature of the related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information relating to
material transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.

The Group has applied materiality guidance in SFRS(I) Practice Statement 2 in
identifying its material accounting policies for disclosures in the related notes. The
previous term ‘significant accounting policies” used throughout the financial statements
has been replaced with ‘material accounting policy information’.
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2.1

GENERAL (continued)
Standards issued but not effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group and Company have
not applied the following SFRS(I) pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
e Amendments to SFRS(I) 1-1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
Current

e Amendments to SFRS(1) 1-1: Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Effective date is deferred indefinitely
e Amendments to SFRS(I) 10 and SFRS(I) 1-28: Sale or Contribution of Assets
between investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Management anticipates that the adoption of the above SFRS(I)s, SFRS(I) INTs and
amendments to SFRS(I) in future periods will not have a material impact on the
financial statements of the Group and Company in the period of their initial adoption.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

This section sets out the (1) material accounting policy information upon which the
Group’s financial statements are prepared as a whole and (2) other material accounting
policy information not otherwise described in the notes to the financial statements.
Where material accounting policy information is specific to a line item in the financial
statements, the policy is described within the note for that line item.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group
has power over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
Details of the Group's significant subsidiaries and composition of the group are
disclosed in Note 26.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to align their accounting policies with the those of the Group.
All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between the members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.
Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s
equity therein and are initially measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to the
acquisition date, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests are adjusted for the
non-controlling interests’ share of changes in equity. Losses are attributed to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised
in profit or loss is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), less liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as required/
permitted by applicable SFRS(I) Standards). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under SFRS(1) 9 Financial Instruments
when applicable, or the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.
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2.2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries
(continued)

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are carried at cost less any impairment in net recoverable value that
has been recognised in profit or loss.

Company’s separate financial statements

Investment in subsidiaries in the Company's separate financial statements are carried at
cost less any impairment in net recoverable value that has been recognised in profit or
loss.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is
neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies. Details of the Group's material associates
are disclosed in Note 28.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control. Details of the Group’s material joint venture are disclosed in Note 27.

Equity method of accounting

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Investment in each associate or joint venture is initially recognised at cost, and are
subsequently accounted for by including the Group’s share of its profit or loss and other
comprehensive income or loss in the carrying amount of the investment until the date
on which significant influence or joint control ceases. Dividends received reduce the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses.

When a Group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture
are recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to align the associate’s or joint venture's accounting policies with
the those of the Group.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Foreign currency transactions and translation

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are measured and presented
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(its functional currency). The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company are
presented in RMB as the Group’s operations are substantially based in the PRC. The
functional currency of the Company is Singapore Dollars (“S$").

In preparing the financial statements of the respective Group entities, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
foreseeable future (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing
on the reporting date. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the date of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a
foreign exchange translation reserve.

Upon the disposal of the entire interest in a foreign operation during the year, all of the
exchange differences accumulated in the foreign exchange translation reserve in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
l0ss.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Foreign currency transactions and translation (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities (including monetary items that, in substance, form
part of the net investment in foreign entities), and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity under the
header of “translation reserve”.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing
rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of SFRS(I) 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of SFRS(I) 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in SFRS(I)
1-2 Inventories or value in use in SFRS(I) 1-36 /mpairment of Assets.

Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Refer to Note 46 for details of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on
basis described above or where such fair values are disclosed.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value (except for trade receivables that do
not have a significant financing component which are measured at transaction price),
net of transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets (other than those at fair value through profit or loss). Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Classification of financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") or fair value
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL") based on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at
amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification of financial assets (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/
designation at initial recognition of a financial asset:

e the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met; and

e the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised
cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTQCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-
by-instrument basis) to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in
the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument that is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which SFRS(I) 3 applies.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or loss is
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, instead, it is
transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with SFRS(I) 9, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part
of the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in
profit or loss.

The Group designated all investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading

as at FVTOCI on initial recognition (Note 21).

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrument).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

e Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group
designates an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent
consideration arising from a business combination as at FVTOCI on initial
recognition.

° Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI
criteria are classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either
the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The
Group has not designated any debt instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item (Note 6). Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 46.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECL") on trade
and other receivables, contract assets and other debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and amounts due
from customers for contract work. The expected credit losses on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-
looking information considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic information
that relate to the Group’s core operations, namely the environmental industry.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 90 days past due for corporate/individual debtors
and more than 3 years for government debtors, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A financial asset is determined to have low credit risk
if i) the financial asset has a low risk of default, ii) the debtor has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
‘performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a strong financial position
and there are no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit
risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

e When there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or

e information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 1 year past due for corporate/individual debtors and more
than 5 years for government debtors unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

c¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that

the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

g) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss. None of the trade
receivables that have been written off is subject to enforcement activities.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit 10sses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for
the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific
future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where evidence
of significant increases in credit risk at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade and other receivables and
amounts due from customers are each assessed as a separate group. Loans to
related parties are assessed for expected credit losses on an individual basis);

e Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each
group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses (continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which the simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt instruments that are measured at
FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying
amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt
instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast,
on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has elected
on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss,
but is transferred to retained earnings.
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2.6

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost include trade and other payables and borrowings.
These are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liabilities, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Service concession arrangements
Consideration given by the grantor

A financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is recognised to
the extent that the Group has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial
asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services rendered
and/or the consideration paid and payable by the Group for the right to manage and
operate the infrastructure for public service. The Group has an unconditional right
to receive cash if the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the Group (a) specified
or determinable amounts or (b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
users of the public service and specified or determinable amounts, even if the payment
is contingent on the Group ensuring that the infrastructure meets specified quality
of efficiency requirements. The financial asset (receivable under service concession
arrangement) is accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for “Financial
instruments” below.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
Service concession arrangements (continued)
Consideration given by the grantor (continued)

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised to the extent that the Group
receives a right to charge users of the public service. The intangible assets (operating
concession) are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment loss and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the operation phase of
the concession periods.

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a financial asset and partly
by an intangible asset, then each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is recognised initially at the fair value of the consideration.

Construction of service concession related infrastructure

Revenue and costs relating to construction phase of a concession arrangement is
accounted for in accordance to SFRS(I) 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
The Group recognises the construction revenue with reference to the fair value of the
construction service delivered in the construction phase. The fair value of such service
is estimated on a cost-plus basis with reference to the prevailing market rate of gross
margin and borrowing rates. Consequently, the Group recognised a profit margin on the
construction work by reference to the stage of completion and in accordance with the
policy for “Construction contracts” below.

Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in accordance with the policy
for “Revenue recognition (operating and maintenance income)” in Note 4.

Contractual obligations to restore the infrastructure to a specified level of
serviceability

When the Group has contractual obligations that it must fulfil as a condition of its
licence for operating concessions, that is (a) to maintain the infrastructure to a specified
level of serviceability and/or (b) to restore the infrastructure to a specified condition
before they are handed over to the grantor at the end of the service concession
arrangement, these contractual obligations to maintain or restore the infrastructure
are recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out for “Provisions for
major overhauls” in Note 33.

Repair and maintenance and other expenses that are routine in nature are expensed and
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s material accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which
are presented separately below), that management has made in the process of applying
the Group’s material accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts reported in the financial statements.

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with certain
governmental authorities or their agencies (“grantor”) in the PRC on a Build-Operate-
Transfer (“BOT"), Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT"), Build-Operate-Own (“BOO") or
Transfer-Operate-Own (“TOQ") basis in respect of its businesses. The Group concluded
that these BOT, TOT, BOO and TOO arrangements are service concession arrangements
under SFRS(I) INT 12, because (i) the grantors control and regulate the services that
the Group must provide with the infrastructure, to whom the Group must provide the
services and at a pre-determined service charge; and (ii) the grantor controls significant
residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangements.
Generally, in respect of BOT and TOT arrangements, upon expiry of service concession
arrangements, the infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government
authorities or their agencies at no or minimal consideration. Infrastructure in respect of
BOO and TOO arrangements is expected to be used for its entire or substantially entire
useful life.

As explained in Note 2.6 to the financial statements, the Group recognises the
consideration received or receivable in exchange for the construction services as
a financial asset and/or an intangible asset under public-to-private concession
arrangement. However, if the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a
financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, it is necessary to account separately
for each component of the operator's consideration. The consideration received or
receivable for both components shall be recognised initially at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable (see below).

Determination of functional currency of the entities in the Group

SFRS(1) 1-21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates requires the Company
and the entities in the Group to determine its functional currency to prepare the financial
statements. When determining its functional currency, the Company and the entities in
the Group consider the primary economic environment in which it operates, i.e. the one
in which it primarily generates and expends cash. The Company and the entities in the
Group may also consider the funding sources. Management applied its judgement and
determined that the functional currency of the Company and subsidiary incorporated in
Singapore is Singapore dollars.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s material accounting policies
(continued)

Determination of material entities (subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates) and non-wholly owned subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interest

For purposes of meeting the requirements under SFRS(I) 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities, the Group has assessed all subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
which the Group has an interest based on (i) quantitative factors (i.e. their individual
contribution to the Group’s net profit and/or statement of financial position); and (ii)
qualitative factors. Management applied its judgement in determining the material
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates; and non-wholly owned subsidiaries
with material non-controlling interest. Management had assessed the disclosure
requirements of non-wholly owned subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest
and determined such disclosure to be made at a sub-group level. Information as
required under SFRS(I) 12 are disclosed under Notes 26, 27 and 28.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the end of each reporting period, when the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference
to the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date to the estimated
total contract costs.

Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion, the extent
of the contract costs incurred, the estimated total revenue and estimated total contract
cost, as well as the recoverability of the contract costs incurred. Total contract revenue
may include an estimation of the variation works recoverable from the customers. In
making these estimates, management has relied on past experience and knowledge of
project engineers.

The stage of completion of each construction contract is assessed on a cumulative
basis in each accounting year. Changes in estimate of contract revenue or contract
costs, or the effect of a change in the estimate of the outcome of a contract could
impact the amount of revenue and expense recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the change is made and in subsequent years. Such impact could potentially be
significant.

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising from construction contracts at the
end of each reporting period are disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements.

The Group has recognised revenue amounting to RMB1,868,213,000 (2022:
RMB2,969,149,000) from construction contracts, of which RMB1,868,213,000 (2022:
RMB2,843,978,000) relates to revenue recognised for the third party constructed
infrastructure in relation to service concession arrangements. The overall gross profit
margin for construction contracts is at 12.0% (2022: 12.0%), of which the gross
profit margin recognised for third party constructed infrastructure in relation to service
concession arrangements is 12.0% (2022: 12.0%).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Service concession arrangements

Where the Group performs more than one service under the concession arrangements,
the consideration for the services provided under the concession arrangements is
allocated to the components by reference to their relative fair values.

Estimation is exercised in determining the fair values of the receivables under service
concession arrangements as well as impairment of the receivables under service
concession arrangements and intangible assets subsequent to initial recognition.
Discount rates (reflecting the grantor's incremental borrowing rates), estimates of
future cash flows and other factors are used in the determination of the amortised cost
of financial asset and corresponding finance income. The Group has considered the
relevant sources of the discount rate and due to limited publicly available information
on the borrowing rates across the various municipalities and cities in PRC, the Group
assessed that the use of the People’s Bank of China Loan Prime Rate for loans greater
than five years as the discount rate reflects the long-term borrowing cost in PRC which
is a reasonable proxy of the grantor's incremental borrowing rate for the Group as a
whole.

The assumptions used and estimates made can materially affect the fair value estimates.
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial receivables and intangible assets arising
from service concession arrangements at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
Notes 17 and 24 to the financial statements respectively.

During the financial year, the Group has also recognised operating and maintenance
revenue from service concession arrangements amounting to RMB3,949,889,000 (2022:
RMB3,456,284,000).

Provision for major overhauls

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group has contractual obligations
to maintain the waste water and water treatment plants to a specified level of
serviceability and/or to restore the plants to a specified condition before they are
handed over to the grantors at the end of the service concession periods. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the waste water and water treatment
plants, except for any upgrade element, are recognised and measured in accordance
with SFRS(I) 1-37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, i.e., at the
best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The future expenditure on these maintenance and
restoration costs is collectively referred to as ‘major overhauls”. The estimation basis is
reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where appropriate.

As at 31 December 2023, the provision for major overhauls amounted to
RMB42,890,000 (2022: RMB39,090,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

During the financial year, the Group recognised loss allowance for trade and other
receivables (net of written-back during the year) amounting to RMB27,377,000 (2022:
RMB33,541,000).

When measuring ECL, the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different
economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would
expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit
enhancements.

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default
is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of
which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets at the end of each reporting period
is disclosed in Notes 12, 13, 14,17, 18, 19, 20, 21 and 25 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there is any indicator of impairment for non-financial
assets including investment in subsidiaries, interest in joint ventures and associates,
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets and goodwill, at
each reporting date. Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually and at other
times when such indicators exist. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm's length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing the asset. The value in
use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived
from the budget for the asset or cash generating unit for 5 years or for the remaining
concession period, whichever applicable, and do not include restructuring activities
that the Group has yet to commit or significant future investments that will enhance the
asset's performance of the cash generating unit being tested. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable assumptions and
projections of revenue and amount of operating costs. The recoverable amount is most
sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model, the expected
future cash inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. Further details
of the key assumptions applied in the impairment assessment of goodwill, are given in
Note 29 to the financial statements. The carrying amounts of the non-financial assets
are disclosed in Notes 22, 23, 24, 27, 28 and 29 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax

The Group reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax at the end of each reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences can be utilised, including taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or there is future
taxable profit available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

This involves judgement regarding the future performance and tax laws. The carrying
amounts of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed in Note 9 to the financial
statements.

Income tax

The Group is subjected to income taxes in Singapore and PRC. Significant estimates
are required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will
impact the income tax provision in the period in which such determination is made.
The carrying amount of the Group's income tax payable at 31 December 2023 is
RMB150,132,000 (2022: RMB139,337,000).
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4. REVENUE 4. WA
Group
F5%E
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETF T
Segment revenue (Note 44) BB (HEE44)
Construction revenue: BRA
— water and sludge treatment —KRFRERE 960,722 1,277,884
— water supply — itk 403,534 216,340
— waste incineration - EERE 503,957 1,474,925
1,868,213 2,969,149
Operating and maintenance income from service RS E T B R
concession arrangements:
— water and sludge treatment —KRERERE 2,860,256 2,309,697
— water supply — K 742,860 1,052,801
— waste incineration —EEEE 346,773 93,786
3,949,889 3,456,284
Financial income from service concession arrangements: PRI E TR B
— water and sludge treatment — k&5 REE 1,106,208 1,062,783
— waste incineration —EEEE 125,450 185,235
1,231,658 1,248,018
Service income: PREMA
— water and sludge treatment — K R&5REE 102,875 70,543
— water supply — K 229,607 71,494
332,482 142,037
Others Hitp 190,650 488,396
7,572,892 8,303,884
Timing of revenue recognition W A e R B
At a point in time: R B E
— Operating and maintenance income from service — RS E S E T B L R
concession arrangements 3,949,889 3,456,284
Over time: —BRBSf
— Construction revenue — BERMA 1,868,213 2,969,149
— Financial income from Service concession arrangements — RIS RS S R HE I A 1,231,658 1,248,018
— Service income — IRISKA 332,482 142,037
— Others — Hfh 190,650 488,396
3,623,003 4,847 600
7,572,892 8,303,884
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REVENUE (continued)

Management expects that 100% (2022: 100%) of the transaction price allocated to
the unsatisfied construction contracts as of 31 December 2023 will be recognised as
construction revenue during the next reporting period amounting to RMB1,896,210,000
(2022: RMB1,450,262,000).

Material accounting policy information
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service
to a customer.

Construction revenue

Where the outcome of a construction contract including construction or upgrading
services of the infrastructure under a service concession arrangement, can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, as measured by the proportion
that contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated total
contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion.
Construction revenue is therefore recognised over time on a cost-to-cost method, i.e.
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to
the estimated total contract costs.

Management considers that this input method is an appropriate measure of the progress
towards complete satisfaction of these performance obligations under SFRS(1) 15.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Operating and maintenance income/Service income

Operating and maintenance income relates to the income derived from managing
and operating of infrastructure under service concession arrangements. All other
income derived from the managing and operating of infrastructure under non-service
concession arrangements is classified as service income.

Operating and maintenance income are recognised at a point in time and service income
are recognised over time.

WA (&)

EEEBMAHE2023F12AN B RERERE
EAKI100% (20224 : 100%) X BEARYE
1,896,210,0007T (20224 :+ AR¥1,450,262,000
L) BRT—ERESHEABERMA

FREHBRAH

W A 552
WATREREBBEARERTPITUNANERH
HEHFE  RIBERARF=ITURNEE - BH
BREEMIRBNZHEZEFE  AREERNR
A e

BESH

MBS bt RER D (BEREREEFEE
ZHETERRENREXTRRY) AR - &
ERNMP R RAALERRERRNENEE T
TRERR (KREZEACERIRELANAY
RAMEfEE A KA BB L BIFE) - EZ L
TRERTIER - At - BERABERREBR
KAEHER  ERESCERIRMELNGH
A& AR AR L BIMEE -

ERELA - BAERRRGINSERYBE
EERDF15HR2EORNSAOBBREOEY
HEpE

AR SHFARESONER  SHNRSERT
REREHEEL R NKAER - SORARELH
AHER AR °

NBAHRA B EBRAR R RHRER
THENESER AR °

BERREBA BRBEKA
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AR E R P N ERR G A A B AR BRI
TEULA o

BERFRERARZERSHERR - HREKAR
RERSFRER -
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4. REVENUE (continued) WA (#8)
Financial income SRRA
Financial income from service concession arrangement is recognised when it is RERBETEE RN SRR AR BN Z 88
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income BRARKEBWASBEASTERER - 2/
can be measured reliably. Financial income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to WAT2RBRABERSERER AR RZREHE
the principal outstanding and at the applicable effective interest rate, which is the rate EZi BERFXABREBEENTESRTRFH
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the AR AT R RFTUCR @ BB ITRENS RRZEE
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. R BREFEMELE o
Other revenue Htgr A
Other revenue is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the service period as Ha A TSR AR 8 R BB A AR ES
services are rendered. R e
5. OTHER INCOME Httgg A
Group
x50
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TT ARBFT
Interest income on bank balances RITHEBFISA 24,888 33,782
Other interest income Hn S HA 3,917 2,153
28,805 35,935
Government subsidies BB 67,607 77,225
Installation and production works REREETIR 77,999 2,545
Others Hith 6,892 6,142
181,303 121,847
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6.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HtikBRER
Group
50
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Fair value gain on financial assets held at FVTPL BARBEMAEERENEREEN
NAEERE 164 108
Gain on disposal of financial assets held at FVTOCI HERAR BEFALMZEKS
RENSREENS - 826
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBRRNKE - 2,577
Others Hith (16,566) 3,319
(16,402) 6,830
PERSONNEL EXPENSES 7. AEBX
Group
x50
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AREFT
Wages, salaries and bonuses T& e QA 568,544 564,694
Defined contribution plans EREEGE 163,556 155,383
Others Hit 71,931 65,466
804,031 785,543

This includes amounts shown as compensation of Directors and key management
personnel in Note 43.

LT BEMEAMEEERTIEEREARTME

e
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8.

164

FINANCE EXPENSES MBEEA
Group
50
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Interest expense on interest-bearing loans and borrowings FRERRETMAERE 830,576 709,188
Financial expense on amortisation of benefits to ex-employees AIfE B A E B 5 E A 1,099 1,281
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEEEMEMT 2,579 4,738
834,254 715,207
Material accounting policy information FEGHHRAH

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The
effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a
financial liability. Borrowing costs also include interest expense arising from lease
liabilities.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such
time when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for
their intended use or sale are complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.
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9.
9.1

INCOME TAX 9. FfRER

Income tax expense 9.1 FMRREAX
Group
*5E
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AREFT
Current tax: REARIE -
— Current year - AFE 298,237 247,687
— Overprovision in respect of prior years - BAEFERBEEE (23,143) (20,847)
Deferred tax: R
— Current year - REE 94,997 129,133
— Underprovision in respect of prior years - BEFERETR 3,773 8,196
373,864 364,169
The corporate income tax applicable to the Singapore companies of the Group is 17% BARNAKENNEAREANNEEMEHEE
(2022: 17%). A17% (2022F  17%) °
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC") on Enterprise Income BE(PEARLMBE (THE]) 2EMERE)
Tax (‘EIT") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC (C(EEMBHE)]) R(EEMBHET K
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. In accordance with the “Income fily - hEMERANHEE2008F1 A1HER
Tax Law of the PRC for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises’, 25% o RB(RBEINEHRE R ERMINE BT
certain subsidiaries, engaging in public infrastructure projects, are entitled to full E) BETRELALEWRIEBEMHBELRAE
exemption from EIT for the first three years and a 50% reduction in EIT for the next EEEQERAN TR  IRE=FT2HE
three years from the first year of generating operating income. BB ERET YRR =FRRE50%RERM
75 e
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9.
9.1

166

INCOME TAX (continued)
Income tax expense (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per the

consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

9. FiRR (M)
9.1 FRFIRMAX ()

RERENMERAX T RS BERMEHAMNE
HERIT

Group
3|
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETT
Profit before tax BiRIF)E 1,393,520 1,485,950
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to in the countries where BERRAEREEERREY
the Group operates @ BAR X E MR 458,159 355,364
Adjustments: HE
Non-deductible expenses OEEN:1:53 6,007 25,771
Income not subject to tax BEEABIA (119,304) (595)
Qverprovision in respect of prior years BEFERERE (19,370) (12,651)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures BEBEATIREELEEE (509) (6,419)
Deferred tax asset not recognised AEREERBEE 30,092 5,808
Utilisation of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets BRI RERELERIBEE (37,986) (50,222)
Withholding tax IR 56,740 47,342
Others HAth 35 (229)
373,864 364,169

@ The reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliations for each national

jurisdiction.
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INCOME TAX (continued) 9.

FiimiR ()

Deferred tax 9.2 EERE

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by the Group and
movement thereon during the current and prior years:

W ARRERAEERBE FERAN T EEE
BRI () URARY :

Arising from
service  Undistributed

Fair value

adjustments

concession earnings of ~ on business
arrangements  PRC entities  combinations Tax losses Others Total

RERBET  PEERN  EHKAHN
BERE  ROREN AABERE BIEER Hith Ch

RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT  ARBTR ARETR AREKT:E

At 1 January 2022 202218108 1,167,460 16,795 996,107 (62,712) 10,849 2,128,499
Charged (Credited) to profit or loss EE&ENR GTAER) 127,050 - (7,951) 266 17,964 137,329
Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 38) Wi - B AR (H38) (677) - - - - (677)
Disposal of subsidiary (Note 39) HE— R EAA (FFE39) (26,298) - - - - (26,298)
Exchange differences EHES = - - - (10,038) (10,038)
At 31 December 2022 2022£12R 310 1,267,535 16,795 988,156 (62,446) 18,775 2,228,815
Charged (Credited) to profit or loss TREMG GTABR) 91,961 = (8,370) 15,179 = 98,770
Exchange differences 2 - - 4179 - - 41,179
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12R318 1,359,496 16,795 1,020,965 (47,267) 18,775 2,368,764

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of financial position, certain deferred
tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

RUBRRKRNZINENNE - ETEEHREE
RABREE - AT AREBEERE BT S MET
RIBHEHRAN

Group
340
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREFT
Deferred tax liabilities ERRIEAE 2,420,065 2,286,296
Deferred tax assets ERETREEE (51,301) (57,481)
2,368,764 2,228,815

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
RMB1,061,622,000 (2022: RMB973,355,000) available for offset against future
assessable profits.

As at 31 December 2023, certain subsidiaries have unused tax losses of approximately
RMB98,606,000, RMB160,592,000, RMB274,904,000, RMB288,225,000 and
RMB239,295,000 (2022: RMB62,663,000, RMB120,549,000, RMB206,604,000,
RMB286,101,000 and RMB297,438,000) expiring in 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027 and 2028
(2022: in 2023, 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027) respectively.

RIREE R - A& B A K §5 K 2R B AT i 7
HAR BRI IEE R A RE,061,622,0007T (2022
£ AR#973,355,0007C)

202312318 ZETHMEBRAEH AR
20245 ~ 20254 ~ 20264 - 2027 F 220284
(20224 : R2023% - 20244 - 20254 - 2026
FR027TF) BN AGAFREBEEHARE
98,606,0007C * AR#160,592,0007C * AR
274,904,0007T + AR#288,225,0007C & A R
239,295,0007T (20224 = AR¥62,663,0007C * A
R #120,549,0007C « AR#206,604,0007C « AR
286,101,0007C 2 A R #297,438,0007T) ©
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9.
9.2

168

INCOME TAX (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

A deferred tax asset amounting to approximately RMB47,267,000 (2022:
RMB62,446,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately RMB189,068,000
(2022: RMB249,784,000) has been recognised for the Group. No deferred tax asset
was recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of the Group of RMB872,554,000
(2022: RMB723,571,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The use of these tax losses is subjected to the agreement of the tax authorities and
compliance with certain provisions of the tax legislation of the respective countries in
which the companies operate. The use of PRC tax losses will expire within the next five
years.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by PRC entities from 1 January 2008 onwards. As at end of
the reporting period, the Group has recognised deferred tax liability of RMB16,795,000
(2022: RMB16,795,000) in respect of undistributed profits retained by PRC entities in
the consolidated financial statements.

Material accounting policy information

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax. It is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Current tax

Current tax payable represents the amount expected to be paid to taxation authorities
on taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods. The
amount of current tax payable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid
that reflects the uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from (i)
initial recognition of goodwill; or (ii) initial recognition of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.
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INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Material accounting policy information (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interest in joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled, or the asset is realised based on the tax laws and rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Offsetting

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and the group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority.

9.
9.2
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

10. FAFHE

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

FRFBEMRR GEA) TFIBE

Group
3|
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Fitr AR®TR AREFT
Loss allowance for trade receivables, net B RWHIENBEEE  F8 13 10,875 31,771
Loss allowance for non-trade receivables, net FEHRUFIENBEERS  F8 13 16,502 1,770
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREETE 22 38,142 41,211
Amortisation of intangible assets EREESHE 24 399,846 345557
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 23 11,392 11,139
Loss (Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BEKRESE (KE) 21 (72)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEBREERE = (33)
Gain on disposal of financial asset held at FVTOCI HERAR BEFALMZEKE
BENSREE R 6 - (826)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB QRIS 6 - (2,577)
Fair value gain on financial assets held at FVTPL BEAREBEAEEREH
SREENAABEKRS 6 (164) (108)
Foreign exchange difference, net HNE ZERF R 5,329 9,154
Expenses relating to leases of low value assets FBEHEREBEEENRS 5,675 5,965
Research costs SR 22,144 11,483
Cost of inventories recognised as expense RERIHFEERAR 593,943 608,789
Audit fees: BiTBA
— paid to auditors of the Company — BALDRIZEA 2,082 1,929
— paid to member firms of the auditors of the Company — B AR B ERRK E QA 5,546 4,756
— paid to other auditors (inclusive of internal audit fee) — B E % EAD
(BERNSEAER) 6,070 3,906
Total audit fees BIrERARE 13,698 10,591
Non-audit fees: FEFER:
— paid to auditors of the Company — BALD BB 348 327
— paid to member firms of the auditors of the Company — BADRIZEARKE DR 1,070 356
— paid to other auditors — B E AR AT 271 177
Total non-audit fees ©) FEFERBED 1,689 860

0 Total non-audit fees include agreed-upon services, tax compliance services and review of

selected financial information.

The non-audit fees paid to the auditors of the Company and member firms of the
auditors of the Company include fees for audit-related services of RMB712,000 (2022:

RMB601,000).
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE 1. BEET

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share (‘EPS") attributable to ARAEEANEEERERAREERA ([BRE
owners of the Company is based on the following data: R THRBE TS E -
Group
x50
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREBTT
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted EPS FEEAREEGRENNFE
(profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company) (RRAIEE AEGEATHE) 604,018 780,196
2023 2022
20234 20224
No. of shares No. of shares
B8 E i E
’000 ’000
T Fhx
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the FEERRBEEREFMN
purpose of basic and diluted EPS L@ NETHE 2,575,666 2,575,666
Material accounting policy information FEEHBREEH
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to BRERENRARRIESR AREFERNNERIA
owners of the company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding FRBETEIEBRINETIOEAE -

during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the profit for the year attributable GBS RF IR AN FEA AFELERFE
to owners of the company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares RERBITEINEBRMETLHETE - ERE
outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. BEEELTRREN -
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12.

172

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

12. ReRBELERY CEABRTER

Group Company
50 b XN

2022 2023 2022
2023%F 20224 20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT AR®TT AREFT
Cash and bank balances e KR4 2,948,791 2,606,505 103,228 93,920
Pledged bank deposits (Note 42) BRI (M3E42) (63,010) (93,880) - =
Cash and cash equivalents Be kAL EEY 2,885,781 2,512,625 103,228 93,920

Cash and cash equivalents have maturity period of less than three months and carry
interest at market rate, ranging from 0.01% to 2.10% (2022: 0.01% to 2.10%) per
annum.

The pledged bank deposits are pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted by
these banks and use of certain operating concessions. The pledged bank deposits have
maturity period of less than one year (2022: less than one year) and carry interest at
fixed interest rates ranging from 0.30% to 2.60% (2022: 0.30% to 2.60%) per annum
and floating interest rates of 0.35% (2022: 0.35%) per annum.

RMB2,756 million (2022: RMB2,357 million) of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are held with PRC banks and are subject to certain restrictions based on rules and
regulations issued by State Administration of Foreign Exchange in PRC.

Material accounting policy information

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances, demand deposits, bank
overdrafts, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

13. HHREMEHRET

Group Company
350 3|

2023 2022 2023 2022

2023 % 20225 2023 % 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFT AR®TT AREFT

Trade receivables inclusive of retention monies  Z 5 EUNZE (AEREL) 4,090,321 3,498,220 - =

Less: Loss allowance W BRER (71,152) (60,277) - -

4,019,169 3,437,943 - -

Other receivables Hip M zIA 999,963 1,098,194 1,173 1,114

Less: Loss allowance R BEERE (28,758) (12,256) - -

971,205 1,085,938 1,173 1,114

Total trade and other receivables BB S REMERE 4,990,374 4,523,881 1,173 1,114

(i)  Asat 1 January 2022, trade receivables from contracts with customers amounted ()  R2022%61818 - EEANESREKTIAR

to RMB2,412,147,000 (net of loss allowances of RMB28,506,000). ARM2,412,147,000C IR BEEEAR

#28,506,0007T) °

(i)  Trade receivables exclusive of retention monies are non-interest bearing with (i) BHEUFE(ToERES)RER  FE

credit periods generally ranging from 0 to 180 (2022: 0 to 180) days. H—BNT02180K (20224 : 0=180K) °

(iii) Trade receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 42 to the financial (i) AEEEANEHEUGBRTHRERM T
statements. B -

(iv) Loss allowance for trade receivables has been measured at an amount equal (iv) B E2023F 2022512 A31 B B BF

to lifetime ECL in accordance with SFRS(I) 9 for the financial year ended 31

December 2023 and 2022.

The ECL on trade receivables are estimated by reference to past default experience
of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor's current financial position, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

A trade receivable is written off when there is information indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. None of the trade receivables that have been written
off is subject to enforcement activities.

& B 5 REIRNEREGRE R
BIRABRELER) EIRRASNFERE
HEEBRNEENE -

BIORMGENBHEEBRELEEHEA
BENENKBREEABAMMBERR DN
fhat REBA  BEAZEMEN—KT
FRERR RN ERE BB E R RRRER
FRAMF SR ERRIELBE -

HEHERNKRTEBARREEN R E
BYERENAERAS - i EEBA
HENFRMAAKCEARENERER
B - BB 5 RAMGARME - BAHCHE
08 2 UG IRE IR HIBITITE) -
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 13. HARAMBURIE ()

(iv) (continued) (iv) (&)

UTRARBEBREZEZAH2IINESE
WER (R EREE) KRR DT

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of loss allowance,
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period

Group

F5%E
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®ET T
Within 30 days 30BA 1,133,684 989,081
Within 31 to 60 days 31ZE60HA 382,217 335,935
Within 61 to 90 days 61Z290HA 348,617 286,136
Within 91 to 180 days 91Z180HR 684,525 475,927
Within 181 to 365 days 1813650 554,497 622,382
Over 365 days 818365 H 915,629 728,482
4,019,169 3,437,943

(v)  Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired (v) BAaHELERENESERE
AEERBEREREHRDHELEREN
E S WA AREA,717,240,000 7T (2022
F: AR¥1,664,485,0007T) ° REETW K

The Group has trade receivables amounting to RMB1,717,240,000 (2022:
RMB1,664,485,000) that are past due at the end of the reporting period but not
impaired. The Group has not recognised loss allowance for trade receivables
because management is of the opinion that the amounts will be fully recoverable RESENFBNERER BRERE
as management has assessed that there will not be a significant change in credit REEREEBTLRREBAELHED
quality of the debtors taking into account the historical experience and general ENBREENRRLE  BTEEBANEE
economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate. The Group BEEETeRAEEAEY  WEBSBIE
does not hold any collateral over these receivables and the analysis of their aging e  AEBVERZERWGERE T
(based on invoice date) at the end of the reporting period is as follows: MERR RREPREZLEAHEIME
SREBFIENRESTRAT

174

Group

F5%E
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
Within 30 days 308 A 83,273 35,270
Within 31 to 60 days 31Z60HA 239,050 240,297
Within 61 to 90 days 61ZE90HA 186,966 161,495
Within 91 to 180 days 91E180HA 188,238 223,915
Within 181 to 365 days 1812365 HA 280,319 403,855
Over 365 days 88365 H 739,394 599,653
1,717,240 1,664,485

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH



13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Trade receivables past due and impaired

The Group's trade receivables that are past due and impaired at the end of the
reporting period and the movement of the allowance accounts used to record the
impairment are as follows:

13. HARRMBURE (#)
(vi) EBHBRRENEZERHE

AEERBREHERDRHAHNENE HEK
FREREERENERRENEBNT

Group
50
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Trade receivables B SEWGE 90,402 150,679
Less: Loss allowance B BEERE (71,152) (60,277)
19,250 90,402

Movements in the loss allowance of trade receivables

EHBAHEEREELD

Group
50
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
At beginning of the year F1 60,277 28,506
Allowance made during the year (Note 10) FRERE (FiiE10) 10,875 31,771
At end of the year FXR 71,152 60,277

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of
the reporting period relate to debtors that are slow in making payments or are in
significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments.

The Group has trade receivables amounting to RMB2,282,679,000 (2022:
RMB1,683,056,000) that are not past due and not impaired at the end of the
reporting period.

(vii) RBEBRREBETERRENE SRR
B REBNRRERBAM BRI HER
RHEBA

ARBEHFERBRERRERAATEBRED

Z 5 e A A B2 282,679,000 (2022
£+ AR#1,683,056,0007T) °
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13.

14.

176

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(viii) Other receivables

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their fair values. These
amounts are non-trade and unsecured.

Other receivables mainly comprise (a) non-interest-bearing amounts due from third
parties of RMB298 million (2022: RMB315 million) which are repayable on demand;
(b) VAT and tax receivables of RMB535 million (2022 : RMB654 million); (c) interest-
bearing amounts due from third parties of RMB17 million (2022: RMB202 million)
which are repayable on demand; and (d) refundable deposits of RMB24 million (2022:
RMB24 million).

Loss allowance for non-trade receivables is assessed in accordance with SFRS(I) 9 for
the financial years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Movements in the loss allowance of non-trade receivables:

13.

B R At E IR (1)
(vill) EfbREKHIA

Hip W RRnRaEREE A BERAS -
HZECRRIFESHHEREER -

HitERR AT EAE(QEREZFEETBEA
R¥2 9887 (20224 : AREM¥315TL) A
BREREE (b)EBERRERHBARES.35E
7T (20224 : ARM6.54187) : (c)EUE=FH
TEFEARE,7008 T (2022F « AR2.02
Br)  BREREE RA)AREES ARE
2,4008 7T (20224 : AR¥2,40087T)

BZE2023F R2022F12 A3 B IR FE » k8
BENGENEEEGRRBGIME BB T BRE

ER) FIGREITRIE -

RN BB REREEE

Group
50
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
At beginning of the year F4) 12,256 10,486
Allowance made during the year (Note 10) FREE (FiE10) 16,502 1,770
At end of the year FxR 28,758 12,256
BILLS RECEIVABLES 14. BRERE

Bills receivables are non-interest bearing with credit periods generally ranging from 90
to 180 (2022: 90 to 180) days.
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15.

16.

PREPAYMENTS 15. Wft%IE

Group Company
350 . 3|
2023 2022 2023 2022
20235 20224 20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT AR®TRT AREFT
Prepayments to suppliers Rt IE 42,761 47,655 - =
Others Hit 26,198 24,420 3,660 56
Total prepayment, current FRERZ e (A1) 68,959 72,075 3,660 56
Prepayment for assets relating to service BRRBETCERHNERE
concession arrangements @ RFEM B 378,999 149,066 - =
Prepayment for intangible assets B EERMIER 7,490 9,400 - -
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment 1% - BB RREENER 8,171 16,723 - -
Total prepayment, non-current BRNERETE (GEENH) 394,660 175,189 - =

@ Relates mainly to prepayment made for certain infrastructure relating to BOT and TOT
service concession arrangements entered during the financial years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

@ FEEPNBE2023F 2022512 A31 B IEFBE
ERTSZMBOT R TOTIRA A FF 8 = 2 HE S T 2R
RiefeHOBMRREH -

INVENTORIES 16. &8
Group
F5E
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
Inventories FE 250,123 233,483

Inventories comprise consumable supplies held for internal use.

Material accounting policy information

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

FEBRESERBERNEREMR

FEEHBEAH

FERRARARRFHEME POREEAR - K
AERERDAKAR (WER) FEERREL
ERMRMEENERS THAR—RER « kA&
TSR 55 5 - 2R FERGETEER
A T IRAREH  HERD BAELAK
Ao
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17.

178

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group through its subsidiaries engages in the businesses of waste water treatment,
water supply, waste incineration and sludge treatment in the PRC (the “operator”)
and has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with certain
governmental authorities or their agencies in the PRC on a BOT, TOT, BOO or TOO
basis in respect of its businesses. These service concession arrangements generally
involve the Group as an operator to (i) construct waste water treatment, water supply,
waste incineration and sludge treatment plants for those arrangements on a BOT and
BOO basis; (ii) pay a specific amount for those arrangements on a TOT and TOO basis;
or (iii) operate and maintain the waste water treatment, water supply, waste incineration
and sludge treatment plants at a specified level of serviceability on behalf of the
relevant governmental authorities for periods ranging from 20 to 50 years (the “service
concession periods”), and the Group will be paid for its services over the relevant
periods of the service concession arrangements at prices stipulated through pricing
mechanism. The plants will be transferred to the respective grantors at the end of the
service concession periods for BOT and TOT.

The Group is generally entitled to operate all the property, plant and equipment of the
waste water treatment, water supply, waste incineration and sludge treatment plants,
however, the relevant governmental authorities as grantors control and regulate the
scope of services the Group provides to the waste water treatment, water supply,
waste incineration and sludge treatment plants, and retain the beneficial entitlement
to any residual interest in the waste water treatment, water supply, waste incineration
and sludge treatment plants at the end of the service concession periods. Each
of these service concession arrangements is governed by a contract and, where
applicable, supplementary agreements entered into between the Group and the
relevant governmental authorities or their agencies in the PRC that set out, infer alia,
performance standards, mechanisms for adjusting prices for the services rendered by
the Group, specific obligations levied on the Group to restore the waste water treatment,
water supply, waste incineration and sludge treatment plants to a specified level of
serviceability at the end of the service concession periods, and arrangements for
arbitrating disputes.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

17.

R EE R
AEEBBEMBARRTENEGTKERE - #
K EBEPFERSEER([EEH])  YERE
¥BEPEETHRAEESEAEBEEZBOT
TOT - BOOSKTOOE XU L BRE BT EER
B ZERBENTLETE - RIRAEEERE
LA EBOTRBOOEER Z S RH BT KE
B #HKE - BEREBRRSREEERR ()&
TOTRTOOEERZZTLHIMHFTELE + (i)
REEERFHERETNRBESE RER
EKEER -« K - BEEERLSEEER -
AENT0Z50F ([REFFLEER]) - BXE
ERRRAREETCE R A RBRRENRS
EEERIATHERESEN - BEHRBOTR
TOTREFHFTEEBMAERTHEBETA -

REE—REEELTREER - KK - BE%
ERMLSEREMNAENE  BERRE A
o AERRTANBBRAREZH LR EAEE
MRS KEBER » fUKR - BERERNSRE
EREHAREEE - YRESKEER - K
B EEZERRTIERERNRBSFEEHR
NERRBERDERET - BRAFRBEHE
ELHEm— M AEEESERERTRERE
RE#BIUNAORABASD (NER) BE
ETHA (T eR)AREE  AEEMRIR
B ERBERS BT ARBEARRBHFRE
HIRASKERIERR - BOKRE - EERERNSER
BEIREIIRTENRBIEENSERE - RIFE
FRORH -



17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

17.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had 198 (2022: 193) service concession arrangements
on waste water treatment, 23 (2022: 23) service concession arrangements on water
treatment and distribution, 4 (2022: 4) service concession arrangements on waste
incineration and 11 (2022: 10) service concession arrangements on sludge treatment. A
summary of the major terms of the principal service concession arrangements entered
into by the Group’s subsidiaries is set out below:

RHRFEERH (H)

7202312 8318 - AEEH 19878 (20224
19318) J5 /KRB R AT A S 25 - 2378 (2022
F238)SKEERA MRS HITCERHE
415 (2022%F - 41 EEEEMRBEHTLER
B BARI1IE (20224 < 1078) 55 R R IB M RIS
BT - AEBEM BRI IMEB RIS
RERENEZRETBEEFINMAT -

Type of service Daily design ~ Service
Location in Name of concession capacity  concession
Name of subsidiary as operator Project name the PRC grantor arrangement (tonnes/day)  period
R EE BHRMER
EEEHNMELRAR FE&H ReEEE B¥AEHR REER (M/B) BRESHEEY
Longjiang Environmental Protection Group ~ Harbin Wenchang Upgrade ~ Harbin, Heilongjiang % @2&m/AK#E  BOT (Financial 1,350,000 29 years from 2011
Co., Ltd. (“Longjiang Group’) BOT Province assets)
ETRREERNARAR(RISE]) BRETXEAMRBITEE REILWAZ BRETKER  BOT(ERMEAE) 1,350,000 H2011FRET29%F
Wuhan Hanxi Wastewater Treatment Wuhan Hanxi Wastewater ~ Wuhan, Hubei REMAREM  BOT (Financial 600,000 30 years from 2005
Co., Ltd. ("Wuhan Hanxi") Treatment 1st Stage and Province assets)
2nd Stage (Expansion)
REERSKREARAR([REER]) REERSKEEEE—H RAL4nz RETARBN  BOT(SBAE) 600,000 H2005F #5304
R-BERER
Yiyang City Tap Water Co., Ltd. Yiyang City Water Supply ~ Yiyang, Hunan wEMEEMHS  T0Tand BOT 520,000 28 years from 2016
(“Yiyang Tap Water’) Province BEB (Intangible assets)
wHETERKERAR ((RHETERK])  #HEmsTRKER iRl aEmEERES  T0TRBOT 520,000 B2016%F 5284
=545 (BWEE)
Mudanjiang Longjiang Environmental Mudanjiang Water Mudanjiang, RRTTHMRE  T0T (Intangible 300,000 30 years from 2010
Protection Water Supply Co., Ltd. Supply TOT Heilongjiang SEERAA assets)
(*Mudanjiang Tap Water") Province
HATEDRREKERAR HHITERKRIOTNEE BREIEHAT HYImHmRE  T0T(BVEE) 300,000 B2010%F 5304
(MtHIa%RK]) ERHRAT
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17.

180

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 17. RBEFHFEERYE(])
Type of service Daily design  Service
Location in Name of concession capacity  concession
Name of subsidiary as operator Project name the PRC grantor arrangement (tonnes/day)  period
TR RFEE BHRMER
FREERNMELRER HEER ReEiE B¥AEH AR (M/B) BEHFEES
Jiamusi Longjiang Environmental Jiamusi Water Supply TOT ~ Jiamusi, Heilongjiang  HEARZTHHERSE  T0T (Intangible 360,000 30 years from 2012
Protection Water Supply Co., Ltd. Province MERRERES  assels)
(“Jiamusi Tap Water') RE(RE)BR
A
ERMRIRREKERAA ERATMERKRIONEE BEIEEARE ERETHERS  T0T(EFEE) 360,000 E2012F#E30E
(TEARETBRK]) MERRERR
RE(£B)ER
A
Longjiang Group Harbin Taipin Wastewater ~ Harbin, Heilongjiang " EE(HKEE  BOT (Financial 325,000 25 years from 2005
Treatment BOT Province BREEAT assets)
e BRENATTKE TRIERAE BEAMEKER BOT(£REE) 325000 B2005F #5254
BOTIER BREFAH
Longjiang Group Harbin Wenchang Harbin, Heilongjiang " @Em/AKS  TOT (Financial 325,000 30 years from 2010
Wastewater Treatment Province assets)
10T
e L] BREMNETKE TRIERAE BRETKER  TOT(SREE) 325,000 EH2010F#530%
TOTHEE
Weifang City Tap Water Co., Lid. Weifang City Tap Water Weifang, Shandong ~ #m ARBF  TOTand BOT 320,000 25 years from 2007
(“Weifang Tap Water”) Supply Province (Intangible assets)
ESTERKERAR ((AHERK])  EhmpmitkIER Sy 277 wHmARBR  TOTRBOT 320000 E2007F#E25HE
(BWEE)
Wuhan Huang-Pi Kaidi Water Services Wuhan Huang-Pi Kaidi Huang-Pi, Hubei REMEHERR  BOT (Intangible 430,000 30 years from 2008
Co., Ltd. ("Wuhan Huang-Pi") Water Supply Province assets)
REERIKBERAR ((REER]) RETERELKIEER HaER RETERRHE BOT(EFEAE) 430,000  H2008F 530
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17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

Receivables under service concession arrangements

As described in the accounting policy for “Service concession arrangements” set out
in Note 2.6, consideration given by the grantor for a service concession arrangement
is accounted for as an intangible asset (operating concessions) or a financial asset
(receivables under service concession arrangements) or a combination of both, as
appropriate. The intangible asset component is detailed in Note 24, and the financial
asset component is as follows:

17. BRBRFFEERE(R)

BB EE R TR R

IFEE2. 6 T8k [ RIS AT S L8 | SR BUR A
it BFARBRBEFELLHELNEEARR
BVEE (Birigen) HemeE (RBEFEE
THIETRRFR) IMmEHa (MER) - BV E
EERBARM 2450 - MeRMEEER DA W
T

Group

50
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Receivables under service concession arrangements BRI AT TR T RN 23,261,211 23,549,395
Less: Current portion classified as current assets B DEARRBEENREHS (887,152) (733,089)
Non-current portion FERBBD 22,374,059 22,816,306

Expected collection schedule is analysed as follows: WG RRIITOT

Within 1 year 1FR 887,152 733,089
Within 2 to 5 years 2EHER 3,671,624 3,198,396
QOver 5 years SEPA L 18,702,435 19,617,910
23,261,211 23,549,395

During the current financial year, the Group recognised financial income of
RMB1,231,658,000 (2022: RMB1,248,018,000) (Note 4) and construction revenue of
RMB1,868,213,000 (2022: RMB2,969,149,000) as revenue from service concession
arrangements. The effective interest applied ranges from 4.20% to 8.00% (2022: 4.90%
to 8.00%) per annum.

The relevant assets pledged by the Group are disclosed in Note 42 to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2022, the Group has
RMB1,850,938,000, RMB5,978,118,000 and RMB3,687,677,000 of contract assets
pertaining to construction contracts in progress within the receivables under service
concession arrangements balance.

There were significant changes in the contract asset balances during the reporting
period due to the decrease in ongoing projects under construction during the year.

RAGBEE AEERIVBERAARE
1,231,658,0007T (20224 : AK#1,248,018,000
o) (MiEE4) R A AR ®1,868,213,0007T
(20224 : AR2,969,149,0007) {E AR IRTS KT
BERPERBA - BRERFNENF420%%
8.00% (20225 - 4.90%%£8.00%) °

AEBERNREEEN P BRRI T2 -

R2023F12 4318 ~ 202212 A31 8 & 202245
1TA1E  REERBEFFEERIE T ERK
EREMSRERRESONANEERARE
1,850,938,0007C + AK5,978,118,000C K AR
#:3,687,677,0007T °

HREFRFEERERRY  REHRSHEER
BHRABAEH -
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17.

18.

182

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
Receivables under service concession arrangements (continued)

Management estimates the loss allowance on receivables under service concession
arrangements at an amount equal to 12-month ECL, taking into account the historical
default experience and the future prospects of the construction industry. None of the
receivables under service concession arrangements at the end of the reporting period is
past due.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant changes in
assumptions made during the current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance
for the contract assets.

17.

BREFFEERE (])
REBFEERHATELRE (8)
ERERASIM2EANEREEBRNFUAR
R AHEE R HR T RMGURB RER - 5t B
FENRERRERAF - REHRBERB
RERBFRTRETEBE -

RABREHA - BFESNEEBRERFRBNMG
AL EZE - RERRTEEARE) -

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK 18. Bl (Ef) BEFSHIER
Group
x50
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TTRT AREFT
Construction contracts BEEN 51,611 48,714
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RSB ER DT -
Amounts due from customers for contract work BREPAENTIER 75,889 77,767
Amounts due to customers for contract work EREPANIER (24,278) (29,053)
51,611 48,714

At 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2022, advances received
from customers for contract work, representing contract liabilities amounted to
RMB442,743,000, RMB487,992,000 and RMB633,688,000 are classified under other
payables.

At 31 December 2023, net amount due from customers for contract work of
RMB51,611,000 (2022: RMB48,714,000) have been classified as current because they
are expected to be realised in the normal operating cycle of the construction projects.

Amounts due from customers for contract work included provision for foreseeable
losses of RMB25,000 (2022: RMB25,000) as at year end.

Amounts due to customers for contract work under construction contracts arise when
the Group receives payments from customers in line with a series of performance -
related milestones. The Group will previously have recognised a contract asset for any
work performed. Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to
trade receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the customer.
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R2023F12 A31H ~ 2022612 A31 A k202251
A1E BREFPAENIREN  EANEEAR
#:442,743,0007T -~ AR#487,992,000c R ARE
633,688,000 707 48 /% LAt JE (008

2023124310 BREFAHIEFFEA
F#51,611,0007T (20224 : AE#48,714,0007T)
ENRARY  AA%EHERANERER R
—REEBANES -

RER  BREFANTIRETAENERBERE
AR#25,0007 (20224 : AR#25,0007T)

RESHNRETENEPEESNTERTEELR
PUEINREES - B—RF AR 2EH—
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18.

19.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK
(continued)

There were no significant changes in the contract asset and contract liability balances
during the reporting period.

Management estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from customers for contract
work at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, taking into account the historical default
experience and the future prospects of the construction industry. None of the amounts
due from customers for contract work at the end of the reporting period is past due.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for the
contract assets.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM
JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES/LOANS TO
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are non-trade, unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand except for amounts due from associate amounting to RMB8,458,000 (2022:
RMB16,158,000) which bears interest at 10.0% to 12.0% (2022: 6.0% to 10.0%) per
annum and is not expected to be repaid within the next 12 months from the end of the
reporting period and loans to subsidiaries which bears fixed interest of 4.8% to 5.0%
(2022: 4.8% to 5.0%) per annum and are due in 2 years (2022: 2 years) from the end
of the reporting period.

Management estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from subsidiaries/joint
venture/associates/loans to subsidiaries at an amount equal to 12-month ECL, taking
into account the historical default experience and the future prospects of the industry.
None of the amounts due from subsidiaries/joint venture/associates/loan to subsidiaries
at the end of the reporting period is past due.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance.

18.

19.

By (EfH) ERENIER (K)

RESHHANEERANABABIBENE
g o

ERRRBESNFERRAEEBRNFIRME
REPANTREFNBRER Y RBEROKL
BERAREERAR - RAESHRBERKEF A
HITRRRBE

NABREMA - BFESNEEBRREREBOMG
M EARRLELE -

B (R MBLARARE, BHERERR
B/ BUHEARREMELRER

ZECEAHESME BEF - R2EREEX
f8i8 - MR & A RIMEIB AR #8,458,00070
(20224 : AR¥16,158,0007C) 1 EHZ10.0% =
12.0% (20224 : 6.0%Z10.0%) 5+ & - AFEHT
SRERSHREFRRI2EANEE - MHED
AEFIRETEFEFRL8%Z5.0% (20224F : 4.8%
£5.0%) T8 - REMEHREH2F (2022F : 2
F) WEIH] -

ERERESM2EANRREEBROTRGE
FRMBARFIER/ RRAEREFER/ RRH
BRAFE/ MEBRARERNERES - Wi R
BEBOBERRRITERNR - RREARGERE
WHBRRRE REELCERE,/ EREE
RAFE/ HBLAERAH

RABERR - B EBREEE RN G RMTR
EABRLEZS -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT M

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

20. BARMEHARSHSMAE

Group
50
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Quoted equity shares, at fair valug® ETERRG - BAREERF 3,073 2,909
Put option on unlisted equity securities, at fair value® FLEMERZFDLEE - RAAEEFO 6,506 6,506
9,579 9,415

@ The investments above include investments in quoted equity securities that offer the Group
the opportunity for return through dividend income and fair value gains. They have no fixed
maturity or coupon rate. The fair values of these securities are based on closing quoted
market prices on the last market day of the financial year.

® The fair value of the put option is determined in relation to the fair value of the underlying
investments in unlisted equity securities. These investments represent ordinary shares in
private companies. The fair value of these investments was determined by using the market
approach. The market approach method is a valuation method based on prices at which
stocks of similar companies are trading in a public market (Note 46).

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

@ FPRRABERETERAEFNKRE  BAKESR
BEEBREMARLA BERGERDR - %%
REZBEFHHARSE - ZEEFOALEE
REMBFERER S AMBETHETE -

O REHENAREBEDRERELTERESEER
BOAABEETE - ZFREABNUARRNEE
B ZERENDABERBRATSAEE - ™
BEDERART S EABRUBRDO AR MRE
HREEEX (FFE46) -

21. BARREHARMZERGHSMEE

Group
350
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARET T
Unlisted equity securities® FEMBRAFESE 13,400 13,400
@ These investments represent ordinary and preference shares in private companies. The @ ZERBERNFALRN LT BRELRD - ZFHR

fair value of these investments was determined by using the market approach. The market
approach method is a valuation method based on prices at which stocks of similar
companies are trading in a public market (Note 46).
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22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

22. W% BERRM

Group
*5E
Furniture, Buildings
Plant and fittings and Motor and Construction
machinery  equipment vehicles improvement in-progress Total
B RE
BEREHR Rk RE BFREE ERIE =11
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETRT AREFT AR®TT AR%TE ARETR
Cost: B
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1 /1R 232,238 63,571 50,138 195,316 10,793 552,056
Additions AE 15,259 5,369 3,000 20,590 162,242 206,460
Disposals/Written off HE / #iH - (5) (49) - - (54)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — R B AR 63 237 - - - 300
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAF (23,833) - (1,721) (2,474) (49,524) (77,552)
Reclassification/Transfers ERipr Wl T 25,988 (5,675) (2,279) - - 18,034
Exchange differences EHEE - 85 - 224 - 309
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 249,715 63,582 49,089 213,656 123,511 699,553
Additions ANE 5,353 9,865 5,928 240 57,429 78,815
Disposals/Written off HE /s (112) (95) (807) - = (1,014)
Reclassification/Transfers ENNE/BE 126,045 18 - 477 (134,627 (8,087)
Exchange differences EHEE = 38 = 114 - 152
At 31 December 2023 ®2023%12A31H 381,001 73,408 54,210 214,487 46,313 769,419
Accumulated depreciation: RiRE -
At 1 January 2022 202241 A1H 75,883 33,840 31,398 64,009 - 205,130
Depreciation charge for the year FRFETH 16,148 7,222 3,869 13,972 - 4211
Disposals/Written off HE /M = (5) = = = (5)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — RN B AR 27 155 - - = 182
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR (1,447) - (1,886) (1,986) - (5,319)
Reclassification/Transfers ENNE /&R 20,279 (4,557) (2,433) - - 13,289
Exchange differences ERER - 4l - 224 - 295
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 110,890 36,726 30,948 76,219 - 254,783
Depreciation charge for the year FAFEZ S 18,077 6,829 4323 8,913 - 38,142
Disposals/Written off HE /i (105) (91) (634) - - (830)
Reclassification/Transfers ENNlE/BE = = = = = =
Exchange differences ERER - 15 - 114 - 129
At 31 December 2023 ®2023%12A31H 128,862 43,479 34,637 85,246 - 292,224
Carrying amount: IREE :
At 31 December 2023 ®2023%F12A31H 252,139 29,929 19,573 129,241 46,313 477,195
At 31 December 2022 R2022612A31H 138,825 26,856 18,141 137,437 123,511 444770

The relevant assets pledged by the Group are disclosed in Note 42 to the financial

statements.

AEEERORREERMBRRME2HE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT M

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

186

22. W% BERRM (K)

Company
47
Furniture,
fittings and Leasehold
equipment improvement Total
& RERRMR HEMREKE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFTT
Cost: BE:
At 1 January 2022 R20221 A1H 811 2,392 3,203
Additions NE 9 - 9
Exchange differences EHER 85 224 309
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 8318 905 2,616 3,521
Additions NE 9 - 9
Exchange differences BE N R 38 114 152
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12A31H 952 2,730 3,682
Accumulated depreciation: RitnE
At 1 January 2022 #®202251R1R 748 2,392 3,140
Depreciation charge for the year FRTEZH 27 - 27
Exchange differences R ER 71 224 295
At 31 December 2022 2022F12 A31H 846 2,616 3,462
Depreciation charge for the year FRFEZH 47 - 47
Exchange differences R ER 15 114 129
At 31 December 2023 #®2023%12A31H 908 2,730 3,638
Carrying amount: IREE -
At 31 December 2023 #®2023%12831H 44 - 44
At 31 December 2022 ®2022412A31R 59 - 59
Material accounting policy information FERHBREH

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying property, plant and equipment. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably.
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22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Material accounting policy information (continued)

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. When significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation
respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised
in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and is computed on a
straight-line basis to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment less estimated
residual value over their estimated useful lives. Assets under construction included in
property, plant and equipment are not depreciated as these assets are not available for
use.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Plants and machinery -
Furniture, fittings and equipment -
Motor vehicles -
Buildings and improvement =

5 to 25 years

4 to 8 years
510 10 years
5to 35 years

Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated based on the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use, to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The Group has assessed that there is no indication of impairment for its property, plant
and equipment.

22. W% BERRME (K)

FEFHBRAH(R)

NERE - DE - BERREBDEMAARAFE
RAERMZFTREFENE - ENE - WERRED

EK*B’VEFEJ% AREMTINEE  FEER%ZE

BROFNEBRTEERFHRTENERIE

Ff’ R BETEARER - HRAGEENK
RREREREENYE  BELREBNREE

PR - AR MEERRERANEERERR

WHER

BEMMEREAHERRRG  TREREEE
WEME  BERREOKABNE G TEAE
HMEARREERTE - ARYE - BE RRER
BENBZETEERTAIRA U ZFEELEN
&

BEMEFAERAFHNT :

B - 5% 254
B REREE - 484
AE - 52104
BFRER - 5354

BBMENREERTEEDRNMBEREARE -

A ATEREY  RREERNETENIRERE
MARER - Ut ERTEM G EPNZE -

WE BERREEEREERLRREEERZL
BETRELRREENZNBR TRILHER - &
BB EEMELNRARBENREENER
GHRRERAENERET LN ERER -

NEHRERH  AREHENE  BERRBIE
HELTEN  NETRLAEAPRBRIZSE
ELRAERE - WEETARSTR - BERAA
BERHEXAREREEZANRSE LI EE
ZAIWEEE - NETRERSE (INE) 22E -

AEECHEANE  BERREHRERENR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT M

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

23. LEASES (GROUP AS A LESSEE)

23.1 Right-of-use assets

188

The Group leases several leasehold land and office premises with lease terms between

3 t0 40 years.

The Group's obligations are secured by the lessors' title to the leased asset for such

23. HE(FREEREELN)

23.1 FRERE
AEEHEETHELMERAEYE  HARS
E40F -

ARENEFHMEEASEREENHEEEENMR

leases. BREEER -
Group
350
Leasehold Office
land premises Total
HELH NV a5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT AREFT
Cost: BE:
At 1 January 2022 202241 A1H 53,344 35,085 88,429
Additions NE = 12,972 12,972
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR (11,634) - (11,634)
At 31 December 2022 72022F12 A31H 41,710 48,057 89,767
Additions =Y = 10,080 10,080
At 31 December 2023 #®2023%12A31H 41,710 58,137 99,847
Accumulated depreciation: Rt
At 1 January 2022 202251 A1H 9,950 24127 34,077
Depreciation charge for the year FRATETH 2,756 8,383 11,139
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (724) - (724)
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 11,982 32,510 44,492
Depreciation charge for the year FRAMETH 2,746 8,646 11,392
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12A31H 14,728 41,156 55,884
Carrying amount: IRE(E :
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12A31H 26,982 16,981 43,963
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 29,728 15,547 45,275
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23. LEASES (GROUP AS A LESSEE) (continued) 23. HE(FREFEREEA) (&)

23.1 Right-of-use assets (continued) 23.1 EREEE (§)
Company
. /N
Office premises
WOEhE
RMB'000
AREFT
Cost: BE:
At 1 January 2022 202241 A1H 26,832
Additions NE 12,972
At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 $®2022%F128318 R 2023128 31AH 39,804
Accumulated depreciation: Rt :
At 1 January 2022 1202251 A1H 18,415
Depreciation charge for the year FRTETH 6,477
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 24,892
Depreciation charge for the year FRATETH 6,555
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12A31H 31,447
Carrying amount: IREE :
At 31 December 2023 #®2023%12A31H 8,357
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 14,912
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT M

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

23. LEASES (GROUP AS A LESSEE) (continued)

23. HR(FREEBEEAL) ()

23.2 Lease liabilities 23.2 HBAR
Group
50
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Maturity analysis: BIEAS T
Year 1 —F 12,129 11,101
Year 2 WE 7,041 10,404
Year 3 =F 5,276 5177
Year 4 s 5,514 3,196
Year 5 g 4,441 3,196
Year 6 onwards NEE 16,456 19,650
50,857 52,724
Less: Unearned interest B - REREEF S (8,243) (10,289)
42,614 42,435
Analysed as: DWWT
Current E 10,494 9,056
Non-current ERE 32,120 33,379
42,614 42,435
Company
. SN
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETFT
Maturity analysis: SIEDAT -
Year 1 —&F 7,208 7,208
Year 2 M E 1,981 7,208
Year 3 =& - 1,981
9,189 16,397
Less: Unearned interest B - REREEFE (517) (1,259)
8,672 15,138
Analysed as: DWEWT
Current TED 6,783 6,466
Non-current ERE 1,889 8,672
8,672 15,138
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23. LEASES (GROUP AS A LESSEE) (continued)
23.2 Lease liahilities (continued)

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities.
Lease liabilities are monitored within the Group’s treasury function.

Material accounting policy information
The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the
contract. A right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For
these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in
the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate based on the quotes from
reputable banks over a similar term and with a similar security that the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in accordance to the type
of asset, tenor and country where the assets are situated.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the group’s lease liabilities comprise
mainly of fixed lease payments over the lease terms.

A right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost comprising the initial lease liability,
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date (less any lease
incentives received), any initial direct costs and any restoration costs. The right-of-
use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease terms
commencing from the date of the lease, and are tested for impairment in accordance
with the policy similar to that adopted for property, plant and equipment in Note 22.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. Lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate when there is a
change in the lease term upon exercising extension options not previously included in
the determination of the lease term. A corresponding adjustment is made to the related
right-of-use asset.

The Group has assessed that there is no indication of impairment for its right-of-use
assets.

23. HR(FREFSEEL) ()
23.2 HEAR (K)

REBEAENS  ARELEAREEARDES
Bk - HERERMAKEEHHMHES -

FEEHBEAH

ZREERREA
AEERRODNRIEEHANETRHERE S
HE - AEEREFEAZRANAERERIER
EREBEREENEEARE KEHEE (E&
DHERABIZEASNTHEE) REEEEERN
HEI - BAFHEMS - ARENEHANER
EERBENHALERS AR —ERILE
EFERREAEEEELEMN AR REA R
Bho

MEABERNFAR R AR ANBERFAREE
TRRER - YERBETNASHTETHH -
fis LA RN ERA BT - AAKESRAE
EfEFAE -

AEERBEBRENBIRRBEENSRR - F
HREEMERRARGREREEEARRNE
ENEEMRENESFLNABRUMR AN
HERnREETLEEMETE -

AAREEREABENEENNIRAREMAE
B EEERR

EREEENRZAA (BRVLHEEAE  £ER
fa REIZ 2 AT SR E MR E 30 (FER 2 IR A
ENREERE) FANARERRAREMEER
K)FHE - ERBEEARBRARRNE LR
HFEE - EREEENEERMRRNEEN
REHRITE @ WIRELR K225 % - BERR
BIRBEABSRETRER -

HERERREHEERAENRREERENNE
(EREBRNEE) RIRFRIREEARBR A
HEMTNTAHE - ERERRTELAREE
HENSAEENTHREENZLR(E  HE
BEEREEINREAREETRENFEMT
E - BABEREEEFLARRE -

AREEHEAEREEERBEAEDSR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT M

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

24,

192

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 24. ELEE
Group
F5%E
Patent & Total
Operating licensing Computer intangible
concessions rights software assets
WARER SIRSTHE TR BEEESH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Cost: BE:
At 1 January 2022 "2022%1A1H 8,750,529 6,740 22,061 8,779,330
Additions "B 353,305 1,267 13,615 368,187
Disposals & (53) - - (53)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiiE — P B A 7] 594,230 - 4512 598,742
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKBAR (406,918) - (65) (406,983)
Reclassification BHNE (27,089) - (6,353) (33,442)
At 31 December 2022 12022F12 A31H 9,264,004 8,007 33,770 9,305,781
Additions NEY 900,447 - 2,879 903,326
Reclassification B8 1,124,182 (28) (3,597) 1,120,557
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12A31H 11,288,633 7,979 33,052 11,329,664
Accumulated amortisation: Raties
At 1 January 2022 "2022F1A1H 1,830,137 6,683 9,717 1,846,537
Amortisation for the year FREEH 341,666 20 3,871 345,557
Disposals & (24) - - (24)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—Rf B AR 222,660 - 3,527 226,187
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKBAR (182,841) - (18) (182,859)
At 31 December 2022 12022F12 A31H 2,211,598 6,703 17,097 2,235,398
Amortisation for the year FREHE 395,496 133 4,217 399,846
Reclassification BN 29,985 - (3,247) 26,738
At 31 December 2023 #2023F12A31H 2,637,079 6,836 18,067 2,661,982
Carrying amount: IREE -
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12A31H 8,651,554 1,143 14,985 8,667,682
At 31 December 2022 12022F12 A31H 7,052,406 1,304 16,673 7,070,383

The relevant assets pledged by the Group including those under bank borrowings are
disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements.
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24. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Amortisation expense

The amortisation of intangible assets relating to operating concessions is mainly
included in the “Cost of sales” and the amortisation of other intangible assets is
included in “Cost of sales”, “Selling and distribution costs” and “Administrative
expenses” line items in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Impairment testing

Management assessed for indicators of impairment annually and is of the view that
there is no impairment on any intangible assets as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

24. EERE (W)
1]k
NERBRERN - ARRFEERNEVEESRE
TRFATHERS BT @ At BT EES KT
ATHERK]  [HENHER I RITHBHAX]R
To

wEN

EEESTIERETR - ¥RAE2023F 2022
F128318 ' BEENEREERNE -

Company
.3/
Computer
software
4 A
RMB'000
ARBTT
Cost: BE:
At 1 January 2022 R202241 A1H =
Additions NE 6,376
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 6,376
Additions NE 99
At 31 December 2023 72023F12 A31H 6,475
Accumulated amortisation: Ratie
At 1 January 2022 M202241 A1H =
Amortisation for the year FR#H 506
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 506
Amortisation for the year F R H 416
At 31 December 2023 72023F12 A31H 922
Carrying amount: IRE(E :
At 31 December 2023 72023F12 A31H 5,553
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 5,870
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202312 A31H

24,

194

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Material accounting policy information
Operating concessions

Operating concessions represent (i) the rights to charge users of the public service
for the water supply contracts, which fall within the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12 Service
Concession Arrangements; (i) the rights under the service concession arrangements
for the waste water treatment allows the Group to receive and treat waste water above
the minimum amount of guaranteed volume, at a predetermined tariff rate during the
concessionary period acquired in a business combination; and (iii) rights to operate
and manage waste water treatment plants acquired in a business combination.

The operating concessions are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss. The operating concessions acquired in a business
combination are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost). Amortisation is provided on straight-line basis over the
remaining respective periods of the operating concessions granted to the Group of 7 to
50 years.

Intangible assets acquired separately excluding operating concessions

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effects of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of amortisation:

Patent and licensing rights -
Computer software —

10 years
3 to 10 years

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised separately from
goodwill are recognised initially at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Research expenditure

Expenditure on research activities (where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised) is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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25.

26.

LONG TERM RECEIVABLES 25. RAAEARERR
Group
550
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
Retention monies® REg@ 42,272 60,120
Others® Hfpo 42,123 311,460
84,395 371,580

@ The non-current portion of retention sums are carried at amortised cost using a weighted
average effective interest rate of 4.90% (2022: 4.90%) per annum.

® As at 31 December 2022, the balance included a compensation receivable of
RMB311,460,000 for the termination of a BOT water supply project. The carrying amount of
the compensation receivable approximates its fair value.

Management estimates the loss allowance on long term receivables at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and the future
prospects of the construction industry.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance.

O RESHFERDBIEAMEFHEREFR X
4.90% (2022F : 4.90% ) H S5k A 71 o

®  R2022ER12A318  £HEER—BEBOTHK
TR ERIEMEREEARS311,460,0007T - fE
WmEnORRERE A A EERE -

EEERASM2E AN BRESBENFIER
REORURTAERER - Yt DBERORER

RABREHR - B EEREHEEEN G RITR

EARRLEZE -

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 26. RIBAFIRIRE
Company
e NG|

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Unquoted equity shares, at cost FELmERR - KA 2,859,640 2,842,144
Deemed investments BERE 2,572,732 2,918,046
Effects of exchange rate changes [ExFHT D 354,235 220,779
5,786,607 5,980,969

Management assessed for indicators of impairment annually and is of the view that
there is no impairment loss required.

EEESFHERENR YR BEAHRAERS

=)
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26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of the Group’s significant subsidiaries as at 31 December are as follows:

26. RMBLFRMRRA (K)
M2A31R - AEENEAMBARFEAT -

Percentage of
effective equity

Place of interest and
incorporation Registered voting power
Name of subsidiaries and operation capital  Principal activities held by the Group
HmE IR FRARBERRER
ELFERE EEMR EMEE  EEEH RRELH
RMB’000 2023 2022
AR%TR 2023 2022
% %
Huizhou City Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. PRC' 65,000  Waste water treatment. 100.0 100.0
EMTEAKEERAR HE" 65,000 JEKERE o 100.0 100.0
Shenzhen City Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. PRC! 200,000  Waste water treatment. 100.0 100.0
AT E A KBEERAR el 200,000  VEKEEE 100.0 100.0
SIIC Environment Holdings (Weifang) Co., Ltd. PRC' 464,900  Investment holding, waste water treatment and 75.5 [5%5)

(“SIIC Weifang") reclaimed water treatment.

BREKBROHBRAR ([ LEREKE]) e 464900 REZR KEERBEEKNA 75.5 75.5
Weifang Tap Water PRC! 153,125  Treatment and supply of potable water. 51.3 51.3
2l=PYS e 153,125  BEREERAK - 51.3 51.3
Wuhan Hanxi PRC' 330,000  Waste water treatment. 80.0 80.0
REER " 330,000 JSKEE e 80.0 80.0
Shanghai SIIC Baojingang Environmental Resources PRC 1,100,000  Waste incineration. 42.0° 42.03

Technology Co., Ltd. (‘Baojingang’)

DEFEECRRAERRRERARD([EER ) +E" 1,100,000 EEEE- 42.0° 42.0°
Wuhan Huang-Pi PRC? 490,000  Treatment and supply of potable water. 100.0 100.0
REER 2 490,000 FRIERHLESRAK o 100.0 100.0
Fudan Water PRC' 300,000 Provision of management 92.2 92.2
and consultancy services.
BEKE HE" 300,000 REEERRZARSE o 92.2 92.2
Longjiang Group PRC' 420,000  Waste water treatment. 58.0 58.0
BIEE HE 420,000 J5KEE - 58.0 58.0
Mudanjiang Tap Water PRC! 160,000  Treatment and supply of potable water. 58.0 58.0
HIHTBRK HE! 160,000 EBIERMEELRAK 58.0 58.0
Jiamusi Tap Water PRC' 240,000 Treatment and supply of potable water. 58.0 58.0
EARI A RK HE 240,000  FERAEEHRAK o 58.0 58.0
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26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

26. RMELFRMRRA (K)

Percentage of
effective equity

Place of interest and
incorporation Registered voting power

Name of subsidiaries and operation capital  Principal activities held by the Group

EMmE IR FRAMBERRER

BELAREE EEME HEMEx IEEH RRELH

RMB’000 2023 2022

AR®TR 2023F 20225

% %

Shanghai Qingpu Second Waste Water Treatment PRC' 370,000  Waste water treatment. 87.8 87.8
Co., Ltd.

FEERE D TIKEERERAR e 370,000 VEKEE 87.8 87.8

Yiyang City Tap Water Co., Ltd. PRC! 250,000  Treatment and supply of potable water. 90.0 90.0

w5 B RKBRAR R 250,000 REREEHKAK- 90.0 90.0

Mudanjiang Longjiang Environmental Protection PRC' 201,210 Waste water treatment. 58.0 58.0

Waste Water Treatment Co., Ltd.
HATRDRRKB AR AR el 201,210 EKER - 58.0 58.0
Harbin Pingyi Longjiang Environmental Protection ~ PRC! 170,000  Waste water treatment. 58.0 58.0
Waste Water Treatment Co., Ltd.
RREFEELRRAKEREFLA HE! 170,000  SKERE ° 58.0 58.0
Shanghai Fengxian West Waste Water Treatment PRC! 76,000  Waste water treatment. 92.2 73.7
Co., Ltd.

HETMEERDTKEEERAF e 76,000 SKEE - 92.2 737

1 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of limited liability company. i ZERARNFBEK L BERETAR -

2 This company was established in the PRC in the form of Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprise. 2 ZRRNPBER LA EEERE -

E Although the Group holds less than 50% of the effective equity interest of Baojingang, g BEAEEMBESAINERRETE% A%
the Group exercises control via its 70% direct controlling interest in SIIC Yangtze Delta EEBERELBEERER-ARRER(BH)
Environmental Resources (Hong Kong) Limited, which holds 60% equity interest in BRAR (BEESR60%MRHE) K70% 2R
Baojingang. R MATRIZEIE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has other subsidiaries that are not RESHR  AREREHAREN S L TEAL

significant to the Group. HinftBRE e

No debt security has been issued by any of the subsidiaries for the financial years LM B R RN B E 20234 1202212 A31 B 1

ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. MBFRETRERS o

The above subsidiaries are audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public LRMBARESGS B NERYFEKEHMEL

Accountants LLP, China for consolidation purposes.

i (BHhREBEY) B -
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26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 26. RBOFIRIRE ()
All the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company or jointly by the Company e LB AR BARRHAA R EENRB AR
and its subsidiaries. HEMERE -
Place of incorporation Number of wholly-owned
Principal activity TEEH and operation ERSIRES subsidiaries
2EMRELRHE
2023 2022
2023% 20226
Investment holding RERR Singapore s 1 1
Hong Kong i 10 10
BVI RERARES 10 10
PRC HE 2 2
Seychelles e 1 1
Macao BF 1 -
Waste water treaiment KRR PRC e 25 2
Water supply itk PRC i 3 3
Others it PRC mE 3 3
56 54
Place of incorporation Number of non-wholly
Principal activity TEEE and operation BERBIRESHE owned subsidiaries
2EMELFRE
2023 2022
2023 % 20225
Investment holding REER Hong Kong B 2 2
PRC HE 1 1
Waste water and sludge treatment KRS TREE PRC # 9% 94
Water supply fitk PRC H (] 6
Waste incineration EEEE PRC HE 3 3
Others ity PRC HE 7 7
113 13
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26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The tables below show details of the non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group that TREFREE2023F 22022512 A31 B LB
have material non-controlling interests for the financial years ended 31 December 2023 FERBENFERERNAERFLEMBAF
and 2022: Pz

26. RMEBLFRMRRA (K)

Proportion of
effective equity

Place of interest and voting Profit allocated
incorporation rights held by non- to non-controlling Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary and operation controlling interests interests controlling interests
FRRERFBER SETFHER
il VNGIEE FEM I R R R RERERELG #EanE REEREES
2023 2023 2023
2023F 20235 20235
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% UN:] b AE®TT
Longjiang Group and its subsidiaries PRC 42.0 112,597 2,021,802
BEISERARBRR FE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests 303,041 3,137,147
BERFERER AR EEEMB AR
415,638 5,158,949
Proportion of
effective equity
Place of interest and voting Profit allocated

incorporation

rights held by non-

to non-controlling

Accumulated non-

Name of subsidiary and operation controlling interests interests controlling interests
FERERBER AR T IR
Wit 1 BB 7 AR ST J 3B o it B e yeretidgll] ERFE RETIEERES
2022 2022 2022
20224 20224 20225
% RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARBTT ARBFT
Longjiang Group and its subsidiaries PRC 420 96,945 1,909,204
EIRERARBRRE FE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests 244,640 3,089,808
ARFERER AR EEEHB AR
341,585 4,999,012

Management determined that the remaining subsidiaries with non-controlling interests EEEETABIEERER 2R THBARMEAIE
are individually immaterial. RERX °
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26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 26. RBOFIRIRE ()

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s subsidiaries that has DPTEFIRAER R EENASERBE AR
material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial PBERBE - UTHBENHEEEENRAY

information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations. SHATH) %R o
Longjiang Longjiang
Group and its Group and its
subsidiaries subsidiaries
EISER BEIEE R
HE AR HINB A
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AREFT
Current assets MEEE 2,703,396 2,532,788
Non-current assets FRBEE 8,331,741 8,343,113
Current liabilities mEAE (3,140,177) (3,360,378)
Non-current liabilities FrReasE (4,288,668) (4,223,868)
Equity attributable to owners of the subsidiary B RREE AEGER 3,599,832 3,283,572
Non-controlling interests IR 6,460 8,083
Revenue WA 1,940,368 2,109,372
Profit for the year FRFE 314,637 277,094
Profit attributable to owners of the subsidiary MBA R %S AELFIE 316,260 278,583
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests SRR E R (1,623) (1,489)

Profit for the year, representing total FRFE  BFAZEREEE

comprehensive income for the year 314,637 277,094
Net cash inflow from operating activities REFHEEIRERAFE 1,082,216 272,231
Net cash outflow from investing activities RERDEAZASNLER (393,727) (83,319)
Net cash outflow from financing activities REFDELZASNLFR (267,247) (100,657)
Net cash inflow RERNFE 421,242 88,255
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RIE 2 TR R ()
ZRERMELARMAARERER
TRBERAKERTIIMBRAMOMARERE
BEHNETZEAAREEARGERNTE -

26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 26.
Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries

The following schedule shows the effects of change in the Group’s ownership interests
in the following subsidiaries without a change in control, on the equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

Group
*T5E
2023
2023
RMB'000
AREFT
Consideration for changes in ownership interest in subsidiary B AR A EE=EBEE (149,598)
Non-controlling interest acquired Wl FETE AR 2 230,743
Difference recognised in equity RS ERERE 81,145

Shanghai Fengxian West Wastewater Treatment Co., Ltd.

The Group’s subsidiary, Fudan Water Engineering And Technology Co., Ltd. (“Fudan
Group”), acquired the remaining 20% equity interest in Shanghai Fengxian West
Wastewater Treatment Co., Ltd. (“Fengxian®) for total consideration of RMB34,600,000,
increasing Fudan Group’s effective interest in Fengxian from 80% to 100% as at 31
December 2023.

SIIC Environment Holdings (Beihai) Co., Ltd.

The Group’s subsidiary, Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. (“Nanfang Group”), acquired 35%
equity interest in SIIC Environment Holdings (Beihai) Co., Ltd. (“Beihai") for total
consideration of RMB114,998,000, increasing the Group effective interest from 55% to
90% as at 31 December 2023.

Financial support

The Company has agreed to provide adequate funds to enable several of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries to meet in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due
for a period of twelve months from their issuance of their financial statements. These
subsidiaries are investment holding entities with minimal income and expenses. The
Company deemed minimal risk in, and is not contractually obliged to provide the
financial support.

HEEERPSKEEERAAF

AEENMBLR LBEEEKBIRRMERD
Al ([EEEE ) RE LEZERMTKERER
REI([EE]) MRT20%HKE  BHERARE
34,600,000 - BEERERFENERERH
80%3E MNZE2023F12 A31 HAY100% ©

TEREER (L) BARAT

AEENHMBAREAKBERAR ([HHE
B )i BRI () BRAE ([3L8])
f935% MRiE - HBEEAARE114,998,0007T « #
AEENBEREH55%EME2023E12 4310
f990% °

MEXE

ARRRABRERHES  BHAETZENEBA
AEHEERSE RN BRER ADEH + A
REBNERMERE - ZEHBRARAREZRE
B WSIAK - ARRRBREHEM B RN RRE
i AREELNEFAPWITE
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27. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 27. AELEESR
Group Company
340 3N
2023 2022 2023 2022
20235 20225 2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT UN: 5w ARETTT

Cost of unlisted investment in joint ventures REBLEEETREMKA 432,840 432,840 305,000 305,000
Share of post-acquisition reserves, e AR
net of dividend received HBRE MR S 34,820 46,179 - =
Foreign exchange difference HINIE = B8 56,565 38,744 50,474 35,632
524,225 517,763 355,474 340,632
Particulars of the Group's joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are as RIERR  AEBHSEREFERT -
follows:

Percentage of
effective equity

Place of interest and
incorporation and voting power
Name of joint venture operations Principal activities held by the Group
rEEMEERRE
SHLEER MR REE TEEE REERELAH
2023 2022
2023F 20225
0/l:i 0/0
Shanghai Pucheng Thermal Power Energy Co., Ltd.@  PRC Waste incineration power generation. 50 50
(“Shanghai Pucheng”)
EEERAERRERAR@ H BEIREZEE o 50 50
(T L85 ])
Wenling Hanyang Resources Power Co., Ltd. PRC Waste incineration power generation. 50 50
REHTERENEBRAR H EIREHE o 50 50
@ Audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, China for () HAHEMEEYEXKSHMEBHN (BHREAS
consolidation purposes. %) &t o
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27. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material interest in joint
venture, namely Shanghai Pucheng, is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial statements

prepared in accordance with SFRS(I).

27. ARLRESR (M)

MBREATOLHE

BRASERNAACE (A LEERY) NERER
METEENBEEIMT - TXHBERBIRER
BOAMKBERMERE L) RROGELERN

Shanghai Pucheng

LB
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TTT AREFT
Current assets mBEE 280,171 268,709
Non-current assets FRBEE 468,055 451,917
Current liabilities nEEE (137,033) (59,941)
Non-current liabilities FERBERE (66,213) (69,575)
Non-controlling interests FeR e RS (3,548) (4,946)
541,432 586,164
Shanghai Pucheng
LBHR
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TTT AREFT
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: A FEENBESEEENTRIE
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRLEEY 222,544 205,485
Revenue WA 285,520 337,190
Profit for the year FRFIE 1,528 33,372
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZENRE 1,528 33,372
Dividends paid during the year FRBMARE 47,241 61,413
The above profit for the year includes the following: FERFEEEATEE
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH (12,326) (18,974)
Interest income FBMA 2,932 3,917
Income tax expenses PSR (5,539) (12,783)
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27.

204

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 27. AELEES (M)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of LM B AR E SR GE M B RENERNNE
the interest in the joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial statements: BRENEENEREESE
Shanghai Pucheng
L
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Equity attributable to owners of the joint venture BEMCERA AEEES 541,432 586,164
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest REBFTA TG L) 50% 50%
270,716 293,082
Purchase price allocation adjustments BEENRRE 17,988 19,410
288,704 312,492
Foreign exchange difference HNE Z 50,474 35,632
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the joint venture AEERGERENERNRAE 339,178 348,124
Aggregate information of joint venture that is not individually material EmMEEREANEELERHESR
Group
58
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
The Group'’s share of profit AEERENE 10,929 11,540
The Group's share of total comprehensive income AEERGZEKERE 10,929 11,540
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interest AEERE B ENENEREE
in the joint venture 185,047 169,639
SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. LEEX£BIRERER A A



28.

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

28. MELFER

Group
50
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Cost of unlisted investment in associates REE AR EETIRERAE 247,934 247,934
Share of post-acquisition profits, net of dividend received B EEANE - HRERRE (14,525) (15,467)
233,409 232,467

Based on contractual arrangements between the Group and other investors, the Group
does not hold power over the associates via voting rights from majority of the board
of directors, where the relevant activities of the entities are determined by the board of
directors based on majority votes. Therefore, management of the Group concluded that
the Group has no control over the associates, and thus, all associates are accounted for
using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

REFSEEEMREETUNANRY  ~5E
TARBAEFEASURTRMBELEYE AR
EAEN MAEEBNEREDIHESERIE
AZHRETE - At - FREERERRFEEY
FZEMEDFWLEEGE  YABBME AR LER
BRERGAMBERERALR

RBRERR - AEEREQRNFENT :

Percentage of
effective equity

Place of interest and
incorporation and voting power
Name of associate operations Principal activities held by the Group
FREMSERRE
BREAFRE MR EEE TEEE RERELH
2023 2022
20234 20224
% %
Sichuan SIIC Environment Investment Development PRC Investment Holding. 30.0 30.0
Co., Ltd.@
)| EERFREERBRARE HE BREER - 30.0 30.0
Dongguan Changan Jinxia Sanzhou Water PRC Waste water treatment. 35.5 35.5
Purification Co., Ltd. (“Changan Sanzhou”)®
RERZBE=MNFKERAA (RZ=M])@ HE KR o 35.5 8585
Dongguan Changan Xinmin Water Purification PRC Waste water treatment. 30.4 30.4
Co., Ltd. (“Changan Xinmin")@
RemRZMRKEFEERAR ([REHR]) @ FE KRR o 30.4 30.4
Kunming Puzhao Water Purification Co., Ltd. PRC Waste water treatment. 30.0 30.0
(“Kunming Puzhao”)@-®
BRLRKEFEEERAR ([RBELR]) @ 0 FE KRR o 30.0 30.0
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28.

206

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

28. BELFES (M)

Percentage of

effective equity

Place of interest and
incorporation and voting power
Name of associate operations Principal activities held by the Group
FEEMSEMRRE
BRENFRE AR AL BB M B IEERY REBTRELG
2023 2022
2023%F 20225
% %
Ningan City Donghaiyang Water Supply Co., Ltd. PRC Water Supply. 15.0 15.0
(*Ningan Donghaiyang”)@:
ERMRGFHKEREEAR ([ELHREHF]) @0 FE fitK o 15.0 15.0
Shanghai Yangtze River Delta Water HK Investment Holding. 40.0 40.0
Environment Investment Fund Limited
FAR=AKREREESERAT S WEZR - 40.0 40.0
Luohe China Railway Weite Jingkai Water Co., Ltd. PRC Water Supply. 13.8 13.8
(“Luohe Jingkai")@®
B E B RKBERAR (DRALR]) @@ i itk o 13.8 13.8
Luohe China Railway Weite Magou Water Co., Ltd. PRC Water Supply. 13.8 13.8
(*Luohe Magou”)@@
BAREBESAKBERAR (DRAFE]) @O FE ok o 13.8 13.8
@ Audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, China for @ BREEENSEHEKSHMEBR (FRERE

consolidation purposes.

%) EZ -

(d)

Kunming Puzhao's 30.0% effective equity interest was held by Nanfang Water. The Group
exercises significant influence via direct controlling interest in its immediate holding
company, Nanfang Water.

Although the Group holds less than 20% of the effective equity interest of Ningan
Donghaiyang, the Group exercises significant influence via direct controlling interest in its
immediate holding company, Longjiang Group, which holds 25.9% equity interest in Ningan
Donghaiyang.

Although the Group holds less than 20% of the effective equity interest of Luohe Jingkai
and Luohe Magou, the Group exercises significant influence via direct controlling interest
in their immediate holding company, Henan Wennuo, which holds 25.0% equity interest in
Luohe Jingkai and Luohe Magou.

There is no material interest in associate for the financial years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

EHERIN0.0%ERMEREHKEHE - A%
BEaREERERA R KBNERERES
MHERAERENEATE -

BEAEEMSEZREFNERBETZ20%
AEEBBNAERERAREIEE (BEER
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28. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

29.

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material

28. BELFES (M)

BAMELEFEXHHELRARHESR

Group
F5%E
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
The Group’s share of profit AEBEGFE 3,916 10,918
The Group’s share of total comprehensive income AEERGZEREEE 3,916 10,918
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests in these REERZEHE A TNERNRREE
associates 233,409 232,467
GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION 29. SHfEE
Group
F%E
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETT
Cost B¥F
At beginning of the year and at end of the year FORER 493,599 493,599
Accumulated impairment losses Rt EER
At beginning of the year and at end of the year FMRER 36,358 36,358
Carrying amount IREE 457,241 457,241

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash
generation units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that business combination.

The carrying amount of the goodwill had been allocated as follows: N

EBAMHESHBENERK DEZRHTAZE
BafXanRieELEN - BENREED KR
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29. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION (continued) 29. SHEE (M)
Carrying amount Carrying amount
of goodwill before recognition  of goodwill after recognition
Name of subsidiaries CGU of impairment loss of impairment loss
il VNGIEE BeELEl REZAEERINEEREE RERESRENEEEEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023F 20226 2023F 2022F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT UN: 5 ARETFT
SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.@ Municipal EPC 36,358 36,358 - -
EREER (FUE) BRARE TIKREPC
Lap Yin International Limited® Waste incineration power generation 6,692 6,692 6,692 6,692
VEBRBERARO ERFEE
SIIC Environment (Taizhou) Waste Water Waste water treatment 2,858 2,858 2,858 2,858
Treatment Co., Ltd.®
ERE (AaM) akEBERARY KRR
Fudan Water® Waste water treatment 447,691 447 691 447,691 447 691
ERKBL KRR
493,599 493,599 457,241 457,241

@ The recoverable amounts of the CGU has been determined based on value in use
calculations using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Management has considered and determined the factors applied
in the financial budgeted gross margins and average growth rates. The budgeted gross
margins are based on past performances and its expectation of market developments for the
segment. Based on the assessment performed, management has fully impaired the goodwill.

®  Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated from the
continuing use of waste water treatment plants/waste incineration power generation plant
over the service concession period ranging from 20 to 30 years, using a discount rate of
8.0% (2022: 8.0%). Management believes that this forecast period is justifiable due to the
long term nature of the projects. Any reasonably possible change to the key assumptions
applied is not likely to cause the recoverable amount to be below the carrying amounts of
the CGU.

Material accounting policy information

Goodwill arising from business combination is not amortised but is reviewed for
impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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O ReELBNNAKREEENEREEEENT
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AHE - EEECREERENE -

O FREEDRBEEBRESRTKEER EE
EER (RBFIFCERNT T05E305) MEE
BIARIRE £ M1%8.0% (20224 : 8.0%) HIHT TR 47
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30. HHAREMEMRET

Group Company
50 3|
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 % 20225 2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT AR®TT AREFT
Trade payables EHEMAR 2,324,757 2,242,392 - =
Others Hoh 1,981,676 1,669,626 163,773 151,070
4,306,433 3,912,018 163,773 151,070
()  The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the () MNBREHREREZEAH2IIMEHENTE
invoice date at the end of the reporting period: BIERER A ATIAT -
Group
*50E

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TT ARBFT
Within 30 days 30BA 702,713 1,066,380
Within 31 to 60 days 31ZE60HA 93,223 123,720
Within 61 to 90 days 61Z290H A 57,274 52,847
Within 91 to 180 days 91Z180HR 124,272 159,635
Within 181 to 365 days 181E365HA 641,800 140,732
Over 365 days HBiE365H 705,475 699,078
2,324,757 2,242,392
(ii)  The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days (2022: 30 to 90 days). (i) BEMFHEEHA0E0H (2022F : 30

No interest is charged on the overdue outstanding balances. Z90R) - HEE B A RIERF S o
(iii) Included in other payables and accruals as at 31 December 2023 were (a) (i) R2023%12 A31 8 Ky HE ftn fE 3008 R et

customer advances of RMB539,024,000 (2022: RMB564,642,000); (b)
amount due to non-controlling shareholders of RMB219,695,000 (2022:
RMB262,077,000); and (c) sundry payables of RMB672,623,000 (2022:
RMB390,497,000), mainly due to monies received on behalf of third parties

(including government).

31. BILLS PAYABLE TO BANKS

BERBE(QEFBHARKS539,024,0007T
(20224 : AR¥564,642,0007T) : (b)FEST
IR AR IR ER B A R 219,695,000 7T (2022
£ ANR#262,077,0007T) : R (c)ER
B ARM672,623,0007T (20224 : AR
390,497,0007c) - TEARKRE=H (B
B ) BT RE

31. BETRE
ENRTREAREREETERTRRRITH

Bills payable to banks are interest-free and secured by certain bank deposits pledged
with the issuing banks. The average credit period is 90 to 180 days (2022: 90 to 180

days).

RITEREERE - FHEEHAI0E180H (2022

F

90E180R) °
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32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

210

32. @TRAMER

Group Company
F5%E b /N
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023% 20225 2023 20225
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AREEFT AR®TR AREEFT
Bank loans RITER 17,164,566 14,600,924 3,547,536 1,960,206
Other borrowings® Hibfgme 76,904 1,516,163 - -
Corporate bonds® NEIEHRY 2,993,898 2,993,697 2,993,898 2,993,697
Government loans BRER 23,431 36,755 - -
20,258,799 19,147,539 6,541,434 4,953,903
Analysed as: DT
Current ED 5,767,008 3,772,704 3,547,536 1,960,206
Non-current FERE 14,491,791 15,374,835 2,993,898 2,993,697
20,258,799 19,147,539 6,541,434 4,953,903
@ Other borrowings include amount due to SIHL Finance Limited (“SIHLFL") of NIL (2022: @ HAfEREHEEMSIHL Finance Limited ([SIHLFL])
RMB1,396 million). SIHLFL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company’s intermediate FIEZ (20224 : ARM13.96/87T) ° SIHLFLAZA
holding company, Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited. DNEFNERAR LEEEERER AR EMN
BAR] .
®  The Company has completed the issuance of two tranches of the Corporate Bonds o AREABSRIR2021EIA R AELEELRRS
amounting to RMB1,500,000,000 each in March and November 2021 on the Shanghai Stock FERBETRMARAES  SHASBEAARK
Exchange which bears interest at 3.89% and 3.40% per annum for the first and second 1,500,000,0007C * F—ERE_HBESHFHE
tranches respectively. The maturity date of the Corporate Bonds is five years from the S R153.89%13.40% » A EEH BT BBk
issuance date. AEFHE
The Company has the discretion to adjust the interest rate of the Corporate Bonds in the ARAARE=FREREARBFONE - Bz
third year. Pursuant to the relevant terms of the issuance of the two tranches of Corporate BIMARADNEFNARGT - RAEFFEAR
Bonds, holders of the Corporate Bonds have an option to partially or fully sell back the BEREETHREHE="FREBANARABES
Corporate Bonds to the Company at the end of the third year from the issuance date. The HEHHARIES - ARAESHEETARER
Company has committed financing arrangements in place with financial institutions, for the B WEFBEARBERARGES  SREET
financial institutions to directly take up the Corporate Bonds, through the arranger for the BRNAESFTHEABERENRRES
Corporate Bonds, should the bondholders chose to redeem the Corporate Bonds.
Details of collateral ERREE

Certain bank and other borrowings are secured/guaranteed by the Group’s assets which
are disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements.

ETROTREMERGAESEEEFER /£
R FERERNABRERMEL2 -

Group Company
x50 . SN

2023 2022 2023 2022
2023%F 20224 20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT AR®TT ARETT
Secured/guaranteed BEM /R 9,261,883 10,052,908 - =
Unsecured/unguaranteed B BIER 10,996,916 9,094,631 6,541,434 4,953,903
20,258,799 19,147,539 6,541,434 4,953,903

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH



32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Details on interest rates

The table below summarises the interest rate categories of the Group's and the
Company's borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

32. BITREMER (K)

FIEER
TREARBE RRAEERAR B EHOMN LR
Al :

Group Company
350 S|
2023 2022 2023 2022
20235 20224 20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT AR®TRT AREFT
Interest-free borrowings EEER 2,056 2,056 - =
Fixed-rate borrowings TEEBER 4,532,576 3,815,538 3,723,898 3,113,697
Variable-rate borrowings ZEMER 15,724,167 15,329,945 2,817,536 1,840,206
20,258,799 19,147,539 6,541,434 4,953,903
The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings are AEBRAARERNERFIRGERNT
as follows:
Group Company
350 |
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 20224 2023 20224
Fixed-rate borrowings (per annum) EEEN(BE) 0.8%103.9% 08%t055% 3.2%103.9% 3.2%1t03.9%
0.8%%E3.9% 08%%E55% 3.2%%E3.9% 3.2%%3.9%
Variable-rate borrowings (per annum) FEEN(BE) 0.8%106.6% 08%t07.4% 5.0%1t06.5% 1.2%1t07.4%
0.8%X6.6% 08%%E7.4% 5.0%%E6.5% 1.2%%7.4%

For the variable-rate borrowings, majority of the contracted interest rates are based on
floating market rates at a discount of 10% to a markup of 20%, repriced at intervals

ranging from monthly to annually.

=

HEBEFHME - KB AHFELERYTE10%
ERE0%MFBTENE - YNEAZEFHHE
BEMTE -

Details on contractual maturity dates SHNFIH HHE
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s TREAR IS BARREE KRR ARG RS
borrowings at the end of the reporting period: 15 :
Group Company
50 3|
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 % 20225 20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT AR®TR ARETT
Carrying amount repayable: EEEERRE :
Within one year —FR 5,767,008 3,772,704 3,547,536 1,960,206
Between one to two years —EWEA 2,407,080 2,286,606 - =
Between two to five years WERER 6,664,646 7,528,274 2,993,898 2,993,697
Over five years BRRF 5,420,065 5,559,955 - -
20,258,799 19,147,539 6,541,434 4,953,903
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33. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

33. RfiFRBAR

Group

50
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Accruals for benefits due to ex-employees FE AR BB M MERT IR E 36,204 39,171
Provision for major overhauls BEAREEE 42,890 39,090
Others Hitp 36,069 70,710
115,163 148,971

Provision for major overhauls

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group has contractual obligations
to maintain the waste water and water treatment plants to a specified level of
serviceability and/or to restore the plants to a specified condition before they are
handed over to the grantors at the end of the service concession periods. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the waste water and water treatment
plants, except for any upgrade element, are recognised and measured in accordance
with SFRS(I) 1-37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, i.e., at the
best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The future expenditure on these maintenance and
restoration costs is collectively referred to as “major overhauls”. The estimation basis is
reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where appropriate.

Movements in provision for major overhauls are as follows:

EXRER R

RERBEFLLEHZE  AREARBANAEES
KRKEEBAER T REBEKTORBR,/ %
ERBEFEERDERBEEZSHEBRTET
AZHEEBEERTMRE - BERARE  ZF
RERBETKRKEERNAOEFERSHR
R GRS EIR M RS 2R ) #1-37 55744 -
AERERAFEERUFTRANINRBRENR
X REGE R R E - BRAEZSRERE
ERANRX —HRAIEXRE] - et EEEH
Elpat  YREERELER -

EAREREEDNT :

Group
F5%E
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
At beginning of the year 1) 39,090 38,758
Provision made during the year FREE 3,800 332
At end of the year FR 42,890 39,090
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34.

35.

(a)

SHARE CAPITAL 34. BF
Group and Company
FEERFLT
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
EiEReA &
RMB'000
ARETT
Issued and paid up share capital BEETRBEREK
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 20221 B1H « 202212 8318 )
202312 A31H 2,575,665,726 5,920,175
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared LBBBFEAGRRNARBMEL S REKIURE -
by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction. The FEEAREFE—ZATERY - THRRTER
ordinary shares have no par value. B
OTHER RESERVES 35. HfthGkim
Group Company
*%E r. /N
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023F 20225 20235 20225
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

IN: 4 ARETT

IN:L 4 ARETT

General reserve —R 754,717 625,982 - -
Investment revaluation reserve REEGHE = = = =
Translation reserve I % G (369,546) (203,033) 739,620 460,077
Effects of changes in ownership interests in RITB AR A EERE

subsidiaries where there is no change in EEHIETZNTE

control 70,979 (10,166) - —
Merger reserve BHEE (200,315) (200,315) - -

255,835 212,468 739,620 460,077

General reserve (a) —MRGEfR
In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of PRC, companies in PRC are BEFERBZERESR  FERRIAGEEER
required to set aside a general reserve fund by way of appropriation from their statutory FENETE SRR R 2 MEEEFAER R L 10%
net profit reported in PRC statutory financial statements at a rate of 10% for each year. tER—MEE - KRBERBIAE - ZE2TARK
Subject to approval from PRC authorities, the fund may be used to offset accumulated SHEFTBRENEMTBAREMER - BEENE
losses or increase the registered capital of the subsidiary. The appropriation is required A REERNB A B ME ARR50%E 5 A
until the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the subsidiary’s registered capital. This e ZAEAERE I TRERRRDRRE -

statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution to the shareholders.
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35.
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

36.

37.

214

OTHER RESERVES (continued)
Investment revaluation reserve

The investments revaluation reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising
on the revaluation of investments in equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI, net of
cumulative gain/loss transferred to retained earnings upon disposal.

Investments in equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI are not subject to
impairment, and their cumulative fair value gain/loss included in the investments
revaluation reserve is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different
from that of the Group’s and Company’s presentation currency.

Effects of changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries where there is no
change in control

This represents the effects of changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries when there
is no change in control.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between consideration and equity acquired in a
business combination involving entities under common control.

DIVIDENDS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, an interim one-tier tax exempt
dividend of S$0.005 per ordinary share, totalling S$12.8 million (RMB69.8 million)
was declared and paid in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2023. A final
one-tier tax exempt dividend of S$0.01 per ordinary share, totalling $$25.8 million
(RMB132.9 million) was declared and paid in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2022.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, an interim one-tier tax exempt
dividend of S$0.005 per ordinary share, totalling S$12.8 million (RMB70.7 million)
was declared and paid in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2022. A final
one-tier tax exempt dividend of S$0.01 per ordinary share, totalling S$25.8 million
(RMB121.4 million) was declared and paid in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2021.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012 and SIIC
Environment Share Award Scheme on 27 April 2012. The ESOS 2012 shall continug in
force at the discretion of the remuneration committee, subject to a maximum period of
ten years commencing 27 April 2012 and expired on 27 April 2022.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

35.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

36.

37.
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)

SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012 (the “ESOS 2012”)/SIIC
Environment Share Award Scheme (the “ESAS”)

The ESOS 2012 is a share incentive scheme. The ESOS 2012 is proposed on the basis
that it is important to retain and to give recognition to the Group full time employees,
Group Executive Directors and employees of the ultimate holding company and the
holding company of the Company and their subsidiaries (“Parent Group”), and to
give recognition to Group Non-Executive Directors and Parent Group Non-Executive
Directors who have contributed to the success and development of the Company and/
or the Group. The ESOS 2012 will give such persons an opportunity to have a real and
personal direct interest in the Company and to align the interests of such persons with
those of the shareholders of the Company.

The ESAS is a performance incentive scheme which will form an integral part of the
Group’s incentive compensation program. The purpose of the ESAS is to provide an
opportunity for the Group full time employees, Parent Group Employees and Directors
of the Group and Parent Group, who have met performance targets to be remunerated
not just through cash bonuses but also an equity stake in the Company. The ESAS is
also extended to the Group Non-Executive Directors and Parent Group Non-Executive
Directors.

For purpose of ESOS 2012 and ESAS, Non-Executive Director refers to a Director other
than an Executive Director, including an Independent Director.

The aggregate number of shares comprised in options granted to controlling
shareholders or their associate(s) under the ESOS 2012 shall not exceed 25% of the
total number of shares (comprised in options and ESAS Awards) which may be granted
under the ESOS 2012 and ESAS. The aggregate number of shares comprised in options
granted to each controlling shareholder or their associate(s) shall not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares (comprised in options and ESAS Awards) which may be
granted under the ESOS 2012 and ESAS.

The total number of new Shares which may be issued pursuant to the awards granted
under the ESAS (“ESAS Awards”) granted on any date, when aggregated to the number
of new Shares issued and/or issuable in respect of all ESAS Awards and any other
share-based incentive schemes of the Company, shall not exceed fifteen per cent (15%)
of the issued share capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares) from time to
time.

37.

IR a3 5 ()

2012F L RIBRMAREAD ([2012F LRE
EMREHE ) LRBRRRHEMHE (L
KRERGEmMAD])

012F L EREREBEL 8IR — BRI EBE 8
012F LEREBRIESENERRERKGA
SE2BER  SERNTEZEUARKRRERKER
RRAMZRARREMBAR ([RAREE]) &
BEDNTHER  IRBRARAR /XA EE
MR R BEREHERNEEFATESZRERA
SEEATES - 2012F LEREBRENEH
BAEATARERAAREFAEEREANER
Mzt - WRESALHMSERAARRRAOFEE —
o

LERERD BB R -RRESDHE - KB
KASEZBRESNARSD - LERERD
REANANRAERRA B BRNASEZBIE
8§ BRFRKEREANALELFAREEES
RUtKE  FRETERBRSTARGEMN 7
BRETARARNBRE - EERREMRN RE)F ST
SEFRNTESREARKEGNTESSE -

20125 L EREBIREN B R LERERD BB
AEIME  FRTEFERTERIIMES (B
RBEVESR)

RIZ20125F EERBHIES 81 TERBRK
REBBANBBIEN 2 OB DA SEBRE
01F LERFEBRE AR LERERD B
AETREREORN (BREBRER EERER
BB AT &I 2B ) BEIN25% » BARERRRHR
EHEANERNEREN SRR SEARE
0126 L EREREBER 8 R L ERERD BB
BaRRLnkD (BEEBRER LERERD
RE)F 3B LEBA10% -

RIE L ERA R SRE) Rt 8IMEA B HR A0 2R
([ EBRBM A LB 8 2R ) M Al e AT RO
Bagm Lot A EERE B SRR 8RB AR
REEFMEGRN BB EAEETR HARE
TRHRNEE - TREBARATHERTRA
(T REEFRN) MBS Z TH(15%) °
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37.

38.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)

SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012 (the “ES0S 2012”)/SIIC
Environment Share Award Scheme (the “ESAS”) (continued)

The validity period of options that are granted under the ESOS 2012 (“ESOS 2012
Options”) is five years from the date of offer of such options. Under the ESOS 2012,
the subscription prices of ESOS 2012 Options granted by the Company will be at the
Market Price of a Share at the time of grant, as determined by reference to the daily
official list or any other publication published by the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited for the five consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer of such option. ESOS 2012 Options will not be granted at a discount to the Market
Price.

During the financial years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no ESOS 2012 Options
or ESAS Awards were granted and there were no outstanding share options or awards
under the ESOS 2012 Options or ESAS Awards as at year end.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

Acquisition of Yun Shui Technology Co., Ltd. (“Yun Shui”)

On 3 November 2022, the Group had entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement
with a third party, Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. to buy 100% equity interest in
Yun Shui through its indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Global Environment Investment
(HK) Limited, at a consideration of RMB296,260,000. The consideration was arrived
based on the total identifiable net asset value of the shares acquired of approximately
RMB296,260,000. The acquisition is funded through the Group’s internal resources. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group have paid RMB296,260,000 to the vendor
in cash. Yun Shui is principally involved in the operation of 3 water treatment plants
and 1 water supply with total design capacity of 160,000 tonnes/day, and is based in
provinces of Jiangsu and Zhejiang, PRC.

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss

Transaction costs related to the acquisition amounting to RMB1,141,000 had been
recognised in the “Administrative expenses” line item in the Group’s profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

From the date of acquisition, Yun Shui contributed revenue of RMB24,879,000 and net
profit of RMB110,000 to the Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning
of the financial year, the Group's revenue and profit after tax would have increased by
RMB111,296,000 and RMB16,762,000 respectively. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessary an indication of revenue and profit of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2022, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (continued)
Acquisition of Yun Shui Technology Co., Ltd. (“Yun Shui”) (continued)

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss (continued)

Details of the assets acquired, liabilities recognised and consideration transferred in

38. ULREPRE LT ()

BREEKBEARLE (TEK]) (8)

BERHARNEE (F)

BRLABREEENABREE  BRAERER

respect of the above acquisition are as follows: HERFEOT
Yun Shui
S
RMB'000
ARETT
Consideration HE
Cash paid BffEE 296,260
Total &&f 296,260
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities recognised at REBRERRAZMKBEEERRERARZ
the date of acquisition DAEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - BERS&E 118
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H M e RIE 115,217
Prepayments BRHIE 33,920
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 16,620
Inventories TE 443
Intangible assets BHEE 372,555
Deferred tax assets ELEHBEE 677
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMEMRIE (148,640)
Bank borrowings RITIE (94,650)
296,260
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition BEEENFRSRE
Cash consideration paid BERBREEE 296,260
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B TREBRE RAEEED (16,620)
Net cash outflow on acquisition WEERFR SN 279,640

Annual Report 2023 £ 3§

217



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT M

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

38.

218

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (continued)
Material accounting policy information
Business combinations

The Group accounts for the above business combination using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in the business combination is the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of cash transferred by the Group and liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree, in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred in the consolidated financial
statements.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value, except that deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
and measured in accordance with SFRS(I) 1-12.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the ‘measurement period" (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as at that date.
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY

Disposal of Dazhou Jiajing Environment Renewable Resource Co., Lid.
(“Dazhou”) and Shenxian Si Environment Protection Energy Co., Ltd.
(“Shenxian”)

In August 2022, the Group through its wholly owned subsidiary, Hongkong Nany
New Energy (Dazhou) Limited, disposed the entire 100% equity interest in Dazhou
Jiajing Environment Renewable Resource Co., Ltd. (‘Dazhou”) for consideration of
RMB283,281,000 to an associate. The consideration was arrived at after arm’s length
negotiation based on normal commercial terms. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group have received cash consideration amounting to RMB283,281,000.

In August 2022, the Group through its subsidiary, Fudan Water Engineering
And Technology Co., Ltd., disposed the entire 51% equity interest in Shenxian
Si Environment Protection Energy Co., Ltd. (“Shenxian”) for consideration of
RMB4,131,000 to a third party. The consideration was arrived at after arm's length
negotiation based on normal commercial terms. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has received the full cash consideration.

Further details of the consideration, and assets and liabilities disposed of in respect of
the disposed subsidiaries during the reporting period are set out below:

HEHBLF
HEEMERBRBERERRAT (TEM])
RERLRBRERARAR (TFR])

R2022487 - AEEBEBEZENBAREES
BEER(EN ARAREERENERRRE
EERERAE ([EM]) K2 E100% HHE T —MH
BenE - WEAARY283,281,0007T « HED
BEEFAEETELTERRER - REEH
K AEEEREREHEARE283,281,0007T ©

202268 F - AEEEBENERR LBEEK
BIRBMARARAN - LE=ZFHELH LER
REERAMATR ([FE5H]) 251 %MHE - H(E
BAR®4,131,0007T - HEDRELEEBRER
BOTERRER - RBRSHR  FREEKE2
BRGHIE -

KEHA - BEHLEMBARMNYE MHEEE
FABRE—SHIERIINT -

Dazhou Shenxian
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT

Analysis of assets and liabilities over REEHENEEREEDIN

which control was lost
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 102,768 636
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E MR 72,929 204
Inventories 78 1,017 -
Receivables under service concession arrangements PRI EE LT HEA T UGB 549,357 4,500
Prepayments ERHE 1,876 =
Property, Plant and Equipment M - BE REE 72,233 -
Intangibles assets mREE 224,124 -
Right-of-use assets FRELE 10,910 -
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEAFE (342,019) (90)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER (384,739) =
Deferred tax liabilities EREFIEAE (26,298) =
Non-controlling interest RS - (2,573)
282,158 2,677
Gain on disposal HE W&

Cash consideration HEeHE 283,281 4,131
Less: Net assets disposed of B THEFEE (282,158) (2,677)
1,123 1,454
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39.

40.
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Disposal of Dazhou Jiajing Environment Renewable Resource Co., Lid.
(“Dazhou”) and Shenxian Si Environment Protection Energy Co., Ltd.
(“Shenxian”) (continued)

The subsidiaries disposed of during the period did not have a significant contribution
to the results and cash flows of the Group during the period prior to the disposal.

Material accounting policy information

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised
in profit or loss is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), less liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All exchange differences accumulated in
the foreign exchange translation reserve in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor

Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate to property leases on its office
premises with lease terms between 1 to 5 years. The lessee does not have an option to
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

Maturity analysis of operating lease payments:

39.

40.

S B 2 F] (4)
HEEMERBRERBERERAMAR (TEM])
RERLRBRFRERARAR (TER]) (1))

MR ENMBARRHERMARAETRENE
BRATRELBENEH -

EXEHBEAH

EAREEREHMBARMOESNE - AIEERER
BRENTRENZBRERAE : ()2 REED
AABEAFNREEZNALEENAE R
(iNZEMBARMEBE (BHEAE) RABNRER
IR AT IREE - TERADRIBEARE
HEBRINERERFBRANELZBNERIR

R

#EHR
FREERHEA

AEEERHEAZKREHERARBA—ERF
ZHRDENEZNFREFE - ARARERER
BEEBEZME -

RERE NIRRT -

Group
F5H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
Within one year —FR 3,057 3,255
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEERF (OHEERMEF) 7,696 7,647
After five years AF#k 6,794 7,282
17,547 18,184
Material accounting policy information EXEHBEEH
The Group as lessor AEEERDEA

The Group enters into lease agreement as a lessor with respect to its office premises.

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating lease.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on
straight-lined basis over the lease term.

When a contract lease includes lease and non-lease components, the Group applies
SFRS(I) 15 to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component.
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4.

42.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS M. BXERIE
Group
F5£M
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT AREFT
Capital expenditure contracted for BHAUTHEENDED
but not provided in the consolidated BARESEMBRENEED
financial statements in respect of BEARZ
— Additions in construction-in-progress — EMEARBTEELHERN
relating to service concession arrangement EEIR 555,484 1,087,277
PLEDGE ON ASSETS 42. BEEH

The aggregate carrying value of assets pledged by the Group to secure banking facilities
granted by these banks, leased assets by leasing company and use of certain operating
concession assets are as follows:

FEERESRARTHORITEEEE HEAF
MBEEEEREAE THITCEEAEMERNEE
HIRREEARENT

Group

F5H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Pledged bank deposits BHIRRITER 63,010 93,880
Property, plant and equipment Mz - BE &EE 6,392 7,927
Intangible assets BREE 1,432,240 1,413,402
Land use rights THFRE 555 671
Trade receivables B 5 EWGE 159,450 143,049
Receivables under service concession arrangements BRAS EaF A& 2 HEE T R MEE 13,465,554 13,407,455
15,127,201 15,066,384

Company

b /N
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Investment in a subsidiary R B A B MRE 260,000 150,000
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. BBARS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial BRAAR BT Bk Eo At 5 FT iR R OB B 7 A KON
statements, the Group had the following significant related party transactions which AEERAFREEBATEITOFETEOR—K
were carried out in the normal course of business as agreed between the parties during ERBRPRINERBB RS

the financial year:

Group
F5%E
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®ET T
Related party Nature of transactions
RBk 7 zHKYE
Wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company’s intermediate Interest expenses
holding company FIEFE
ARAAHRNERABMNZENB A 61,252 53,721
Compensation of Directors and key management personnel EFRIETEEARHH
Group
F5%E
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETT
Wages, salaries and bonus T& e RIELA 52,065 50,766
Defined benefit contributions REBHM R 5,791 5,623
Others HAih 1,100 886
58,956 57,275
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 43.

Compensation of Directors and key management personnel (continued)
Notes:

(i)  Mr. Jiang Kai was appointed as a director of the Company on 20 October 2023.
(i)~ Mr. Yang Xing was appointed as a director of the Company on 20 October 2023.
(iii)  Mr. Yang Jianwei resigned as a director of the Company on 2 October 2023.

(iv)  Mr. Huang Hanguang resigned as a director of the Company on 20 October 2023.

(v)  Mr. Yang Wei was appointed as a director on 25 May 2022 and resigned as a director of the
Company on 20 October 2023.

(vi)  Mr. Zhou Jun resigned as a director of the Company on 18 November 2023.
(vii)  Mr. Zhao Youmin resigned as a director of the Company on 25 May 2022.

(viii) The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

(ix)  The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their
services as directors of the Company.

(x)  Bonuses were determined with reference to the Group's operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

(xi)  No remuneration were paid by the Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group do not include any executive directors of
the Company for the financial years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. Details of the
remuneration are as follows:

ABAX S (&)

ESREETERARTH (W)
3L

()  BELER202F10A08EZTALARES -
(i) BELEN2023FI0F08EZFTALAARES -
(i) FBREEEN2023F10F2AEHIARAES -

(iv) FEEXRFTER2023F10A20BEHERLDAES -

(v)  BREEN202FE5A25BER T AE SR 2023
FI0A20HBEARAES ©

(vi) BEXLN2023FE11F18ABREARRES -
(vii) BRREER20265825BBTANEES °

(vii) XFRRITERNHFMIRREMBHEEEAR
AIRAKEEBEBNREM XA -

(x) EXFRBUEMTEENHMIRREEELAR
AEERBRANRB DA

(x) FRADESEAKEEERE BAARBRILR
WTISAE TETE

(xi) AEELEFAARDEEINHMERREMAZL
AR S B A 82E) - RIFRREEMAEE -

BZE2023F 202212 AN B BEE - A%
ERAReHEMALEABERRAEFMHNTE
o HMFENT

Group

50
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Salaries and other allowances e REA R, 6,205 7,343
Bonuses AN 2,593 2,137
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BREFIEEIHER 778 551
9,576 10,031
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

44,

43. WBAEH (K)

Compensation of Directors and key management personnel (continued) EFRIETEBARHH ()
The remunerations were within the following bands: HHEEDNT
Group
50
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAH EEAH
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 7c£2,000,0007% T (FHERARE
(equivalent to RMB1,289,001 to RMB1,719,000) 1,289,001 702 AR #1,719,0007T) 4 2
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 7L £2,500,00078 T (HHER AR
(equivalent to RMB1,719,001 to RMB2,149,000) 1,719,001t 2 AR #2,149,0007T) = 2
HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000 3,500,001/%7c%£4,000,000/8 7T (HHERARE
(equivalent to RMB3,008,001 to RMB3,438,000) 3,008,001t = AKX #3,438,0007T) 1 1
5 5

No remuneration were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

AEEYERDLFHHALOER — 2 THMH
ERBEEMARRMARE B0 2E - RERE

EREEE -
SEGMENT INFORMATION 44, SBEH
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business segments based on BEEME ASERBEERKRBEIEHD
their products and services, and has three reportable segments as follows: i ZEA2HH AT

(i) Water and Sludge Treatment:

Principal activities include construction, management and operation of water
and sludge related infrastructure under service concession arrangements and
management and operation of water and sludge related infrastructure under non-
service concession arrangements and financial income under service concession

arrangements.

(ii) Water Supply:

Principal activities include construction, management and operation of water
supply related infrastructure under service concession arrangements.

(iii) Waste incineration:

Principal activities include construction, management and operation of waste
incineration related infrastructure under service concession arrangements.

(i) KRFEEH :
TREBBRERBRFEE LA K
RiaeEEnERRENER  BEREE
BRI EE ZHR T EKRITRA
PR AR R A S IE RE E AR R
ELHETHERKEA -

(i) #%k:
z%%% RERBEACERHEEATR
BB RS BAUKRBOERRE -

(iii) EERE :

TEXGBHRERBEFCELHETE
iR EIE AR R R AR R R AR AR
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44, SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

226

(iii) Waste incineration: (continued)

Other operations include design and consultancy on the projects and installation
of water meters. None of these segments meets any of the quantitative thresholds
for determining reportable segments in 2023 or 2022.

Management monitors the operating results of its business segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Group’s
financing and income taxes are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated
to operating segments. Unallocated assets/liabilities mainly comprise of corporate
assets and liabilities, tax assets and liabilities and interest income and expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on agreed-term basis in a manner
similar to transactions with third parties.
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(iii) EERE : ()
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5% o 20235 520224 » ZEH BHAEE
BT 2RSBOEMEERE -

EEEDHES H%ﬂ”*m,ﬁé%%ﬁ
EHARBRD R EEFHEAREK -E‘
RADRBE BRI -

2% EAENAGERRERTRE
WHIER - AREMATRAERAE
(&1

e NS
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ERNWNER - AEENRERPIERTY
LA
7

=7 fi
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44, SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

44, HPEH (1)

Business segments EBESD
Water and Total for
sludge Water Waste  Reportable Others
All amount in RMB'000 treatment supply incineration Segments segment  Unallocated  Consolidated
128§
R EAARET it KRFREE #x BERE AHEE RtoH £ ait
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
023 2023% 2023% 20235 023 023 2023%
Revenue WA 5,030,061 1,376,001 976,180 1,382,242 190,650 - 1,572,892
Reportable segment profit (loss) from operations EEEGE N ) 1,649,102 183,929 346,155 2,179,186 50,574 (127,584) 2,102,176
Finance income BEIA - - - - - 28,805 28,805
Finance expenses BHER - - - - - (834,254)  (834,254)
Other non-operating income HtbIEEERA (97,968) 43,361 18 (54,589) - 136,704 82,115
Share of resuls of associates EEHELNTEE 2,791 - - 2,791 1,125 - 3,916
Share of resuls of joint ventures EEAELEEE - - 10,762 10,762 - - 10,762
Income tax expense fERmR (197.976)  (57,354) (52735 (308,065) (8,863)  (56.9%6)  (373,864)
Profit after tax ik 1,019,656
Seqment depreciation and amortisation PHEREH 329,629 107,369 2 431,022 251 12,107 449,380
Segment non-cash income AHERERA - - - - 164 - 164
Segment non-cash expenses APERERY (25,990) (1,408) - (27,398) - - (27,398)
Segment assets PHEE 29,730,897 5,658,851 5,587,673 40,977,321 538,585 31421 41,821,321
Interest in joint ventures REMSER - - 524,225 524,225 - - 524,025
Interest in associates BEnaER 93,056 - - 93,056 107,987 32,366 233,400
BOABESARR
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss REREE 6,506 - - 6,506 3,073 - 9,579
Financial assets at fair value through other BORBEFALDZENE

comprehensive income REREE 10,400 - - 10,400 3,000 - 13,400
Total assels BESE 42,607,940
Segment liabilities HEHafE 10,792,646 2,604,892 3,912,881 17,310,419 1,307,950 8,600,115 27,317,484
Segment capital expenditure AHEREY 780,287 217,125 - 997,412 96 24 997,532
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44, SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

44, HHEH(E)

Business segments (continued) EBSWH (&)
Water and Total for
sludge Water Waste Reportable Others
All amount in RMB'000 {reatment supply incineration Segments segment Unallocated ~ Consolidated
EEE:
FESEUNARETTH KRARER itk EE%E R Ok AR Gl
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022
ANE ANE ANE ANE 0%E A0%E AN%E
Revene HA 40907 13065 17896 7815 46839 S XY
Reportable segment profit (10ss) from operations ERABEETE (B8 1526,198 153,457 329187 2,008,842 100,676 (58,722) 2,050,796
Finance income BB - - - - - 35,93 35,935
Finance expenses B%ER - - - - - (115,207) (7115,207)
Other non-operating income HAFEENA 15,284 71472 (13,568) 73,188 7 3473 76,668
Share of resuls of associates EEBELTEE 6,675 - - 6,875 1612 2431 10918
Share of results of joint ventures EEAELEEE - - 26,840 26,840 - = 26,840
Income tax expense AL (175917) (42.982) (79,086) (297 985) (16,007) (50,177) (364,169)
Profit after tax RiEHE 1,121,781
Seqment depreciation and amortisation ARERER 281,940 102,087 1,860 385,837 268 11,802 397,907
Segment non-cash income ABEREUA - - - - 108 - 108
Segment non-cash expenses ABFBREFR (29,300) (4.241) - (33,541) - - (33,541)
Segment assets NHEE 27623624 5143292 6,000,859 38,767,775 580,002 424 393 39,772,170
Interest in joint ventures REtiER - - 517763 517763 - = 517763
Interest in associates BENFES 94,070 - - 94070 106,862 31535 230,467
Financial assets at fair valug through BARBEAER
profit or loss feBEE 6,506 = - 6,506 2,909 - 9415
Financial assets at fair value through other B EE AR 2 ARG
comprehensive income fEmEE 10,400 - - 10400 3,000 - 13400
Total asses BEGE 40,545,215
Segment liabilities HHEE 10,811,541 2,428,834 3,851,122 17,091,497 1,236,313 7,402,833 25,730,643
Segment capital expenditure AHERFHR 268,982 132,264 40 401,676 28 6,385 408,339
(i)  Revenue under Water and Sludge Treatment, Water Supply and Waste Incineration (i) HBZ2023F12A31 B ILBEHEE © KK5E

for the financial year ended 31 December 2023 include construction revenue
arising from the construction of the Group’s service concession arrangements
related assets of RMB1,868.2 million (2022: RMB2,969.1 million).
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44, SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Business segments (continued)
(ii)  The segment non-cash items consist of the follows:

44, HPEH (1)
EESD(E)
(i) PHFELBEAFATEE :

Group
350
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AREFT
Segment non-cash income SBERESWKA
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BARBEAAEENEREE
through profit or loss DR EERE 164 108
Segment non-cash expenses AEBER MK
Loss allowance EEAERE 27,377 33,541
(i) The nature of unallocated segment assets is as follows: (i) RAEHHEEHUENT :
Group
350
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREFT
Amounts due from joint venture BUEERERIE 30,500 23,028
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets ME BERSEARELEE 13,954 61,633
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEKFIR 5,861 7,192
Prepayments TR FE 7,636 10,376
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEEY 253,470 322,164
Total unallocated assets AOLEERE 311,421 424,393
(iv)  The nature of unallocated segment liabilities is as follows: (iv) RPEHHEENHENT :
Group
F5E
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AREFTT
Bank and other borrowings RITRE MR 8,446,044 7,263,265
Trade and other payables B 5 R E e 3RIE 253,071 139,568
Total unallocated liabilities AOEEEESE 8,699,115 7,402,833
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44. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

45.

230

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC. The Group's revenue from
external customers and information about its non-current assets by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

44,

R (H)

WERH
KREOEHEECRAE - ARERAENDRS
AR AR E B A ORI AE DA
MR

Revenue Non-current assets
A FRBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 20224 2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT AR%TT AREFT
PRC i 7,572,892 8,303,884 33,323,000 32,199,224
Singapore ESIIES - - 13,954 20,841
7,572,892 8,303,884 33,336,954 32,220,065
Information about major customers FREIEEZFMEH

Revenue from PRC government amounted to RMB6,288,509,000 (2022:
RMB7,075,647,000) arising from water and sludge treatment, water supply and waste
incineration segment.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT

(a)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it
maintains healthy capital ratios in relation to the nature of its industry in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes the bank
and other borrowings and lease liabilities disclosed in Notes 32 and 23, net
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The Group reviews the capital structure using gearing ratio regularly. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. As part of this review, the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital are being considered. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, return
capital to shareholders or new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt. No major changes were made to the objectives,
policies or processes during the financial years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

45.

KB R EBEBARARG,288,509,0007T
(20224 : AR®7,075,647,0007T) * REKKS
RRIE - KR EREEEDH -

eMIR SRMERRRREETE

(a) BR&ER
AREEAERENTIREGAERELRKE
RANBEHETEEEEBNERLE  AH
EEXBREARERESBRERE -

AEENEARBEREER IR (BRME
REVBEEORTREMETUREESR
&) A RREFENFERARAEAA
EihiEs (BRDBTERA  REMEBERE
tofEfE) o

AEEEREAAGBL XEHEREAR
B AEEEEAEARE  YRGEBR
EHELAR - RERBRET - TREZE
BARARAZBETHANER - A& H
BBBXABS  MRRREEALETH
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BEEARRE - HE2023F 2022512 A
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Capital management (continued)

(b)

45. &MTR eMBRRRFTE ()

(a) REEHE(#)

Group

350
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AREFT
Total borrowings® fEREEEn 20,301,413 19,189,974
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o RERREEED (2,885,781) (2,512,625)
Net debt BEXFE 17,415,632 16,677,349
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARRHEAAELER 10,131,507 9,815,560
Non-controlling interests IR S 5,158,949 4,999,012
Total equity [ S 15,290,456 14,814,572
Net debt/Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARREE AREERFE/Es 1.72 1.70
Net debt/Total equity EBFE/ Enh 1.14 1.13

(" Total borrowings comprise bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities. o

Categories of financial instruments

The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the

reporting period:

EHEERRRTREMEFAREERE -

(b) &FMIAER

TREFINBEHRNEMTA

Group Company
350 e NG|
2023 2022 2023 2022
20234 20224 20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARBTE ARET:R
Financial assets CRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEERAGIENEREE 29,489,375 25,160,388 7,340,617 5,670,983
Financial assets at fair value through other BERAREENAEZELE
comprehensive income NemEE 13,400 13,400 - -
Financial assets at fair value through BAREETAER
profit or loss NEeREE 9,579 9,415 - =
29,512,354 25,183,203 7,340,617 5,670,983
Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REERAENERMARE  (24,063,199) (22,589,344)  (6,959,606)  (5,364,259)
Lease liabilities BEAE (42,614) (42,435) (8,672) (15,138)
(24,105,813) (22,631,779) (6,968,278) (5,379,397)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from its
operations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include
(i) foreign currency risk; (ii) interest rate risk; (iii) liquidity risk; and (iv) credit
risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the
management of these risks, which are executed by the Chief Financial Officer and
Management.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's and Company's
exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and
processes for the management of these risks.

There has been no major change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks
or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of Group's
entities, primarily RMB. The Group has no sales denominated in foreign
currencies other than RMB whilst none of the costs are denominated in foreign
currencies other than RMB. Similarly, the Group’s trade receivable and trade
payable balances at the end of the reporting period have limited foreign currency
exposures and bulk of the sales and purchases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of the Group’s entities which are mainly RMB. Currently,

the Group has not entered into any hedge due to the limited transactional foreign
currency exposure.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company's monetary assets
and monetary liabilities which are significant at the reporting date that are
denominated in currencies other than the respective functional currency of the

Group's entities (“foreign currency”) are as follows:

45. &MTR SRMEBRERRETE ()

(c) eREREEARERKR
AEBERARAEGRERERERTAMN
EXNSRER - TESREBBE()IMNE
BB (M=ER : (IDRBEEAR : K&
(VEERR - EFeRAMBERRRIERF
NEEZERR YhMEFEVEERERR
AT~

AT EEHR{ARARERAD R HEERD
rieRARNEERZERARNEE K
KRIEFHFE -

AEEEBORSLRERIRERRE R
BROFREAREEARE -

(i) SHemBE
AEBEAERBHEIRBORZLEELA
2 REHERRBUAEEERNEEE
B —BER (T2AARK)FE - A&
B3 AR ARBIMOINEEHERHER
B ERREAR ARBINOINEEHE -
A RAREHR - AREOE 5 RYGK
BREHRNFIEEBEETROINER
B ABDHERRBAREEEREEY
REWRHE (ZR2RARK) - BE - AR
ZNERBAER - AEELETAEFE -

ATHIIRBRERRUREEEES BIE
ERANOER ([5M ]) sHERM AR B RA
AREREBEAENRERABRAE

Group Company
*50 VNG|
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
gE fiff gE fif

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
2023% 20226 20235 2022F 2023% 20226 2023% 20226
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB000  RMB’000 RMB000 ~ RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARETr AR®MTR ARETT ARBTR ARETR
SGD (against RMB) ML (AARE) 3,668,020 3,850,688 4,623,901 3708758 3,801,737 3800804 4,628,781 3,178,029
SGD (against HKD) H (AT 45,81 16,797 - 357,746 2,605,337 1,074,070 - -
HKD (against RMB) BT (AARE) 15,700 26,640 15 502,858 - - - -
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

45. &MTR eMBRRRFTE ()

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (c) £MRXREEBFERBE (&)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued) (i) ShEEmBE (1)
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
The following table details the Group's and Company’s sensitivity to a 5% TRANAEBARAATHAEEE
(2022: 5%) increase and decrease in the respective functional currency of EEANEEBEMRR 5% (2022
the Group’s entities, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity F5%) ZBEE MABEMEH
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary BIETE - GRESMEBRERER
items, and adjusts their translation at the year end for 5% (2022: 5%) WERMINEHECEBIER  REX
increase in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates an 25% (2022F : 5%) EMARH A
increase in profit before tax where the above foreign currency strengthens B o UTAMBEHRT LMIMNER R
5% (2022: 5%) against the functional currency of Group’s entities. EEEENNEEEER5% (2022
F : 5%) B 2 BRI R EA AL -
Group Company
*5E 3|
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023%F 20224 2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Increase in profit before tax WRETFAEEm AR®TR AREBTT AR®TR AREFT
SGD (against RMB) FL(RARE) (47,794) 7,097 (41,352) 31,138
SGD (against HKD) o (%) 2,292 (17,047) 130,267 53,704
HKD (against RMB) BT (EARE) 784 (23,811) - -
(ii) Interest rate risk (ii) FIEREBE

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the
Group's and the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s and the Company's exposure
to interest rate risk arises primarily from their loans and borrowings. The
Group’s policy is to manage interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable-
rate debts.

Interest on financial instruments subject to variable interest rates is
contractually repriced regularly. Interest on financial instruments at fixed
rates is fixed until the maturity of the instruments. The other financial
instruments of the Group and the Company are not subjected to interest rate
risks.

MERBRDERRTHFEES - &
BAKERARANERIANRA
BEXARAERELRKFHNAE
B o A& E KA R H B R = E R
IRREEERRER - ARENK
RRERETRFDAEXEHAERE
BEMSKA -

FHNRERTIANTSTHEAH
EFNAE - BEMXRITANMNE
BENEMIANBAYRER - A5
B RARNR A SR T A& X
R -
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for its variable-rate borrowings at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming that

the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year.

At the end of the reporting period, a change of 50 basis points (2022: 50
basis points) higher/lower in interest rate with all other variables held
constant, would result in the Group’s profit net of tax to be RMB58,966,000
(2022: RMB58,477,000) lower/higher.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The
Group's and the Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The
Group’s and the Company’s liquidity position are monitored closely by
the management. The Group’s and the Company’s objective is to maintain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of stand-by credit facilities. In January 2024, the Group had obtained a
RMB1.0 billion long term loan to replace its short term loans that are due
in 2024.

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual
maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's and the
Company's financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on
contractual undiscounted payments. The table include both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.
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(c)

eREREERERBE ()

(i)

(iii)

FIEEBR ()

HRENMN
ATEBRESTBTRBERRTH
M &G mﬁﬁﬁﬁuuﬁﬁﬂfﬂ By E -4
REBMERES KA MERIRE
ERRHBOAE i%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁi/ﬁ
BEMm&ER -

RBEEE - GFIRE M,/ B 50
HEP (2022 : 50K MATEEM
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FIER A /38 50 A R #58,966,0007T
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(c)

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

(continued)

eRERTERRRBE (1K)

(iii) RBELEE (])
BRBREVIRRED
2T (&)

45. &MTR eMBRRRFTE ()

MemTA

Total Carrying
1 year 1to Over undiscounted amount at
or less 5 years 5years cash flows year end
E3iik) REX
1T 1E55F BBSFE HeREdE HREE
Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
F£E AEBTE AR®TR AER®TR AER®TR AER¥TR
2023 2023%
Financial liabilities cREeRE
Non-interest bearing =8 3,806,456 - - 3,806,456 3,806,456
Fixed interest rate instruments®  EEFETAE 1,450,663 3,284,344 166,960 4,901,967 4,575,190
Variable interest rate instruments® FEF|& T A® 5,039,356 7,192,839 5,999,254 18,231,449 15,724,167
Total &&f 10,296,475 10,477,183 6,166,214 26,939,872 24,105,813
2022 20225
Financial liabilities cRERE
Non-interest bearing £ 95N 3,443,861 - - 3,443,861 3,443,861
Fixed interest rate instruments®  EEF|ETA@ 800,642 3,423,401 103,230 4,327,273 3,857,973
Variable interest rate instruments® JFE)F|E T A0 3,738,617 8,178,551 6,237,738 18,154,906 15,329,945
Total =H) 7,983,120 11,601,952 6,340,968 25,926,040 22,631,779
Total Carrying
1 year 1to Over undiscounted amount at
or less 5 years 5years  cash flows year end
E3iik) REXR
18T 1E5F BB5FE HeReEd HRREE
Company RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FaF AERBTT AR®TR AR®TRE AR®TR AR¥TR
2023 2023%
Financial liabilities cREeRE
Non-interest bearing £E 418,172 - - 418,172 418,172
Fixed interest rate instrument© EEFETA 856,873 3,157,073 - 4,013,946 3,732,570
Variable interest rate instrument® JFEHF|E T A 2,895,737 - - 2,895,737 2,817,536
Total Bt 4,170,782 3,157,073 - 7,327,855 6,968,278
2022 20225
Financial liabilities eMRRE
Non-interest bearing £ 95N 410,356 - - 410,356 410,356
Fixed interest rate instrument® EEFEIA 238,162 3,321,584 1,888 3,561,634 3,128,835
Variable interest rate instrument® FE)F|ETAG 1,895,640 - - 1,895,640 1,840,206
Total =H) 2,544,158 3,321,584 1,888 5,867,630 5,379,397
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities
(continued)

@ The effective interest rates ranged from 0.8% to 4.9% (2022: 0.8% to 5.5%)
per annum.

®  The effective interest rates ranged from 0.8% to 6.6% (2022: 0.8% to 7.4%)
per annum.

© The effective interest rate ranged from 3.2% to 4.9% (2022: 3.2% to 4.9%)
per annum.

@ The effective interest rate ranged from 5.0% to 6.5% (2022: 1.2% to 7.4%)
per annum.

(iv) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group
and the Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high
credit rating counterparties.

The Group's objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising
losses incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades
only with recognised and creditworthy counterparties.

Exposure to credit risk

As at reporting period end, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the statements of financial position. The Group's
principal financial assets are trade and other receivables, receivables under
service concession arrangements, cash and cash equivalents and pledged
bank deposits. The amounts presented in the statement of financial position
are net of loss allowance.

The credit risk concentration profile of the Group's trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period is 100% concentrated in PRC (2022: 100%).

Receivables under service concession arrangements relate to consideration
recoverable from certain governing bodies and agencies of the government
of the PRC in respect of construction of water treatment plant/waste
incineration plant and are generally considered as having low risk of
default.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 45. £RTR - &MERRBFEE (§)

MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(iv) Credit risk (continued)
Exposure to credit risk (continued)
The Group's and the Company’s credit risk on cash and cash equivalents

and pledged bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks
with good reputation.

The Group develops and maintains its credit risk gradings to categorise
exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The Group uses its
trading records to rate its major customers and other debtors. The Group
does not hold any collateral to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

(c)

eRERETEEREE (])
(iv) fREERE (&)

EHHEERR ()

HREFANREEBRIFZRT
HAKERARRARERREEEY
REERRTEROEERRER -

AEBHERBERENEERRS
& LME}TEFEEZ'JHM#WMHA
WMAETHE - AEEMNAEEST
fj‘uﬁﬁixgﬁﬁﬁ’m HAET
AR ARELESEEMERRN

RERHSRMEESHANEERR
The Group's current credit risk framework comprises the following AEENRITEERBERBE T
categories: Al
Category Description Basis for recognising expected credit losses (ECL)
&3 ik RRANGEREERNESE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any past-due amounts.  Trade receivables and amounts due from customers for
contract work: lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
REF RSEFHHE DR BRI R REHRIE o RRFEREREPANTRY : FENESREERRE -
TREEEERE
Other financial assets and other items: 12-month ECL
EtemEEREMER : 2EARBEERR

Doubtful Amount is more than 90 days past due for corporate/individual debtors and Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

more than 3 years past due for government debtors or there has been a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
5 2F/ BABBANTERSRENARENESANFERRRARIFHEY FEREREEHE - UARERERE

AR EERREREELEM -
In default Amount is more than 1 year past due for corporate/individual debtors and more Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired

than 5 years past due for government debtors or there is evidence indicating

the asset is credit-impaired.
et REl/EAEBANGERSRBI ERENBERANTERSEAEAAE GRARHEEEE - B4ETHE

BRTHLRESHE -
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off

difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery.
fiis# BEBETERABABRENYBEREAASBTRAARTREEBH HHEESR
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(iv) Credit risk (continued)

238

Exposure to credit risk (continued)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets and
other items, as well as maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating

45. &MTR SRMEBRERRETE ()

(c) EMBRREZBARKRE (M)

(iv) fREEmE (&)

HHHNEERR (8)
TRFALAGESRMEE R EMEAR

MEEERARREER

b B AR AE

AR

grades: MEeEERRHO :
Gross Net
Internal credit ~ 12-month or carrying Loss carrying
Group Note  rating lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount
128 BEHEY
5@ M ABEEFR RUGEER FEESE  FRER RESE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARWTRT ARWTR
2023 20235
Trade receivables 2o RGE 13 Performing Lifetime ECL 4,090,321 (71,152) 4,019,169
RiF FEHRHEEFR
Other receivables Hifelziom 13 Performing/ 12-month/ 999,963 (28,758) 971,205
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
RiF /5 12088/
FESRHEEER
Receivables under service R R 17 Performing 12-month ECL 23,261,211 - 23,261,211
concession arrangements IR
R REABBEEEE
Amounts due from customers EhRFANTIRR 18 Performing Lifetime ECL 75,889 - 75,889
for contract work
RiF FENESNEEER
Long term receivables RAEWFE 26 Performing 12-month ECL 84,395 - 84,395
RiF REABBEEEE
Amounts due from associates AN 19 Performing 12-month ECL 23,319 - 23,319
R REABBEESE
Amounts due from joint venture  [EWAE (M EE 19 Performing 12-month ECL 30,500 - 30,500
RiF REREHEESE
(99,910)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 45. &@®MIR  2HMERREFEE ()
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(¢) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (c) EMRREEASERBE (M)
(iv) Credit risk (continued) (iv) fEERBE ()

Exposure to credit risk (continued) AHNEERR (&)
Gross Net
Internal 12-month or carrying Loss carrying
Group Note  credit rating lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount

12BR HFHER

F5E Mg  ABEEFR RAOEEER FEERE  BRER  RERE

RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTTE ARBTR ARWTR

2022 20225
Trade receivables B AmklzE 13 Performing Lifetime ECL 3,498,220 (60,277) 3,437,943
RiF FERESNEERR
Other receivables i fElGE 13 Performing/Doubtful 12-month/ 1,098,194 (12,256) 1,085,938
Lifetime ECL
RiF/G8 12088/
FENRSEEER
Receivables under service BT S E AT 17 Performing 12-month ECL 23,549,395 - 23,549,395
concession arrangements fElezioE
RiF REABSEERSE
Amounts due from customers BREFAHTIRER 18 Performing Lifetime ECL 71,767 - 77767
for contract work
RiF FREHRHEEER
Long term receivables REEKTIER 2 Performing 12-month ECL 371,580 - 371,580
RiF REREHEESE
Amounts due from associates e & N AR 19 Performing 12-month ECL 62,933 = 62,933
RiF 1REARSEESE
Amounts due from joint venture  EWAE ¥R 19 Performing 12-month ECL 23,028 - 23,028
RiF REAREREESE

(72533)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 45. &@@IR  2RERREFEE (i)
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(¢) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (c) eMRREEASERBRE (M)
(iv) Credit risk (continued) (iv) fEERBE(R)

Exposure to credit risk (continued) AHNEERR (&)
Gross Net
Internal credit ~ 12-month or carrying Loss carrying
Company Note  rating lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount

28R HFHER

F48 Mg ABEEFR ROESER FEERE  BRER  RERE

RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARRTTE ARBTR AEWRTR

2023 023

Other receivables Eth YR 13 Performing 12-month ECL 1,173 - 1,173
RIf REABBEESE

Amount due from subsidiaries WM B AR 19 Performing 12-month ECL 4,180,243 - 4,180,243
RIF RERESHEEESE

Loans to subsidiaries BERTHELRA 19 Performing 12-month ECL 2,997,534 - 2,997,534
R REABBEEEE

Amounts due from joint venture  EMMAELEFE 19 Performing 12-month ECL 22,439 - 22,439
RIf REAEBEESE

2022 20226

Other receivables Hip R 13 Performing 12-month ECL 1,114 = 1,114
RIF REABBEEEE

Amount due from subsidiaries EUHBARTE 19 Performing 12-month ECL 2,414 593 - 2414593
R REABBEERE

Loans to subsidiaries BHTHBAR 19 Performing 12-month ECL 3,161,219 - 3161219
RIF REAESHEEES

Amounts due from joint venture  FEURA BN EZUE 19 Performing 12-month ECL 137 - 137
RIF REABBEEEE

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, REBREAZEMNEEEEELNEREERE

grossed up for any allowances for losses, represents the Group's maximum BEASENGSEERR - WE RAERHE

exposure to credit risk without taking into account of the value of any AR mEEE

collateral obtained.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

45. &MTR eMBRRRFTE ()

(d) MBREBFREERRHHIR

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statements of cash flow as cash flows

from financing activities.

TERBIASERELGHTELARNE

A ARRERIFREEY - REEDM
EXNABARERIARRAERAELEE
BEREREXRANIIARETHELMNR

LRNEME -

Bank and other Lease Amount due to
borrowings liabilities non-controlling Interest
(Note 32) (Note 23)  shareholders payable Total
BITREMER HERAR & £} 3 F2 B
(PHEE32) (PHEE23) BRRIE EfFR =1
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AER%TR AER%TR AER%TR AER%TR AER%TR
At 1 January 2022 R2022%1 A1H 16,628,301 39,746 25,500 69,772 16,763,319
Financing cashflows BMERER 2,541,241 (12,478) (92,674) (793,488) 1,642,601
Non-cash changes HHLE
Dividend declared BERRE - - 135,589 - 135,589
New leases HE - 12,972 - - 12,972
Finance costs recognised ERRHEER - 4738 - 709,188 713,926
Exchange difference fEHZ5 (22,003) (2,543) - 27,626 3,080
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 19,147,539 42,435 68,415 13,098 19,271,487
Financing cashflows RERSE 929,714 (11,124) (89,692) (769,761) 59,137
Non-cash changes HH£EE)
Dividend declared BEEIRKE - - 48,196 - 48,196
New leases FHE - 10,080 - - 10,080
Finance costs recognised ERRHMBER - 2,579 - 830,576 833,155
Acquisition of U BE SR B i 25
non-controlling interests - - 149,598 - 149,598
Exchange difference fEH =5 181,546 (1,356) - (54,001) 126,189
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12A31H 20,258,799 42,614 176,517 19,912 20,497,842
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46.

242

FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Except as detailed in the following tables below, the directors of the Company consider
that the carrying amounts of all other financial assets and financial liabilities that are
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements to approximate
their fair value, due to their short-term nature, that they are floating rate instruments
that are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the end of the reporting period, or
the discount rate used to amortise the instruments approximates the prevailing market
interest rates.

(i) Fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

46. RERARMOARE
BRTRAFAESN  ARBREERRAA MR
AR BRREBERAENEREEREREE
MEREEEAAABERE REAEBESE
B AERBRERRIEOREHROTHENEE
MEENFBNETE  AAREHEE AN
RERERTHHMNERME -

(i) EMRELAAREDNREFEERSELR
fAE

Valuation technique  Significant

Financial assets Fair value Fair value hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable input  Range
FEHER EXTUHE
eHEE NRRE NRRERR EERA AR BARE #E
2023 2022
2023% 02%
Group RMB’000 RMB'000
550 AR®TT ARETT
Financial assets at FVTOCI
BROAREHARMRERRNEMEE
Unlisted equity security 13,400 13400 Level 3 Market approach Discount for lack of 25%
marketability
FLTRAES E=h sk iz EnRtE
Financial assets at FVTPL
BROAREHAREHERMEE
Listed equity security 3,073 2909 Level 1 Quoted price in an Not applicable Not applicable
active market
FmRAES & RNEBTHRE TER TER
Put option on unlisted equity security 6,506 6,506  Level3 Market approach Discount for lack of 25%
marketability
FEMRAZFIRG e F=R sk B mEnatTE

For unlisted equity securities, a significant increase/decrease in discount for lack
of marketability would result in a significantly lower/higher fair value.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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46. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 46.

(ii) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis and whose

RERARMOAME (W)

(i) FRERZEFHERULOAREFEAR
BEHELFAAREHSEELEZEMR

carrying amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair value EREMARHLOAEE
2023 2022
2023 20225
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount Value amount value
IREE [REE BRAEE NREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR AEBTR AREFT AREFT
Financial assets CTREE
Receivables under service MRS E THIE T
concession arrangements®@ FEYCRIR® 21,410,273 22,740,832 17,571,277 17,932,803
Financial liabilities cRERE
Bank and other borrowings: RITREMER
— Fixed rate borrowings® — ERERe (4,532,576) (4,584,566) (3,815,538) (3,689,497)

@ The fair values of receivables under service concession arrangements and bank and
other borrowings as disclosed in the table above are classified under level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy and the fair values are estimated by discounting expected future
cash flows at prevailing interest rate or borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting
period. Any significant isolated increase (decrease) in the discount rate will result in
a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement.

(@) ERPIEEEREHFFEE R HR TR
BARBTREAMERORABEIER
ARBEEBRFE=FR AnEBENREHR
BBFRBRBARASRBRTHELER
MRS - RE 2 EMBEBLIEM ORl
D) RBRAA EEFERE TR (L)

47. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN SFRS(I)S AND INTERNATIONAL 47. (#inikEPRR#EE%ER) B (ERMBRE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSS”)

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, there were no material
differences between the consolidated financial statements of the Group prepared under
SFRS(I)s and IFRSs.

A (T(ERRpHEEER)]) HHIR
BZ22023F12 A31H %2022F12 A1 BIEFE -
RIE G NEBIR P B R E ) R(ERMBRS
EARHNAKEG AV BREAMEEAZE -

Annual Report 20235 &% 243



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MRS EaR

31 December 2023
202312 A31H

48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

244

(i)

(i)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed that a final
dividend of S$0.006 per share be paid to shareholders. This dividend is subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Annual General Meeting and has not
been included as a liability in these financial statements. The total estimated
dividend to be paid is S$15.45 million (approximately RMB82.70 million).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company had, at its discretion,
adjusted the interest rate of the first tranche corporate bonds from 3.89% to
2.99%, effective from 15 March 2024. Pursuant to the relevant terms of the
issuance of the first tranche corporate bonds, holders shall have an option to
partially or fully sell back the corporate bonds to the Company after the interest
rate adjustment.

The Company has committed financing arrangements with financial institutions
in place for the financial institutions to directly take up the bonds, through
an intermediary, that existing holders will exercise their option to partially or
fully sell back after the interest rate adjustment. Notwithstanding the above, the
Company had made the decision to buy back and cancel 1,415,000 Corporate
Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of RMB141,500,000 at the sell back price
of RMB100 each. The Company will take such steps as are required to cancel
such corporate bonds registered for sell-back.

After the cancellation, the outstanding principal amount of the first tranche
corporate bonds will be RMB1,358,500,000, representing approximately 90.6% of
the initial principal amount of the first tranche corporate bonds, and the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of the first and second tranches of the corporate
bonds will be RMB2,858,500,000.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

48. HERMEER

(i)

WEBRRE - EFRZMBRRN RBARS
BR0.006%7 7T - WS ARBRRBFAE L
BEREAE - ARZFHBHRRPULEE
REEFIR - BIRFAE GRS EER1,545
BT (MARES27087T) °

WEMKE  KABEBBEE—HRAE
FHFI=H3.89% 0% A2.99%  B202443
A15EREM - BEBITE—PLRESN
HBIET  BEABRERERNZARER
ARREEDHHEHARES o

ARRESREBITARER  HEmE
BEATNHBERRARAEREALEE
ERENXHERDENHIXEHARE
%o BEBLARTE  ARAIEAELRR
31,415,000 R RIES - FEBEAAR
#141,500,0007T * EEEBREHARE100
T ARABEBSEREEHEBCERL
EEMRAES

AR - FHAREFNABERSER
A AR 1,358,500,0007T - AMEFE—HIR
AEFTREASENI.6% ME—HRE
“HRAEFNREELERBRAARE
2,858,500,0007T °



Number of Shares

gt L=

Number of Treasury Shares and Percentage
EFRHBERESL

Number of Subsidiary Holdings and Percentage
MEARFRBERESLL

Class of shares
B R4 R

Voting rights

STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
*%'Hin}béﬁ—-l-%-ﬂ;ﬁ

As At 11 March 2024
R20244%3A11H

2,675,665,726
2,575,665,726

Nil
s

Nil
-

Ordinary Shares
LRk

One vote per share

=i s
DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS SRAE
NO. OF NO. OF
SHAREHOLDERS % SHARES %
SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS HRNE BEME % RFME %
1-99 1-99 4 2.41 752 0.00
100 - 1,000 100 - 1,000 209 12.30 103,758 0.00
1,001 - 10,000 1,001 - 10,000 583 34.32 3,218,055 0.13
10,001 — 1,000,000 10,001 — 1,000,000 788 46.38 76,830,448 2.98
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 1,000,001 A £ 78 4.59 2,495,512,713 96.89
TOTAL #at 1,699 100.00 2,575,665,726 100.00
TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS A=+ XBR
NO.  NAME NO. OF SHARES %
B &R & BHRE %
1 S.I. TRIUMPH POWER LIMITED 986,929,551 38.32
FENBERAR
2 THE HONGKONG AND SHANGHAI BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED 599,612,614 23.28
BB DBESRTERAH
3 BOCI SECURITIES LIMITED 244,685,217 9.50
FIREIEEZERAR
4 S I INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED 165,418,475 6.42
FEEEERERAR
5 0CBC SECURITIES BROKERAGE (HK) LTD 116,177,900 451
EEBEFER (BE)BERATA
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
BERATEE

As At 11 March 2024
R2024463A11H

NO.  NAME NO. OF SHARES %

P W MR B E %

6 CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 86,234,936 3.35
CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

7 GUOYUAN SECURITIES BROKERAGE (HONG KONG) LIMITED 76,078,400 2.95
BTAEA LR (BE) BRAA

8 CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (HONG KONG) LIMITED 42,457,000 1.65
CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (HONG KONG) LIMITED

9 HAITONG INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES CO LTD 34,744,000 1.35
BEEREFERAF

10 DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 33,111,253 1.29
DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED

11 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 31,042,670 1.21
CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD

12 CITIBANK N.A. 25,292,452 0.98
TEPESRTT

13 STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (HONG KONG) LIMITED 25,237,300 0.98
BT RIT(BR) BRAR

14 INTERACTIVE BROKERS HONG KONG LIMITED 17,630,328 0.68
BEBHBERERDA

15 UBS SECURITIES HONG KONG LTD 14,971,209 0.58
UBS SECURITIES HONG KONG LTD

16 RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE.) LIMITED 13,629,602 0.53
RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE.) LIMITED

17 BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED 12,394,000 0.48
FERTT(BE) BRAR

18 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 12,220,343 0.47
PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD

19 CITIC SECURITIES BROKERAGE (HK) LTD 11,574,000 0.45
PEEHFER (BE) BRAT

20 BANK OF COMMUNICATIONS TRUSTEE LIMITED 11,386,300 0.44
RBRITEEERAF
TOTAL
#at 2,283,487,550 88.65
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Substantial Shareholders as at 11 March 2024

R2024F3R11AMEERE

(As recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders) (MEERRBMAER)
Direct Deemed
HiE R
Number of Number of
Shares % Shares %
308 ] % B8 E %
S.I. Triumph Power Limited (‘“Triumph’)") FENBERAR (A1 986,929,551 38.32 - -
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL")" L& &EEERARAR ([ LEER]) O - - 1,268,485,926 49.25
S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“SII")® FEEEERARAR ([LEEENO 165,418,475 6.42 986,929,551 38.32
China Energy Conservation & Environmental HEENBEIRIR (B) REBR AT
Protection (Hong Kong) Investment Co., Limited ([ HEi&E (F%) )@
(‘CECEPHK’)? 223,712,917 8.69 -~ -
China Energy Conservation and Environmental R E &R RREBBR A
Protection Group (‘CECEP")® (T+EEERR])@ - - 223712917 8.69
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited® EEREERERARG - - 1,287,856,926 50.00
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury
Company Limited® Company Limited® - - 1,287,856,926 50.00
Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) EEEE (RE)ERAR([LE]D®
Company Limited (“SIIC")® - - 1,287,856,926 50.00
Value Partners Classic Fund BEEEED 205,567,980 7.98 - -
Value Partners Limited (‘VPL")® BEAESEEAR (BB 7,524,940 0.29 = =
Value Partners Hong Kong Limited (‘VPLHK')® REEGEEDZEEGR AR ([BEEHE)W 224,075,980 8.70 7,524,940 0.29
Value Partners Group Limited ("VPGL")® SEEEERAR ((EEEE]))@ - - 231,600,920 8.99
Cheah Capital Management Limited (‘CCML")® Cheah Capital Management Limited ([CCML ) - - 231,600,920 8.99
Cheah Company Limited (‘CCL")® Cheah Company Limited ([€CL])® - - 231,600,920 8.99
BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Ltd BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Ltd
as trustee of The C H Cheah Family Trust® (fERHBBRIRETEMZEA)® - - 231,600,920 8.99
BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited® BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited® - - 231,600,920 8.99
Cheah Cheng Hye® HEE = = 231,600,920 8.99
To Hau Yin® HIHE® = — 231,600,920 8.99
Notes:— B zE -

(1)

Each of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited, which is controlled by
the Shanghai Municipal People’s Government (through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, SIIC Capital (B.V.l.) Limited, SIIC Trading Company
Limited, Shanghai Industrial Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Company Limited and SIC CM
Development Limited), and Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, holds more than 20% of the
issued and paid-up share capital of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL"), which owns
all the issued and paid-up share capital of S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited, which in turn owns
all the issued and paid-up share capital of S.I. Triumph Power Limited (“Triumph’). In addition,
SIHL owns all the issued and paid-up share capital of SIHL Treasury Limited. As such, Shanghai
Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited, Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, SIHL
and S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“SII") are deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Triumph and SIHL Treasury Limited (excluding SII). SIHL Treasury Limited holds 116,137,900
Shares.

LAEE (5E)ARAR (R LEMARBFEALZE
KB AR (BN LR EERER AR SIIC Capital (B.V.1.)
Limited - EAEXESERAR - LEEXSRER(F
B)ERRAK EDEEXSHARERERAR) 25 &
EBRERRERAAGERE LEEXERERAR
(TEBER]) 220% A LERTTRBERA - EEERK
BELEERERERARZE2HERTRAREA - M
TEERERERARNEE LENBERAR ([HE])
ZEBERTREREA - jtoh - LERREE LEHHK
ERERAFAZEDERETRARKA - Al - LEEE
(5E)BRAA - EEREERERAR - LEEREE
EEEPRRERAF([LEER) BB ERIBRLE
BEEEERAR (TRELEER)BEZRTHES
2% o FEUHERARARREE116,137, 900 &AL
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
BERATEE

As At 11 March 2024
R2024463A11H

)

CECEPHK is deemed interested in the shares held through account of BOCI Securities Limited
in CCASS Depository. BOCI Securities Limited is the agency of CECEPHK. CECEP is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by CECEPHK as CECEP owns the entire issued share capital of
CECEPHK.

Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited is directly interested in approximately 47.77% of the
total issued share capital of SIHL and is indirectly interested in approximately 7.36% of the total
issued share capital of SIHL through its wholly-owned subsidiary SIIC Capital (B.V.I.) Limited.
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited is directly interested in 100% of the
total issued share capital of Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited. In addition, SIIC is interested
in approximately 63% of the total issued share capital of SIHL through its directly and indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiaries. Therefore, each of SIIC, Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury
Company Limited and Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited is deemed to be interested in a total
of 1,287,856,926 Shares by virtue of their interests in SIHL.

VPL is a fund manager deemed to be interested in the Shares by reason of Shares held directly by
the funds under its management. Cheah Capital Management Limited is deemed to be interested
in the Shares via its 21.82% ownership in Value Partners Group Limited. Value Partners Group
Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares via its 100% ownership in Value Partners Hong
Kong Limited. Value Partners Hong Kong Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares via its
100% ownership in VPL. Cheah Company Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares via its
100% ownership in Cheah Capital Management Limited. BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company
Limited holds the shares in Cheah Company Limited as nominee for BNP Paribas Jersey Trust
Corporation Limited. Cheah Cheng Hye is deemed to be interested in the Shares in his capacity as
the founder of a discretionary trust (‘The C H Cheah Family Trust’) with BNP Paribas Jersey
Trust Corporation Limited as the Trustee. To Hau Yin is deemed to be interested in the Shares in
her capacity as the beneficiary of The C H Cheah Family Trust.

SHAREHOLDINGS HELD BY THE PUBLIC

Based on the information available to the Company as at 11 March 2024, 33.03% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company are held by the public. Accordingly, the Company
had complied with Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST and Rule 8.08 of The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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(3)

Mg (B8 WRARERTRABREFERARRS
RPREELGESFERSENRDPEAES - PR
BREFERATATEHEE (BE) HRER - AR E
R RREA AR (B) 2D HTRA -
ERRRBURIER R &R L (B8 HAMBI P A -

FEREERERARERES LEERERITIRAL
BENATTT% 0D - WRBE2EMBAFSIC Capital
(B.V.I.) Limitedfi#% %A L EEREZITRABEN
7.36%H#E25 - Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury
Company Limited B HHE LR EZRERAREET
PRAMBE100%HER - 1o T EBBEERLBES
ERENNBARNER LEEREZTRABEL63%
F)4EZ o Atk - £F - Shanghai Industrial Investment
Treasury Company Limited & E/BHREEBRERARHERA
RER FERROERMER ARG #1,287,856,926/%
BRiphHEEER

BREREERESMAERBARG - SURGERRG %
HERKESEEA - Cheah Capital Management Limited
FERNEREBAR DR Z21.82%F MG ERK
DHEEER BEESEFRAFSENEEALER
BEBMRARZ100% %A %R ERRGD T HA#E
o BEECEREAERATNEANIEZ100%%EE
MR ER AR A HEZS - Cheah Company Limited
B Cheah Capital Management Limited, 2 100%
BREMBESERRMDFESELZ - BNP Paribas Jersey
Nominee Company LimitedE{E&BNP Paribas Jersey
Trust Corporation Limited#)1X3E Aifi%5% Cheah Company
Limited {5 - #E/8E K ABNP Paribas Jersey Trust
Corporation Limited (fEAZFEA) M—ERIEES ([#E
BRKET]) HABAMBESIERRD P HEA LR « 117
ERERHEBREETNE SR MR ERRG %
Bt o

LRFFR

BEADAN2024E3ANBHFABER - RREFR
NEER{TEBRMN33. 03% ° Hilt - ARABETHR
F{EmFMIET235RABERYRARBABERARES
EARAI)E8.08 4 -
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